Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you'll enjoy
the following benefits:

- Efficient, integrated PDF viewing
« Easy printing

« Quick searches

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8,
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.


http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


FOUNDED
MAY 15, 1821

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell

*

STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk

*

MEETING LOCATION
Commissioners Conference Room
Suite 100
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214

*

MEETING TIMES
1** Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.

*

COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex
Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210

*

WEB SITE
www.fayettecountyga.gov

*

E-MAIL
administration@fayettecountyga.gov

Worksstotp Agenda

Board of Commissioners
October 6, 2010
3:30 P.M.

Call to Order.

Acceptance of Agenda.

REPORT:

A

Presentation of the monthly update on the County’s 2010 Transportation
Work Plan by Public Works Director Phil Mallon.

B. Presentation of staff's Preliminary Engineering Report for the paving of Sims
Road.

OLD BUSINESS:

C. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Permits and Inspections
Department Fee Schedule to increase the Commercial Roofing/Repair Permit
fees.

D. Discussion of adding a structure located at the corner of Old Greenville Road
and Goza Road to the County’s Nuisance Abatement List.

E. Continued discussion of proposed amendments which update the Fayette
County Zoning Ordinance in its entirety and which would add it to the Fayette
County Code of Ordinances.

F. Architects for the Library’s current Expansion Project Lord, Aeck, and Sargent
will present drawings and other information to the Board regarding this
project.

G. Discussion of staff's recommendation concerning a policy for the disposition
of requests for assistance with the interment of indigent persons.

NEW BUSINESS:

H. Discussion of staff's recommendation that amendments be made to the

existing policy which addresses filming on County property by movie and
television companies.

Consideration of a request from Human Resources that the County consider
the selection of a new third party administrator for its Workers Compensation
Insurance Program.



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov

http://www.fayettecountyga.gov

mailto:administration@fayettecountyga.gov



Agenda
October 6, 2010
Page 2

J. Approval of staff's recommendation for final supplemental budget adjustments for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2010.

K. Discussion of proposed street names resulting from the construction of the West Fayetteville By-Pass, Phase
| and the extension/re-configuration of existing County roads.

L. Discussion of revisions to the Ethics Ordinance.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS

BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION

ADJOURNMENT






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): Joe Scarborough, Scott Bennett
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: |Old Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of adding a structure located at the corner of Old Greenville Road and Goza Road to the County's Nuisance Abatement List.

Background/History/Details:

During the June 2, 2010 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting, the Board discussed four structures in Fayette County that were
abandoned and foreclosed. After the discussion, several of the Commissioners signed complaints against the four structures which
began Nuisance Abatement proceedings against those four structures. The Board has been given periodic updates on this progress
during subsequent meetings.

The Board has recently received complaints concerning a fifth structure that should be considered for the Nuisance Abatement List. This
fifth structure, located at the 481 Old Greenville Road, was not brought to the Board because communication with banks and mortgage
companies involved was underway, since progress looked attainable, and since the issues appeared they could be adequately
addressed. The progress has stalled.

Commissioner Maxwell will be asking for approval to file the required Complaint against this property so that the site can be vetted
through the Nuisance Abatement process.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Discussion of adding the structure located at 481 Old Greenville Road to the County's Nuisance Abatement List and direction to staff.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Funds will be expended to complete the process if the structure is placed on the Nuisance Abatement List, however, the amount of funds
required is unknown at this time. An attempt will be made to recover the full cost by placing a lien on the property.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when?  |Wednesday, June 2, 2010

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? Yes Back-up Material Submitted? No
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:







COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: County Commissioners Presenter(s): County Commissioners
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of staff's recommendation that amendments be made to the existing policy which addresses filming on County property by
movie and television companies.

Background/History/Details:

In 2007, the Board adopted a policy for addressing requests for the use of county-owned properties by movie and television production
companies. At that time, the policy required that every request for permission to film on county-owned property be placed on an agenda
for approval by the Board of Commissioners. The policy also sets out some requirements on the part of the production company.

Since 2007, requests for filming have become more frequent, but often cannot work out because of the time frame involved. Itis
common for the production company's locations agent to contact the County and need an answer within days. When any item must be
scheduled for action by the Board of Commissioners, the process itself requires 2-3 weeks before Board action can be taken.

The changes in the policy being proposed changes the approval of the request from the Board to a Committee, and ultimately to the
County Administrator if a consensus of Committee members cannot be reached.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Discussion and consideration of the proposed changes to the Filming Policy. If the Board approves the changes to this policy, staff
requests that the amended policy be placed on the October 14, 2010 Consent Agenda for formal approval.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Not Applicable.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past?  |No If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? No Back-up Material Submitted? Yes
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:






FAYETTE COUNTY
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

AMINISTRATION
Film Permits

100.07
PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the issuance, approval, and fees associated with the
granting of permits for filming by television companies, movie companies, or other media in Fayette
County.

POLICY

Fayette County requires a Film Permit to be obtained by any person, company or agency filming on
County-owned property, County road right-of-way or inside County buildings. There shall be a consistent
and uniform process for the issuance of Film Permits in Fayette County.

PROCEDURE

1. Obtaining and Submitting Film Permits

A. Film Permits may be obtained through Fayette County’s Administration Office upon meeting
the conditions set out in this policy. An application for a film permit can be obtained by
contacting said office.

B. An application for a Film Permit should be accompanied by a copy of a Certificate of
Liability Insurance for the person, company or agency filming, with no less than $1,000,000 of
liability insurance. The Certificate of Liability should list the “Fayette County Board of
Commissioners” as additional insured.

C. In the event that special provisions are made to secure locations, including parking areas,
for traffic enforcement, or other items/issues of an exclusive nature, supporting documentation
should be attached to the Film Permit Application.

D. Upon request by the County, a copy of the portion of the script of the scene that will be
filmed on Fayette County property must be included with the Film Permit Application.

2. Review of Submitted Film Permit Applications

E. A Film Permit Committee is hereby established and will consist of the Fayette County
Administrator, the Executive Assistant to the Board of Commissioners, and the Director of Utility
Services, or their designees.

F. The Film Permit Committee shall review the portion of the script of the scene that will be
filmed on County property. Fayette County reserves the right to issue or deny a film permit based
on script content described in the script provided. The Committee may request further
information or explanation of script content.

G. Fayette County reserves the right to issue or deny a Film Permit based on expected disruption
to the County’s business/operations and in cases deemed to be detrimental to the County’s best
interests.





H. The Film Committee shall reach a consensus on whether or not a Film Permit should be
issued and shall have the authority to approve or deny the request for a permit. If consensus
cannot be reached, the final decision shall be made by the County Administrator.

I. Every effort will be made by Fayette County to expedite the processing of a Film Permit
Application. However, if the timeframe for which the Permit is needed is not deemed reasonable
by the County for processing, Fayette County reserves the right to reject an application for a Film
Permit immediately upon receipt.

Film Permit Fees

J. A fee shall be charged for filming at Fayette County’s properties or buildings in the following
amounts:

a. One Hundred Dollars ($100) per day for filming at passive locations that do not
produce excessive disruption to routine County business/operations or to the
general public.

b. Five Hundred Dollars ($500) per day for filming at active locations that may

produce excessive disruption to routine County business/operations or to the
general public.

Retention of Film Permit Records

K. At the conclusion of the application process and granting of a Film Permit, two copies of the
Film Permit should be signed by the County Administrator or in his absence by the Executive
Assistant to the Board of Commissioners, and by the authorized representative of the company or
agency applying for the permit. One copy of the approved permit, along with any supporting
documentation, should be kept on file in the County’s Office of Administration. The second copy
shall be kept on the site of the filming and is the property of the person listed on the permit
application. Electronic copies of these documents may also be kept in the same manner as
described.





		Commissioners- Filming Policy Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Commissioners- Filming Policy Backup




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: County Commissioners Presenter(s): Carol Chandler
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: |Old Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of staff's recommendation concerning a policy for the disposition of requests for assistance with the interment of indigent
persons.

Background/History/Details:

The law in Georgia requires that the governing authority in all counties shall provide a "decent interment” for what can be determined as
an "indigent" person. The person must be in Fayette County when he or she passes away.

Historically, requests for burial assistance have been received only from time to time, perhaps one per year. With the coming of a
hospital and other care facilities in Fayette County, the number is increasing from to 2-3 legitimate requests per year.

For many years, the County Clerk has processed the requests for burial assistance that come to the Commissioners' Office through a
variety of ways. Every effort is made to prove indigency, through interviews with family members, case workers, or others who have
knowledge of the person's situation.

The policy being proposed simply puts the practice that is in place in the form of a written policy.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Discussion and consideration of the proposed Indigent Burial Policy. If the Board approves this policy, staff requests the policy be placed
on the October 14th Consent Agenda for formal approval.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Not Applicable.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? No— If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? No— Back-up Material Submitted? Yes
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:






FAYETTE COUNTY
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

ADMINISTRATION
INDIGENT BURIALS

100.09
PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the disposition of requests for assistance with the
interment or cremation of deceased persons who are determined to be “indigent” and for whom no other
responsible party is available to provide for final arrangements of the decedent.

POLICY

In accordance with Georgia law, the governing authority of all counties is required to provide for the
“decent interment” of eligible deceased persons. Requests for assistance are processed by the Office of
the Board of Commissioners. A determination of eligibility for assistance is made through a variety of
means, depending upon the circumstances involved in each request. Requests for assistance come from
numerous sources, including but not limited to:

e The deceased is discovered by a Public Safety agency and no family is found;

e The deceased died at Piedmont Fayette Hospital or other care facility in Fayette County
and no family is available or family is not able to pay final expenses;

o Family of the deceased contacts the County because there are no funds available from the
estate of the deceased or from the family to pay for burial;

e The County is contacted by a funeral home who has had contact with the family of a
deceased who has no visible means for paying burial expenses;

e The Department of Family and Children’s Services refers clients to the County;

e The deceased has a legal guardian who is not able to pay burial expenses;

e Other.

Requests for assistance will be processed in accordance with the Procedure outlined below. The process
allows for careful consideration of all circumstances involved with each request and for discretion to be
used in each case. However, no exceptions will be made to the following:

e The deceased must have died in Fayette County;

If cremation is the option chosen, all requirements for cremation in Georgia must be met;

e No funds are paid to family members, guardians, heirs or others involved in the application for
assistance from the County. The County must receive an invoice from a funeral home or
crematory to which payment will be made;

e Payment by the County will not include any expense for any type of funeral service, such as a
“viewing” or “wake”.

o If an inmate dies while in the Fayette County Jail, all applicable requirements shall be met, based
on whether or not the inmate is a “state” or “county” inmate, whether or not the inmate can be
considered indigent, and circumstances surrounding the inmate’s death.





PROCEDURE

1. Receiving and Review of Applications for Assistance

Requests for assistance with final expenses for eligible deceased persons are processed by the County
Clerk for the Board of Commissioners or his/her designee. An application form must be completed by
staff for evaluation. At a minimum, the application will include information about the deceased,
circumstances of his/her death, and details about the financial condition of the deceased.

2. Determining Eligibility for Assistance by the County

The County shall evaluate the financial situation of the deceased by using whatever means necessary. The
County may consider receipt of Social Security Disability, Food Stamps, or Medicaid benefits as a
substantial element of eligibility. Proof of these benefits can be obtained from the Department of Family
and Children’s Services or from the Social Security Administration, if proof is not provided by a family
member, guardian, or other associate. National Poverty Guidelines may be considered. Every effort will
be made to determine if the deceased owned assets sufficient to warrant the effort necessary for the
County to obtain the asset(s) in order to recover funds paid out by the County toward final expenses.

Next-of-kin, guardians, case workers, neighbors and others may be interviewed as a part of the process of
determining indigency of the deceased.

Effort should be made to determine if next-of-kin or the legal guardian of the deceased is able to able to
contribute financially to the burial expense of the decedent.

3. Determining Where Interment Shall Be

The County owns a limited number of burial plots which are available for the remains of an eligible
indigent decedent. When an application for assistance is received, a determination is made as to the
availability of an existing burial plot for the deceased. If no plot is available, the County will provide a
plot. If cremation is chosen and no one is available to accept the cremation remains, the County will
likewise provide a place for burial of the cremation remains.

4, Determining Final Arrangements

The County Clerk for the Board of Commissioners or his/her designee will ensure that the final
arrangements for the interment or cremation of an eligible decedent are made in a timely manner,
typically 5 to 10 days. Once a determination is made that the County will provide indigent burial
assistance, the Clerk is authorized to negotiate with funeral homes and/or crematories for the most
reasonable and economical burial or cremation available. There is no obligation to use local providers of
these services, as long as providers are in the State of Georgia.

Cremation. Though cremation is an ever-increasing practice, it is not mandatory that remains of an
eligible indigent decedent for whom the County pays final expenses must be cremated. The County may
offer next-of-kin the option of cremation of the deceased. If the next-of-kin agrees to cremation of the
deceased, it shall be the responsibility of the service provider to ensure that compliance with State law
occurs, including proper execution of all required documentation. The service provider shall be the
primary custodian of said documents.





When there is no known next-of-kin, guardian, or other party involved in the final arrangements of an
eligible indigent decedent, the County shall not cremate the remains but will inter the remains in a burial
plot provided by the County.

5. Determining Level of Assistance

Based on all available information concerning the eligibility of the deceased for burial assistance by the
County, considering any availability of a donated burial plot, assets of the deceased,
donations/contributions toward burial costs by family, friends, church members or others, and
negotiations with a funeral home or crematory, the County Clerk or his/her designee will determine the
amount of funding Fayette County will pay to provide for the “decent interment” of the eligible deceased.

The County will only pay the cost of opening and closing the grave, an economy vault and an economy
casket made of wood or metal. In the case of cremation, the County will only pay the cost of cremation
which includes a standard container for the ash remains. On occasion, there may be a cost associated with
transporting a body from a morgue or the State Crime Lab to a funeral home or crematory. The County
will review this cost and will make a determination as to whether or not the County will pay this expense.

6. Final Payment

Upon receipt of an invoice from the approved funeral home or crematory, the County will pay the agreed
upon cost for the final arrangements for the deceased.





		Commissioners- Indigent Burial Policy Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Commissioners- Indigent Burial Policy Backup




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Commissioners Presenter(s): Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of revisions to the Ethics Ordinance.

Background/History/Details:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

This item is only for discussion at this time.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?

If so, when?

Back-up Material Submitted?

Yes

Approved by Finance
Approved by Purchasing

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:

STAFF USE ONLY

Yes

Not Applicable

Yes

Reviewed by Legal

Approved by County Clerk

Yes

Yes






STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF FAYETTE

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE
COUNTY, GEORGIA CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; TO PROVIDE FOR
ETHICAL STANDARDS; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE
FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; TO REPEAL
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES
ALLOWED BY LAW.

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of
Commissioners thereof;

WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the
ethical standards of county officials and employees as allowed by the State of Georgia;

WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia
shall be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY,
GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF:

Section 1. That Article VIII of Chapter 2 Administration of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette
County, Georgia is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced to read as follows:

Sec. 2-207. Purpose.

The proper operation of local government requires that the public officials
and employees be independent, impartial and responsible to the people; that the
government decisions and policy be made through proper channels of the
governmental structure; that public office not be used for personal gain; that the
public officials and employees be free from the appearance of impropriety; and
that the public have confidence in the integrity of its government. In recognition
of these goals, a code of ethics for all county officials and employees is adopted.
The purpose of this policy is to establish ethical standards of conduct for all such
officials and employees by setting forth those acts or actions that are incompatible
with the best interests of the county and by directing disclosure by such officials
and employees of private financial or other interests in matters affecting the
county.





Sec. 2-208. Definitions.

Business entity means any business, proprietorship, firm, partnership,
person in either a representative or a fiduciary capacity, association, venture, trust,
or corporation.

Confidential information means any information which, by law or
practice, is not available to the public.

County official or official shall mean the county board of commissioners,
county administrator, county attorney and his assistants, and any county employee
who has been appointed to the position by either the county administrator or the
board of commissioners acting independently or jointly and any member of any
other county board or authority.

Employee shall include all those persons employed on a regular or part
time basis by the county.

Immediate family means an official or employee and the spouse of an
official or employee, their parents, children, brothers and sisters related by blood
or marriage.

Interest means direct or indirect pecuniary or material benefit accruing to
a public officer, official, or employee as a result of a contract or transaction which
is or may be the subject of an official act or action by or with the county except
for such contracts or transactions which, by their terms and by the substance of
their provisions, confer the opportunity and right to realize the accrual of similar
benefits to all other persons and/or property similarly situated.

For purposes of this policy, a county official or employee shall be deemed
to have an interest in the affairs of:

(1) his or her immediate family;

(2) any business entity in which the county official or employee is an
officer, director, or member having a financial interest in, or employed by
it; or

(3) any business entity as to which the stock, legal ownership, or
beneficial ownership of a county official or employee is in excess of five
percent of the total stock or total legal and beneficial ownership, or which
is controlled or owned directly or indirectly by the county official or
employee.

Official act or action means any legislative, administrative, appointive or
discretionary act of any official or employee of the county or any agency, board,
committee, authority or commission thereof.





Reprimand means an expression of disapproval.
Sec. 2-209. Standards.

(a) Interest in contract or transaction. No county official or employee having the
power or duty to perform an official act or action related to a contract or
transaction which is or may be the subject of an official act or action of the county
shall:

(1) have or thereafter acquire an interest in such contract or transaction, or

(2) have an interest in any business entity involved in such contract or
transactions, or

(3) have solicited or accepted present or future employment with a person
or business entity involved in such contract or transaction, or

(4) have solicited or accepted a present or future gift, favor, service, or
thing of value from a person involved in such contract or transaction,
except as provided in section 2-210, below.

(b) Pre-acquisition of interest. No county official or employee shall acquire an
interest in a contract or transaction which is or may be the subject of an official
act or action of the county at a time when the county official or employee believes
or has reason to believe that such contract or transaction will be directly or
indirectly affected by an official act or action of the county.

(c) Disclosure of information. No county official or employee shall without
proper legal authorization, disclose confidential information concerning the
property, government, or affairs of the county, or use such information to advance
the financial or other private interest of himself or others.

(d) No county official or employee shall waive the attorney-client privilege or
disclose any documents protected by the attorney-client privilege without the
consent of the majority of the board of commissioners.

(e) No county official or employee shall disclose to others matters discussed in
executive session of any board or commission without the consent of the majority
of the board of commissioners or until after the minutes of the meeting is required
to be released as a matter of law.

(F) Incompatible service. No county official or employee shall engage in or accept
private employment or render service for any private entity, when such
employment or service is incompatible with the proper discharge of his official
duties or would tend to impair his independence of judgment or action in the
performance of his official duties, unless otherwise permitted by law and unless
disclosure is made as provided in this policy.





(g) Appearance. No county official or employee shall appear on behalf of any
private person other than himself, his spouse or minor children, before any county
agency, authority or board. However, a member of the board of commissioners
may appear before such groups on behalf of his constituents in the course of his
duties as a representative of the electorate or in the performance of public or civic
obligations.

(h) Public property. No county official or employee shall request or permit the
unauthorized use of county-owned vehicles, equipment, materials or property for
personal convenience or profit.

(i) Special treatment. No county official or employee shall grant any special
consideration, treatment or advantage to any citizen beyond that which is
available to every other citizen in the same or similar circumstances.

(j) Later case interest. No county official or employee shall, after the termination
of service or employment with the county, accept remuneration of any kind for
any appearance before any board, commission, committee, agency or authority of
the county on behalf of any adverse party in relation to any case, proceeding, or
application in which he personally participated during the period of his service or
employment, which was under his active consideration during the period of his
service or employment, or as to which he could have acquired knowledge or
information during the period of his service or employment.

(k) Political recrimination. No county official or employee, whether elected or
appointed, shall promise an appointment or threaten the dismissal from any
county position as a reward or punishment for any political activity.

() Withholding of information. No county official or employee shall knowingly
withhold any information which would impair the proper decision making of any
of the county board, authorities, agency or commissions.

(m) Payment of debts. All county officials and employees shall settle all accounts
between them and the county, including the payment of taxes, in a timely fashion.

(n) Organizational integrity. County commissioners, as policy makers, shall
refrain from interfering in the daily administrative affairs of department directors.
Commissioners shall not, acting alone, make suggestions to the department
directors or their employees regarding the performance of their duties, nor give
instructions to department directors or other employees. Commissioners shall not
make recommendations regarding the hiring, firing or disciplining of department
directors and other county employees.

Sec. 2-210. Exceptions.

(@) It shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy if the interest
of a county official or employee in a person or business entity is a contractual
obligation of less than $500.00 which has not been preceded by any other





obligation, discharged or existing, between the parties, and which is not the first
in a series of two or more loans or debts which either of the parties is under any
obligation to make or incur.

(b) The following shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy:

(1) Legitimate salary, benefits, fees, commissions, or expenses associated
with an official’s or employee’s non-public business;

(2) An award, plaque, certificate, memento, or similar item given in
recognition of the official’s or employee’s civic, charitable, political,
professional, or public service;

(3) Food, beverages, and registration at group events to which all similarly
situated employees or officials are invited,

(4) Actual and reasonable expenses for food, beverages, travel, lodging,
and registration for a meeting which are provided to an official or
employee so that he or she may participate or speak at the meeting;

(5) A commercially reasonable loan made in the ordinary course of
business;

(6) Any gift with a total value less than $100.00 in any calendar year;
(7) Promotional items generally distributed to public officials generally;
(8) A gift from a member of the public official’s immediate family; or

(9) Food, beverage, or expenses afforded public officials or employees,
and members of their immediate families, or others that are associated
with normal and customary business or social functions or activities.

(c) It shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy if a county
official or employee, in his capacity as such official or employee, participates in
the making of a contract even if such official or employee has a private pecuniary
interest or performs in regard to that contract some function requiring the exercise
of discretion on his part, if;

(1) The contract is awarded through a process of public notice and
competitive bidding, or

(2) The board of commissioners at regular meeting, after determining that
it is in the best interest of the county to do so, authorizes the participation.





Sec. 2-211. Disclosure of interest in legislative action.

(a) Any member of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia who
has financial or personal interest in any proposed legislation before the
commission shall immediately disclose on the record the nature and extent of such
interest.

(b) Any other official or employee who has a financial or personal interest in any
proposed legislative action of the board of commissioners, and who participates in
discussion with or gives an official opinion or recommendation to the
commission, shall disclose on the record the nature and extent of such interest.

Sec. 2-212. Abstentions.

A county official or employee who has an interest that he has reason to
believe may be affected by an official act or action shall abstain from any
participation in the same.

Sec. 2-213. Enforcement and administration.
(a) Constituting the board; chairman.
[TBD]

(b) Duties of board. The board of ethics shall have the following duties and
POWETrs:

(1) To administer the ethics ordinance;

(2) Toreceive, review, investigate, process, make determinations on, and
hear complaints of violations of standards required by this chapter. The
board is not designed to be an oversight board or to perform investigations
without first receiving a complaint;

(3) To make such investigation and response to a complaint as it deems
necessary to determine whether any person has violated any provisions of
this chapter;

(4) To hold such hearings and make such inquiries as deemed necessary
to investigate and rule upon complaints; or

(5) To report its findings and actions to the board of commissioners.
(c) Administration.
(1) Complaints.

a. All complaints of ethical violations must be filed with the
county clerk, in writing, signed by the complainant, no later than





90 days after the alleged act occurred unless the complainant, by
exercising reasonable diligence, failed to discover the alleged
ethical violation within such 90 day period. In such a case, the
complainant must file a written complaint with the county clerk no
later than 90 days after the complainant discovered the alleged
violation. In all such cases brought after 90 days from the date of
the alleged ethical violation, the complainant bears the burden of
convincing the board of the true date complainant learned of the
alleged violation.

b. In no event, shall an ethical charge be filed with the county
clerk more than two years from the date of the alleged ethical
violation.

c. The complainant may withdraw the complaint at any time in
writing.

(2) Pay and staff support.

a. The members of the board of ethics shall serve without
compensation. The governing authority of the county shall provide
meeting space for the board of ethics. Subject to budgetary
procedures and requirements of the county, the county shall
provide the board of ethics with such supplies and equipment as
may be reasonably necessary for it to perform its duties and
responsibilities.

b. The county clerk shall serve as the recording secretary to the
board and shall provide such administrative services to the board
as may be necessary.

(3) Action by the board. Within 30 days of receipt of a complaint from the
county clerk, the board may perform one or more of the following:

a. Upon receipt of a complaint in proper form, review the
complaint to determine whether the complaint is unjustified,
frivolous, patently unfounded or fails to state facts sufficient to
invoke disciplinary jurisdiction. The board of ethics shall be
empowered to collect evidence and information concerning any
complaint and to add the findings and results of its investigation to
the file containing such complaint;

b. Upon completion of its review and/or investigation of a
complaint, the board at a public meeting may dismiss those
complaints which are unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or
which fail to state facts sufficient to invoke disciplinary
jurisdiction. Provided, however, that a rejection of such complaint
by the board of ethics shall not deprive the complaining party of





any action he/she might otherwise have at law or in equity against
the respondent. A rejection shall prevent refiling of a complaint
regarding the same subject(s) and alleged perpetrator(s) for the
same offense;

c.  Admonish, formally reprimand, publicly censure, any
complaining party that files an unjustified, frivolous, patently
unfounded or factually insufficient complaint;

d. Forward an order to the board of commissioners; or

e. Hold a public hearing within 60 days after the complaint was
received.

(4) Parties rights. At any hearing held by the board of ethics, the official,
employee, or respondent who is the subject of inquiry shall have the right
to written notice of the allegations at least ten business days before a
hearing, to be represented by counsel, to hear and examine the evidence
and witnesses and to present evidence and witnesses in opposition or in
extenuation according to the procedures contained in subparagraph (6).

(5) Advisory opinions. When any official, employee, or person appointed
by the board of commissioners has a doubt regarding the applicability of
any provision of this chapter to a particular situation, or regarding the
definition of its terms, he may apply in writing or verbally during a public
meeting to the county attorney for an advisory opinion. The advisory
opinion shall be written unless it is given verbally during a public meeting,
and may be provided directly to the requestor of such opinion. Nothing in
this chapter shall be construed to prohibit a request for an informal opinion
by any public official from the county attorney regarding a potential
conflict of interest. Neither a request for an informal opinion, nor the
making of a statement concerning a potential conflict of interest made by a
member of the governing body in the course of abstaining from voting
shall create a presumption or inference that a public servant actually has a
personal interest in the matter about which the opinion was requested.

(6) Hearing procedures.

a. At the hearing the conduct of the parties shall be dignified both
on and off the record.

b. Misconduct before the board may be grounds for summary
exclusion from the hearing. The hearing is intended to receive
evidence either to refute or to substantiate specific charges. It shall
not be a forum for discussion of extraneous or irrelevant matters
having no bearing on the charges, and the alleged misconduct of
others who may have escaped discipline in the past shall serve as
no defense. All parties at action and witnesses shall be given





ample time and opportunity to develop points, subject to the
discretion of the board.

c. It should be recognized that the board will be composed of
private citizens. Accordingly, the board may not follow established
legal procedures as might be expected in a court of law. However,
in taking testimony and in considering the evidence, the board
shall follow accepted legal procedure insofar as is practicable but
shall not be bound by the technical rules of evidence observed in
courts of law. The board may decline to listen to numerous
character witnesses or numbers of witnesses testifying to identical
facts.

d. The chairman of the board of ethics shall conduct the hearing.

e. The hearing shall be recorded and the county clerk shall prepare
a written summary of the hearing. The complainant and/or
respondent may provide a court reporter at their expense for a
verbatim transcript of the hearing, if so desired. The county clerk,
or their designee shall take minutes of the hearing, specifically
including the name of the board members who make any motions,
the board members who second any such motions, and the names
of the individuals on the board and how each voted. This written
report shall be presented to the board of commissioners at the
conclusion of the board’s proceedings.

f. All three members of the constituted board shall be required to
conduct the hearing. If a member is unable to attend the hearing,
the board of commissioners shall designate one of the alternates to
replace the member. The ethics board may, before the hearing and
upon ten days notice to all parties, approve regulations governing
conduct of ethics board hearings so long as such regulations do not
conflict with this Article.

g. The person who filed the complaint (“complainant”) shall
present his case to the board first.

h. All documentary evidence which is anticipated to be submitted
to the board at the hearing by either the respondent or the
complainant, and the names, with telephone numbers, of all
individuals expected to present testimony to the board on behalf of
either the respondent or complainant, must be given to the county
clerk and the opposing party at least ten days in advance of the
hearing. This requirement shall not apply to evidence used solely
for purposes of cross-examination or rebuttal. The failure of a
party to adhere to this rule shall preclude such party from tendering
such evidence or individual’s testimony at the hearing through any





form. The respondent, complainant, and the public shall be entitled
to see all such lists which are placed on file with the county clerk.

i. The board may compel the production of any document in the
possession of the county and subject to the Open Records Act and
the testimony of any county employee except where the employee
is the respondent. Where the board compels any such document or
testimony after a hearing has commenced a continuation shall be
provided so that such order can be complied with.

J. Neither party shall have the right to require depositions of any
individual, including the opposite party.

k. The complainant’s evidence must prove that respondent is
guilty of the offense charged by the evidentiary standard
commonly referred to as “preponderance of the evidence.”

I. Each witness presented by the complainant, and including the
complainant, shall be subject to cross-examination by the
individual accused of the ethical violation (“respondent”) or such
person’s representative.

m. At the conclusion of the complainant’s case, the respondent
shall be entitled to move for dismissal based on insufficient
evidence on the part of complainant’s case. If respondent makes
such a motion and the board, by majority vote, agrees to dismiss
the complaint, the hearing shall be terminated at this point. If either
the respondent fails to make such a motion, or, if the board decides
by majority vote to overrule respondent’s motion, the hearing shall
continue. The board may also direct a decision in favor of the
respondent upon the board’s own initiative.

n. Respondent shall then be entitled to present his evidence to the
board.

0. Respondent is not required to testify. The absence of
respondent’s testimony shall not be viewed by the board as an
admission of any sort.

p. If respondent testifies, then respondent shall be subject to cross-
examination by complainant. All other witnesses who testify in the
respondent’s case shall be subject to cross-examination by
complainant.

g. All persons who testify before the board, shall be placed under
oath, by either the chairman or a person designated by the
chairman.

10





r. At the conclusion of respondent’s case, the complainant may
offer rebuttal evidence only to those items presented in
respondent’s case. At the conclusion of complainant’s rebuttal,
respondent shall be entitled to offer rebuttal evidence only to those
matters presented in complainant’s rebuttal case.

s. During the course of testimony and at the conclusion of all the
testimony and closure of all of the evidence, the board members
may ask questions of any of the individuals who testified before
the board.

t. At the conclusion of all questions by parties and board members,
the chairman shall end the hearing and permit the board to
deliberate in public. If the board decides by majority vote that
additional evidence is needed to make a decision, the board shall
have the authority to require either the complainant or respondent
to submit additional evidence at a continuation of the hearing
which must be held no later than 45 days after the date of the initial
hearing. The board has no authority to continue the hearing past
this 45-day deadline.

u. Following the conclusion of any additional evidence received at
the continued hearing, the board shall continue to deliberate. When
deliberations are concluded, the chairman shall call for a vote. The
board may vote immediately after deliberations are concluded or
they may continue the meeting for up to two weeks when a public
vote must be taken. The board’s first vote must be whether the
respondent violated the ethics code as charged by the complainant.
If, by majority vote, the board rules that the respondent did not
violate the ethics code as charged by the complainant, then the
matter is concluded. If the board, by majority vote, concludes that
the respondent did violate the ethics code as charged by the
complainant, then the board must make a second decision by
majority vote. The second decision involves the form of penalty.
The board shall have six options of penalty which include:

i. No admonishment and no further action;

ii. A public reprimand and admonishment not to violate the
ethics code in the future;

iii. Formal reprimand,
iv. Public censure;

v. Recommendation for termination, resignation, or recall;
or

11





vi. Recommendation of prosecution in the State Court of
Fayette County.

v. The complainant may withdraw his or her complaint at any time
without the approval of the board.

w. An order will be generated by the board and submitted to the
board of commissioners for inclusion in the minutes within fifteen
(15) days of the completed hearing.

(d) Judicial review of decisions.

(1) Any public official adversely affected by any final decision of the
board of ethics under subsection (f) of this section may obtain judicial
review of such decision as provided in this subsection.

(2) An action for judicial review may be commenced in the Superior
Court of Fayette County within 30 days after the decision of the board of
ethics becomes final.

(3) The effective date of the final decision of the board of ethics shall be
postponed pending judicial review as provided for in this subsection.

(4) The record on review, unless otherwise stipulated by the parties, shall
include the original or certified copies of all pleadings, testimony,
evidence, exhibits, and other papers presented to or considered by the
board of ethics and the findings and decisions of the board of ethics. As to
alleged procedural irregularities, evidence may be taken independently by
the court.

(5) If the court finds no error, it shall affirm the decision of the board of
ethics. The court shall hold unlawful and set aside the decision of the
board of ethics if it finds that such action was:

i. Arbitrary or capricious;
ii. A denial of a statutory right;
iii. Contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege, or immunity;

iv. In excess of statutory jurisdiction, authority, purposes, or
limitation;

v. Not in accord with the procedures or procedural limitations of
this section or as otherwise required by law;

vi. An abuse of discretion, unsupported by substantial evidence
when the record is considered as a whole; or

12





vii. Otherwise contrary to law.

(6) The decision of the trial court shall be subject to appellate review in
the same manner and with the same effect as in appeals from a final
judgment or decree in any other civil action.

Sec. 2-214. Penalties.

(a) Employees are subject to the following penalties and actions for a breach of
this code of ethics:

(1) Written warning or reprimand;

(2) Suspension without pay;

(3) Termination of employment;

(4) Recovery of value transferred or received by the county, and,;
(5) Cancellation of the contract or rejection of the bid or offer.

(b) County officials are subject to the following penalties and action for breach of
ethics:

(1) Written warning or reprimand;
(2) Cancellation of the contract or rejection of the bid or offer;
(3) Recovery of the value transferred or received, and

(4) Debarment or suspension from award of county contract for a period of
up to three years.

Sec. 2-215. Compliance with applicable laws.

No officer, official, or employee shall engage in any activity or transaction
that is prohibited by any law, now existing or hereafter enacted, which is
applicable to him or her by virtue of his or her office.

Secs. 2-216—2-220. - Reserved.

Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby
incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein.

Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all
Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their
enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and
constitutional.

13





b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest
extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that,
to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of
this Article.

c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any
reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of
Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest
extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the
greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and
Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.

Section 4. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict
herewith are hereby expressly repealed.

Section 5. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise
specified herein.

IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS DAY OF , 2010.

FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

JACK R. SMITH, CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:

CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK

14





15





		Commissioners-Discussion of R...s OrdinanceAgenda RequestFile.pdf

		Commissioners-Discussion of Revisions Ethics OrdinanceBackup




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Finance Presenter(s): Mary Holland
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Approval of staff's recommendation for final supplemental budget adjustments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Background/History/Details:

Georgia Law requires that each fiscal year has a "close-out". Part of this process requires that the final budget be amended to reflect
actual expenditures. Consequently, a final supplemental budget adjustment is needed.

The information included as back-up indicates those line items requiring a budget adjustment. We request that for each general fund
expenditure item that the budget be adjusted to the amounts indicated with the funding being from the additional general sales and use
tax revenue received. For each special revenue fund we request the expenditure budget line items be adjusted to amounts indicated by
using additional revenues generated by that fund, except for confiscated property funds which will be funded from fund balance. We
request the water system expenses be adjusted to the amounts indicated with funding from other expense accounts.

Note: Due to the nature of both the US Customs and Federal Confiscated Funds, those revenues and expenditures are not included in
the original adopted budget and are thus included in the final fiscal year end budget amendment.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Approval by the Board to make the supplemental budget adjustments for the close-out of FY 2010.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past?  |Yes If so, when?  |Annually

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? No Back-up Material Submitted? Yes
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:






		Finance- Year End Close Out Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Finance-General Fund 2010 Sales Tax Backup1

		Finance-General Fund 2010 Year End - Exp Backup2

		Finance-Special Revenue Fund - Exp Backup3

		Finance-Special Revenue Fund - Rev Backup4

		Finance-Water System 2010 Year End-Exp Backup5








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Human Resources Presenter(s): Connie Boehnke
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of a request from Human Resources that the County consider the selection of a new third party administrator for its
Workers Compensation Insurance Program.

Background/History/Details:
Fayette County has utilized Underwriters Safety & Claims, Inc. as it's Workers Compensation Insurance Third Party Administrator for
about twenty years. However, staff feels that a change in vendors is warranted and would like to discuss this issue with the Board.

Through Pacific General, the County's benefits advisors, Atlantic General Underwriters, Inc. issued a Request for Proposals on behalf of
the County to locate prospective vendors that provide this type of service. Proposals were received from four vendors. Of those four
responding vendors, two were selected for serious consideration, Affinity Service Group and CorVel Enterprise Comp, Inc.

Staff has evaluated these two vendors and will present their findings to the Board.

If the Board is in agreement with staff's recommendation, this issue will be placed on the Board's October 14 Agenda for action. If a new
vendor is selected, the effective date would be January 1, 2011, since the current provider must have 60 days notice.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Following staff's presentation of information, if the Board concurs with the request, this item will be placed on the October 14 agenda for a
vote by the Board.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? No— If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? No— Back-up Material Submitted? No
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:







COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Library Presenter(s): Chris Snell, Greg Ownby and Others
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: |Old Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Architects for the Library's current Expansion Project, Lord, Aeck, and Sargent, will present drawings and other information to the Board
regarding this project.

Background/History/Details:

On May 27, 2010, the Board of Commissioners awarded Proposal #P737 for architectural services for the proposed expansion of the
Fayette County Public Library to Lord, Aeck, and Sargent, Inc.

The project includes an expansion of the southeast side of the existing Library by 4,200 square feet, and an extension to the Meeting
Room on the north side of the building by an additional 1,000 square feet.

The architectural firm was engaged to complete the appropriate design work, specifications, and other documents. Upon completion of
their work, requests for bids for by suitable contractors will be issued.

This expansion is slated for completion by August 2011.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
This presentation is for information only. No action is requested.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
The Library's SPLOST fund is being utilized to pay for this expansion project.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past?  |Yes If so, when?  [May 27, 2010

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? No Back-up Material Submitted? No
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  |Yes Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:







COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Permits and Inspections Presenter(s): Joe Scarbrough / Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: |Old Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of proposed amendments to the Permits and Inspections Department Fee Schedule to increase the Commercial Roofing/
Repair Permit fees.

Background/History/Details:

The Permits and Inspections Fee Schedule may be amended by the Board of Commissioners per the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Sec. 5-142. Schedule of permit and other fees, (a) Schedule.

At the Board of Commissioners Workshop held on August 4, 2010, staff proposed to increase the Commercial Roofing/Repair Permit
fees from $50.00 to $325.00, however, the Board of Commissioners directed staff to continue reviewing the proposed fee and to present
their additional findings at a future Workshop.

Staff subsequently met with County Administrator Jack Krakeel to discuss the proposed fees. Based on that discussion, staff's
recommendation for changes in the fee structure is to calculate the permit fee based on the square footage of the structure, in order to
recover departmental costs, such as the hours required for inspection, number of separate inspections, and hourly wage of the inspector
certified to perform the inspection. Attached information shows the formula being proposed.

If the fee increase is approved by the Board of Commissioners, its will become effective on January 1, 2011, in order to allow time to
notify the industry of the fee increase.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Staff would like to have direction concerning this request. Upon the Board's consent, if given, staff will draft a Resolution for the County
Attorney's review, and said Resolution will be presented at the October 28, 2010 Board of Commissioners Meeting. No Public Hearings
will be required since the Building Code is part of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when?  |Wednesday, August 4, 2010

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? No Back-up Material Submitted? Yes
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:





















		Permits and Inspections- Commercial Roof Fee Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Permits and Inspections- Commercial Roof Fee Backup




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Planning and Zoning Presenter(s): Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: |Old Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Continued discussion of proposed amendments which update the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance in its entirety and which would add it
to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.

Background/History/Details:

At the Board's annual planning meeting in January, 2009, they instructed staff to begin review of the Zoning Ordinance in its entirety.
Since that time staff has performed a comprehensive review of the entire Zoning Ordinance and has worked with the Planning
Commission and received input from citizens and various business owners in the community, including the telecommunications industry.
The Zoning Ordinance is currently a stand-alone ordinance; however, upon adoption by the Board of Commissioners, it will become part
of the Fayette County Code, as recommended by the County Attorney to be in compliance with State Law. This is a large document
which will require considerable review by the Board. Staff expects a series of meetings at which the Board will have questions and
opportunities to provide input and direction. At the appropriate time, advertising and public hearings will add an additional 30 days to the
adoption process. Proposed amendments to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Text and Map include the SR 74 North East Side
Special Development District (see Article VII of the Zoning Ordinance) and the Planned Unit Development - Planned Small Business
Center Special Development District (see Article VI of the Zoning Ordinance.)

Staff presented its Executive Summary explaining the major proposed amendments to the Zoning Ordinance to the Board at their
Workshop on August 4, 2010. Staff would prefer the ordinance be ready for public hearings by October or November, if the Board so
desires. The Board instructed Staff to place the ordinance on the October 6, 2010, Workshop for follow-up discussion.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Direction to staff on how the Board would like to proceed. Eventually, permission to advertise for public hearings to be held by the
Planning Commission and the Board of Commissioners will be needed.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Funds are not needed at this time, but will be part of an overall cost to update the Fayette County Code.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when?  [Wednesday, September 1, 2010

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? No Back-up Material Submitted? Yes
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:






Executive Summary of the Revisions to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance
August 4, 2010

The purpose of this document is to summarize the recommended amendments to the Fayette
County Zoning Ordinance. The Board of Commissioners instructed Staff to begin a
comprehensive review of the Zoning Ordinance at their retreat in January of 2009. Since that
time, Staff and the Planning Commission have been working on a comprehensive review of the
Zoning Ordinance. During this process, input was received from citizens and local business
owners, including the telecommunications industry. While there are still some issues that Staff
and the Planning Commission need to continue working on, portions of the ordinance have been
reviewed, amended, and are ready for public hearings and adoption. Several property owners are
waiting for amendments to the ordinance so they can move ahead with plans for their properties.

The current Zoning Ordinance was adopted on November 13, 1980, and is 40 years old. As
conditions change, the ordinance needs to be updated. The Zoning Ordinance in its entirety will
be renumbered for placement into the County Code. Below is a comment on the amendment of a
Zoning Ordinance:

AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE

It is obvious that provisions must be made for changing the regulations as conditions
change or new conditions arise. Otherwise, zoning would be a “strait-jacket” and a
detriment to a community instead of an asset.

Comment from A Standard State
Enabling Act, United States
Department of Commerce, 1926.

In addition to the proposed amendment to the Zoning Ordinance, Staff is also recommending that
the Zoning Ordinance be adopted into the Fayette County Code. This will bring the ordinance in
compliance with State law requiring regulations to be codified.

The following is a summary of the key recommended amendments to the Fayette County Zoning
Ordinance:

Article I11. Definitions
Amendments to Article I11. include 53 new definitions, 47 existing definitions that were
amended to be more definitive, and the deletion of 11 definitions which were either obsolete or

not used in the ordinance. The following new definitions were added to Article I1I:

Acquisition of Property for a Public Purpose. The acquisition of property by an entity with the
power of eminent domain.

Aircraft. Any machine, whether heavier or lighter than air, used or designated for navigation of,
or flight in, the air.

Aircraft Landing Area. Areas designed for safe landing and departures, including runways and
heliports.

3-1





Airplane. A fixed-winged aircraft that is supported in flight by dynamic reaction of the air
against its wings.

Amphitheater. An open-air facility primarily used for entertainment purposes, commonly with
tiers of seats facing a performance stage.

Aircraft Hangar. Defined as a fully enclosed structure with operational doors designed to store
aircraft and the associated equipment or supplies needed for the operation and maintenance of the
aircraft.

Apiary. A place where bees and beehives are kept.

Aqguaculture. The hatching, raising, and breeding of fish and/or aquatic plants for sale.

Aviary. Any place where birds are kept confined for breeding, boarding, or similar purposes.

Bed and Breakfast. (see Hotel).

Cemetery or Burial Ground, Legal Nonconforming. An existing cemetery or burial ground
established before the effective date of this Ordinance (November 13, 1980) or subsequent
amendments which fails to comply with the provisions herein. These cemeteries or burial
grounds could be active, inactive, or abandoned.

Child Care, In-Home. A custodial care business, conducted as a home occupation in a residential
dwelling, where not more than three (3) children, not related to the operator, are received for
temporary care during the day only, whether for compensation, reward, or otherwise, and in full
compliance with all applicable State requirements and/or certifications. The children of the owner
are not included in the count.

Convenience Store. A small retail establishment that offers convenience goods for sale, such as
prepackaged food items, beverages, tobacco, personal care items, and other household goods.

Cultural Facility. A facility for social, intellectual, artistic and/or scientific exposition such as
museums, performing arts theaters, botanical gardens, and zoological parks.

Day Spa. An establishment commonly offering beauty care, facials, massages and/or body
treatments, including the sales of related products.

Dog Pen /Run. Any outside open air enclosure, consisting of 400 square feet or less, used for the
purpose of containing dogs.

Drive-Thru. An opening in the wall of a building or structure designed and intended to be used
to provide service to customers who remain in their vehicles.

Educational/Instructional Facility. A specialized training establishment.

Front Door. The main entrance to residence or building which is normally oriented to a street.

Habitable Space. A space in a building for living, sleeping, eating or cooking. Bathrooms, toilet
rooms, closets, halls, storage or utility spaces and similar areas are not considered habitable
spaces.

3-2





Grocery Store. A retail establishment which primarily sells food and household goods, but is
substantially larger and carries a broader range of merchandise than a convenience store.

Helicopter. A rotary winged aircraft that depends principally upon the lift generated by one (1) or
more engine-driven rotors rotating on a substantially vertical axis for its primary means of
propulsion.

Heliport. An area of land, water, or structure used for the sole purpose of landing and takeoff of
helicopters.

Horse Quarters. A structure used to house horses in the residential zoning districts.
Horse Stable. A structure used to house and/or board horses in an A-R Zoning District.

Museum. A permanent institution in the service of society and of its development, open to the
public, which acquires, conserves, researches, communicates and exhibits the tangible and
intangible heritage of humanity and its environment, for the purpose of education, study and
enjoyment.

Nonconformance, Illegal. A lot, use, building, or structure established after the effective date of
this Ordinance (November 13, 1980) or subsequent amendments which fail to comply with the
provisions herein.

Overlay Zone. A zone that imposes a set of requirements in addition to those set out by the
underlying zoning district.

Planning Commission.  The commission to which the responsibilities associated with the
Planning Commission has been delegated.

Playhouse. A small house-like structure designed for children to play in.

Runway Safety Area. A cleared, drained, graded, and stable area symmetrically located about the
runway, the dimensions of which include the runway width, and which is suitable for an airplane
to overrun should it accidentally veer off the pavement.

Sales, Garage/Yard. Garage/yard sales shall include all sales entitled "garage sale", "lawn sale",

"attic sale", "rummage sale", “moving sale”, or “estate sale”.

School, Private. An elementary (Kindergarten thru sixth grade and can include Pre-K), middle or
high school, supported with private funds, providing a curriculum that meets State Board of
Education requirements, including schools serving school age children with special needs.

School, Trade/Vocational. See Educational/Institutional Facility.

Service Area. A designated space, generally out-of-doors, utilized for utility areas, storage and
pickup, and for the delivery of goods and services to any building or land use.

Shooting Range, Indoor. An indoor facility for the safe shooting of firearms, including both
facilities which are open to the general public or open only to private membership.

Shooting Range, Outdoor. An outdoor facility for the safe shooting of firearms, including both
facilities which are open to the general public or open only to private membership.

3-3





Solar Farm. Any lot where more than three (3) ground mounted solar panels exceeding 200
cumulative square feet, or where more than 900 cumulative square feet of ground mounted solar
panels are located.

Solar Panel. A device consisting of an array of connected solar cells or photovoltaic cells that
converts solar energy (light from the sun) into heat or electricity.

Special Event. A temporary, short-term event commonly held by a religious, educational, or
community organization or a promotional event to attract attention to a place of business.

Split Zoning. A lot divided by more than one (1) zoning district.

Stadium, Athletic. An open-air facility primarily for the viewing of athletic events, usually with
tiers of seats rising around a field or court.

Story. The portion of a building, other than a basement, included between the surface of any
floor and the surface of the floor next above it.

Taxi Service. A service that offers transportation in passenger vehicles to persons in return for
remuneration. This does not include Charter and/or Motor Coach Bus Service.

Thoroughfare, Minor Arterial. A street designated on the Thoroughfare Plan which provides
traffic movement within and through the County.

Tower, Planned. Any tower that is in the approval process or has been approved, but not yet
constructed. (see Article V.)

Training Center. A facility used for business or professional conferences, seminars, and training
programs.

Tutoring. The provision of instruction.
Vehicle, Passenger. A wheeled motor vehicle for transporting passengers which is designed to

run primarily on roads, principally for the transport of people rather than goods, and shall exclude
a motor coach/bus.

Walkway. A passage to provide walking assess such as walks, paths and steps.

Water Distribution System, Central. Mains and service lines owned and operated by the Fayette
County Water System, or, when approved by the County Commissioners, a private water system
operating under the direct supervision of the Department of Natural Resources.

Weight, Curb. The total weight of a vehicle with standard equipment, all necessary operating
consumables (e.g. motor oil and coolant), a full tank of fuel, while not loaded with either
passengers or cargo.

Wind Farm. Any lot where more than one (1) wind turbine for the purpose of generating
electricity is located.

Wind Turbine. A freestanding alternate energy device which converts wind energy into electrical
energy. A windmill shall also be deemed a wind turbine when used in association with an
agricultural operation.

3-4



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Weight�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Vehicle�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Consumable�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Motor_oil�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Coolant�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fuel�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Passenger�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Cargo�



Zoning Board of Appeals. The board to which the responsibilities associated with the Zoning
Board of Appeals has been delegated.

Article IV. Establishment of Districts

The following sections added to Article IV. reflect departmental policy dealing with parcels with
split zoning and parcels split by corporate limits.

Where a zoning district boundary divides a lot created after November 13, 1980, the property shall be
rezoned to one (1) zoning district prior to submittal of a Preliminary Plat, Final Plat, Site Plan, and/or
building permit, as applicable. Any existing development/structure located on a lot with multiple
zonings which were lawfully built and existing prior to the adoption of this regulation (adoption date)
and which does not conform to the provisions of this Article, shall be allowed to remain in place and
shall be deemed a Legal Nonconformance which may include the lot, use, and/or structure.

In addition, any development (Preliminary Plat, Final Plat, Site Plan, and/or building permit, as
applicable) that involves multiple lots to be utilized as one (1) lot shall be required to be combined.

Corporate Limits. Any lot divided by corporate limits (city or county) shall meet fully the
requirements of Fayette County, on the portion of the lot that is within unincorporated Fayette County
for the purposes of a building permit. All corporate limits dividing a lot will be viewed in the same
manner as a property line. Setbacks are measured from corporate city limit lines and/or county
boundary lines.

Article V. General Provisions

Generally, Article V. was amended to provide clarification to existing regulations based on
departmental policies, procedures, and reorganized to put related topics together. Key
amendments to this article include the following:

Accessory Structures and Uses.

The following accessory structures and uses were added: Solar Panel (ground mounted); Wind
Turbine/Windmill (all ground-mounted); Aircraft Hangar, detached (see Article VII); Dog House
and Dog Pen/Run; Playhouse; and Outdoor Kitchen and/or Fireplace.

The following section concerning the number of accessory structures and uses and a well/pump
house were added:

A dog house, dog pen/run consisting of 200 square feet or less, playhouse, ground/pole mounted solar
panel consisting of less than 200 square feet, ground-mounted wind turbine/windmill, and uncovered
outdoor kitchen and/or fireplace were added to the list of items that would not be included in
determining the number of accessory structures allowed on a lot.

A well/pump house of 70 square feet or less may be located in the front yard and within any setback
(front, side or rear).

3-5





The Architectural Standards requiring a gable, hip, or gambrel roof only, with a minimum pitch of 4
1/2” in 12” on an accessory structure has been deleted. This regulation proved to be too
burdensome for citizens in terms of an accessory structure.

The following restrictions are proposed for a Solar Panel (ground mounted) and a Wind
Turbine/Windmill (ground-mounted):

Solar Panels (ground-mounted). Ground mounted solar panels shall be limited to three (3) per lot,
the total cumulative square footage of ground mounted solar panels shall not exceed 900 square feet,
shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height, shall comply with the required setbacks, and shall comply
with the location of an accessory structure/use. Ground mounted solar panels consisting of less than
200 cumulative square feet shall not count toward the number of accessory structures/uses. Ground
mounted solar panels consisting of 200 cumulative square feet up to a maximum of 900 cumulative
square feet shall be counted as one (1) accessory structure/use.

Wind Turbines/Windmill (ground-mounted). Wind Turbines/windmills shall not exceed 70 feet in
height. The setbacks shall be equal to the height of the wind turbine, including the blades, or the
applicable zoning district setbacks, whichever are greater. Each lot is limited to one (1) ground
mounted wind turbine/windmill. The ground mounted wind turbine/windmill shall not count toward
the number of accessory structures/uses. All anchors for guyed towers shall meet the setbacks for the
applicable zoning districts.

Walls, Fences, and Entrance Structures located in a front yard in A-R and all residential zoning
districts and Residential and Nonresidential Subdivision Entrance Walls and Fences.

Barbed wire and electric fences will be prohibited in front yards except for situations of
agricultural operations on A-R property and residential zoning districts where horses can be kept.

Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers.

Extensive work was done on this section. The original section was written in 1998. This was a
time when cell phones were not as widely used as they are now, cell systems basically only
carried phone calls and the industry was trying to provide cell coverage to the commuting
corridors as cell phones were generally used in vehicles, as opposed to, the home which was
connected to a land line. Now, cell systems are carrying more than just phone calls with new
technologies in hand held devices which provide access to the internet and e-mail requiring more
carrying capacity. In 2008, the CDC conducted a study that determined that one (1) in five (5)
households in Georgia had disconnected from their land line and were now completely
depending on wireless service for phone and internet connection. This has caused the industry to
shift its focus to providing service to residential areas. Work on this section also included
clarification of existing regulations and reorganization. Key amendments to this section include
the following:

A statement was added to clarify that the Board of Commissioners is the only body that may
reduce or waive the requirements under this section, through the public hearing process.
Normally, the Zoning Board of Appeals provides this function in terms of zoning regulations.

Governmentally owned property (local, state or federal) will be exempt from the tower
regulations. The existing regulations state that the County will follow these regulations for the

3-6





placement of a cell tower on County property. In the one situation where the County placed a
cell tower on County property, the BOC exempted itself from these regulations. The regulations
also state that towers shall not be allowed on the same lot as a school or day-care-center. The
County has no zoning jurisdiction over property owned by the Board of Education. By the same
token, the County has no zoning jurisdiction over property owned by the state or federal
governments.

In terms of a private school or day-care-center, the proposed regulations will allow a tower on
the same lot as a private school or day-care-center. However, the tower shall be set back a
distance equal to the height of the tower from all facilities, excluding parking lots.

The distance from off-site residences was reduced from 1,000 feet to three (3) times the tower
height. Staff’s review of tower ordinances in the metro region indicated that the 1,000 foot
distance is greater than most communities.

In terms of the area outside of the Highway Corridor, the following changes are proposed:

The R-70 zoning district was added to the list of zoning districts where a tower may be located.
This is in response to the R-70 blanket zoned area in the north central portion of the County
where the tower industry has indicated a lack of service.

The two (2) mile separation between towers is reduced to one and one-half (1.50) miles. Staff’s
review of tower ordinances in the metro region indicated that only one (1) community that had a
separation of one and one-half (1.50) miles and most communities had a separation of less.

A new section on Alternative Tower Structures is proposed. The purpose of an alternative tower
structure is to diminish, camouflage, or conceal the appearance of towers and antennas to reduce
the visual impact on surrounding properties and streets. Alternative tower structures resemble a
monopine (man-made pine trees), free-standing clock towers and bell towers, light poles, flag
poles, internal antenna towers (a’k/a “slick stick”) including cylindrical unicells. Key aspects
regarding alternative tower structures include the following:

Alternative tower structures will be allowed in the areas and zoning districts which permit
standard towers. They will also be allowed in conjunction with existing Conditional Uses that
include: a Church or Other Place of Worship; Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity
Areas; Private School; and Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or Other Public Utility
Facilities.

Alternative tower structures of 120 feet or less may be administratively approved. Alternative
tower structures in excess of 120 feet will require public hearings before the Planning
Commission and the Board of Commissioners.

All alternative tower structures shall go through a Design Review and Approval Process before
the Planning Commission. This is a similar procedure to that of a Preliminary, Final, and Minor
Subdivision Plat. The purpose of this Design Review and Approval Process is to determine that
the alternative tower structure type is appropriate for the site and surrounding area and set
requirements for the alternative tower structure type, placement on the site, equipment structures,
fencing, and landscaping that shall be indicated on the Site Plan.

3-7





Tower requests that need public hearings will now require a balloon test and a visual simulation
based on the balloon test. These are tower industry recommendations. The balloon test is where
a balloon is flown from the location of the proposed tower, at the proposed height, and will be
conducted on a Saturday, allowing an opportunity for County Officials and the public to view the
test. A sign will be posted on the property announcing the proposed tower and balloon test five
(5) days prior to the balloon test. The visual simulation shall consist of color photographs of the
proposed site, with the existing view, and with a depiction of the proposed tower, from a
minimum of four (4) distinct quadrants (generally north, east, south, and west), to demonstrate
the visual impact on surrounding properties and streets. An Affidavit certifying that the correct
location and height of the tower were utilized in the balloon test shall be submitted with the
visual simulation photographs.

Tower approvals will expire in 24 months unless a Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the
tower. This is necessary because the location of a proposed tower is based on existing and
planned towers (approved, but not yet built).

Deadlines for the County to administer tower requests in compliance with Federal
Telecommunication requirements are proposed. The County shall act on applications for co-
locations within 90 days, and all other applications within 150 days. The Zoning Administrator
has 30 days to determine if an application is complete. If the Zoning Administrator requests
additional information within the 30 day review period, the time it takes the applicant to respond
will not count towards the 90 or 150 day time limits.

Administrative VVariances.

Administrative Variances and Modifications allow the Zoning Administrator to approve
administrative variances and modifications of conditions not to exceed 20 percent of the stated
requirements, which is too much discretion for staff. Variances of this amount should be heard
by the Zoning Board of Appeals. It is proposed that the Zoning Administrator only have
authority to grant administrative variances regarding setbacks for an existing structure. Said
administrative variance shall not exceed ten (10) percent of the minimum setback requirements
up to a maximum of two (2) feet. This has been an issue for residences constructed prior to the
requirements of a foundation survey, especially on lots where the property lines are at acute
angles, fronting a street with curvatures, or fronting on the turn-around portion of a cul-de-sac.

Miscellaneous new sections to Article V. include the following:

Septic Systems and Drain Field Lines. Septic systems, including drain field lines, shall be set back a
minimum of ten (10) feet from the property line. In the case where a buffer is required, septic
systems, including drain field lines, shall be set back a minimum of 25 feet from the property line (see
Buffer.)

Buffer. A buffer shall provide a separation of uses from abutting properties and a visual screen
through the use of natural vegetation or other means, including, replanting or supplemental plantings
(See Development Regulations, Article V. for planting requirements.) Other visual screening
elements or noise attenuation devices, such as walls or berms, may be utilized in addition to the
vegetation in the buffer. Stormwater retention and detention facilities may be located in a buffer but
shall be set back a minimum of 25 feet from the property line. Said 25 feet as measured from the

3-8





property line shall be for the aforementioned required natural vegetation, landscape plantings and
other visual screening elements or noise attenuation devices only. Multi-use path access and utilities
(including underground stormwater piping) may be located anywhere within the buffer.

Landscaping and Buffer Requirements. A nonresidential structure/use allowed in a residential zoning
district shall comply with the planting requirements for the buffer and landscape areas of the
Development Regulations.

Lot Width, Minimum. The lot width at the building line shall be met for a depth of 80 feet. The
principal structure shall be constructed within this area provided the required setbacks are met.
Accessory structures do not have to comply with the lot width at the building line; however, they
shall comply with the required setbacks and location requirements. (Commentary: most of this
language was contained in the definition of Minimum Lot Width.)

Sales, Garage/Yard. A maximum of three (3) garage/yard sales consisting of a maximum of three (3)
days each within a 12 month period shall be allowed per residential lot.

Architectural Yard Features. Architectural Yard Features shall not be located within the right-of-way,
shall not be required to comply with the setback requirements, and shall include, but not be limited to:
1) landscaping features such as planters, arbors, and trellises; 2) water features shall include, but not
be limited to: fountains, waterfalls, and decorative man-made ponds such as koi ponds; and/or 3)
sculptures. Landscaping features such as arbors or trellises shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height as
measured at the highest point. Landscaping planters shall not exceed four (4) feet in height at the
highest point. Sculptures shall not exceed 20 feet in height or the highest point of the roof of the
principle structure, whichever is less. (Note: Check with the Building Permits & Inspections
Department for any permitting requirements.)

Wild Animals. All Wild Animals categorized as inherently dangerous that require a license or permit
and liability insurance per OCCG Title 27, Chapter 5, shall be prohibited in all residential and A-R
zoning districts.

Recreational Vehicle. One (1) recreational vehicle, when utilized for temporary occupancy, shall be
allowed to be parked in any zoning district on a lot which contains a single-family dwelling or in any
residential zoning district. The duration shall not exceed 14 days and said duration shall be allowed
two (2) times per year.

Road Side Sales. Sales of goods or services from a temporary location along a public right-of-way
where business is transacted outside of an approved permanent structure are prohibited. Mobile ice
cream vendors, mobile food venders which serve building sites, and vendors located at special events
shall be exempt.

Refuse/Dumpster Area. The refuse/dumpster area used in conjunction with non-residential uses shall
only be located to the side or rear of the principal structure, comply with the setbacks and/or buffer
requirements, and be screened per Article V.

Manufactured Home. The placement of a manufactured home in a zoning district which allows a
single-family dwelling as a Permitted or Conditional Use, other than MHP, shall comply with the
following:

1. Approval shall be required from the Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA)
and the Housing and Urban Development, as applicable. This approval shall be located

3-9





in the electrical panel box of the building unit. The date plat shall be affixed to each
building unit which assures compliance at the installation location.

2. A Georgia Insignia for Industrialized Building, when affixed to each building unit, shall
indicate that the unit has been constructed and inspected in compliance with the approved
plans and date on file with the DCA and/or HUD, as applicable. No deviations from or
changes in the approved building plans shall be made without prior approval from the
DCA and/or HUD, as applicable.

3. A manual of the structure shall have a State of Georgia Engineer’s seal and shall
describe, in detail, the building construction and installation requirements.

4, The Manufactured Home shall comply with all applicable zoning requirements,
including, but not limited to: minimum heated square footage.

5. The Manufactured Home shall be placed on a permanent foundation.
6. The middle support chassis shall be removed.
7. The electrical and gas meters are to be set in the structure once all applicable final

inspections are approved.

8. All applicable requirements shall be met within 90 calendar days and prior to the issuance
of a Certificate of Occupancy.

Miscellaneous key amendments to existing sections include the following:

Outside Sterage Display Exempt from Screening. Outside sterage display of meter vehicles,
motorcycles, boats, recreational vehicles, farm equipment, utility trailers, and heavy equipment, for
lease or sale and manufactured homes and landscape materials shall be exempt from the screening
requirements of this Ordinance, subject to the minimum landscape and buffer requirements.
Merchandise which is moved inside on a daily basis shall be exempt from the screening requirements;
however, such display must shall comply with all minimum landscape and buffer requirements.
Outside sales display shall be exempt from screening; however, the outside sales display shall
comply with the required setbacks, buffers and landscape requirements. The outside installation
and display of products shall be limited to those items generally utilized outside, including, but not
limited to: swimming pools, spas/hot tubs, patios and patio accessories, plant materials and/or
children’s play equipment.

Raising and Keeping of Horses in Residential Districts. The raising and keeping of no more than one
(1) horse on a lot consisting of a minimum of three (3) acres and one (1) additional horse for each
additional acre shall be allowed on any lot for which single-family residential is a permitted use
(EST, R-85, R-80, R-78, R-75, R-72, R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, PUD-PRD, and C-S).
An accessory structure related to the shelter of horses shall be allowed, as long as, such accessory
structure complies with Article V. (Accessory Structures and Uses). The boarding of horses and
commercial riding lessons shall be prohibited.

Mailbox Supports. The use of massive supports that, when struck, could damage vehicles and cause
serious injury to vehicle occupants, are prohibited. Concrete posts, brick bases, iron pipes and similar
miscellaneous items such as farm equipment or supports filled with concrete cannot be used for
mailbox supports. This restriction shall not apply on streets with a classification of Internal Local

3-10





(see Development Regulations, Article 111. Street Design Standards and Specifications.) (Adopted
12/09/93) (Amended 02/25/99)

Article VI. District Use Requirements

A-R Agricultural - Residential District. Amendments include the following:

Recreation centers and similar institutions owned by non-profit organizations so designated by
the Internal Revenue Code are a Permitted Use and are recommended to be a Conditional Use

with conditions (buffers and setbacks) similar to like uses such as churches and private schools.

Aquaculture, including pay fishing and an apiary are included with the Permitted Use of raising
livestock. An aviary is added as a Conditional Use.

C-S, Conservation Subdivision  Amendments include the following:

Reference to the Georgia Greenspace Program (discontinued) has been removed. A covered
picnic pavilion, limited to a maximum of 900 square feet, will be allowed in the Conservation
Area. Horse Quarters were added as a Conditional Use (see discussion in Residential Zoning
Districts).

EST, Estate Residential District A covered picnic pavilion, limited to a maximum of 900
square feet, will be allowed in the Conservation Area. Horse Quarters were added as a
Conditional Use (see discussion in Residential Zoning Districts).

Residential Zoning Districts Horse Quarters were added as a Conditional Use (see Article
VIL.) in all of the Residential Zoning Districts. Horse Quarters relates to the keeping of horses in
a residential zoning (one horse for the first three acres and one horse for each additional acre)
and allowing a property owner the ability to construct a structure specifically for the housing of
the horses which will not count to the number of customary accessory structures.

Non-residential Zoning Districts The uses of College and/or University and Private School
were separated in terms of Permitted Uses and Conditional Uses. These uses are Conditional
Uses in A-R and the residential zoning districts with sizable setbacks and buffers when adjacent
to A-R or residentially zoned property, but were classified as Permitted Uses in the O-I, C-C, and
C-H zoning districts subject to lesser setbacks and buffers. It is proposed that as Permitted Uses
they will be restricted to classrooms and administration only. If the full range of uses, including
athletic fields, stadiums, playgrounds, etc. is proposed the uses are classified as Conditional Uses
with the same setbacks and buffers required when adjacent to A-R and residentially zoned

property.

Two (2) new Conditional Uses are proposed for the C-C and C-H zoning districts. These uses
are Seasonal Sales as Outdoor Displays and Temporary Tent Sales (see Article VII.). Conditions
generally address duration, sale items (Seasonal Sales), operating hours, parking, exemption
from screening requirements, Fire Marshal approval for tents and clean-up.

Indoor shooting ranges were added to the C-H and M-1 zoning districts as Conditional Uses.
The conditions require that the shooting range meets National Rifle Association standards and all

3-11





state and federal regulations. Outdoor shooting ranges were added to the M-1 zoning district and
the A-R zoning district (to replace the Conditional Use of Rifle Range.) The conditions require
that the shooting range meets National Rifle Association standards and all state and federal
regulations.

Several Permitted Uses were deleted, as they were viewed as unnecessary in the M-2.
Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial District, and were allowed in the M-1 zoning district. The
deleted uses include the following: Appliance sales and repair; Athletic events (temporary in
nature); Blueprinting; Carnivals (temporary in nature); Car wash; Catering service; Community
fairs (temporary in nature); Drive-in theater; Electrical repair; Horse show (temporary in nature);
Farm equipment sales; Furniture store; Hardware; Home furnishings; Farmer's market; Mini-
storage facilities with a unit floor space not to exceed 425 feet; Nursery, plant; Paint shop,
automobile; Parts store, automobile; Rent-alls; Rescue squad; Restaurants; Rodeo (temporary in
nature); Taxi service; Tire sales; Utilities, public facilities; and Utility trailer rentals and rent-alls;

Planned Unit Development.

A new Planned Small Business Center (PSBC) classification is proposed for the Planned Unit
Development zoning district. This district was created with the assistance of several local
business center owners through numerous meetings with the Planning Commission. The intent of
the Planned Small Business Center is to provide a business incubator center through a planned,
mixed-use nonresidential development consisting primarily of a mix of office uses, service uses,
and light industrial uses, with limited small scale commercial uses as appropriate for the area.
Only those uses (Permitted and Conditional) allowed in the O-1, C-C, C-H, and M-1 zoning
districts shall be proposed for the PUD-PSBC. Only those uses approved through the rezoning
process shall be allowed. The Development Plan shall indicate the different use areas for the
proposed development. Appropriate separation, buffering, and vehicular circulation between uses
internal to the development shall be established to alleviate incompatibility and protect public
safety. Amendments to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan will indicate the following
areas for the PUD-PSBC:

(1)  Those properties located in the unincorporated area of the county fronting SR 85 North,
north of Banks Road to the Clayton County Boundary designated as Commercial and/or
Industrial on the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan;

(2)  Those properties located in the area of SR 314 and Bethea Road designated as Industrial
on the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan; and

3) Those properties located in the unincorporated area of the county fronting SR 54 East,
east of the city limits of Fayetteville to Nash Creek designated as Commercial.

Article VII. Conditional Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone,
and Commercial Development Standards

Various amendments are proposed to the list of existing Conditional Uses to provide
clarification, the following new Conditional Uses are proposed for Article VII:

3-12





12.

Heliport. (These regulations shall not apply to a hospital which maintains a heliport for medical
purposes.)

)

)

)

F.A.A. Air Space Clearance approval for visual flying flight operations and landing areas
shall be required, where applicable.

A Site Plan, prepared by a Registered Surveyor, indicating the heliport landing area and
center point on the lot and setbacks shall be required. The center point of the heliport
landing area shall be indicated on the lot.

A heliport shall be a minimum of 300 feet from all property lines as measures from the
center point of the heliport landing area.

Amphitheater, Outdoor. (Allowed C-H and M-1 Zoning Districts)

a. Hours of operation shall be limited to between the hours of 12:00 noon and 9:00 p.m.
weekdays and 10:00 p.m. weekends (see Fayette County Code, Offenses and
Miscellaneous Provisions and Noise Control.)

b. The out door amphitheater shall not be located closer than 300 feet from any A-R or
residentially zoned property.

Aviary. (Allowed in the A-R Zoning District)

a. Shall be licensed through the Georgia Department of Agriculture.

b. Shall be limited to residents of the dwelling with no outside employment.

C. A farm outbuilding shall house the aviary and shall be exempt from architectural
standards. A farm outbuilding shall be located in the side or rear yard of the principal
structure and comply with the required setbacks.

Pet Cemetery

@ Minimum lot area shall be five (5) acres.

2 The remains of only one (1) pet shall be buried in a single gravesite and shall not be
stacked one (1) above another.

3 The remains shall be a minimum of three (3) feet below the grade.

(@) Cemetery plots shall be of sufficient size to provide for a minimum one (1) foot
undisturbed area between graves.

(5) The owner/operator shall maintain and post a copy of the Cemetery Rules and
Regulations and a current burial plot diagram at all times.

(6) A pet cemetery shall be maintained in perpetuity via deed restrictions.

Charter and/or Motor Coach Bus Service. (Allowed in C-H Zoning District)

a.

All buses shall be parked to the rear of the principal structure.

3-13





26.

38.

€.

All buses shall be screened in accordance with Article V. General Provisions, Outside
Storage.

Overhead bay doors shall not be open to the street.

The following uses shall be allowed: Administrative office, passenger pickup, and
storage of buses.

On-site maintenance/repairs are prohibited.

Horse Quarters in Residential Zoning Districts. (Allowed in EST, R-85, R-80, R-78, R-75, R-

72, R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, C-S, and PUD-PRD Zoning Districts)

a.

b.

g.
h.

Minimum lot size: Over ten (10) acres

Minimum side yard setback: 50 feet

Minimum rear yard setback: 75 feet

Horse Quarters shall not be located within 100 feet of the principal residential structure or
connected to any structures on site; however, a Horse Quarters may be constructed prior

to the principal residential structure.

Horse Quarters shall not exceed the square footage of the principal dwelling or 2,400
square feet, whichever is less.

Only one (1) Horse Quarters structure shall be permitted and shall not be counted as an
accessory structure.

Riding lessons and boarding are prohibited.

Number of horses (see Article V.)

Recreation centers and similar institutions owned by non-profit organizations as so registered

with the Georgia Secretary of State Office. (Allowed in the A-R Zoning District)

a.

The lot area shall be at least five (5) acres, and the lot width at the building line shall be
at least 400 feet.

Such uses shall be permitted only on a lot which fronts on and accesses a Major
Thoroughfare as specified by the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan.

A minimum 50 foot buffer plus the required setbacks listed below shall separate all
buildings from any residential or A-R Zoning District. The setback shall be measured
from the buffer.

Minimum setbacks for structures and use areas.

@ Front yard: 100 feet

2 Side yard: 50 feet

3-14





42.

44,

3) Rear yard: 75 feet

All buildings, other than storage buildings, shall maintain a decorative facing on those
portions of the building which face public streets and any property zoned residential or
agricultural-residential. The decorative facing shall consist of brick, stone, stucco, wood
or similar building materials compatible with the area.

Accessory structures such as a storage building, detached garage, pavilion, and/or pool
shall comply with the buffer and/or setback requirements and shall be located to the
side/rear of the main building.

The construction of one (1) open air pavilion shall not exceed 1,800 square feet, shall be
utilized for picnics/social gatherings and shall not be lighted or utilized after 10:00 p.m.

Seasonal Sales, Outdoor. (Allowed in C-C and C-H Zoning Districts and Churches) (see Article

VII., Church or Other Place of Worship)

a.

Seasonal sales shall be limited to: October 1 to January 31; limited to properties zoned
C-C and C-H; and on-site church or other places of worship. The A-R Zoning District,
which has a bona fide farming operation, is exempt from seasonal sales requirements;

Location of seasonal sales and outdoor display, as well as, the temporary stand or tent,
shall be exempt from Article V. Screening Standards, except as provided herein;

Location of seasonal sales as outdoor display, as well as, structures (temporary stand or
tent), shall comply with zoning requirements for setbacks;

Outdoor sales of seasonal agricultural products shall be limited to: Natural Christmas
trees, natural wreaths, pumpkins and gourds, hay, straw, fruits, vegetables, and nuts; and
natural plants;

Outdoor lighting for activities shall not be permitted before 7:00 a.m. or after 10:00 p.m.;
Off-street parking shall be required:;

Along with the completed application, a sketch or diagram of the proposed site showing
dimensions of the area utilized, the proximity to buildings, parking lots, right-of-way,
setbacks, and any proposed structure (temporary stand or tent) and temporary signage as
regulated by the Sign Ordinance shall be submitted to the Planning and Zoning
Department; and

Location of seasonal sales and outdoor display, as well as, the temporary stand or tent,
shall be removed and cleared within 48 hours of the end of operation as indicated on the
Conditional Use Permit.

Shooting Range, Indoor. (Allowed in C-H and M-1 Zoning Districts)

a.

The Indoor Shooting Range shall meet all applicable standards established in the NRA
Range Source Book. Documentation indicating compliance with the aforementioned
standards shall be submitted with the site plan.

3-15





45.

45,

48.

The Indoor Shooting Range shall meet all applicable State and Federal Regulations
including, but not limited to: the Georgia Department of Natural Resources,
Environmental Protection Agency and Occupational Safety and Health Administration.
Documentation indicating compliance with the aforementioned regulations shall be
submitted with the site plan.

The Indoor Shooting Range shall meet Section 12-26 (Fayette County Noise Control
Ordinance) of the Fayette County Code.

Shooting Range, Outdoor. (Allowed in A-R and M-1 Zoning Districts)

a.

The Outdoor Shooting Range shall meet all applicable standards established in the NRA
Range Source Book. Documentation indicating compliance with the aforementioned
standards shall be submitted with the site plan.

The Outdoor Shooting Range shall meet all applicable State and Federal Regulations
including, but not limited to: the Georgia Department of Natural Resources,
Environmental Protection Agency and Occupational Safety and Health Administration.
Documentation indicating compliance with the aforementioned regulations shall be
submitted with the site plan.

The Outdoor Shooting Range shall meet Sections 12-5 (Discharging Firearms) and 12-26
(Fayette County Noise Control Ordinance) of the Fayette County Code.

Stadium, Outdoor Athletic. (Allowed in the C-H and M-1 Zoning Districts)

The outdoor athletic stadium shall not be located closer than 300 feet from any A-R or
residentially zoned property.

Temporary Tent Sales. (Allowed in the C-C and C-H Zoning Districts)

a.

b.

Said tent sales shall not be operated longer than 28 calendar days per year;

Tents shall require the approval of the Fayette County Fire Marshal;

Off-street parking shall be required;

Outdoor lighting for activities shall not be permitted before 7:00 a.m. or after 10:00 p.m..;

Location of outdoor sales, as well as, a temporary tent:

1. Shall comply with zoning requirements for setbacks.

2. Shall be exempt from Article V. Screening Standards, except where provided
herein.

3. Shall be removed and cleared within 48 hours of the end of operation as indicated

on the permit.

3-16





50.

Wind Farm. (Allowed in the M-1 and M-2 Zoning Districts) The setbacks shall be equal to the
height of the wind turbine, including the blades, or the applicable zoning district setbacks
whichever are greater.

Miscellaneous key amendments to existing sections include the following:

25.

Home Occupation. (Allowed in A-R, residential EST, C-S, R-85, R-80, R-78, R-75,
R-72, R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, DR-15, RMF, MHP, PUD-PRD, PUD-
PRL PUD PEF OI CC C- H M 1 M 2, and BTP Zoning Districts) anel—the

Faml-ly—Readenee—unde%eenen—l-l—B—) The mtent of these rules and requlatlons is to

protect the health, safety and welfare of the general public and ensure that home
occupations are regulated in a manner so they do not adversely impact surrounding
residential properties, as residential areas and uses are hormally separated from non-
residential areas and uses. (Amended 10/23/08)

a. Residents. Only residents of the dwelling may be engaged in the home
occupation within _the dwelling.  All _non-resident individuals, _including
employees, contractors, or part owners, associated with the home occupation
shall not be engaged in the home occupation within the dwelling or on the

remises.

b. Incidental Use. The home occupation shall be clearly incidental to the residential
use of the dwelling and shall not change the essential residential character of the
building.

C. Display, Sale. No display of products shall be visible from the street, and only
products produced on the premlses may be sold on the premlses e*eept—that

Customers. The number of customers shall not exceed more than two (2) at a
time nor_more than a total of 12 customers in any one (1) day and all services
rendered to customers shall take place only within the dwelling. The hours of
operation shall be limited to 9:00 am to 9:00 pm.

d. Area. Use of the building dwelling for this the purpose of the home occupation
shall not exceed a total of thirty-five{35) 25 percent of the principal building.

e. Number. No more than four (4) home occupations may be issued per dwelling
and the cumulative area devoted to the home occupations shall not exceed 25
percent of the dwelling.

f. Alterations. No internal or external alterations inconsistent with the residential
use of the building shall be permitted.

g. Accessory Buildings. No accessory buildings or outside storage shall be used,

except as otherwise provided herein.

3-17





Music —ete. Lessons and/or Tutoring. ihastructionstr-music-and similar-subjeets
Lessons _and/or Tutoring shall include, but not limited to: music, dance,
computer, martial arts, academic, and speech therapy and shall be limited to
two (2) students at a time nor more than a total of 12 students in any one (1) day
and such lessons and/or tutoring shall take place in the dwelling. The hours of
operation shall be limited to 9:00 am to 9:00 pm.

Daycare, Child/Adult: Daycare shall be limited to no more than three (3)
children or three (3) adults at any time.

Vehicles. Only customary passenger vehicles, vans and pick-up trucks shall be
permitted to remain on the premises in_association with a _home_occupation.
Said vehicles cannot exceed two (2) axles, 22 feet in length, 10 feet in height,
and/or 8,000 pounds (curb weight). No tow and/or_rollback trucks shall be
allowed to remain on the premises. A trailer used in association with the home
occupation shall be permitted to remain on the premises. The aforementioned
vehicles or trailer used in association with the home occupation may be stored
in a detached garage.

Uses. The following and similar uses shall not be considered home occupations:
automobile service station; automobile and related maehine vehicular sales lot
on-premise; on-premise automobile, _motorcycle, and/or farm/heavy
construction _equipment repair or service/maintenance; ambulance service;
beauty salon, barber shop, rescue squad; on-premise amusement or recreational
activities (commercial); animal hospital; commercial kennel, veterinarian clinic ef
with _or _without animal boarding place; pawn shops; acid storage and
manufacturing; heavy manufacturing; fortune teller; palm reader; taxidermy,
welding; on—premise pet grooming; medical/dental facilities; on-premise repair
service (bicycle, lawn mower, small engine, and appliance); tire sales and
storage; tanning salon; funeral services; tattooing; and massage therapy.

7-2. Nonconformances.

Generally, this section was compiled and reorganized as portions of this verbiage were scattered
throughout the ordinance in different Articles. The reorganization consisted of addressing the
three (3) basic types of nonconformances: lots, uses, and structures.

The following new sections are proposed for nonconforming lots:

Consideration for the Rezoning of Legal Nonconforming Lots. Any legal nonconforming lot may be

considered for rezoning to another zoning district where the lot would be made nonconforming by said
rezoning. Factors of consideration, in addition to those enumerated in Article XI., would include the

following:

1.

The degree of increase or reduction of the nonconformity of existing structures located on
the subject property; and

The current zoning and land use designations of adjoining lots as indicated on the Land
Use Plan.

3-18





Where the dimensional requirements of the zoning district cannot be met in terms of the placement of
new structures, a variance authorized by the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be required.

Creation of a Legal Nonconforming Lot for Enhancements to a Development. Said lot shall not be
utilized for the permitted or conditional uses of the zoning district in which the lot is located and the lot
is not required to meet the applicable minimum lot size, lot width, or road frontage requirements. Said
enhancements shall include stormwater facilities, tot lots, decorative features (such as landscaping,
arbors, fences/walls, fountains, sculptures, benches, arches, etc.), signs and the preservation of historic
and agricultural structures for ornamentation (see Nonconforming Structures). A tot lot shall only be
equipped with playground equipment (swing set, slide, teeter totter, monkey bars, sandbox, etc.)
intended for small children. A minimum 15 foot setback shall be maintained for any playground
equipment or any historic or agricultural structures utilized for ornamentation. The lot must be
labeled: “Not a Building Lot” on the Preliminary Plat and/or the Final Plat, as applicable. The lot shall
be under the ownership of the Home Owner’s Association, Property Owner’s Association, or
Developer/Property Management entity, as applicable.

Creation of a Legal Nonconforming Lot for a Legal Nonconforming Cemetery or Burial Ground. The
creation of a lot intended for the sole purpose of containing a legal nonconforming cemetery or burial
ground is allowed. Said lot is not required to meet the applicable minimum lot size, lot width, or road
frontage requirements. The boundary of the lot shall be set back a minimum of five feet from the
location of any grave. A legal nonconforming cemetery or burial ground shall be indicated on a
preliminary plat, final plat and/or site plan, as applicable. A minimum 20 foot public access to a legal
nonconforming cemetery or burial ground shall be maintained either through fee simple ownership or
an easement.

There are no new sections proposed for nonconforming uses, just clarification of existing
language. The following new sections are proposed for nonconforming structures:

Nonconforming Structures. Any legally existing structure, which fails to comply with the provisions
herein, as of the effective date of this Ordinance (November 13, 1980), or as the result of subsequent
amendments, or due to the acquisition of property for a public purpose, a rezoning, or a variance,
shall be considered a legal nonconforming structure and shall be allowed to remain. The enlargement,
expansion, or extension of a legal nonconforming structure which serves to increase the
nonconformance, either vertical and/or horizontal, shall only be made with the authorization of the
Zoning Board of Appeals. Where the Zoning Board of Appeals is required to determine whether a
nonconforming structure may be enlarged, expanded, or extended, the provisions of a Request for a
Variance (Article 1X) shall be considered.

Maintenance or Repair of Legal Nonconforming Structures. The normal maintenance and repair of a
legal nonconforming structure, as is required to keep it in a safe and sound condition, may be made.
However, if the structure falls into a state of disrepair where the cost of the maintenance and/or repair
is 75 percent or greater of the current fair market value of the structure for tax purposes the structure
must be removed and/or brought into compliance. Reconstruction costs shall include labor, materials,
appliances, devices, and fixtures required for the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (per
applicable International Residential Code and International Building Code.)

A property that is improved with an existing structure, which would become nonconforming in terms
of the architectural requirements within the Zoning Ordinance, may be considered for rezoning.
Upon approval of the rezoning request, said structure shall be considered as a legal nonconforming
structure in terms of architectural requirements and be allowed to remain in its architectural character,

3-19





except as is required in a Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone regarding enlargement of an existing
nonconforming structure.

A property that is improved with an existing structure, which would become nonconforming in terms
of the maximum height limits within the Zoning Ordinance, may be considered for rezoning. Upon
approval of the rezoning request, said structure shall be considered as a legal nonconforming structure
in terms of height limits and be allowed to remain at said height.

A property that is improved with an existing residential structure, which would become
nonconforming in terms of the minimum square footage requirements within the zoning district for
which a rezoning is being sought, may be considered for rezoning. Any actions necessary to achieve
compliance will be handled through conditions of rezoning approval.

A property that is improved with accessory structures, which would become nonconforming in terms
of the accessory structure requirements within the Zoning Ordinance, may be considered for rezoning.
Any actions necessary to achieve compliance will be handled through conditions of rezoning
approval, except as otherwise provided herein.

Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone

The following new section is proposed for the S.R. 54 West Overlay Zone and General State
Route Overlay Zone:

Architectural Option.

An owner/developer may exercise an Architectural Option for structures within the Overlay Zone on
lots adjacent to a municipality where a nonresidential architectural character has been established in
the area. The purpose of this option is to achieve compatibility with surrounding areas, consistency
throughout the development and greater creativity. A photographic architectural character inventory
of the buildings within the area shall be submitted. Full color architectural elevation drawings of the
proposed nonresidential architectural style for all building facades shall be submitted. Multiple
buildings within a development shall have comparable architectural characteristics consisting of
similar architectural design and elements, building materials and colors. Elevations shall be reviewed
and approved by the Board of Commissioners and shall follow the procedure established in Article
XI. Any change to the approved architectural elevation drawings shall follow the aforementioned
procedure.

Minor amendments to the overlay zones includes an allowance for stained glass windows in
conjunction with a church or place of worship and the requirement of a two (2) foot knee wall for
large display and storefront windows.

The following is a summary of the recommended amendments to the Fayette County Zoning
Ordinance which affect more than one Article:

Kennel
The control of the number of household pets that may be kept on a lot (residential or
nonresidential) has been handled through zoning under the regulations for a Kennel which is

somewhat of a backdoor approach. Under Article 111. the definitions of Animal and Kennel are
utilized. The definitions are as follows:

3-20





Animal. For the purpose of this ordinance, the word animal shall mean either a domestic dog (canis
familiaris) or domestic cat (felis catus). It shall not include livestock (see Sec. 3-62.) The number of
animals kept shall be limited to three (3).

Kennel. Any location where any combination of animals are kept in excess of three (3) shall be
deemed to be a kennel. This definition does not include not more than one (1) litter of dogs or cats of
not more than six (6) months of age. (Amended 08/25/05)

Based on these definitions any location (including a private residence) where three or more
animals (which includes dogs and cats or a combination there of) are kept is considered a
Kennel. In addition, the definition of Animal actually contains a restriction/regulation. Staff has
strived to eliminate regulations from definitions.

A Kennel is a Conditional Use in the A-R, C-C, C-H, and M-1 zoning districts. The Conditional
Use requirements are as follows:

All structures, pens, runs, or enclosures shall not be located closer than 300 feet from any A-R or
residential zoning district.

Based on the condition above, a Kennel is not allowed in any residential zoning district. For
example, under the ordinance a citizen with four cats in their house located on a lot that is in a
residential zoning district is in violation of the Zoning Ordinance. In addition, the terms “kennel”
and “structures, pens, runs, or enclosures” are normally associated with dogs not cats.

The issue of controlling the number of household pets that may be kept on a lot still needs some
work and may be better controlled through a mechanism other than zoning. The location and
regulation of a Kennel as a use where dogs are breed or boarded for profit, should be addressed
by the Zoning Ordinance However, in the interim, it is recommended that the regulations for a
Kennel be applied to dogs only. Therefore, it is recommended that the definition of Animal be
deleted from Article I11 and the definition of Kennel be amended as follows:

Kennel. Any location where any-combination-ofanimals domestic dogs (canis familiaris) are kept in
excess of three (3) shall be deemed to be a kennel. This definition does not include a_location net
more-than where one (1) litter of dogs ereats of not more than six (6) months of age are kept.

3-21





FAYETTE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE
1980
Inclusive of Amendments from 11/13/80 through 10/22/09
FAYETTE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith
Herb Frady
Eric Maxwell
Robert Horgan
Lee Hearn
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
Jack Krakeel
COUNTY CLERK, BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Carol Chandler
DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Peter Frisina
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
Dennis Dutton
FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
Tim Thoms
Al Gilbert
Bill Beckwith
Jim Graw
Douglas L. Powell
PLANNING COMMISSION SECRETARY
Robyn S. Wilson

COUNTY ENGINEER COUNTY ATTORNEY
Phil Mallon Scott Bennett

3-22





ARTICLE I. PREAMBLE AND ENACTMENT CLAUSE

For the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals, convenience, order, prosperity,
and general welfare of Fayette County, Georgia, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette
County, under the authority of the General Planning and Zoning Enabling Act of 1957,
Georgia Laws 1957, page 420, Act No. 358, hereby ordains and enacts into law the
following Articles and Sections.

ARTICLE Il. SHORT TITLE

This Ordinance shall be known and cited as "The Zoning Ordinance of Fayette County,
Georgia, 1980."

01/23/09 — BOC Retreat — Beginning of a year plus long process
(Parcel and tract changed to lot; chairman to Chairman; and vice-chairman to
Vice-Chairman throughout the Ordinance)
07/15/10 — PC Workshop
08/04/10 - BOC Workshop
ARTICLE Ill. DEFINITIONS

Words and terms not explicitly defined in this Ordinance shall have the meaning given by
common and ordinary use as defined in Webster's New Collegiate Dictionary. The word
“shall”_is_always mandatory while the word “may” is _merely discretionary. The
following specific definitions shall apply:

Accessory. A use or structure customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use
or structure and located on the same lot as such principal use or structure.

Acquisition of Property for a Public Purpose. The acquisition of property by an entity
with the power of eminent domain.

Acre, gross. A measure of land equal to 43,560 square feet.

Acre, net. A gross acre less: street rights-of-way, both public and private; all land located
within the 100 year floodplain; all water/stormwater impoundments; and all lands
proposed to be dedicated to a governing authority.

Adult Day Care Facility. Adult Day Care Facilities shall include any building, or portion
thereof, used to house four (4) or more adults requiring care, maintenance, and
supervision for part of a day. (Adopted 06/28/07)

Agriculture. The raising of soil crops,_including forestry and landscape planting
materials, and/or livestock in a customary manner on lots of land at least five (5) acres in
size, including all associated activities.

Aircraft. Any machine, whether heavier or lighter than air, used or designated for
navigation of, or flight in, the air.

3-23





Aircraft Landing Area. Areas designed for safe landing and departures, including
runways and heliports.

Airplane. A fixed-winged aircraft that is supported in flight by dynamic reaction of the
air against its wings.

Aircraft Hangar. Defined as a fully enclosed structure with operational doors
designed to store aircraft and the associated equipment or supplies needed for the
operation and maintenance of the aircraft.

construction or renovatlon tO an eX|st|nq structure other than repair.

Amphitheater. An open-air facility primarily used for entertainment purposes,
commonly with tiers of seats facing a performance stage.

Animal, Exetic Wild. This shall include any species or family or breed (including
hybrids) of exetic wild animals listed by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources
(DNR) as being exetic-or wild (State-law-Ref. OCGA §27-5-1 Title 27, Chapter 5 as

presently stated and as hereafter amended) Unless—e%henmse—prewded—m—@@@%%?—%A

used to transmlt and/or receive radlo frequencv signals, microwave S|qnals or other

signals transmitted to or from other antennas.

Apiary. A place where bees and beehives are kept.

Aquaculture. The hatching, raising, and breeding of fish and/or aguatic plants for
sale.

Automobile Service Station. A land use where gasoline, oils, greases, batteries, tires, and
general automobile accessories may be provided, but where no part of the premises is
used for the storage or dismantling of wrecked or junked vehicles.

Aviary. Any place where birds are kept confined for breeding, boarding, or similar
purposes.

3-24





Basement Re S, O 00 all alalla alallla¥a

ene—h&lt—(%)—ef—tts—hetght—abeve—grade That portlon of a bundlnq that IS partlallv or

completely below grade as defined and requlated in the International Residential Code.

Bed and Breakfast. (see Hotel).

Breezeway. A roofed, open-sided or screened passageway connecting two (2) structures,
such as a house and a garage.

Buffer. A portion of a pareel lot which is set aside to provide a separation of uses from

abuttlng p&reelrsr uses, er—stlﬂeams Iots thteugh—the—use—ef—natutal—wgetatlen—epether

Building. Any structure having a roof supported by columns or walls and intended for
the shelter, housing or enclosure for any person, animal, livestock, process, equipment,
goods or property of any kind.

Building Height. The vertical distance of a building measured from the median height of
the basement level or crawl space to the midpoint of the highest roof. The midpoint shall
be measured from the ceiling joist of the highest floor level to the top of the highest roof
surface. For structures constructed without a basement or crawl space, the measurement
will be taken beginning at the ground floor level. Architectural features, which are not
utilized for habitable space, shall not be included in the calculation of building height.
See also, Tower Height. (Amended 07/24/03; 05/26/05)

Building Line, Front. A line running between—the—side—property—tines—as parallel as
possible to the street which touches the nearest point of the principal structure to the

street. (Amended 01/24/08)
iiding-Line_Mini _(Deletedin : 2408

Building, Principal. A building in which the principal use of the lot is conducted.

Vehlcles Busmess

Cabana. An open or partially enclosed structure used in conjunction with a pool or
lake/pond commonly containing a changing area, and/or seating area, and/or a restroom.
(Amended 01/24/08)

Campground Facilities. Any lot where two (2) or more recreational vehicles and/or tents
(which are normally associated with outdoor camping) are parked and/or erected for

short-term occupancy of-fifteen{15)-days-erless.
3-25






Care Home. A convalescent center, nursing home, rest home, home for the aged, assisted
living facility, or similar use established and operated on a profit or non-profit basis to
provide lodging and/or meals and/or domiciliary care for aged, infirm, chronically ill or
convalescent persons. (Amended 12/15/05)

Carport, attached. A roofed, open-sided motor vehicle shelter, formed by extension of a
roof from a building in a residential zoning district. (Amended 06/26/08)

Carport, detached. A roofed, open-sided motor vehicle shelter—in-a—residential-zoning
distriet. (Adopted 06/26/08)

Cemetery. A burial ground.

Cemetery or Burial Ground, Legal Nonconforming. An existing cemetery or burial
ground established before the effective date of this Ordinance (November 13, 1980) or
subsequent_ amendments which fails to comply with the provisions herein. These
cemeteries or burial grounds could be active, inactive, or abandoned.

Church or other Place of Worship. A building used for public worship, including, but not

limited to: temples, synagogues, pagoda, shrine, cathedral, tabernacle, and

mosgue/masjid and-related-Sunday-School-er-Church-SchoolfacHities.

Child Care, In-Home. A custodial care business, conducted as a home occupation in a
residential dwelling, where not more than three (3) children, not related to the
operator, are received for temporary care during the day only, whether for
compensation, reward, or otherwise, and in full compliance with all applicable State
requirements and/or certifications. The children of the owner are not included in the
count.

Clinic. An establishment where medical or dental patients are admitted for examination
and treatment, but where there is no overnight lodging.

Club or Lodge, Private. All incorporated or unincorporated associations for civic, social,
cultural, religious, fraternal, literary, political, recreational, or like activities, operated for
the benefit of the members and not open to the general public.

Common Area. Any part of a development that is not part of a building lot and is
designated for the common usage of the development (see Open Space). (Adopted
08/14/08 and enacted 10/01/08)

Convenience Store. A small retail establishment that offers convenience goods for
sale, such as prepackaged food items, beverages, tobacco, personal care items, and
other household goods.

3-26





County Engineer. A-persen-so-designated-by-the Board-of Commissioners: The official

to whom the responsibilities normally associated with this title has been delegated.

Covered Patio or Covered Deck, detached. An open or partially enclosed structure
consisting of a roof with supporting posts/columns commonly containing a seating/dining
area, and/or outdoor kitchen, and/or spa/hot tub. (Adopted 01/24/08)

Cultural Facility. A facility for social, intellectual, artistic and/or scientific exposition
such as museums, performing arts theaters, botanical gardens, and zoological parks.

Curb Cut. The point at which vehicular access is provided to a lot from an adjoining
street.

Day Care Facility. An agency, organization, or individual providing daytime care for
four (4) or more individuals children not related by blood or marriage or not the legal
wards of the attendant adult. See also, Nursery School erKindergarten.

Daylight Hours. That period of time beginning thirty(36) 30 minutes before sunrise and
ending thirty-(36) 30 minutes after sunset.

Day Spa. An establishment commonly offering beauty care, facials, massages and/or
body treatments, including the sales of related products.

Density. The number of dwelling units per net acre.

Density, High. High density is defined as more than four (4) dwelling units per net acre.

3-27





Density, Low. Low density is one (1) dwelling unit or fewer per two (2) net acres.

Density, Medium. Medium density is one (1) to three (3) dwelling units per net acre.

Dog Pen /Run. Any outside open air enclosure, consisting of 400 square feet or less,
used for the purpose of containing dogs.

Drive-In. A retail or service enterprise wherein service is provided to the customers on

the-outside-of the-prineipal-building who remain in their vehicles.

Drive-Thru. An opening in the wall of a building or structure designed and intended
to be used to provide service to customers who remain in their vehicles.

Dwelling. A building or portion of a building, designed for, or occupied for residential
purposes constituting a residence.

Dwelling, Multi-Family. A dwelling designed for three (3) or more families living
independently of each other.

Dwelling, Single-Family. A detached dwelling designed for a single family.

Dwelling, Townhouse. One (1) of a series of three (3) or more attached dwelling units on
separate lots which are separated from each other by party wall partitions extending at
least from the lowest floor level to the roof.

Dwelling, Two-Family. A building containing two (2) single-family dwelling units
totally separated from each other by an un-pierced wall extending from ground to roof.

Dwelling Unit. One (1) or more rooms within a structure forming a separate,
independent housekeeping establishment with provisions for cooking, eating, sleeping,
sanitation, and which is physically set apart from any other rooms or dwelling units in the
same building.

Educational/Instructional Facility. A specialized training establishment.

F.A.A. The Federal Aviation Administration.

Family. One (1) or more persons occupying a single dwelling unit, provided that all
persons are related by blood or marriage, or are lawful wards, and shall also include a
group of persons, not exceeding four (4), living and cooking together as a single,
nonprofit housekeeping unit. The members of said group need not be related by blood or
marriage or be lawful wards, where said group is occupying a single dwelling unit.
(Amended 12/09/04)

Farm. A lot efland devoted to the raising of agricultural products and/or livestock.
6-28





F.C.C. The Federal Communications Commission.

Fence. Structures made of posts, columns, boards, wire, pickets, wrought iron or rails.
(Adopted 08/14/08 and enacted 10/01/08)

Financial Institution - Any trust company, savings bank, industrial bank, savings and loan
association, building and loan association, commercial bank, credit union, federal
association, investment company, or other business association, which is chartered under
federal or state law, solicits, receives, or accepts money or its equivalent on deposit and
loans money as a regular business. (Adopted 08/26/04)

Floor Area, Accessory Structure. The sum of the horizontal areas of the several floors of
the structure under roof, excluding any space where the floor-to-ceiling height is less than
six (6) feet.

Floor Area, Principal Structure. The area of a dwelling exclusive of unheated space
shall be

measured from the face of the exterior walls efa—dwelling. Unheated space shall
include, _but not be limited to: attic, basement, garage, carport, patios, and open porches

feasured-from-the-exteriorface-of-the-exteriorwalls-ofa-dwelling.

Front Door. The main entrance to residence or building which is normally oriented to

a street.

storage-orcarsforsale: Relocate to Parking Garage/L ot

A
-----

Gazebo. A freestanding, circular roofed structure open on all sides, but enclosed by a
railing, and used for outdoor seating in residential zoning districts.

Governing Authority. The Fayette County Board of Commissioners.

Grocery Store. A retail establishment which primarily sells food and household goods
but is substantially larger and carries a broader range of merchandise than a
convenience store.

6-29





Habital Space. A space in a building for living, sleeping, eating or cooking.
Bathrooms, toilet rooms, closets, halls, storage or utility spaces and similar areas are
not considered habitable spaces.

Helicopter. A rotary winged aircraft that depends principally upon the lift generated by
one (1) or more engine-driven rotors rotating on a substantially vertical axis for its
primary means of propulsion.

Heliport. An area of land, water, or structure used for the sole purpose of landing and
takeoff of helicopters.

Home Occupation. An occupation ivelving-the-sale—of goeds—er—services conducted
within a dwelling by members-ofa-family-residing residents in the dwelling.

Horse Quarters. A structure used to house horses in the residential zoning districts.

Horse Stable. A structure used to house and/or board horses in an A-R Zoning
District.

Hospital. Any institution receiving in-patients, providing a staffed 24-hour emergency
care facility, and authorized under Georgia law to render medical, surgical, and/or
obstetrical care.

The term "hospital™ shall include a sanitarium, with an approved Certificate of Need
(CON) from the State Health Planning Agency, for the treatment and care of various
forms of mental illness, but shall not include office facilities for the private practice of
medicine, dentistry or psychiatry.

Hotel. A building in which overnight accommodations are provided to the public and the
innkeeper. The term "hotel” includes the terms "motel” and - i " “pbed and
breakfast”.

Industrialized Building.  Any structure or component thereof which is wholly or in

substantial part made, fabricated, formed, or assembled in manufacturing facilities for
installation on a non-residential building site and has been manufactured in such a
manner that all parts or processes cannot be inspected at the installation site without
disassembly, damage to, or destruction thereof.

Junk/Auto Grave eorSalvage Yard. Property used for outdoor storage, keeping,
abandonment, sale or resale of junk, including scrap metal, rags, paper or other scrap
materials, used lumber, salvaged house wrecking and structural steel materials and
equipment, or for the dismantling, demolition, or abandonment of automobiles or other
vehicles or machinery or parts thereof.

6-30






Junked Automobile. See Vehicle, Abandoned.

Kennel. Any location where any—combination—of—antmals domestic _dogs (canis
familiaris) are kept in excess of three (3) shall be deemed to be a kennel. This definition
does not include a location nret-mere-than where one (1) litter of dogs ereats of not more
than six (6) months of age are kept. (Amended 08/25/05)

Kindergarten. See Nursery-ScheelorDay-CareFacility School, Private.

Landscape Areas. A maintained area of grass and/or ornamental planting materials.

Livestock. Animals that-are-kept-orraised—foruse,profit-orforfoed, including, but not

limited to: horses, cattle, goats, sheep, pigs, pot bellied pigs, chickens, ducks, geese,
mules, rabbits, emu/ostrich, buffalo, chinchilla, fox, mink or other fur-bearing animal,
and llamas. This term shall be deemed to specifically exclude domestic dogs and
domestic cats. (Amended 08/25/05)

Loading Space. Space logically and conveniently located for pick-up and delivery
service, scaled to the vehicles expected to be used, and accessible to such vehicles at all
times.

Lot. A let tract of land of varying size which is designated as a single unit of property.

Lot, Corner. A lot located at the intersection of two (2) streets.

Lot Depth. The distance between the front and rear lot lines.

Lot, Interior. A lot which has frontage on only one (1) street.

Lot, Landlocked. A lot of record having no frontage on a Ceunty-maintained street.

Lot, Through. A lot, other than a corner lot, having frontage on more than one (1) street.

Lot Width, Minimum. The minimum distance between side lot lines either measured in
a straight line parallel to the street right-of-way or tangent and perpendicular to the
mid-point of the right-of-way in the case of the turn around portion of a cul-de-sac

along the front minimum building line for—a—depth—of-atleast-eighty(80)feet (see
graphic).

6-31





A K s MEMUE TS

Lot of Record. An area designated as a separate and distinct lot of land on a recorded
subdivision plat approved in accordance with the Fayette County Subdivision Rules-and
Regulations, or in a legally recorded deed.

Manufactured Housing. Manufactured housing means a structure, transportable in one
(1) or more sections, WhICh |nthe travellng mode, +&e1ght—(8)—bedy—fee¥er—mereum4md%h

, A # is 320 or more
square feet and Whlch is bU|It on a permanent chassis and is deS|gned to be used as a
dwelling with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities
and includes the plumbing, heating, air conditioning, and electrical systems contained
therein. For the purposes of this Ordinance, the term "mobile home" shall be construed
to mean "manufactured housing™ or "manufactured home."

Manufactured Home Park. Any lot where two (2) or more manufactured homes are
installed for living purposes, including any land or structure used by occupants of
manufactured homes on such premises.

6-32





Manufactured Home Space. A plot of ground within a manufactured home park designed
to accommodate a single manufactured home.

Mini-storage Facility. Storage facilities which are leased to the public.

Motel. See Hotel.

Museum. A permanent institution in the service of society and of its development,
open to the public, which acquires, conserves, researches, communicates and exhibits
the tangible and intangible heritage of humanity and its environment, for the purpose
of education, study and enjoyment.

Non-Emergency Medical Transport Service. A service licensed by the State of Georgia
under OCGA 31-11-1 through 31-11-82 as applicable and as administered by the
Department of Human Resources providing prearranged non-emergency medical
transport. (Adopted 07/26/07)

Nonconformance, lllegal. A lot, use, building, or structure established after the
effective date of this Ordinance (November 13, 1980) or subsequent amendments which
fail to comply with the provisions herein.

Nonconformance, Legal. A legally existing lot, use, building or structure which fails to
comply with the provisions herein, as of the effective date of this Ordinance (November
13, 1980), or as the result of subsequent amendments, or due to the acquisition of
property for a public purpose, a rezoning, or a variance.

Nursery School erKindergarten. An agency, organization, or individual providing
daytime care of four (4) or more children not related by blood or marriage or not the legal
wards of the attendant adult. See also, Day Care Facility.

Open Space. Land within and related to a development, not individually owned or
dedicated for public use, that is designed and intended for the common use or enjoyment
of the residents and their guests of the development and may include such
complementary structures and improvements as are necessary and appropriate (see
Common Area).

Overlay Zone. A zone that imposes a set of requirements in addition to those set out by
the underlying zoning district.

Parking Garage/Lot. A structure, lot or any portion thereof which is open to the public
in which one (1) or more vehicles are housed or kept, not intending exhibition or
showroom or storage or cars for sale.

Parking Space. An area for off-street motor vehicle parking.

6-33





Pavilion. A freestanding roofed structure generally supported by poles and open on the
sides with a permanent foundation that is used for picnic/social gatherings.

Planning Commission. The commission to which the responsibilities associated with
the Planning Commission has been delegated.

Playhouse. A small house-like structure designed for children to play in.

Public Utility Facility. A location of or for Public Utilities, such as an electric substation

or—water—treatment-—plant or a location where a business organization (as an electric
company) performing a public service and subject to special governmental regulation and
the public service commission. (Adopted 06/24/04)

Pole Barn. A large structure_consisting of a roof supported by poles , for the storage of
farm products, feed, or the housing of farm animals or farm equipment, supperted-by
peles; in agricultural zoning districts.

Porte Cochere. An extension of the roof projecting over a driveway at an entrance of a
building and sheltering those getting in or out of vehicles. Also called a carriage porch.
(Adopted 06/26/08)

Public Water Facilities. Mains and service lines owned and operated by the Fayette
County Water System, or, when approved by the County Commissioners, a private water
system operating under the direct supervision of the Department of Natural Resources.

Recycling Facility. A facility engaged in the collection, separation, storage and

processing (baling, compacting, grinding, or shredding) of household and office type
recyclable materials only (aluminum and tin cans, cardboard, glass containers,
magazines, newspaper, paper, plastic containers and telephone books) to facilitate the
shipment of such materials to an industrial end-user.

Runway Safety Area. A cleared, drained, graded, and stable area symmetrically
located about the runway, the dimensions of which include the runway width, and
which is suitable for an airplane to overrun should it accidentally veer off the

pavement.

Sales, Garage/Yard. Garage/yard sales shall include all sales entitled "garage sale'",
"lawn sale"’, ""attic sale", ""'rummage sale'’, “moving sale”, or “estate sale”.

6-34





School, Private. An elementary (Kindergarten thru sixth grade and can include Pre-
K), middle or high school, supported with private funds, providing a curriculum that
meets State Board of Education requirements, including schools serving school age
children with special needs.

School, Trade/Vocational. See Educational/Institutional Facility.

Service Area. A designated space, generally out-of-doors, utilized for utility areas,
storage and pickup, and for the delivery of goods and services to any building or land
use.

Setback. The area as designated by this Ordinance in which a structure may not be
erected, as measured from the property boundaries of the lot or from the buffer line if a
buffer is required.

Sewer System, Central Sanitary. Collection of sanitary sewage via a pipe network,
transportation to a common collection point and treatment to required Department of
Natural Resources criteria prior to release.

Shooting Range, Indoor. An indoor facility for the safe shooting of firearms,

including both facilities which are open to the general public or open only to private
membership.

Shooting Range, Outdoor. An outdoor facility for the safe shooting of firearms,
including both facilities which are open to the general public or open only to private

membership.

Solar Farm. Any lot where more than three (3) ground mounted solar panels
exceeding 200 cumulative square feet, or where more than 900 cumulative square feet
of ground mounted solar panels are located.

Solar Panel. A device consisting of an array of connected solar cells or photovoltaic
cells that converts solar enerqy (light from the sun) into heat or electricity.

Special Event. A temporary, short-term event commonly held by a religious,
educational, or community organization or a promotional event to attract attention to a
place of business.

6-35





Split Zoning. A lot divided by more than one (1) zoning district.

Stadium, Athletic. An open-air facility primarily for the viewing of athletic events,
usually with tiers of seats rising around a field or court.

Story. The portion of a building, other than a basement, included between the surface

of any floor and the surface of the floor next above it.

A .' ,‘,' A—a\V-—OoF—1ay-1HotHPe 3.3 V—OWAHEG- AQUinCOf
private thoroughfare or road, often paved, used for vehicular access to other streets
and/or_properties. Streets may be 1) owned and operated/maintained by Fayette
County (i.e., those within a Public Right-of-Way); 2) privately owned but open for
public use and maintained by Fayette County (i.e., those within a prescriptive
easement); or 3) privately owned and maintained (i.e., a private road). Public streets
are designated by type on the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan.

Street, Access. A street intended-to-carry-traffic-between-commercial-uses-and-amajor
thereughfare that provides for access to lots.

Street, Private. A street thatis privately-ewned-and used for access that is not owned or
maintained by a governmental agency such as the County, a municipality, the State, or
Federal Government.

Street, Public. A street that is used for travel by the general public, whetheror-net-it that
is owned or_maintained by a pubhle governmental agency such as the County, a
municipality, the State, or Federal Government.

Structure. A combination of materials to—ferm—a—censtruction assembled for use, or
occupancy, er-ernamentation whether installed on, above, or below the surface of land or
water. Awmoeng-otherthings For the purposes of this ordinance, structures include, but
not limited to, buildings, manufactured homes, sighs_towers, recreational courts, and
swimming pools, but do not include driveways, signs, septic systems, walls, or fences.

Subdivision. All divisions of a lot ertet of land into a minimum of two (2) or more lots;

6-36





)

Swimming Pool Screened Enclosure. A structure or part thereof, in whole or in part, self-
supporting and having walls of insect screening and a roof of insect screening, commonly
made of plastic, aluminum, or similar lightweight material. (Adopted 01/24/08)

Taxi Service. A service that offers transportation in passenger vehicles to persons in
return for remuneration. This does not include Charter and/or Motor Coach Bus
Service.

Thoroughfare, Major Arterial. A-street-desighated-to-carry-traffic-into-and-out-ofa-—city.

A street designated on the Thoroughfare Plan as a Georgia State Route which provides
traffic movement through the region, as well as, traffic movement within and through

the County.

Thoroughfare, Minor Arterial. A street designated on the Thoroughfare Plan which provides traffic n

Thoroughfare, Collector.

A street designated to carry traffic between minor
thoreughfares-and-major-thoroughfares: A street designated on the Thoroughfare Plan

which collects/carries traffic from local and other collector streets and provides a
connection to arterial streets.

Thoroughfare, Major. A street designated on the Thoroughfare Plan as a major
thoroughfare and being classified as either arterial or collector.

Thoroughfare, Minor. A street designated to—carry—primariy—tocal-orneighberhoed

traffic—on the Thoroughfare Plan as a County Local or Internal Local primarily for
access to abutting properties, providing for minimum speeds, and traffic volumes.

Tot lot. An improved and equipped play area which may consist of swings, slides,
sandboxes, climbing apparatus, and/or_benches for small children usually up to
elementary school age.

Tower. Any structure that is designed and constructed primarily for the purpose of
supporting one (1) or more antennas, including self supporting lattice towers, guy guyed
towers, or monopole towers. The term includes radio and television transmission towers,
microwave towers, common carrier towers, cellular telephone towers, and alternative
tower structures.

6-37





Tower FacHities Facility. tneludes-The area containing a tower towers, antennas, and
all accessory equipment cabinets or buildings and-struetures, and required security
fencing, excluding tower anchors.

Tower Height. When referring to a tower or tower facilities, the distance measured from
ground level to the highest point on the tower or other structure, even if said highest point
is an antenna. See also, Building Height.

Tower, Planned. Any tower that is in the approval process or has been approved, but
not yet constructed. (see Article V.)

Tower structure, alternative. Tower structures designed to diminish, camouflage, or
conceal the presence appearance of antennas or towers including: monopine (man-made
pine trees), free-standing clock towers and bell steeples towers, light poles, flag poles,
internal antenna_towers (a/k/a “slick stick™) including cylindrical unicells_and/or
similar alternative design meounting tower structures that—camoeuflage—or—conceal-the
presence of antennas or towers.

Towers and Antennas, Pre-Existing. Any tower or antenna permitted prior to June27%
1996 December 10, 1998.

Townhouse. See Dwelling, Townhouse.

Trailer {Office Type) , Temporary. A vehicle designed for towing, not intended for use

as a dwelling, temperary—or—permanent; and restricted to such uses as a temporary
construction office/storage facility, real estate sales office andfor—storagefacHity, and

temperary operations office_or classrooms pending construction of a permanent facility.

Training Center. A facility used for business or professional conferences, seminars,
and training programs.

Tutoring. The provision of instruction.

Uses, Conditional. Those uses that are allowed in a particular zoning district, but only
under certain specified conditions.

Uses, Permitted. Those uses that are allowed in a particular zoning district as a matter of
right.

Uses, Principal. The main purpose for which a lot is intended and for which it may be
used.

Variance. A modification of the terms of this Ordinance granted by the Zoning Board of
Appeals in accordance with criteria as set forth herein.
6-38





or

Vehicle, Abandoned. A vehicle which does not bear a eurrent license plate with an
appropriate current decal affixed thereto, if required, unless said vehicle is stored within
a completely enclosed building or unless it is stored on a bena-fide permitted auto sales
lot and is in a satisfactory operating condition.

Vehicle/Boat Sales. A business establishment primarily involved in the sale of
automobiles, trucks, farm equipment, heavy construction equipment, motorcycles, boats,
recreational vehicles or trailers, or other vehicles, excluding manufactured homes.

Vehicle, Business. Any vehicle used for business purposes, whether or not the owner is a
private or governmental entity, except that school buses shall be excluded.

Vehicle, Passenger. A wheeled motor vehicle for transporting passengers which is
designed to run primarily on roads, principally for the transport of people rather than
goods, and shall exclude a motor coach/bus.

Vehicle, Recreation Mehiele. A self-propelled or towed vehicle used as a temporary
dwelling for travel and recreational purposes. Recreation vehicles shall include camping
trailers and travel trailers in addition to self-propelled vehicles and shall not exceed eight
and one-half (8.5) feet in width and ferty-five-{45) 45 feet in length.

Walkway. A passage to provide walking assess such as walks, paths and steps.

Wall. Structures made of masonry or concrete commonly used as an enclosure for a
lot. (Adopted 08/14/08 and enacted 10/01/08)

Warehouse. A building t+which-at-least seventy-fve(75; percent of the gross-Hoorarea

devoted to retention of goods, merchandise, supplies or other materials produced on site
received in shipment for ultimate sale or shipment elsewhere.

Water Distribution System, Central. Mains and service lines owned and operated by
the Fayette County Water System, or, when approved by the County Commissioners, a
private water system operating under the direct supervision of the Department of
Natural Resources.

Water Impoundment. A body of water confined by a dam, dike, floodgate, or other
barrier.

Weight, Curb. The total weight of a vehicle with standard equipment, all necessary
operating consumables (e.q. motor oil and coolant), a full tank of fuel, while not
loaded with either passengers or cargo.

Wind Farm. Any lot where more than one (1) wind turbine for the purpose of
generating electricity is located.

6-39



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Weight�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Vehicle�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Consumable�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Motor_oil�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Coolant�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fuel�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Passenger�

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Cargo�



Wind Turhine. A freestanding alternate energy device which converts wind energy into
electrical energy. A windmill shall also be deemed a wind turbine when used in
association with an agricultural operation.

Yard. A required open space on a lot that is left unoccupied with structures and facilities
except as otherwise permitted herein.

Yard, Front. The area between a property line adjacent to a thoroughfare and the
building line, extending the full width of the lot.

Yard, Rear. The area between the rear property line and the rear building line, extending
the full width of the lot.

Yard, Side. The area between the side property line and the side building line, extending
from the front yard to the rear yard.

Zoning Administrator. The person who has been designated by the Board of
Commissioners to administer the enforcement of this Ordinance.

Zoning Board of Appeals. The board to which the responsibilities associated with the
Zoning Board of Appeals has been delegated.

ARTICLE IV. ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICTS

4-1.  Zoning Districts. For the purposes of this Ordinance, the unincorporated areas of
Fayette County are divided into zoning districts designated as follows:

1. A-R Agricultural - Residential District  (Sec. 6-1)
2. C-S Conservation Subdivision (Sec. 6-2)
3. EST Estate Residential District (Sec. 6-3)
4. R-85 Single Family Residential District ~ (Sec. 6-4)
5. R-80 Single Family Residential District  (Sec. 6-5)
6. R-78 Single Family Residential District  (Sec. 6-6)
7. R-75 Single Family Residential District  (Sec. 6-7)
8. R-72 Single Family Residential District  (Sec. 6-8)
Q. R-70 Single Family Residential District  (Sec. 6-9)

6-40





10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

4-2.

4-3.

R-55 Single Family Residential District ~ (Sec. 6-10)

R-50 Single Family Residential District  (Sec. 6-11)

R-45 Single Family Residential District  (Sec. 6-12)

R-40 Single Family Residential District ~ (Sec. 6-13)

R-20 Single Family Residential District  (Sec. 6-14)

DR-15 One and Two Family Residential District  (Sec. 6-15)
RMF Multi Family Residential District ~ (Sec. 6-16)

MHP MebHe Manufactured Home Park District  (Sec. 6-17)
O-1 Office - Institutional District (Sec. 6-18)

C-C Community Commercial District (Sec. 6-19)

C-H Highway Commercial District (Sec. 6-20)

L-C Limited Commercial District (Sec. 6-21)

M-1 Light Industrial District (Sec. 6-22)

M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial District  (Sec. 6-23)
BTP Business Technology Park (Sec. 6-24)

PUD Planned Unit Development (Sec. 6-25)

Maps. The boundaries of each zoning district shall be shown on a map entitled
the "Zonlng Map of Fayette County" Ihe—leeatren—anel—elassq#eatlen—ef—au—stteets

hin nacao AN N N a N ala atala
Y v Ci C wiv

The map shaII be dated and certlfled by the Chalrman and Clerk of the Board of
Commissioners, Fayette County, Georgia. Said maps and all explanatory matter
thereon are hereby made a part of this Ordinance. The Zoning Administrator shall
retain said maps and all amendments thereto.

Amendments. If, in accordance with the provisions herein, amendments are made
to the aforementioned maps, the Zoning Administrator shall record such
amendment on the appropriate map and indicate thereon the effective date of the
amendment.

6-41





4-4.

Boundary Rule. Where uncertainty exists with respect to the boundaries of any

zoning district, the following rules shall apply unless otherwise specifically
indicated:

A

|

m

Where the zoning district boundaries are indicated on the zoning map as
approximately following the centerlines of a street, road, highway, railroad
right-of-way line, stream bed, river bed, corporate city limits line, mitia
district-line; or land lot line, then such lines shall be construed to be the
zoning district boundary lines.

Where the zoning district boundaries are indicated on the zoning map as
being set back from a street, road, highway, railroad, stream or river and
parallel thereto, then such boundaries shall be construed as being at the
scaled distance from the centerline of same and parallel thereto.

Where a zoning district boundary, enacted by the adoption of the Fayette
County Zoning Ordinance and Official Zoning Map on November 13,
1980, line divides a lot which—existed—at-the-time—of-enactment-of-this
Ordinanee, the Zoning Administrator may, administratively change the
zoning of the smaller portion of said lot to coincide with the zoning of the
larger portion of said lot. Said administrative rezoning, by the Zoning
Administrator, shall take place prior to submittal of a Preliminary Plat,
Final Plat, Site Plan, and/or building permit, as applicable. Any
changes in boundaries which occur pursuant to this provision shall be
reported to the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners.

Where a zoning district boundary divides a lot created after November
13, 1980, the property shall be rezoned to one (1) zoning district prior to
submittal of a Preliminary Plat, Final Plat, Site Plan, and/or building
permit, as applicable. Any existing development/structure located on a
lot with multiple zonings which were lawfully built and existing prior to
the adoption of this requlation (adoption date) and which does not
conform to the provisions of this Article, shall be allowed to remain in
place and shall be deemed a Legal Nonconformance which may include
the lot, use, and/or structure.

In addition, any development (Preliminary Plat, Final Plat, Site Plan,
and/or building permit, as applicable) that involves multiple lots to be
utilized as one (1) lot shall be required to be combined.

Corporate Limits. Any lot divided by corporate limits (city or county)
shall meet fully the requirements of Fayette County, on the portion of
the lot that is within unincorporated Fayette County for the purposes of
a building permit. All corporate limits dividing a lot will be viewed in

6-42





the same manner as a property line. Sethacks are measured from
corporate city limit lines and/or county boundary lines.

ARTICLE V. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Conflicting Requirements. Should any requirements conflict within this ordinance or
with any other County requirements, the most restrictive shall apply.

inconsistent-with-therequirements-herein-  No land, building, or structure shall be used

in_any manner_or for any purpose that is _inconsistent with this ordinance, or
amendment thereto, except as otherwise provided herein. In addition, no building or
structure _shall be erected, moved, altered, or enlarged in _any manner that is
inconsistent with this ordinance, or amendment thereto, except as otherwise provided
herein.

Use, Prohibited. If either a use or class of uses is not specifically indicated as being
permitted in a zoning district, either as a matter of right or as a conditional use, then such
use, class of uses, or structures for such uses shall be prohibited in such zoning district,
except as otherwise provided herein.

Principal Structure or Use. In all residential or agricultural-residential zoning districts,
no more than one (1) principal structure or use shall be located on a lot, except as
otherwise provided herein. In all non-residential zoning districts, no more than one (1)
principal use shall be located on a lot, except-as—otherwise—provided—herein. The
principal use on a non-residentially zoned lot shall either be either non-residential or
residential, but not both,-except as otherwise provided herein.

Use on a Lot. Construction of buildings, and structures, and establishment of uses shall
occur only upon a lot as defired required herein.

Reduction of Lot Area. No lot shall be reduced in size so that the lot size, width or depth,
size of yard, lot area per family, or any other requirement of this Ordinance is not
maintained. This restriction shall not apply when a portion of a lot is acquired for a public
purpose.

Height and Density. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered so
as to:

A Exceed the height limit; or
B. Accommodate or house a greater number of families per lot than allowed.

6-43





5-15. Street Frontage for Access. (Amended 08/26/99)

A.

For access purposes, all residential or non-residential lots must shall have
frontage on a street and/or a cul-de-sac that is either: (Amended 08/26/99)

1. Deeded-to-the-County-through-a-warranty-deed A public street; or
2. County-or-State-maintained A private street built to County standards; or

3 Bdeeded to a homeowner's association through a recorded warranty deed
which the owner of any lot within the subdivision is required to join.

All residential lots arerequired-te shall have at least a-continvous—minimum-lot
width-of 100 feet of immediate frontage on a street. This 100 foot width shall be
maintained from the lot’s frontage on the street to the body of the lot where the

m|n|mum Iot Wldth is met. #em—the—#ent—p#epe#ty—khe—te—the—bmldmg#te—and—at

abeve Thls requwement shaII be met unless (Amended 06/25/98)

1. The lot is "Landlocked Property™ as provided in Section 5-14; or

2. The lot fronts only the turn-around portion of a cul-de-sac. Each lot
which fully fronts the turn-around portion of a cul-de-sac shall have a
minimum of 50 feet of street frontage and this provision shall be limited

to a maximum of four (4) lots. Ih&tet—rsene—élé—ef—fet#@é—eHes&lets

C. For-aceess—purposes, a-All nonresidential lots are-reguired-to shall have at
least a-continuous—mintimum-tot-width-of 125 feet_of frontage on a street. This

125 foot width shall be maintained from the lot’s frontage on the street to the

bodv of the Iot where the minimum lot W|dth IS met #em—the—#ent—p#epeﬁy—hne

SH-bSGGt—IGH—A.—&bGVG ThIS requwement shall be met unless: (Amended 08/26/99)

1. The lot is "Landlocked Property" as provided in Section 5-14; or

2. The lot fronts only the turn-around portion of a cul-de-sac. Each lot
which fully fronts the turn-around portion of a cul-de-sac shall have a
minimum of 50 feet of street frontage and this provision is limited to a

maximum of four (4) lots. Fheletis-one-offour{4)-orlessltotslocated-on
6-44






5-16.

5-10.

5-17.

5-21.

5-22.

Landlocked Property. In the event property is landlocked, as of the effective date of this

Ordinance (November 13, 1980), the property owner shall be entitled to one (1) building
permit, provided: (Amended 02/22/07)

A. No other principal building exists or is being constructed on said property;

B. No other valid building permit has been issued prior to the effective date of this
Ordinance and is currently valid;

C. The property owner has acquired a twenty—{20) 20 foot easement to a County
maintained street, and said easement has been duly recorded and made a part of
the property deed; and

D. In the event said property is divided into two (2) or more lots, no further building
permits shall be issued until such time as there exists a street meeting all of the
requirements as specified in the Fayette County Subdivision Regulations.

Encroachment on Public Rights-of-Way. No building, structure (including prohibited
mailbox supports as described in Seetion-5-37 Article V), service area or required off-
street parking and loading facilities, except driveways and associated headwalls, shall be
permitted to encroach on public rights-of-ways. (Amended 02/25/99)

Obstruction of Vision. No fence, wall, structure, shrubbery, or other obstruction to vision
between the height of three (3) feet and fifteen (15) feet, as measured from road grade,
except utility and light poles shall be permitted within twenty (20) feet of the intersection
of the right-of-way lines of streets, roads, highways, railroads or any combination thereof.

Requirements for Moving a Building. No dwelling unit or other permanent structure
shall be relocated in the County unless, when relocated, it meets all requirements herein
and other applicable County code requirements.

Buildings under Construction. Nothing in this Ordinance shall require any change in the
construction or intended use of a building which is legally under construction or for
which a building permit has been issued as of the effective date of this Ordinance,
including amendments, and the construction of which shall be diligently pursued until
completion.

6-45





5-41.

Septic Systems and Drain Field Lines. Septic systems, including drain field lines, shall

5-9.

5-13.

5-19.

5-20.

be set back a minimum of ten (10) feet from the property line. In the case where a
buffer is required, septic systems, including drain field lines, shall be set back a
minimum of 25 feet from the property line (see Buffer.)

Open-Space Yard not to be Encroached Upon. No epen-space yard shall be encroached
upon or reduced in any manner except in conformity with the yard, setback, off-street
parking spaces, and such other regulations required for the zoning district in which such
building is located. Shrubbery Landscaping, driveways, vehicle parking areas,
walkways and associated steps, retaining walls, walls_and fences, curbs, and planted

buffer strips shaII not be construed to be encroachments Open-space—areas—shal-be

Common Area. When a common area, open space, or_conservation area is located
between a lot and the readf street right-ef-way, the setback on the lot shall be measured
from the right-of-way as a front yard setback or from the common area as a side or rear
setback and whichever is greater shall apply. (Adopted in its entirety 08/14/08 and
enacted 10/01/08)

Structures Permltted above the Helqht L|m|t The height himits shall not apply to a

limit shall not applv to structures and archltectural features not mtended for human

occupancy, including, but not limited to: a spire, belfry, cupola, dome, monument,
water tower, observation tower, telecommunication tower, chimney, smoke stack,
conveyer, mast or aerial, heating ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) equipment,
elevator _equipment, roofed solar panels, satellite/ communications equipment, and
parapet wall not extending more than four (4) feet above the roof line of the building.
(Amended 09/26/02).

Permitted Encroachments of Yards and Setbacks. Architectural features connected to a
structure such as cornices, eaves, steps, gutters, and fire escapes may project not more
than three (3) feet beyond any required setback line, except where such projections would
obstruct driveways. In the case of automobile service stations, hotels, and similar uses
which service the motoring public, canopies shall be allowed over a driveway or
Walkway WlfehmJehe#em

frem%rlgh{-ef-way One (1) flagpole per Iot shaII aIso be allowed to encroach into the
6-46






front yard setback, provided it is not located retless within than fifteen{15) 15 feet from
of the right-of-way. Flagpoles which encroach the front yard setback shall be required to
have a signed and sealed affidavit from an architect or engineer registered in the State of
Georgia with the actual location and setback of the flagpole and inspection approval of
the footing to be submitted to the Planning and Zoning Department prior to placement of
the flagpole. (Amended 09/26/02)

5-42. Lot Width, Minimum. The lot width at the building line shall be met for a depth of 80
feet. The principal structure shall be constructed within this area provided the required
setbacks are met. Accessory structures do not have to comply with the lot width at the
building line; however, they shall comply with the required setbacks and location
requirements.

5-11.

A Additions to a Single Family Structure.

A. All additions to a Single Family Dwelling must shall be attached to the primary
structure, via either a heated and—eeeoled corridor that has minimum interior
dimensions of six (6) feet in width and eight (8) feet in height, or by a direct
access common wall. Said corridor must shall be attached to the primary
residence at a location that is currently heated and-coeled. (Adopted 06/23/05)

B. Porte Cochere. A porte cochere shall be attached at an entrance of a single-family
dwelling and shall meet the following standards: (Adopted 06/26/08)

1. Shall consist of a singular roof line that is consistent with the single-family
dwelling roof design, and supported by posts/columns and shall remain
open on the remaining three (3) sides; (Adopted 06/26/08)

2. Shall be consistent with the architectural character/facade of the single-
family dwelling; and (Adopted 06/26/08)

3. A porte cochere shall not be utilized as a carport, garage, storage building,
open storage, or living area. (Adopted 06/26/08)

5-12. Accessory Structures and Uses. (Adopted in its entirety 01/24/08)

A. The following accessory structures and uses are permitted in A-R and all
residential zoning districts. Farm outbuildings and commercial greenhouses are
regulated as Conditional Uses under Article VII. and shall be allowed in the A-R
Zoning District only. One (1) semi-trailer may be utilized as a farm outbuilding
provided the property is zoned A-R and the semi-trailer_is being used to store

6-47





agricultural items. These regulations shall not apply to those nonresidential
uses allowed in A-R and residential zoning districts.

1. WeH, Well/pump house;
2. Guest house;
3. Greenhouse (for private use);
4.  Swimming pool, pool deck, pool equipment enclosure, and pool screen
enclosure;
5. Garage;
6.  Recreational court;
7.  Gazebo;
8.  Cabana, covered patio, and covered deck;
9.  Storage building; and
10. Carport;

11.  Solar Panel (ground mounted);

12.  Wind Turbine/Windmill (ground-mounted);

13. Aircraft Hangar, detached (see Article VII);

14.  Dog House and Dog Pen/Run;

15.  Playhouse; and

16. Outdoor Kitchen and/or Fireplace.

Structure Limitations.  Construction of an accessory structure shall occur
concurrently with or after the construction of the principal structure. Accessory
structures shall not be used as dwelling units or for lodging purposes, except a
guest house.

Number and Size. The number and size of accessory structures shall conform to
the requirements described herein.

6-48





Accessory structures shall be limited to one (1) of the following options:

a. Two (2) accessory structures, per individual lot, with each
accessory structure not to exceed 900 square feet of floor area.
One (1) of these accessory structures may include up to 700 square
feet of heated and finished floor area to be utilized as a guest
house. An accessory structure combined with a guest house, under
this option, shall be deemed as one (1) accessory structure; or

b. One (1) accessory structure, per individual lot, not to exceed 1,800
square feet of floor area, or the total square footage of the principal
structure, whichever is less. This accessory structure may include
up to 700 square feet of heated and finished floor area to be
utilized as a guest house. An accessory structure combined with a
guest house, under this option, shall be deemed as one (1)
accessory structure; or

C. Two (2) accessory structures per individual lot consisting of a
freestanding guest house (not to exceed 700 square feet of heated
and finished tving floor space area) and an accessory structure
which may not exceed 1,100 square feet of floor area.

At least fifty-{50)-percent 50 percent of the square footage of an accessory
structure building shall be fully enclosed, except as otherwise provided n

Section—5-10 herein. Said enclosed area shall be surrounded by
connecting adjacent walls constructed of solid materials attached to the
foundation and roof.

A well/pump house, dog house, or playhouse consisting of seventy{(70}
70 square feet or less, dog pen/run consisting of 200 square feet or less,
swimming pool, recreational court, aircraft hangar (see Article VII.), farm
outbuilding (see Article VII.), commercial greenhouse (see Article VII.),
ground/pole mounted solar panel consisting of less than 200 square feet,
and ground-mounted wind turbine/windmill, uncovered outdoor Kitchen
and/or Tireplace and-accessory-structures—incidentalto-commercial-and
industrial—uses shall not be included in determining the number of
accessory structures provided herein.

Total Square Footage. When both of the following criteria are met, the
upper level space shall be included in the total square footage of the
structure: a) the upper level space is accessed by permanent stairs; and
b) that portion of the upper level space where the ceiling width, measured

at least seven (7) feet in height, is more than fifty—percent{(50%) 50
percent of the ceiling width measured at least five (5) feet in height.

6-49





Location on Lot. Accessory structures shall conform to the dimensional
requirements within each zoning district. No structure shall be located in the front
yard except: a detached garage (see 1. and 2. below for requirements); well/pump
house consisting of seventy-{#0} 70 square feet or less; or farm outbuildings and
commercial greenhouses located in an A-R Zoning District, where the lot consists
of five (5) acres or more. A well/pump house of 70 square feet or less may be
located within the setbacks. On a single frontage lot, the area between the street
and the front building line shall be treated as a front yard with regard to the
location of accessory structures. On a corner lot, the area between both of the
streets and both of the front building lines shall be treated as a primary front yard
and a secondary front yard with regard to the location of accessory structures.

On a through lot, the area between the street from which the lot is accessed and
the front building line shall be treated as a front yard with regard to the location of
accessory structures.

1. Detached Garage located in the Front Yard of a Single Frontage Lot and a
Through Lot. A detached garage located in the front yard shall meet the
following requirements:

a. Shall not exceed 900 square feet of floor area;

b. Located no more than thirty-five{35) 35 feet from the principal
structure;

C. Shall Nnot exceed twenty-three-{23) 23 feet in height;

d. No more than fifty-pereent{50%) 50 percent of the footprint of the
garage may be located beyond the front building line of the

principal structure;

e. The width of the portion of the garage facing the street shall not
exceed sixty-pereent(60%) 60 percent of the width of the principal
structure; and

f. No portion of the garage may be located directly between the
principal structure and the street.

2. Detached Garage Located in the Front Yard of a Corner Lot.

a. Primary front yard. The location of the front door of the principal
structure shall establish the primary front yard. If the front door is
not oriented to a street, the driveway access shall be utilized to
establish the primary front yard. The primary front yard is the
area between the street and the front building line in which an

6-50






accessory structure is prohibited, except in the case of a detached
garage which shall comply with the requirements of a Single
Frontage Lot; and

Secondary front yard. Consequently, the other frontage shall be
the secondary front yard. The secondary front yard is the area
between the street and the front building line in which an accessory
structure is prohibited, except in the case of a detached garage
which shall comply with the following requirements:

(1) Shall not exceed 900 square feet of floor area;

(2) Located no more than thirty-five(35) 35 feet from the
principal structure; and

(3) Shall Nnot exceed twenty-three(23) 23 feet in height.

Architectural Standards for a Detached Garage located in all front yards.

The garage shall maintain a residential character. Elevation drawings
denoting compliance with the following requirements must shall be
submitted as part of the building permit application:

a.

The design of the garage shall match with the general architectural
style inherent in the existing principal structure, including, but not
limited to, roof pitch, roof facade, facade, residential windows, and
residential doors.

The garage shall have at least one (1) opening for vehicular access.

A separate electrical meter is not permitted, unless otherwise
required by the power company providing service to the property.

The garage shall be connected to the principal structure by at least
one (1) of the following:

(1)  An attached or detached breezeway. Said breezeway shall
be a minimum of six (6) feet in width and a minimum of
eight (8) feet in height (interior measurement). A detached
breezeway shall be constructed within six (6) inches of the
principal structure and the garage; or

(2)  An attached raised deck. Said attached raised deck shall be
a minimum height of fifteen{25} 15 inches. The deck shall
have a minimum width of six (6) feet. Said deck shall have

6-51





guard rails measuring a minimum of three (3) feet in
height; or

(3)  An attached or detached pergola. Said pergola shall consist
of parallel colonnades supporting an open roof of beams
and crossing rafters, shall be a minimum of six (6) feet in
width and a minimum of eight (8) feet in height (interior
measurement). A detached pergola shall be constructed
within six (6) inches of the principal structure and the
garage.

Guest Houses. Only one (1) guest house is allowed per individual lot. Any living
area included in an accessory structure is a guest house. A guest house shall not
be used as tenant space.

1. Size. A guest house shall not exceed 700 square feet of heated and

finished Hving-space floor area.

Architectural Standards. All accessory structures of 200 square feet or greater,
except a detached garage located in the front yard, shall be constructed in a

residential character consisting of a—gable—hip—or—gambrelroof-only,—with-—a
mintmumpiteh-of4-1/2"in-12” and-a facade of fiber-cement siding, wood siding,

wood textured vinyl siding, brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, stucco, or
synthetic stucco, or finished/baked enamel aluminum/metal siding which
establishes a horizontal pattern. These standards shall not apply to an addition
to_an_existing accessory structure that is_nonconforming in terms of these
standards. Any addition to an existing nonconforming accessory structure shall
match the architectural design of the existing nonconforming accessory
structure. _ Elevation drawing denoting compliance must shall be submitted as
part of the building permit application.

Temporary Accessory Storage. Portable on demand storage units are only
allowed on a temporary basis and only in conjunction with an ongoing a
renovation project for the purpose of storage of household items for a period not
to exceed one (1) year.

Portable on demand storage units are defined as any container, storage unit or
other portable structure, other than an accessory building or shed complying with
all building codes used to store household items. Only two (2) portable on
demand storage units are allowed per lot.

Carport. The carport shall be used to house motor vehicles and trailers only.
Carports shall be constructed of the same material or types of material as the
principal structure on the property, or of metal.

6-52





5-17.

|~

Cabana, covered patio, and covered deck. The cabana, covered patio, and
covered deck may contain an outdoor Kitchen, fireplace, spa/hot tub, bathroom
[changing room, and/or _pool pump/filter but shall not be utilized as a carport,
garage, storage building, open storage, or living area. Said structures shall, at a
minimum, consist of a roof with supporting posts/columns, not to exceed one (1)
story, and comply with the Architectural Standards for an accessory structure 200
square feet or greater.

Swimming pool, pool deck, pool equipment enclosure, and pool screened
enclosure. The pool deck, pool equipment enclosure, and pool screened enclosure
shall comply with the required setbacks. A pool screen enclosure shall be
constructed with insect screening commonly made of plastic, aluminum, or
similar lightweight material and shall be exempt from the architectural
requirements herein.

Solar Panels (ground-mounted). Ground mounted solar panels shall be limited
to three (3) per lot, the total cumulative square footage of ground mounted solar
panels shall not exceed 900 square feet, shall not exceed ten (10) feet in _height,
shall comply with the required setbacks, and shall comply with the location of
an_accessory structure/use. Ground mounted solar _panels consisting of less
than 200 cumulative square feet shall not count toward the number of
accessory structures/uses.  Ground mounted solar panels consisting of 200
cumulative square feet up to a maximum of 900 cumulative square feet shall be
counted as one (1) accessory structure/use.

Wind Turbines/Windmill (ground-mounted). Wind Turbines/windmills _shall
not exceed 70 feet in height. The setbacks shall be equal to the height of the
wind turbine, including the blades, or the applicable zoning district setbacks,
whichever _are greater. Each lot is limited to one (1) ground mounted wind
turbine/windmill. The ground mounted wind turbine/windmill shall not count
toward the number of accessory structures/uses. All anchors for guyed towers
shall meet the setbacks for the applicable zoning districts.

Nonconformance. All accessory structures or uses which had a building permit
issued prior to January 24, 2008, (the adoption date) are legally non-conforming
and shall be allowed to be maintained and rebuilt to current size and in the
existing location. All accessory structures or uses permitted after January 24,
2008, (the adoption date) must shall comply with the current requirements.

Walls, Fences, and Entrance Structures located in a front yard in A-R and all residential

zoning districts and Residential and Nonresidential Subdivision Entrance Walls and

Fences.
(Amended in its entirety 08/14/08 and enacted 10/01/08)

A

All walls and fences shall comply with the following:
6-53





No wall or fence shall be constructed in a public right-of-way, and such
wall or fence shall not be constructed any closer than three (3) feet from
any fire hydrant. Walls and fences in the right-of-way shall be removed.

Any vehicular driveway shall have a minimum clearance of feurteen{14)
14 feet in width and feurteen—(34) 14 feet in height to allow for the
passage of emergency vehicles.

All walls and fences shall be maintained and repaired as required in the
International Property Maintenance Code.

A Zoning Compliance Certificate will be required for all walls and fences
located in a front yard prior to construction. A scaled drawing shall be
submitted to the Planning & Zoning Department which shall include, but
not be limited to: wall and/or fence elevations, location, height of
wall/fence, posts/columns, and ornamental statues, figurines, and light
fixtures, visibility, spacing over the entire linear footage of wall/fence,
changes in grade, building materials, and other requirements of the
ordinance.

Walls and Fences not exceeding four (4) feet in height shall comply with the
following:

1.

A wall or fence shall be constructed of brick/brick veneer, stucco,
synthetic stucco, rock, stone, cast-stone, wood, wrought iron, chain link or
other similar wire materials, or other architecturally engineered facades
which match these materials. Barbed wire and electric_fences are
prohibited, except as otherwise provided herein (see Exemptions).

Posts or columns, light fixtures, ornamental statues, and figurines shall not
be included in the measurement of the four (4) foot wall height.

Walls and Fences exceeding four (4) feet in height shall comply with the
following:

1.

A wall and/or fence shall be constructed of brick/brick veneer, stucco,
synthetic stucco, rock, stone, cast-stone, wood, wrought iron, or other
architecturally engineered facades which match these materials. Barbed
wire and electric fences are prohibited, except as otherwise provided
herein (see Exemptions).

2. A solid wall and/or fence shall not exceed four (4) feet in height

and any portion of a wall and/or fence higher than four (4) feet shall have

a minimum visibility of 50 percent which shall be uniformly spaced over
6-54





the entire linear footage of the wall and/or fence. Columns and posts shall
not be included in this calculation.

3. A vehicular entry structure shall not be subject to the four (4) foot wall
and fence requirement or the minimum visibility of 50 percent within 35
feet of either side of the driveway.

Walls and fences that cannot meet height requirements due to changes in grade
shall make adjustments to each section (as created by the columns or posts) of the
wall or fence to meet the requirements to the greatest degree possible. In some
cases, this will result in a stair-step pattern as the wall or fence moves along the
grade.

Exemptions.
The following shall be exempt from the above requirements:

1. In any residential zoning district where horses are kept in
accordance with Article V. General Provisions, Raising and Keeping
Horses in Residential Districts, a wall or fence made of chain link or other
wire materials is exempt from the four (4) foot maximum height
requirement and shall not exceed a maximum of five (5) feet in height in a
front yard.

2. Where the use of the property is for farming in an A-R zoning district,
including the raising and selling of crops and/or livestock, the property is
exempt from the four (4) foot maximum height requirement, and exempt
from the construction requirements of brick/brick veneer, stucco, synthetic
stucco, rock, stone, cast-stone, wood, wrought iron, or other
architecturally engineered facades which match these materials.

3. Walls and Fences in any residential or A-R zoning district;

a. On a corner lot, in order to reduce road noise, a solid wall
and/or fence along a street which is classified as an Arterial or
Collector per the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan shall be
exempt from the four (4) foot maximum height requirement and
the 50 percent visibility requirement. However, this exemption
shall not apply to the street which the front door of the residence is

facing.

b. Where a temporary fence is used in conjunction with a
construction site, said fence is exempt from the requirements of
this section.

6-55





(Note:

C. A fence required for a telecommunication tower site shall
comply with the requirements of Article V. General Provisions,
Telecommunication Antennas and Towers and shall be exempt
from the requirements of this section.

d. A wall or fence used in conjunction with a storm water
facility shall be exempt from the requirements of this section.

e. A wall or fence used in conjunction with any non-
residential Permitted Use or Conditional Use, including but not
limited to: an Animal Hospital, Kennel, Cemetery and
Mausoleum; Church or Other Place of Worship; Colleges and
Universities; Day Care Facility; School, Private; Telephone, and
Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities shall
be exempt from the requirements of this section.

f. With regard to the location of a wall or fence, a through lot
shall be exempt from the four (4) foot maximum height
requirement and the minimum 50 percent visibility requirement,
except for the area between the street from which the lot is
accessed and the front building line, which shall be treated as a
front yard.

Residential and Nonresidential Subdivision Entrance Walls and Fences.

Subdivision Entrance Walls and Fences shall be placed on common property
under the ownership of the Home Owners Association (HOA) or the Property
Owners Association (POA). Common property shall be shown on the Preliminary
Plat and/or Final Plat. Said walls and fences shall not be subject to the four (4)
foot height or 50 percent (56%; visibility requirements, but shall be constructed
of brick/brick veneer, stucco, synthetic stucco, rock, stone, cast-stone, wood,
wrought iron, or other architecturally engineered facades which match these
materials.

Check with the Building Permits & Inspections Department for any permitting
requirements for walls/fences/subdivision entrances.)

Nonconformance.

All walls and fences which were lawfully built and existing on October 1, 2008,

and which do not conform with the provisions of this Article, shall be allowed to

remain in place and shall be considered to be a legally existing non-conforming

wall or fence. Additionally, any walls or fences built prior to October 1, 2008,

that were in compliance with all codes and ordinances when it was built except

for the height of the wall or fence, and which do not conform with the provisions
6-56





5-45.

of this Article, shall be considered a legally existing non-conforming wall or
fence and shall be allowed to remain in place. All walls and fences built after
October 1, 2008, shall comply with this Article.

Sales, Garage/Yard. A maximum of three (3) garage/yard sales consisting of a

5-31.

5-32.

5-33.

maximum of three (3) days each within a 12 month period shall be allowed per
residential lot.

Architectural Yard Features. Architectural Yard Features shall not be located within
the right-of-way, shall not be required to comply with the setback requirements, and
shall include, but not be limited to: 1) landscaping features such as planters, arbors,
and trellises; 2) water features shall include, but not be limited to: fountains,
waterfalls, and decorative man-made ponds such as koi ponds; and/or 3) sculptures.
Landscaping features such as arbors or trellises shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height
as measured at the highest point. Landscaping planters shall not exceed four (4) feet
in_height at the highest point. Sculptures shall not exceed 20 feet in_height or the
highest point of the roof of the principle structure, whichever is less. (Note: Check
with the Building Permits & Inspections Department for any permitting requirements.)

Parking of Business Vehicles. In any residential district, except A-R on lots of ten (10)
acres or larger, no business vehicle exceeding 8,000 pounds (empty-vehicle curb weight)
shall be allowed to park either on lots so zoned or on streets abutting such lots except
during daylight hours and only for the purpose of making deliveries, making pickups, and
providing services.

Business vehicles weighing less than 8,000 pounds shall not be parked on streets abutting
such lots. This provision shall not be construed as restricting in any way the normal
business vehicle activity associated with development and construction. School buses
shall be exempt (see Article 111, Vehicle, Business). This provision shall not be allowed
in conjunction with a Home Occupation (see Article VII).

Access to Major Thoroughfares. Lots having driveway access to arterial and collector
streets shall be provided with a convenient vehicle turn-around which shall be of
adequate design to permit vehicles to enter such arterial or collector streets in a forward
manner.

Raising and Keeping of Horses in Residential Districts. The raising and keeping of no
more than one (1) horse on a lot consisting of a minimum of three (3) acres and one (1)
additional horse for each additional acre shall be allowed on any lot for which single-
family residential is a permitted use (EST, R-85, R-80, R-78, R-75, R-72, R-70, R-55, R-
50, R-45, R-40, R-20, PUD-PRD, and C-S). An accessory structure related to the
shelter of horses shall be allowed, as long as, such accessory structure complies with
Article V. (Accessory Structures and Uses). The boarding of horses and commercial
riding lessons shall be prohibited.

6-57





5-34.

5-25.

5-35.

5-18.

o-47.

Wild Animals. All Wild Animals categorized as inherently dangerous that require a
license or permit and liability insurance per OCCG Title 27, Chapter 5, shall be
prohibited in all residential and A-R zoning districts.

Mailbox Supports. The use of massive supports that, when struck, could damage vehicles
and cause serious injury to vehicle occupants, are prohibited. Concrete posts, brick
bases, iron pipes and similar miscellaneous items such as farm equipment or supports
filled with concrete cannot be used for mailbox supports. This restriction shall not apply
on streets with a classification of Internal Local (see Development Regulations, Article
I11. _Street Design Standards and Specifications.) (Adopted 12/09/93) (Amended
02/25/99)

Recreational Vehicle. One (1) recreational vehicle, when utilized for temporary
occupancy, shall be allowed to be parked in any zoning district on a lot which contains
a single-family dwelling or in any residential zoning district. The duration shall not
exceed 14 days and said duration shall be allowed two (2) times per year.

Site Plan Requirement. All proposed non-residential development shall be depicted on a
Site Plan consistent with the requirements listed in the Development Regulations.

Yard Service, Required Open Space to one (1) building. No part of any yard, ef other
open space, or off-street parking or loading space required about, or in connection with,
any building, structure, or use shall be included as part of a required yard, open space, or
off-street parking or loading space similarly required for any other building, structure, or
use except as provided herein.

Side and Rear Yards and Buffers Not Required Next to Railroad. Within any non-
residential zoning district, side yards and rear yards, and buffers shall not be required
adjacent to railroad rights-of-way.

Buffer. A buffer shall provide a separation of uses from abutting properties and a

5-46.

visual screen through the use of natural vegetation or other means, including,
replanting or_supplemental plantings (See Development Regulations, Article V. for
planting requirements.) Other visual screening elements or noise attenuation devices,
such as walls or berms, may be utilized in_addition to the vegetation in the buffer.
Stormwater retention and detention facilities may be located in a buffer but shall be set
back a minimum of 25 feet from the property line. Said 25 feet as measured from the
property line shall be for the aforementioned required natural vegetation, landscape
plantings and other visual screening elements or noise attenuation devices only. Multi-
use path access and utilities (including underground stormwater piping) may be
located anywhere within the buffer.

Landscaping and Buffer Requirements. A nonresidential structure/use allowed in a

residential zoning district shall comply with the planting requirements for the buffer

and landscape areas of the Development Regulations.

6-58





o-44.

Road Side Sales. Sales of goods or services from a temporary location along a public

5-14.

5-26.

5-21.

right-of-way where business is transacted outside of an approved permanent structure
are prohibited. Mobile ice cream vendors, mobile food venders which serve building
sites, and vendors located at special events shall be exempt.

Pavilion. A pavilion is an accessory structure which is allowed in non-residential zoning
districts, except as otherwise provided herein.

Nonresidential Screening required. Any outside service area, refuse/dumpster area,
storage area or outside equipment area shall be screened from view in accordance with
Seetion-5-19 Article V.

Refuse/Dumpster Area. The refuse/dumpster area used in conjunction with non-

5-28.

5-29.

5-30.

residential uses shall only be located to the side or rear of the principal structure,
comply with the setbacks and/or buffer requirements, and be screened per Article V.

Screening Standards. Walls and fences or combinations thereof shall achieve a 100
percent screen prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. Walls and fences
required for screening purposes shall be limited to wood, brick, stone, concrete or
concrete block (with

architectural treatment), or any such wall or fence combined with vegetative screening
materials which shall be compatible with or enhance the appearance of adjoining
properties. Chain link fences with wooden, metal, or vinyl inserts may be utilized to
establish a screen in the M-1 and M-2 Zoning Districts.

Outside Storage. Outside storage of merchandise, equipment, and parts_shall be allowed

in the side and rear yards subject to such requirements to the extent indicated below as
long as such storage is screened in accordance with Seetion5-19 Article V. Storage
contained in a structure which is not enclosed by walls shall be deemed outside storage.
Out3|de storage is allowed only Wlthln the M 1 M 2, C-C, and C H Zoning Dlstrlcts

Outside Sterage Display Exempt from Screening. Outside sterage display of metor
vehicles, motorcycles, boats, recreational vehicles, farm equipment, utility trailers, and
heavy equipment, for lease or sale and manufactured homes and landscape materials
shall be exempt from the screening requirements of this Ordinance, subject to the
minimum landscape and buffer requirements. Merchandise which is moved inside on a
daily basis shall be exempt from the screening requirements; however, such display must
shall comply with all minimum landscape and buffer requirements._Outside sales display
shall be exempt from screening; however, the Outside sales display shall comply with
the required setbacks, buffers and landscape requirements. The outside installation
and display of products shall be limited to those items generally utilized outside,

6-59





5-23.

5-24.

5-36.

including, but not limited to: swimming pools, spas/hot tubs, patios and patio
accessories, plant materials and/or children’s play equipment.

Office Trailer. The temporary use of an office trailer shall require a permit to be issued
by the Zoning Administrator prior to locating the trailer on a site. Said permit shall
require a fee as established by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County and shall
specify the precise location of the trailer. Said permit shall be issued for a six (6) month
period. Renewals of additional six (6) month periods are available so long as the
appllcant possesses a current bundmg permlt for property W|th|n the development Ihe

Temporary Classrooms. The temporary use of industriatized—buildings a_trailer for
classrooms shall require a permit issued by the Zoning Administrator. Said permit shall
require a fee established by the Board of Commissioners. It must shall be demonstrated
on a site plan that such a use will comply with all zoning requirements. Required on-site
parking for temporary classrooms must shall be provided prior to the issuance of any
temporary classroom permit. Each industrialized-building must trailer shall be approved
for occupancy by the Fire Marshal. Site is defined, for the purpose of this Section, to be
the entire area indicated on an approved overall site plan. (Amended 12/09/99)

Initial Placement of Temporary Classrooms. Upon the issuance of a building permit for
the principal structure on site, a maximum of four (4) temporary classroom permits may
be issued for a period not to exceed two (2) years, or thirty{30) 30 days after the issuance
of any type of Certificate of Occupancy on site should that occur prior to the two (2) year
deadline. (Adopted 12/09/99)

Subsequent Placement of Temporary Classrooms. Upon issuance of a building permit
for an expansion on-site, additional temporary classroom permits may be issued, the
number of which shall be based on the following: one (1) temporary classroom per
2,000 square feet of proposed addition devoted to classroom use, with a maximum of four
(4) temporary classrooms. Subsequent temporary classroom permits may be issued for
the expansion period and shall expire in one (1) year, and may be renewed for a six (6)
month period due to documented construction delays, with no further extensions.
(Adopted 12/09/99)

Administrative Variances and-Medifications. The Zoning Administrator shall have the
authority to approve administrative variances regarding setbacks for an existing
structure. Said administrative variance shall not exceed ten (10) percent of the
minimum setback requirements up to a maximum of two (2) feet. miner-changes-toplan
element& Thls shall not mclude setbacks requwed for Condltlonal Uses eltmene;tenacl

6-60





5-48. Manufactured Home. The placement of a manufactured home in a zoning district

which allows a single-family dwelling as a Permitted or Conditional Use, other than

MHP, shall comply with the following:

1.

[N

Approval shall be required from the Georgia Department of Community Affairs
(DCA) and the Housing and Urban Development, as applicable. This approval
shall be located in the electrical panel box of the building unit. The date plat
shall be affixed to each building unit which assures compliance at the
installation location.

A Georgia Insignia for Industrialized Building, when affixed to each building
unit, shall indicate that the unit has been constructed and inspected in
compliance with the approved plans and date on file with the DCA and/or
HUD, as applicable. No deviations from or changes in the approved building
plans shall be made without prior approval from the DCA and/or HUD, as

applicable.

6-61





5-40.

|

3. A manual of the structure shall have a State of Georgia Engineer’s seal and
shall describe, in_detail, the building construction and _installation
requirements.

4. The Manufactured Home shall comply with all applicable zoning requirements,
including, but not limited to: minimum heated square footage.

5. The Manufactured Home shall be placed on a permanent foundation.

6. The middle support chassis shall be removed.

1. The electrical and gas meters are to be set in the structure once all applicable
final inspections are approved.

8. All applicable requirements shall be met within 90 calendar days and prior to

the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.

Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers. (Amended in its entirety and
adopted 12/10/98)

Purpose and Intent. The purpose of this ordinance is to establish minimum development
standards for the regulation of commercial telecommunications transmissions towers,
including, but not limited to, cellular and Personal Communications Systems (PCS)
towers, broadcasting towers, two (2)-way radio towers, fixed-point microwave dishes,
commercial satellites and receiving dishes, and related aeeessery equipment cabinets or
buildings. The intent of this ordinance is te: (1) to implement the provisions of the
Telecommunications Act of 1996, on a local level; (2) to control placement of towers and
antennas in a way that minimizes the adverse visual impact to nearby properties by
locating towers and antennas in non-residential areas or in areas where the adverse
impact on the community is minimal, and (3) to advocate the shared use of new and
existing tower sites through co-location, thereby discouraging the proliferation of towers
throughout Fayette County.

Authority. Only the Board of Commissioners has the authority to reduce or waive the
requirements under this section through the public hearing procedure.

Applicability.
1. Dlstrlct Helqht L|m|tat|ons The requirements set forth herein shall govern the

Helqht Limits specified for each zoning district appheable—te—bu#dmgs—aﬂd

structures shall not apply to towers and antennas. The requirements set forth
herein shall govern the height of towers and antennas.

6-62





Flulehe Governmentallv Owned Propertv Newmh%}dmg—amng—eentamed

ne{—apply These requwements shaII not applv to any qovernmentallv owned

property, including properties owned by the Board of Commissioners, Board of
Education, or a municipality, as well as, the State or Federal government, that
are used for the location of any tower facility. (Amended 04/11/02)

Amateur Radio Antennas. This ordinance shall not govern any amateur radio
tower, or the installation of any antenna, that is under less than seventy (70} 70
feet in height and is owned and operated by a federally-licensed amateur radio
station operator.

Pre-Existing Towers and Antennas.

a. Any tower or antenna which existed prior to December 10, 1998, that does
not _comply with the requwements herein shall be deemed legally

enlargement of a pre-existing tower or tower facility, shall meet the
requirements herein. _ Co-location _of an antenna which does not
increase the height of the tower or placement of additional equipment
cabinets or buildings within the existing tower facility shall be allowed
under the provisions of Site Plan Requirements. Amended 10/25/01)

b.

&

C. Replacement of an-existing a_pre-existing legally honconforming tower
structure is permitted provided that all of the following apply: (Add in its
entirety 05/25/00)

6-63





1) The replacement tower is constructed en—site—within—close

proximity to the existing tower at the same or greater sethacks than
previousty-established within 25 feet of the existing tower and is

not greater in height than the existing tower.

2 The tower being replaced is removed from site within fifteen(15)
90 calendar days from the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy
for the new replacement tower;

3) Additional co-location opportunities on the new tower are made
available with the minimum users required based on tower height;

4) A site plan fer-the-new indicating the location of the replacement
tower faciities-is-administratively-approved shall be required.

D. General Requirements.

1.

[N

Towers and tower facilities shall be on a lot which meets the minimum lot size

for the zoning district in which it is located. Towers and tower facilities may be

located on a lot containing another use. Towers and tower facilities may

occupy a leased area being a portion of the lot.

Internal setbacks for towers, tower facilities, and anchors shall be measured to

the boundaries of the lot, not the boundaries of the leased area. Setbacks for

towers shall be measured from the base of the tower.

a.

I

[©

All towers shall be set back from all adjoining properties zoned
residential or A-R a distance equal to the height of the tower plus ten

(10) feet.

All towers shall be set back from all adjoining properties zoned non-
residential a distance of 100 feet.

All towers shall be set back from the street right-of-way (existing or
required) a distance equal to the height of the tower. Street right-of-way
is based on the classification of the street (see Article I11. Street Design
Standards and Specifications of the Development Requlations.)

6-64





|0

[~

[o

o

d. All towers, excluding alternative tower structures, shall be set back from
any off-site residence a distance equal to three (3) times the tower height
or a minimum of 500 feet, whichever is greater.

L. Any tower facility and anchors for guyed towers shall comply with the

minimum required setbacks and/or buffers of the applicable zoning
district.

Towers located on the same lot as a private school or day care center shall be
set back a distance equal to the height of the tower from all facilities, excluding
parking areas. This provision shall not apply to an alternative tower structure
which is allowed in conjunction with a Private School Conditional Use.

All towers, excluding alternative tower structures, shall be structurally designed
to accommodate the following minimum numbers of carriers based on height of
the tower:

a. up to 70 feet : one carrier;

b. greater than 70 up to 120 feet : two carriers;

C. greater than 120 feet up to 150 feet : three carriers;

d. greater than 150 feet up to 180 feet : four carriers;

e. greater than 180 feet up to 250 feet : five carriers; and
f. greater than 250 feet: six carriers.

All tower facilities, excluding tower facilities associated with alternative tower
structures, shall be enclosed by a steel chain link fence not less than eight (8)
feet in height, with vinyl slat inserts for screening. Access to the communication
tower shall be through a /ocking gate. In addition, a minimum of three (3)
strands _of barbed wire shall be used along the top of the fence to prevent
unauthorized access to the tower.

A landscaped strip ten (10) feet in width surrounding the perimeter of the tower
facility shall be required. Landscaping shall be staggered double rows of
evergreen trees a minimum of six (6) feet in_height when planted and spaced
every ten (10) feet on center. Landscaping shall be installed on the outside of
the required security fence. Existing mature tree growth and natural land
forms on the site shall be preserved to the maximum extent possible. In some
cases, such as towers sited on large wooded lots, the Zoning Administrator may
determine that natural growth around the property perimeter may be sufficient
in_lieu of the required landscaping. If existing vegetation is to remain_and
6-65






[~

[

|©

requested to count toward the landscaping requirements, all such information,
including location, size, and type of vegetation shall be indicated on the
site/landscape plan. These requirements shall not apply to a tower facility
associated with an alternative tower structure.

Maximum height for all towers and antennas is 500 feet. Tower height shall be
measured from the natural grade of the ground at the location of the tower to
the highest point of the tower, including any antenna. If minimal grading
(elevation of one (1) to two (2) feet above natural grade) is required to level the
ground for the tower base, tower height shall be measured from the finished
grade approved by the County Engineer.

No signage shall be a placed on a tower structure or antenna.

Application Requirements: All applicants for new tower construction shall
include the following information at time of application submittal: site and
landscape plans drawn to scale; a report including all tower specifications and
a description of the tower with technical reasons for its design; documentation
establishing the structural integrity for the tower% proposed uses; the general
capacity of the tower and information necessary to assure that ANSI standards
are met; a statement of intent on whether excess space will be leased; proof of
ownership of the proposed site or authorization to utilize it; and copies of any
easements necessary.

Inventory of EXxisting or Planned Tower Sites. No new tower shall be permitted
unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the County that no
existing tower or any planned towers can accommodate the applicant$
proposed antenna. All evidence shall be signed and sealed by appropriate
licensed professionals or qualified industry experts. All of the following shall
be required to sufficiently demonstrate that no existing or planned tower can
accommodate the proposed antenna:

a. Each applicant for a new tower and antenna shall contact the owners of
all existing and planned tower sites, including those located within the
zoning jurisdictions _of municipalities and/or _other counties, that are
within the search area of the applicant$ proposed tower or antenna
location, and provide the Planning and Zoning Department with an
inventory of said tower sites at the time of application submittal. The
inventory shall include the following information:

1) All tower_owners and the number of carriers for each tower site;

(2 The site location, total height, and design type of each tower;

3) Details of all existing and planned towers or structures located
6-66






within _the search area and the ability of such to meet the
applicant$ engineering requirements, including, but not limited
to: sufficient height, structural _support strength, and
electromagnetic interference with antenna(s) on the existing
towers or structures;

4) Other limiting factors that render existing towers and structures
unsuitable; and

(5) Letters of rejection for requests to co-locate on all existing and
planned towers within the service area of the proposed tower.

b. The Planning and Zoning Department may share such information with
other applicants applying for approval under this ordinance or other
organizations seeking to locate antennas within the jurisdiction of the
governing authority, provided, however, that the Planning and Zoning
Department _is _not, by sharing such information, in_any way
representing or warranting that such sites are available or suitable.

If it is determined that the applicant cannot feasibly locate an antenna
on_an existing tower or planned tower, the applicant shall demonstrate
that the proposed new tower is designed to accommodate the required
number of carriers.

o

Site Plan Requirements. All tower applicants for new towers shall be required
to submit a scaled site plan which complies with all applicable requirements of
the Development Regulations. Additional information indicated on the site plan
shall include, total tower height including antennas, type and design of any
tower _facility, including equipment buildings or cabinets, ingress/egress,
landscaping and buffer requirements, setbacks, fencing, zoning of adjacent
property and other information necessary to assess compliance with this
ordinance. Any information of an _engineering nature that the applicant
submits, whether civil, mechanical, or electrical, shall be certified by a licensed
professional engineer. Site plan submittal shall include completion of a tower
application, signed and notarized by both the property owner and the tower
company representative/agent.

The following scenarios shall not require submittal of a site plan:

a. Installing an antenna_on_an_existing structure, so long as said
installation adds no _more than 20 feet to the height of said existing
structure (including buildings, light/utility poles, water towers, or other
free standing non-residential structures excluding signs and towers).

6-67





b. Co-locating _an _antenna_on_any existing tower, so long as said
installation does not exceed the maximum height of administrative tower
approval for that location and complies with all applicable conditions of
approval associated with the tower site.

C. Enlargement of an existing equipment building, or placement of
additional equipment cabinets or buildings at a tower site which does not
require an enlargement of the existing tower facility.

Prior _to the placement or co-location of any antenna, enlargement of an
existing equipment building, or placement of additional equipment cabinets or
buildings at a tower site, the applicant shall provide written notice to the Zoning
Administrator. The notice shall include a depiction of the location, size, and
configuration of such antenna on the existing tower and eguipment location
within the existing tower facility in reference to an existing site plan and a
certification from a licensed professional engineer verifying that the antenna
will comply with wind load requirements and weight limits for the structure or
tower as designed and installed. A Zoning Compliance Form shall be issued by
the Zoning Administrator upon satisfaction of the above requirements, and any
applicable building permits/ inspections shall be required.

Aesthetics and Lighting Requirements. The following compatibility standards
shall govern the aesthetics and lighting of any tower facility, including the
installation of antennas on towers.

a. Towers shall either maintain a galvanized steel finish or, subject to any
applicable standards of the FAA, be painted a neutral color, so as to
reduce visual obtrusiveness.

b. If an antenna is installed on a structure other than a tower, the antenna
and equipment cabinets shall be architecturally compatible with, the
color and texture of the supporting structure. Roof mounted equipment
cabinets shall be screened so as to make the equipment visually
unobtrusive.

C. Towers shall not be artificially lighted, unless required by the FAA or
other applicable authority. _If lighting is required, the governing
authority may review the available lighting alternatives and approve the
design that would cause the least disturbance to the surrounding views.

Federal Requirements. All towers shall meet current standards and requlations
of the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), the Federal Communications
Commission (FCC), and any other agency of the federal government with the
authority to requlate towers and antenna, including modulation studies on
frequency usage, to avoid interference with existing systems in operation. Prior

6-68






to submittal for an administrative site plan approval, applicants shall be
required to submit a copy of the Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation
from the FAA and a copy of the Carrier’s FCC license.

14. Building Codes and Safety Standard Requirements. To ensure the structural
integrity of towers, the owner of a tower shall ensure that it is maintained in
compliance with standards contained in applicable local building codes and the
applicable standards for towers that are published by the Electronic Industries
Association, as _amended. If, upon inspection, the governing authority
concludes that a tower fails to comply with such codes and standards or that
such tower constitutes a danger to persons or property, then upon notice being
provided to the owner of the tower, the owner shall have 60 days to bring such
tower into compliance.

15. Removal of Abandoned Antennas and Towers. Prior to the abandonment of
any tower or antenna, a copy of the notice of Intent to Abandon required by the
FCC shall also be submitted to the Fayette County Planning and Zoning
Department. _Any antenna_or tower, including pre-existing towers and
antennas, that is not in _use for a continuous period of 12 months shall be
considered abandoned, and the owner of such antenna or tower shall remove
same within 90 days of receipt of notice from the governing authority notifying
the owner of such abandonment. If there are two (2) or more users of a single
tower, then this provision shall not become effective until all users cease using
the tower.

16. Performance Bond Required. Prior to the issuance of a Zoning Compliance
certificate to erect a new tower structure, every applicant shall be required to
deposit a performance bond with Fayette County. The amount of the Bond, not
less than $5,000 nor more than 10% of construction costs, shall be set by the
Zoning Administrator. Such bond shall be required upon compliance with all
aspects of this Section and shall be applicable to any assignee and owner of any
permit granted hereunder, or any employee, contractor, subcontractor, or other
party performing services in_connection with any Certificate of Zoning
Compliance issued by the Planning and Zoning Department. The required
performance bond shall be released only upon demolition of the tower and
restoration of the site to the pre-development conditions. The format of the
bond shall be approved by the County Attorney.

Supplemental Requirements. In addition to the General Requirements above, the
following Supplemental Requirements shall apply as specified below.

1. Highway Corridor. Locating towers along the following highway corridors is
permitted as an overlay zone provided all the following requirements are met:

6-69





™o

|

The State and County Highways included within the Highway Corridor
are S.R. 54, S.R. 85, S.R. 92, S.R. 74, S.R. 314, S.R. 279, S.R. 138, and
85 Connector.

The Highway Corridor _tower overlay zone (1) permits towers in _any
zoning district when located within 1,000 feet of the right-of-way on
either_side of the aforementioned roads in _unincorporated areas of
Fayette County.

An Administrative Approval can be granted for towers of 250 feet or less
in height within the Highway Corridor provided that the tower meets all
other applicable requirements.

Towers in excess of 250 feet in height in the Highway Corridor shall
require public hearings before the Planning Commission and Board of
Commissioners.

All new towers, excluding alternative tower structures, located within the
Highway Corridor that are 70 feet or greater in_height shall not be
located within one (1) statute mile from any existing or planned towers
(within any local government jurisdiction) that are 70 feet or greater in
height. This _minimum_distance requirement shall not apply from
existing governmentally-owned towers where co-location _is__not
permitted or from alternative tower structures.

Outside of the Highway Corridor

a.

=

[©

Outside of the Highway Corridor, a tower may be located only in the
following zoning districts:

Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial District (M-2);
Light Industrial District (M-1);

Highway Commercial District (C-H);

Community Commercial District (C-C);
Agricultural Residential (A-R); and

R-70 Single-Family Residential District.

An Administrative Approval can be granted for towers of 180 feet or less
in height outside of the Highway Corridor provided that the tower meets
all other applicable requirements.

Towers in excess of 180 feet in height outside of the Highway Corridor
shall require public hearings before the Planning Commission and
Board of Commissioners.

6-70





=

All new towers, excluding alternative tower structures, located outside
of the Highway Corridor that are 70 feet or greater in height shall not be
located within one and one-half (1.50) statute miles from any existing or
planned towers (within_any local government jurisdiction) that are 70
feet or greater in height. This minimum distance requirement shall not
apply from existing government-owned towers where co-location is not
permitted or from alternative tower structures.

Alternative Tower Structures.

a.

=

o

=

The purpose of an alternative tower structure is to diminish, camouflage
or_conceal the appearance of towers and antennas to reduce the visual
impact on surrounding properties and streets. Depending on the nature
of the site, the proposed alternative tower structure shall be appropriate
and in_character with its surroundings. For _example, the use of a
monopine is more fitting on a site with stands of mature trees; where as,
the use of a flag pole or light pole alternative tower structure is more
suitable for the developed portion of a site.

Alternative tower _structures shall comply with the General
Requirements herein _with the exception of the setback requirements
from_off-site residences, security fencing requirements, landscape
requirements, and tower separation requirements of both the Highway
Corridor and outside

of the Highway Corridor. Alternative tower structures shall be allowed
in the Highway Corridor, outside of the Highway Corridor in the zoning
districts listed herein, and in_conjunction with the following existing
Conditional Uses:

(1).  Church or Other Place of Worship;

(2). Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

(3). Private School; and

(4). Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or Other Public Utility
Facilities.

Alternative tower structures, in conjunction with the above listed
Conditional Uses, shall meet the setbacks established in the General
Requirements or the Conditional Use setbacks, whichever is greater.

An_Administrative Approval can be granted for an alternative tower of
120 feet or less in height provided that the tower meets all other
applicable requirements.

6-71






|

|

=

An alternative tower in excess of 120 feet in height shall require public
hearings before the Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners.

A maximum of one (1) alternative tower structure shall be allowed per
lot.

The alternative tower structure shall match the visual simulation
depiction _and engineering detail and specification drawings from the
manufacturer/supplier of the alternative tower structure specifically
proposed for the site.

Design Review and Approval Process: Alternative tower structures shall
go through a Design Review and Approval Process before the Planning
Commission. The purpose of this Design Review and Approval Process
is to determine that the alternative tower structure type is appropriate for
the site and surrounding area and set requirements for the alternative
tower structure type, placement on the site, equipment structures,
fencing and landscaping.

The Design Review and Approval Process application shall include the
following:

(1). An analysis of the nature and character of the site and how the
alternative tower structure is appropriate in_context to the site
and the view from surrounding properties and streets:

(2). A visual simulation consisting of color photographs of the
proposed site with the existing view and with a depiction of the
proposed tower, from a minimum of four (4) distinct guadrants
(generally north, east, south, and west), to demonstrate the visual
impact on surrounding properties and streets; and

(3). Engineering detail and specification drawings from _the
manufacturer/supplier _of the alternative tower _structure
specifically proposed for the site which shall indicate all
applicable requirements herein.

Monopine Towers.

(1). Monopine towers shall maintain the natural conical appearance
of a loblolly pine tree. Antennas shall be placed a minimum of
five (5) feet below the top of the tower, as measured from the
highest point of the antenna to maintain said appearance.

6-72





Foliage shall be green in color and the tower shall be brown in
color. The antennas shall be green to blend with the foliage and
the foliage shall extend a minimum of one (1) foot beyond the
antennas. _The foliage shall be UV resistant to reduce
degradation and fading and constructed to withstand winds of
110 MPH, certification of such shall be supplied with the
application.  Foliage shall be placed on the tower down to the
height of the foliage of surrounding trees. The structure shall
have sufficient limbs at the time of initial installation so that
there is no gap between the existing canopy and the lower most
limbs of the monopine.

The installation of the foliage on the monopine shall be installed
prior to final inspections. Foliage on the monopine shall be
maintained and/or replaced to the specifications established by
the engineering detail and specification drawings from the
manufacturer/supplier _of the alternative tower structure
specifically proposed for the site to retain the screening of the
antennas. Upon notice from the County that the foliage is in
need of maintenance and/or replacement, the tower owner shall
have 90 days to make such repairs.

Flag pole and light pole alternative tower structures shall utilize internal

antennas and slick stick design. Flag poles utilized as an alternative

tower structure shall be exempt from the Article V. General Provisions,

Structures Permitted above the Height Limit.






D. Use by Right Administrative Approvals.






6-75





E.

Public Hearings Required.

Public hearings before the Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners
are_required for the approval of a proposed tower, antenna, or equipment
cabinet _or building that is not allowed under the Permitted Uses or
Administrative _Approvals, and/or cannot comply with the Development
Requirements, Supplemental Requirements, or Alternative Tower Structures.
The procedure for said public hearings shall follow the procedure in Article XI
for rezonings. Applicants shall apply for a public hearings through the Planning
and Zoning Department. The application with deadline submittal and public
hearing dates is _available in the Planning and Zoning Department. The
application shall include the following:

a. A scaled Concept Plan_graphically indicating the lot and leased area,
total tower height including antennas, type and design of the tower
structure, the boundary of the tower facility, all applicable setbacks
(both on and off-site), ingress/egress, landscaping areas, and zoning of
the subject property and adjacent property—ard-maximum—effective
fradiated povyer,

b. An Inventory of Existing or Planned Tower Sites per the standards listed
under Supplemental Requirements:

C. A balloon test shall be conducted prior to the public hearings. The
balloon shall be flown for a minimum of four (4) daylight hours from
the location of the proposed tower, at the requested height. The
application shall include the date and time of the balloon test and an
alternative date, in case of inclement weather. The initial balloon test
shall be held on a Saturday and the alternative date may be held on any
day of the week. A sign announcing the dates of the balloon test shall be
posted on the property by the County a minimum of five (5) calendar

6-76






days prior to the initial balloon test: and

The applicant shall submit a visual simulation, based on the balloon test,
a_minimum_of seven (7) calendar days prior to the Planning
Commission public hearing. Failure to meet this deadline will postpone
the _tower application to the next scheduled cycle of public_hearings.
The visual simulation shall consist of color photographs of the proposed
site_ with the existing view and with a depiction of the proposed tower,
from_a minimum _of four (4) distinct guadrants (generally north, east,
south, and west), to demonstrate the visual impact on surrounding
properties and streets. An

Affidavit certifying that the correct location and height of the tower were
utilized in the balloon test shall be submitted with the visual simulation

photographs.

following factors shall be considered when evaluating a tower application.

Height of the proposed tower;

Proximity of the tower to residential structures and residential zoning
district boundaries;

Nature of uses on adjacent and nearby properties;

Surreunding—topegraphy Topography of the site and its_effect on_the

efficiency of the tower in terms of coverage;

Surrounding tree coverage and foliage_and its effect on the efficiency of
the tower in terms of coverage, as well as, its effect on the visual impact
of the tower on surrounding properties and streets;

Design of the tower, with particular reference to design characteristics that
have the effect of reducing or eliminating visual obtrusiveness;

Proposed ingress and egress;

Fwo(2)-The degree of the tower’s compliance with the one (1) statute
mile separation (Highway Corridor) and one and one-half (1.5) statute

6-77





mile separation (ren-highway outside_the Highway Corridor); and
(Adopted 12/15/05)

I. The degree of the tower’s compliance with the one (1) statute mile
separation (inside the highway corridor). (Adopted 12/15/05)

In granting its approval, the County, through the Board of County Commissioners
or its designee, may impose speeial conditions that it—feels are necessary to
minimize the adverse effect of a proposed tower or antenna on adjoining property.





















6-82





|~

Tower Approval Expiration.

Approval for a tower granted either administratively or through the Board of
Commissioners, or its designee, shall expire 24 months from the date of approval,
unless a Certificate of Occupancy has been issued for the tower.

Application Timeframes.

The County shall act on applications for co-locations within 90 days, and all other
applications within 150 days. The Zoning Administrator has 30 days to determine if an
application is complete. If the Zoning Administrator requests additional information

6-83





within the 30 day review period, the time it takes the applicant to respond will not count
towards the 90 or 150 day time limits.

RELOCATE HEREIN

,'. e AaA d ‘.. . [/ H ) S ‘.""., pe—Hsed—-d d—HHHEHA e '
i i i in. RELOCATE TO

ARTICLE VII.






6-1.

ARTICLE VI. DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS

A-R Agricultural - Residential District.

A.

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
having a very low density single-family residential and agricultural character and
designed to protect against the depreciating effects of small lot, residential
development and those uses which are incompatible with such a residential and
agricultural environment.

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the A-R
Zoning District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

(Relocate to Conditional Uses.)

2. Accessory butldings structures and uses (see Article V.);

3. Growing of crops and the on-premise sale of produce and
agricultureal_products, provided 50% percent of the produce/products
sold must shall be raised grown on-premise; (Amended 06/26/03)

4. Plant nurseries and greenhouses (no sales of related garden supplies); and
(Amended 06/26/03)
5. Raising of livestock; aguaculture, including pay fishing; apiary; and the

sale thereof.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the A-R
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetior—~7-1 Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval
herein are met:

1. Aircraft Landing Area;

2. Ani mal Hospi t al , Kennel ( Commrer ci al or Non-
comercial), or Veterinary Cinic;
Aviary;

6-85





10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

18.

Cemetery and-Mauseleum-(Human-orPet);
ChurchTemple; and/or other Place of Worship;

Church-or Religious Tent Meeting;

Commercial Driving Range;

Colleges and Universities;

Day Care Facility (Nursery School or Kindergarten);
Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

Farm Outbuilding, _including _horse _stables, and Commercial
Greenhouses; (Amended 04/09/98)

Rifle Shooting Range, Outdoor;
Golf Course;

Home Occupation;

Hospital;

Kennel (See Animal Hospital, etc.);

Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms,
administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium;

17.  Processing, packaging, or handling of perishable
agricultural products (i.e. fruits and vegetables) which are grown on
premises;

Rifte Range;

Recreation centers and similar institutions owned by non-profit
organizations as so reqistered with the Georgia Secretary of State Office;

Chureh-or Religious Tent Meeting;

hool(Pr | al)-_and | i
Recreation-Field:

6-86





19.  Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or Other Public Utility Facilities;
and

20.  Temporary Carnival or Rodeo.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the A-R
Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area: 217,800 square feet (five [5] acres)
2. Lot width: 250 feet
3. Floor area: 1,200 square feet
4, Front yard setback:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Arterial: 100 feet

@) Collector: 100 feet

b. Minor thoroughfare: seventy-five{(75) 75 feet

5. Rear yard setback:  seventy-five(75) 75 feet
6. Side yard setback:  fifty{50) 50 feet

7. a. Height limit:  Fhirty-five(35) 35 feet as defined in Article I1lI,
See—3-12. (Adopted 11/18/04)

b. The limitation on height shall not apply to agricultural structures
such as storage barns, silos, or other types of structure not
normally designed for human occupation except that when an
agricultural structure exceeds the maximum building height the
minimum distance from property lines to any building shall be
increased one (1) foot for every two (2) feet or part thereof of
building height over thirty-five(35) 35 feet.  (Adopted 11/18/04)

Special Requlations. Prior to the issuance of development and/or building

permits, a Site Plan must shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator and

approved by the appropriate County officials. This requirement shall apply to all

Permitted Uses and Conditional Uses allowed in the A-R Zoning District except

single-family dwellings; accessory buildings and uses; growing crops and the on-

premise sale of produce at agricultural stands of 100 square feet or less of floor
6-87





area; growing and seasonal sale of Christmas trees; plant nursery, landscape tree
farm, or commercial greenhouse operations existing prior to the effective date of
June 26, 2003; and the raising and/or selling of livestock. (Amended 06/26/03)

6-242. C-S, Conservation Subdivision (Adopted in its entirety 12/05/01)

A Purpose. The intent of this section is to create a residential Conservation
Subdivision procedure. A Conservation Subdivision is a residential subdivision
where lots are reduced in size and clustered to protect the natural attributes of the
site and provide open space. This open space will be protected from development
in perpetuity and will be utilized to protect water quality, water bodies, wetlands,
riparian buffers, woodlands, archaeological resources, historic resources,
agricultural areas and scenic areas. This open space will also provide flood
protection, a reduction in soil erosion and be utilized for recreation. The
aforementioned attributes should be taken into consideration in the design of the
subdivision. The first step in designing a Conservation Subdivision is to locate
and delineate the area and natural attributes to be preserved. The residential lots
are located outside of this area. In addition, the clustering of lots can result in
lower infrastructure costs both for installation and maintenance. The creation of
the C-S Conservation Subdivision Zoning District is to assist Fayette County in

fulfilling the goal of permanently protecting 20—percent—of—the—county—as
greenspace-per-the-Georgia-Greenspace-Program greenspace in the county. The

Conservation Subdivision Zoning District is intended for those areas designated
Low Density Residential (I unit/1 to 2 acres) and Rural Residential (1 unit/2 to 3
acres) on the Fayette County Land Use Plan Map. (Amended 08/26/04)

B. Rezoning Requirements. The following is required for a rezoning request for the
Conservation Subdivision Zoning District in addition to what is normally required
for a rezoning request:

1. A request for the Conservation Subdivision Zoning District will require a
Yield Plan. The number of lots allowed in a Conservation Subdivision
will be determined by a Yield Plan which is a conventional subdivision
design based on the dimensional requirements of the R-70 Zoning District.
This concept is referred to as Neutral Density. The Yield Plan must shall
contain the check list requirements available in the office of the Zoning
Administrator. Staff analysis of the Yield Plan will add an additional
month to the normal rezoning schedule.

2. Fhe Coneept A Development Plan shall be required for the rezoning
petition will act as the Development Plan for the development. The
Conecept! Development Plan, as approved, shall establish the layout and
uses planned for the development. Any change in the approved Cencept/
Development Plan, which affects the intent and character of the
development, the density or land use pattern, the location or dimensions of

6-88





streets, or similar substantial changes, must shall be reviewed and
approved by the Board of Commissioners upon the recommendation of the
Planning Commission. A request for a revision of the Cencept/
Development Plan shall be supported by a written statement as to why the
revisions are necessary.

Each Conservation Subdivision shall consist of two areas: the Residential
Area and the Conservation Area. The Conservation Area will consist of
the environmentally sensitive areas including waterways, water bodies,
watershed protection areas, floodplains, wetlands, riparian buffers and
woodlands, as well as agricultural areas, existing agricultural structures
and historical structures. The Conservation Area will remain in a natural
and undisturbed state with minimal improvements and will be regulated in
a manner consistent with the Georgia Greenspace Program requirements
to the greatest degree possible.

In addition to what is normally required on the Cencept Development
Plan, the Geneept Development Plan must shall include the following;

a. A delineation of the attributes (see Purpose) of the site which will
be preserved,;

b. A delineation of the Residential Area and the Conservation Area
including the acreage within each area;

C. Uses and improvements planned for the Conservation Area with
the acreage devoted to each; and

d. Indicate and label existing structures to remain.
Uses Permitted within the Residential Area of a Conservation Subdivision . The

following permitted uses shall be allowed in the Residential Area of the C-S
Zoning District:

1. Single-family dwelling; and

2. Residential accessory buidings structures and uses (see Article V.).

Conditional Uses Permitted within the Residential Area of a Conservation
Subdivision. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the Residential
Area of C-S Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetien—7-%
Article VII. Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use
Approval, herein are met:

1. Home Occupation;
6-89





2.

3.

4.

Horse Quarters;

Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas; and

Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Uses Permitted within the Conservation Area of a Conservation Subdivision .

The following permitted uses and structures shall be allowed in the Conservation
Area of the C-S Zoning District:

1.

Trails and paths (impervious trails and paths are limited to five [5] percent
of the Conservation Area and trails and paths must shall comply with the

Watershed Protection Ordinance n—terms—of—impervious—surface
reguirements);

Picnic areas which can include picnic tables, grills, benches, playground
equipment (swing sets, slides, etc.). Picnic Areas and one (1) Covered
Picnic Pavilion are required to be setback 50 feet from any residential
property line and are limited to five (5) percent of the Conservation Area.
The Covered Picnic Pavilion shall be limited to a maximum of 900

sguare feet.

Community gardens for the use of the residents of the subdivision only;

The maintenance of existing orchards and groves including the harvesting
of fruit and nuts;

The maintenance of existing pastures including the harvesting of hay; and

The maintenance of existing farm fields used for row crops including the
harvesting of crops. Said fields must shall be outside of watershed
protection areas as described in the Watershed Protection Ordinance. All
areas within a watershed protection area can no longer be used for row
crops. The area within a watershed protection area could be used in
accordance with 6. above.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements within the

Residential Area in the C-S Zoning District shall be as follows:

1.

Lot area per dwelling unit:
6-90





a. Where central sanitary sewage or central water distribution system
is provided: 43,560 square feet (one [1] acre)

b. Where neither a central sanitary sewage nor a central water
distribution system is provided: 65,340 square feet (one and one-
half [1.5] acres)

2. Lot width per dwelling unit:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Arterial: 150 feet

@) Collector: 150 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: 125 feet
3. Floor area: 2,100 square feet
4, Front yard setback:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Arterial: 100 feet
(2 Collector: seventy-five (¥5) 75 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty(506) 50 feet
5. Rear yard setback:  thirty(306) 30 feet
6. Side yard setback:  twenty-{20) 20 feet

7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

Use of Existing Structure. The preservation of existing historic residential
structures listed in the Architectural Survey of Fayette County is encouraged as
these structures can be used as residences or community facilities for the
subdivision. Existing residential structures used for a community facility must
shall meet all applicable building and safety codes and will be regulated as a
Conditional Use under Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas. The
preservation of existing agricultural structures is also encouraged as they will
assist in maintaining a rural character. The use of these residential and

6-91





agricultural structures will be subject to the approval of the Zoning Board of
Appeals in terms of nonconformance with this zoning district.

Conservation Area Requirements. The Conservation Area of the subdivision shall
meet the following requirements:

1. Ownership. Title to the Conservation Area must shall be conveyed to one
(1) of the following entities:

a. A Home Owners Association that has been established according
to OCGA 44-3-220;

b. A Conservation Trust organization approved by the Fayette County
Board of Commissioners; or

C. The Fayette County Board of Commissioners (for Conservation
Areas with no structures only).

2. Size. Each development eligible for treatment as a Conservation
Subdivision must shall place at least 40% percent of the total subject
property into the Conservation Area not withstanding the yield plan. This
area must shall be described by metes and bounds.

3. Permanent Protection. Each Conservation Area regardless of ownership
must shall have a conservation easement as approved by the county
attorney filed in the records of the Fayette County Clerk of Superior
Court. The easement shall reserve the Conservation Area to conservation
uses as defined herein in perpetuity.

6-3. EST, Estate Residential District (Amended in its entirety 08/11/05)

A

Purpose. An Estate Residential subdivision is a residential subdivision where lots
are reduced in size and clustered to provide conservation area. Each Estate
Residential subdivision will consist of two areas, a residential area and a
conservation area. The conservation area will be protected from development in
perpetuity by an easement or deed restriction. The conservation area will be
utilized for approved recreation for the residents of the subdivision. The clustering
of lots can result in lower infrastructure costs both for installation and
maintenance. The Estate Residential Zoning District is intended for those areas
designated Agricultural Residential (1 unit/5 acres) on the Fayette County Land
Use Plan Map. The creation of the EST Estate Residential District is to assist
Fayette County in permanently protecting greenspace in the county. (Amended
07/27/06)

6-92





Rezoning Requirements. The following is required for a rezoning request for the

Estate Residential Zoning District in addition to what is normally required for a
rezoning request:

1.

A request for the Estate Residential Zoning District will require a Yield
Plan. The number of lots allowed in a Estate Residential Zoning District
will be determined by a Yield Plan which is a conventional subdivision
design based on the dimensional requirements of the A-R Zoning District.
This concept is referred to as Neutral Density. The Yield Plan must shall
contain the check list requirements available in the office of the Zoning
Administrator.

Fhe Coneept A Development Plan shall be required for the rezoning
petition will act as the Development Plan for the development. The
Conecept! Development Plan, as approved, shall establish the layout and
uses planned for the development. Any change in the approved Gencept/
Development Plan, which affects the intent and character of the
development, the density or land use pattern, or similar substantial
changes, must shall be reviewed and approved by the Board of
Commissioners upon the recommendation of the Planning Commission.
A request for a revision of the Geneept! Development Plan shall be
supported by a written statement as to why the revisions are necessary.

In addition to what is normally required on the Cencept Development
Plan, the Genecept! Development Plan must shall include the following;:

a. A delineation of the residential area and the conservation area
including the approximate acreage within each area; (Amended
07/27/06)

b. Uses and improvements planned for the conservation area with the

acreage devoted to each; and (Amended 07/27/06)

C. Indicate and label existing structures to remain.

Uses Permitted within the Residential Area of an Estate Residential Subdivision .

The following permitted uses shall be allowed in the Residential Area of the

Estate Residential Zoning District:

1.

2.

Single-family dwelling; and

Residential accessory buidings structures and uses (see Article V.).

6-93





Conditional Uses. Permitted-within-the-Residential-Area-of-an-Estate-Residential

Subdivision. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the residential
area of EST Zoning District, provided that all conditions specified in Seetiep—+7-1
Article VII. Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use

Approval herein are met:

1. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas

2. Home Occupation;

3. Horse Quarters; and

4. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Uses Permitted within the Conservation Area of an Estate Residential

Subdivision. The following permitted uses and structures shall be allowed in the
conservation area of the Estate Residential Zoning District: (Amended 07/27/06)

1.

Trails and paths (impervious trails and paths are limited to five [5] percent
of the conservation area and trails and paths must shall comply with the

Watershed Protection Ordinance n—terms—of—impervious—surface
reguirements); (Amended 07/27/06)

Picnic areas which can include picnic tables, grills, benches, playground
equipment (swing sets, slides, etc.). Picnic Areas and one (1) Covered
Picnic Pavilion are required to be setback 50 feet from any residential
property line and are limited to five (5) percent of the conservation area.
The Covered Picnic Pavilion shall not exceed a maximum of 900 square
feet.; (Amended 07/27/06)

Community gardens for the use of the residents of the subdivision only;

The maintenance of existing orchards and groves including the harvesting
of fruit and nuts;

The maintenance of existing pastures including the harvesting of hay; and

The maintenance of existing farm fields used for row crops including the
harvesting of crops. Said fields must shall be outside of watershed
protection areas as described in the Watershed Protection Ordinance. All
areas within a watershed protection area can no longer be used for row
crops. The area within a watershed protection area could be used in
accordance with 5. above. (Amended 07/27/06)

6-94





Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements within the
Residential Area in the Estate Residential Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area per dwelling unit: 108,900 square feet (two and one half [2.5]
acres)

2. Lot width per dwelling unit: 160 feet
3. Floor area: 2,500 square feet (Amended 05/22/08)
4, Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:

1) Arterial: 100 feet

2 Collector: seventy-five(#5) 75 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty(506) 50 feet

5. Rear yard setback:  fifty(50) 50 feet

6. Side yard setback:  twenty-five-(25) 25 feet
7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

Use of Existing Structure. The preservation of existing historic residential
structures listed in the Architectural Survey of Fayette County is encouraged as
these structures can be used as residences or community facilities for the
subdivision. Existing residential structures used for a community facility must
shall meet all applicable building and safety codes and will be regulated as a
Conditional Use under Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas. The
preservation of existing agricultural structures is also encouraged as they will
assist in maintaining a rural character. The use of these residential and
agricultural structures will be subject to the approval of the Zoning Board of
Appeals in terms of nonconformance with this zoning district.

Conservation Area Requirements. The conservation area of the subdivision shall
meet the following requirements: (Amended 07/27/06)

1. Ownership. Title to the conservation area must shall be conveyed to one
of the following entities: (Amended 07/27/06)

a. A Home Owners Association that has been established according
to OCGA 44-3-220;

6-95





b. A Conservation Trust organization approved by the Fayette County
Board of Commissioners; or

C. The Fayette County Board of Commissioners (for conservation
areas with no structures only). (Amended 07/27/06)

2. Size. A minimum of 40 percent of the total subject property must shall
be set aside in conservation area. The conservation area described in its
entirety by metes and bounds, total acreage and percentage of total subject
property must shall be submitted to the Fayette County Zoning
Department in the Final Plat stage prior to Final Plat approval. (Amended
07/27/06)

3. Permanent Protection. Each conservation area regardless of ownership
must shall have an easement or deed restriction as approved by the county
attorney filed in the records of the Fayette County Clerk of Superior
Court. The easement or deed restriction shall reserve the conservation
area to uses as defined herein in perpetuity. (Amended 07/27/06)

6-4. R-85 Single-family Residential District.

A

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures,
having a low density single-family character and is designed to protect against the
depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses incompatible with
such a residential environment.

Permitted Uses. The following uses shall be permitted in the R-85 Zoning
District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory buidings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

3. Growing crops, gardens.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-85
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetior—~7-1 Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval
herein are met:

1. Church;-Temple; and/or other Place of Worship;
2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

6-96





3. Horse Quarters;
4, Home Occupation;
47 ] 1 )
. ield: and
5. Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms,

administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

6. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

D. Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-85
Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area per dwelling unit: 130,680 square feet (three [3] acres)
2. Lot width: 125 feet
3. Floor area: 3,000 square feet
4, Front yard setback:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Acrterial: 100 feet
(2 Collector: seventy-five (¥5) 75 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty(506) 50 feet

5. Rear yard setback:  fifty(50) 50 feet

6. Side yard setback:  twenty-five(25) 50 feet
7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

6-5. R-80 Single-Family Residential District.

A. Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
having a very low density single-family residential character and designed to
protect against the depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses
incompatible with such a residential environment.

6-97





Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the R-80
Zoning District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory buidings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

3. Growing crops, gardens.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-80
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetion—7-% Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval
herein are met:

1. Church,Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

3. Home Occupation;

4, Horse Quarters;
4' ! 1 ) 1

i . ield: and

5. Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms,
administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

6. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-80
Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area per dwelling: 130,680 square feet (three [3] acres)

2. Lot width: 175 feet
3. Floor area: 2,500 square feet
4. Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:

6-98





1) Acrterial: seventy-five(75) 75 feet

2 Collector: seventy-five(#5) 75 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty(506) 50 feet

5. Rear yard setback:  fifty(50) 50 feet

6. Side yard setback:  thirty-(30) 30 feet

7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

6-6. R-78 Single-family Residential District.

A

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures,
having a low density single-family character and is designed to protect against the
depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses incompatible with
such a residential environment.

Permitted Uses. The following uses shall be permitted in the R-78 Zoning
District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory butdings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

3. Growing crops, gardens.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-78
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetior—~7-1 Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval
herein are met:

1. Church;—Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;
3. Horse Quarters; relocate
4. Home Occupation;
47 i i EH H )
i . ield: and
5. Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms,

6-99





administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

6. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

D. Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-78
Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area per dwelling unit: 87,120 square feet (two [2] acres)
2. Lot width: 125 feet
3. Floor area: 3,000 square feet
4, Front yard setback:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Arterial: 100 feet
(2 Collector: seventy-five(75) 75 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty(506) 50 feet

5. Rear yard setback:  fifty(50) 50 feet

6. Side yard setback:  twenty-five(25) 25 feet
7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

6-7. R-75 Single-family Residential District.

A. Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures,
having a low density single-family character and is designed to protect against the
depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses incompatible with
such a residential environment.

B. Permitted Uses. The following uses shall be permitted in the R-75 Zoning
District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory buidings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

3. Growing crops, gardens.
6-100





Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-75

Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetion—7-% Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval

heretn are met:

1. Church;—Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

3. Home Occupation;

4. Horse Quarters;

4. ; , ;

. ield: and

5. Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms,
administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

6. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-75

Zoning District shall be as follows:

1.

2.

Lot area per dwelling unit: 87,120 square feet (two [2] acres)
Lot width: 125 feet
Floor area: 2,500 square feet
Front yard setback:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Acrterial: 100 feet
2 Collector: seventy-five (¥5) 75 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty(506) 50 feet

Rear yard setback:  fifty(50) 50 feet

Side yard setback:  twenty-five(25) 25 feet
6-101





6-8.

7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

R-72 Single-family Residential District.

A.

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
having a low density single-family residential character and designed to protect
against the depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses
incompatible with such a residential environment.

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the R-72
Zoning District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory buidings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

3. Growing crops, gardens.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-72
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetion—7-% Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval
herein are met:

1. Church,Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

3. Home Occupation;

4. Horse Quarters;

47 [] ) 1
Reereation-Fieldand

5. Private School, _including, but not limited _to: classrooms,
administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

6. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-72
Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area per dwelling unit: 87,120 square feet (two [2] acres)
6-102





2. Lot width:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Arterial: 175 feet
(2 Collector: 175
b. Minor thoroughfare: 150 feet
3. Floor area: 2,100 square feet
4. Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:

1) Arterial: seventy-five(#5) 75 feet

2 Collector: seventy-five(#5) 75 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty(50) 50 feet

5. Rear yard setback:  fifty(50) 50 feet
6. Side yard setback:  twenty-five(25) 25 feet (Amended 06/25/98)

7. Height limit: thirty-five(35) 35 feet

6-9. R-70 Single-Family Residential District.

A. Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
having a low density single-family residential character and designed to protect
against the peHuting depreciating effects of excessive densities and development
and those uses incompatible with a—protected-watershed-area such a residential

environment.

B. Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the R-70
Zoning District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory buidings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

3. Growing crops, gardens.
6-103





Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-70

Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetion—7-% Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval

heretn are met:

1. Church;—Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

3. Horse Quarters;

4, Home Occupation;

4. ; , ;

. ield: and

5. Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms,
administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

6. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-70

Zoning District shall be as follows:

1.

2.

Lot area per dwelling unit: 87,120 square feet (two [2] acres)

Lot width:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Acrterial: 175 feet

(2 Collector: 175 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: 150 feet
Floor area: 1,500 square feet
Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:

1) Acrterial: seventy-five {¥5) 75 feet
6-104





2 Collector: seventy-five(#5) 75 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty(50) 50 feet

5. Rear yard setback:  fifty(50) 50 feet
6. Side yard setback:  twenty-five(25) 25 feet
7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

6-10. R-55 Single-family Residential District.

A

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
having a low density single-family character and is designed to protect against the
depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses incompatible with
such a residential environment.

Permitted Uses. The following uses shall be permitted in the R-55 Zoning
District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory butdings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

3. Growing crops, gardens.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-55
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetior—7% Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval
herein are met:

1. Church;—Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;
3. Home Occupation;
4. Horse Quarters;

. ion-Field: and

6-105





Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms,
administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

[o

6. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-55
Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area per dwelling unit:

a. Where central sanitary sewage or central water distribution system
is provided: 43,560 square feet (one [1] acre)

b. Where neither a central sanitary sewage nor a central water
distribution system is provided: 65,340 square feet (one and one-
half [1.5] acres)

2. Lot width: 150 feet (Amended 04/09/98)
3. Floor area: 2,500 square feet
4, Front yard setback:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Acrterial: 100 feet
2 Collector: seventy-five (¥5) 75 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty(506) 50 feet

5. Rear yard setback:  fifty(50) 50 feet

6. Side yard setback:  twenty-five(25) 25 feet
7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

6-106





6-11. R-50 Single-family Residential District.

A

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
having a low density single-family residential character and designed to protect
against the depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses
incompatible with such a residential environment.

Permitted Uses. The following permitted uses shall be allowed in the R-50
Zoning District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory butdings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

3. Growing crops, gardens.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-50
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetior—~7-1 Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval
herein are met:

1. Church;—Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;
3. Horse Quarters;
4. Home Occupation;
47 [l ) 1
. ield: and
5. Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms,

administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

6. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in
the R-50 Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area per dwelling unit:

6-107





a. Where central sanitary sewage or central water distribution system
is provided: 43,560 square feet (one [1] acre)

b. Where neither a central sanitary sewage nor a central water
distribution system is provided: 65,340 square feet (one and one-
half [1.5] acres)

2. Lot width:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Arterial: 150 feet

(2) Collector: 150 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: 125 feet
3. Floor area: 2,100 square feet
4. Front yard setback:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Arterial: 100 feet
(@) Collector: seventy-five(#5) 75 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty(56) 50 feet
5. Rear yard setback:  thirty(306) 30 feet
6. Side yard setback:  twenty-{20) 20 feet

7. Height limit: thirty-five(35) 35 feet

6-12. R-45 Single-family Residential District.

A Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
having a low density single-family residential character and designed to protect
against the depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses
incompatible with such a residential environment.

B. Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the R-45
Zoning District:

6-108





1.

2.

3.

Single-family dwelling;

Accessory butdings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

Growing crops, gardens.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-45

Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetior—7-1 Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval

herein are met:

1. Church;—Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

3. Horse Quarters;

4. Home Occupation;

4. ; ; ;
Recreation-Field:-and

5. Private School, _including, but not limited _to: classrooms,
administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

6. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-45

Zoning District shall be as follows:

1.

Lot area per dwelling unit:

a. Where central sanitary sewage or central water distribution system
is provided: 43,560 square feet (one [1] acre)

b. Where neither a central sanitary nor central water distribution
system is provided: 65,340 square feet (one and one-half [1.5]
acres)

Lot width: 125 feet
Floor area: 1,800 square feet

Front yard setback:
6-109





a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Arterial: sixty(60) 60 feet
(2 Collector: sixty(60) 60 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: ferty-{40) 40 feet

5. Rear yard setback:  forty-{40) 40 feet
(Amended 04/09/98)

6. Side yard setback:  twenty(20) 20 feet
(Amended 04/09/98)

7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

6-13. R-40 Single-Family Residential District. (Added in its entirety on 04/09/98)

A.

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
in the County, having a low density single-family residential character and is
designed to protect against the depreciating effects of small lot development and
those uses incompatible with such a residential environment.

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the R-40
Zoning District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory buHdings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

3. Growing crops, gardens.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-40
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Sectior7-% Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval
herein are met:

1. Church;—Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

|0

Horse Quarters;

4, Home Occupation;
6-110





Recreation Field; and

|o

Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms,
administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

6.. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements within the
R-40 Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area per dwelling unit:

a. Where central sanitary sewage or central water distribution
systems are provided: 43,560 square feet (one [1] acre)

b. Where neither a central sanitary sewage nor a central water
distribution system is provided: 65,340 square feet (one and one-
half [1.5] acres)

2. Lot Width:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Acrterial: 150 feet
2 Collector: 150 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: 125 feet
3. Floor area: 1,500 square feet

4, Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:

1) Acrterial: sixty-(60) 60 feet

2 Collector: sixty(60) 60 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: ferty(40) 40 feet

5. Rear yard setback: thirty-{30) 30 feet
6-111





6. Side yard setback: fifteen{15) 15 feet

7. Height limit: thirty-five{(35) 35 feet

6-14. R-20 Single-family Residential District.

A.

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
having a medium density single-family residential character and designed to
protect against the depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses
incompatible with such a residential environment.

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the R-20
Zoning District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory buidings structures and uses (see Article V.); and

3. Growing crops, gardens.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the R-20
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetion—7-% Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval
herein are met:

1. Church;—Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

3. Horse Quarters;

4, Home Occupation;

47 [l ) l
ReereationFieldand

5. Private _School, _including, but not _limited _to: classrooms,
administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

6. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-20
Zoning District shall be as follows:
6-112





Lot area per dwelling unit:

a. Where a central sanitary sewage or a central water distribution
system is provided: 43,560 square feet (one [1] acre)

b. Where neither a central sanitary sewage nor a central water
distribution system is provided: 65,340 square feet (one and one-
half [1.5] acres)

Lot width:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Arterial: 150 feet

(2) Collector: 150 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: 125 feet
Floor area: 1,200 square feet
Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:

1) Arterial: sixty(60) 60 feet

@) Collector: sixty(60) 60 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: ferty-{46) 40 feet

Rear yard setback:  thirty(36) 30 feet
Side yard setback:  fifteen(15) 15 feet

Height limit; thirty-five (35) 35 feet

6-113





6-15. DR-15 One and Two-family Residential District.

A.

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
having a high density one and two-family residential character and designed to
protect against the depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses
incompatible with such a residential environment.

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the DR-15
Zoning District:

1. Single-family dwelling;

2. Accessory buidings structures and uses (see Article V.);

3. Growing crops, gardens; and
4. Two-family dwellings.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the DR-15
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetion—7-% Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval,
herein are met:

1. Church,—Femple; and/or other Place of Worship;

2. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;

3. Home Occupation;

47 ] ) 1
Reereation-Fieldand

4. Private School, _including, but not limited _to: classrooms,
administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and
stadium; and

5. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the DR-
15 Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area per dwelling:

6-114





a. Single-family or two-family dwelling with central sanitary sewage
or central water distribution system: 43,560 square feet (one [1]
acre)

b. Where neither a central sanitary sewage nor a central water
distribution system is provided: 65,340 square feet (one and one-
half [1.5] acres)

Lot width:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Arterial: 125 feet

(2) Collector: 125 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: 100 feet
Floor area:
a. Single-family dwelling: 1,200 square feet
b. Two-family dwelling: 1,800 square feet
Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:

1) Arterial: Hifty(50) 50 feet

@) Collector: forty-five-(45) 45 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: ferty-{46) 40 feet

Rear yard setback:  thirty(36) 30 feet
Side yard setback:  ten{(10) 10 feet

Height limit; thirty-five (35) 35 feet

Off-street parking: ~ Parking spaces for three (3) motor vehicles per
dwelling unit

6-115





6-16. RMF Multi-family Residential District.

A

|©

Description of District. The intent of the RMF District is to provide locations in
which high density residential uses can take place. The RMF District is designed
to promote desirable housing conditions for high density residential uses, while
minimizing the negative impacts associated with said uses on Fayette County's
roads, schools, and water supply.

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses and Structures shall be allowed in
the RMF Zoning District:

1. Apartments; and
2. Townhouses.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Use shall be allowed in the RMF
Zoning District _provided that all conditions specified in_Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval,
herein are met:

Home Occupation; and

Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the RMF
Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Maximum requirements per development:

a. Maximum density: five (5) units per gross acre

b. Maximum number of dwelling units per development: 160
2. Minimum requirements for a development:

a. Site area: five (5) acres

b. Site frontage: fifty(50) 50 feet of immediate frontage on at least
one (1) street which has been identified as an arterial as specified
by the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan.

C. Peripheral yard requirements:

1) Front yard:

6-116





@) Major thoroughfare:
Q) State-numbered route: 150 feet
(i) Arterial: 100 feet
(iii)  Collector: etghty-(86) 80 feet
(b) Minor thoroughfare: sixty-{60) 60 feet
(2 Side yard: forty-(40) 40 feet
3) Rear yard: forty (40} 40 feet

Lot Coverage and Minimum Open Space

a.

No more than ferty{406} 40 percent of any development site may
be covered with buildings, structures or parking areas. Driveways,
sidewalks, covered patios, private recreation areas, and swimming
pools shall not be computed as lot coverage.

Private, usable open space, such as balconies, sundecks or patios
shall be provided contiguous to each dwelling unit. The area of
such open space shall not be less than ten (10) percent of the floor
area of the unit served except that balconies shall not be less than
five (5) percent.

The minimum distance between buildings, including any
projections, shall not be less than fifty-(506) 50 feet.

Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

Floor area:

a. One bedroom: 600 square feet
b. Two bedroom: 850 square feet
C. Three bedroom: 1,200 square feet

Special Location and Spatial Requirements

a.

No more than eight (8) dwelling units shall compose a single
building.

6-117





Within a townhouse development, no more than three (3)
consecutive dwelling units which form a part of a single building
shall have the same front setback or roof line. Such setback and
roof line shall be varied by a minimum of sixteen{16} 16 inches.

All exterior refuse areas or outside storage shall be screened in
accordance with Seetien-5-19 Article V.

Recreational facilities, including swimming pools, shall not be
located within 150 feet of any single-family residential district,
unless the recreational facility is screened from view of the single-
family district by a principal dwelling or accessory building which
exceeds the length of the recreational facility by twenty(20) 20
feet in each direction.

At least fifteen—{15) 15 percent of the total land area shall be
reserved for recreation available to all residents of the
development. At a minimum, recreation areas shall include the
following:

Q) One (1) swimming pool at least 1,000 square feet;
@) Two (2) standard tennis courts;
3 One (1) children's playground; and

4) Fwenty(20) 20 off-street parking spaces.

Parking areas shall not be located within the minimum required
peripheral front, side, or rear yards of the development. A
minimum of three (3) spaces are required per dwelling unit.

Circulation System Requirements

a.

Principal access drives serving more than ten (10) dwelling units
shall be constructed to Fayette County public street standards.

Parking areas shall be connected to living units by paved
walkways. Sidewalks may be required where necessary for safe
pedestrian circulation as determined by the County Engineer.

Landscape Areas and Buffers. If a rear or side peripheral yard adjoins a

residential or A-R zoning district, a minimum buffer of fifty(50) 50 feet
shall be provided within the required setback. The front peripheral yard
shall be landscaped in accordance with the Development Regulations.

6-118





9. Subdivisions. Where developments are designed or otherwise proposed
such that each dwelling therein is to be sold along with the land on which
it sits and any yards, such divisions shall comply with the Fayette County
Subdivision Regulations.

6-17. MHP Manufactured Home Park District.

A

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
for purpose of providing the proper development of manufactured home parks.

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted uses shall be allowed in the MHP
Zoning District:

1. Manufactured home park;

2. Accessory butldings structures and uses (see Article V.);

3. Office trailer; and

4, Growing crops, gardens.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the MHP
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetior—7-1 Article VII.

Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval,
herein are met:

1. Nursery-schools-and-kindergartens,provided: Day Care Facility (Nursery
School).

a There are off-street loading and unloading spaces;
b- There is at least 100 square feet of outdoor play area per child: and
. : ot ] rour (4) feet in-heig! I I iro ol

¥ i I i i
safety-to-thechildren- (Relocate to Article VII.)

1. Home Occupation; and

2. Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities

Special Regulations. The following regulations shall apply to the MHP Zoning
District in addition to any other applicable regulations herein:

6-119





Development Plan: ~ The applicant shall file a petition with the Zoning
Administrator for approval of a Manufactured Home Park. This
application shall be supported by six (6) copies of a written summary of
the development planned, known as a Letter of Intent, which shall
describe the proposed development in detail and a Site Plan. The Site Plan
and Letter of Intent shall present the following information:

a. A draft of the proposed rules and regulations which shall be
established and enforced by the management of the Manufactured
Home Park;

b. Existing topographic conditions, including where necessary,

contour intervals of not less than two (2) feet based on field
surveys or photogrammetric methods at a minimum scale of one
(1) inch equal 100 feet (1" - 100;

C. The existing and proposed land uses and the approximate location
of all buildings and structures;

d. The location of existing and proposed streets and parking areas;
e. A legal description of the subject property;

f. Typical elevation drawings, indicating general architectural style
and building exterior materials, if possible, of all permanent
buildings and structures to be constructed on the premises;

g. A statement of the present ownership of all land within the
proposed development;

h. A summary of acres, dwelling units, and gross density, as well as a
statement of the number of acres devoted to buffer areas, and green
belts or other amenities, such as lakes, etc.;

i. A description of the phases under which construction shall be
programmed, depicting the geographical limits of each phase of
construction; and

J. Specific plans for provision of central water and central sanitary
sewage systems.

Pre-application Conference. Prior to filing a formal application for a

Manufactured Home Park the applicant is required to appear before the

Planning Commission in a public hearing in order to provide for review of

the general character of the proposed Manufactured Home Park
6-120






development (on the basis of a tentative land use sketch, if available), and
to obtain information on projected programs or improvements, as well as,
County requirements.

Approval. An application for approval of a Manufactured Home Park will
be considered administratively as a petition for rezoning, and will be
subject to the procedures established in this Zoning Ordinance. After
review and public hearing, the Board of Commissioners may disapprove,
approve or approve with modifications to the Site Plan and/or Letter of
Intent, after receiving the recommendation of the Planning Commission.

Use Regulations. In addition to the above listed permitted uses, the
buildings or land shall only be used as follows:

a. Parking and inhabiting of manufactured homes in parks with a
minimum of fifty(56) 50 spaces, provided all facilities shown on
the Site Plan submitted to and approved by the Board of
Commissioners are installed and maintained according to the
schedule submitted with the Site Plan and stipulations of the Letter
of Intent;

b. Recreation areas, office and/or maintenance and storage buildings,
for residents of the Manufactured Home Park only. No repair
facilities of any type including automobile repair shall be
permitted;

C. Convenience food stores with a maximum of 1,500 square feet
including inside and outside storage, as an accessory to a
Manufactured Home Park as designated on an approved Site Plan;

d. Laundromat, including coin operated dry cleaning, as an accessory
to a Manufactured Home Park as designated on an approved Site
Plan, upon approval by the Fayette County Health Department;

e. The sale or display of a manufactured home, provided each such
manufactured home offered for sale shall be located on its
individual lot and connected to all utilities.

Perimeter Requirements:

a. A buffer zone having a minimum width of 150 feet shall be
provided so as to provide a continuous buffer along all side and
rear yards of any Manufactured Home Park.

6-121





10.

11.

b. A buffer zone having a minimum depth of 100 feet shall extend
along the entire frontage of any Manufactured Home Park.

C. Where the existing foliage in the buffer zones is not sufficient to
provide and maintain an evergreen visual screen between adjacent
properties, landscaping and planting shall be required sufficient to
provide visual separation and privacy between a Manufactured
Home Park and adjacent properties and/or streets.

Storage Requirements. Each Manufactured Home Park shall provide an
area for the storage of boats, travel trailers and/or other vehicles which
shall be at least ten (10) percent of the gross area of the Manufactured
Home Park, provided, however, said ten (10) percent is not located in a
flood hazard area.

Circulation system. Each Manufactured Home Park shall have a
minimum 200 feet of frontage, and only access, an Arterial Thoroughfare.
Said access shall not exceed 600 feet in length as measured from the right-
of-way.

a. Each Manufactured Home Park over twenty{20} 20 acres in size
shall have a minimum of two (2) access streets or drives to provide
ingress and egress for vehicular traffic.

b. Provision shall be made for safe, all-weather pedestrian movement
within the development.

Night Lighting. Streets, pedestrian walkways and parking areas shall be
adequately lighted.

Garbage Refuse Collection Facilities. Garbage refuse collection shall be
provided by the Manufactured Home Park owner.

Utilities. Each manufactured home shall be connected with water and
sanitary facilities in a manner approved by the Fayette County Health
Department and in compliance with the regulations of the Fayette County
Water System. Each manufactured home shall be served by electricity and
gas. All utilities shall be placed underground.

Recreation Facilities. A minimum of ten (10) percent of the gross acreage
of the Manufactured Home Park shall be provided for common facilities,
open space, and recreation for the residents of the Manufactured Home
Park.

6-122





E.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the MHP

Zoning District shall be as follows:

1.

4.

No Manufactured Home Park shall be constructed or maintained on a lot
orlet of a total area of less than ten (10) acres.

Each manufactured home shall be located on a separate lot as follows:
a. Each lot shall have a minimum width of sixty{60) 60 feet.
b. Each lot shall contain a minimum of 6,000 square feet.

C. Each lot shall provide a paved concrete or all-weather patio area
having a minimum area of 300 square feet.

Manufactured Home Siting Requirements. Within sixty{(60) 60 days of
the siting of a manufactured home on its lot, the under-carriage of the
manufactured home shall be concealed from view, through the use of
permanent non-flammable construction materials. No manufactured home
or other structure shall be located within:

a. Four (4) feet of its individual lot line; or

b. Fifteen{15) 15 feet of any street or drive within the Manufactured
Home Park.

Height Limit: 35 feet

6-18. O-I, Office-Institutional District. (Adopted 05/26/88)

A

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures

having office and institutional uses which are compatible with or provide a
transition into low-intensity land uses.

Permitted Principal Uses and Structures. The following Permitted Uses shall be

allowed in the O-1 Zoning District:

1.

2.

Office;
Art Gallery;

Bank and/or Financial Institution:

Clinic (Human Treatment);

6-123





10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

College and/or University, including classrooms and/or_administration
only;

Panece-Studio-or-School;

Educational/Instructional/Tutorial Facilities, including, but not limited
to: Academic, Art, Computer, Dance, Driving and/or DUI, Martial Arts,
Music, Professional/ Business/Trade, and similar facilities;

Fi ial Institution:

Health Club and/or Fitness Center;

Insurance Carrier, Agent, and/or Broker;

Laboratory, Medical, and/or Dental,

Legal Services;

Massage Therapy (see County Code);

Military Recruiting Office:

Museum;
Performing Arts Theater;

Private School, including classrooms and/or administration only;

Professional Services, including, but not limited to: Accounting;
Advertising _and Marketing Research Services; Architectural Firms;
Bookkeeping, Tax Preparation; Brokerage Firms; Computer System
Software Design; Consulting Services; Engineering Firms; Internet and
Web Hosting Firms; Payroll Services; Photographic Services; Research
Services; Specialized Design Services; Telemarketing; and Translation
and Interpretation Services.

Real Estate Agent and/or Broker; and

6-124





Permitted Principal Uses and Structures for Office Parks with at least 100,000
square feet of floor area. In an office park having at least 100,000 square feet of
floor area, the following retail and service uses shall be permitted as long as
collectively such uses comprise no more than ten (10) percent of the total floor
area, are located in a building in which office uses comprise at least fifty{506) 50
percent of the floor area and have no exterior advertising display:

1. Beauty and/or Barber Shop;

2. Blueprinting;

3. Cafeteria;

4, Commercial Art and/or Drafting Service;
5. Day Care Facility;

6. Delivery and/or Messenger Service;

7. Drug Store;

8. Florist;

Q. Gift Shop;

10. Photocopying and/or Reproduction;

11. Restaurant (limited to five [5] percent of total floor area of office park and
included in overall ten [10] percent limitation);

12.  Stenographic and/or Typing Service;

13.  Teleconferencing Center; and

14.  Travel Agency and/or Ticket Office.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the O-I

Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Section 7-1 herein are
met:

1. Adult Day Care Facility; (Adopted 06/28/07)

6-125





2. Animal Hospital and/or Veterinary Clinic (with no animal boarding or
outdoor runs) (Added 06/25/98)

3. Care Home, Convalescent Center, and/or Nursing Home;

4. Church and/or other Place of Worship;

5. College and/or University, including, but not limited to: classrooms,
administration, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium;

6. Day Care Facility (Nursery School erKindergarten);

7. Home Occupation; (Adopted 10/23/08)

8. Hospital;

9. Hotel and/or Bed and Breakfast;

10. Non-Emergency Medical Transport Service; ard- (Adopted 07/26/07)

11. Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration,
playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium;

12.  Churehor Religious Tent Meeting; (Added 04/09/98)

13.  Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and/or uses (see
Article V.); and

14.  Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility
Facilities.

Auxiliary Conditional Uses for an Office Building with a minimum of 10,000
square feet of floor area. The following auxiliary permitted uses shall be allowed
within the speeific area with a land use designation of Office -astitutional
District as indicated area on the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map map
defined as that area north of S.R. 54 West, east of Tyrone Road, and west of
Sandy Creek Road. This area shall also be known as the Fayette County
Community Hospital District (Hospital District). Such uses will support and must
shall be compatible with the Fayette County Community Hospital, the medical
industry, and the development of the office and institutional uses planned for this
area. (Section E. adopted in its entirety 06/24/04)

The following Auxiliary Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the O-1 Zoning
District:

6-126





6.

Durable Medical and Rehabilitation Equipment Sales/Rental (i.e.
wheelchairs, crutches, etc.);

Pharmaceutical Sales (for the purpose of filling prescriptions only);
Counter Service Restaurants, including but not limited to: a bakery, cafe,
coffee shop, or deli. No drive-thru_no drive-in, or free standing facilities
wiH shall be allowed;

Optical Care Center to include prescription eyeglass/contact lense sales;

Gift Shop for the sale of items usually associated with a medical condition
and/or hospital stay (i.e. get well cards, etc.); and

Floral Sales.

Development Standards:

Dimensional Requirements

1.

These Auxiliary Conditional Uses shall be allowed in an office building
with a minimum of 10,000 square feet and such uses shall comprise no
more than a total of twenty 20 percent {20%) of the total floor area of the
building and must shall occupy space on the first floor of the building.

Multiple uses may be permitted concurrently, but may not exceed the

twenty-20 percent {20%) limitation.

Architectural Requirements

1. Architecture shall conform to the existing hospital/medical office
development.  The architectural standards of the Transportation
Corridor Overlay Zone shall not apply.
2. Elevation drawings shall be submitted as part of site plan approval
F. Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the O-I

Zoning District shall be as follows:

1.

Lot area:

a. Where a central water distribution system is provided: 43,560
square feet (one [1] acre)

6-127





b. Where a central sanitary sewage and central water distribution
systems are provided: 21,780 square feet (one-half [.50] acre)

Lot width: 125 feet

Outside Storage shall not be permitted.

area
Setbacks, yards adjoining rights-of-way:
a. Major thoroughfare:

1) Arterial: seventy-five(#5) 75 feet
(2 Collector: seventy(70) 70 feet

b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty-five{55) 55 feet

Setbacks, yards not adjoining rights-of-way:

a. Side yard: fifteen(15) 15 feet
b. Rear yard: fifteen{15) 15 feet

Buffer: If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R zoning district, a
minimum buffer of thirty{30) 30 feet adjacent to such lot line shall be
provided in addition to the required setback, and the setback shall be
measured from the buffer. Additional buffer and setback requirements
may be established as a condition of zoning approval.

Height limit:

a. Forty{40) 40 feet as defined in Article 111, See—3-14. (Adopted
11/18/04) (Amended 02/23/06)

b. When a structure reaches a minimum height of four (4) floors
(including basements), it shall be sprinkled. (Adopted 11/18/04)

Use of Existing Structure: When property containing a lawfuthy-existing

legally conforming buHdinrg-and-aceessery structures, under the current
zoning, is rezoned to O-1 foer-use-ofthe-existing-buildingsthefolowing
6-128






shaH-apphy— the dimensional requirements shall be reduced to the extent
of, but only at the location of, any encroachment by the structures and
said structures shall be considered legal nonconforming structures.

9. Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: skxty 60 percent
{60%) of total lot area (Adopted 06/28/01)

(Adopted in its entirety — 08/27/09)

SR 74 North - East Side Special Development District. The following will apply to the
area identified in the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan, SR 74 North Overlay District
on the east side of SR 74 North and designated as Special Development District and
Office on the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map. The purpose of this Special
Development District is to promote planned office development along the frontage of SR
74 North to a depth of approximately 800 feet to fulfill the stated goals for the future
development of the corridor. The goals of the SR 74 North Overlay District are: (1) to
maintain the efficient traffic flow of SR 74 North as the County’s main connection to
Interstate 85; (2) to enhance and maintain the aesthetic qualities of the corridor, as it is
the gateway into Fayette County; and (3) to protect existing and future residential areas in
the SR 74 North corridor.

The assemblage of parcels will be necessary in some areas to meet the intent of the
Special Development District. The minimum requirements for acreage and road frontage
will necessitate large tracts of land to achieve a reduction in individual curb cuts,
consistency and coordination in architectural scheme, and capacity to develop a required
service road where applicable.

1. In a planned office development consisting of a minimum of ten (10) acres and
600 feet of road frontage on SR 74 North, a maximum of 20 percent of the floor
area of each individual building may consist of businesses providing support
services for the larger development. Permitted support service uses include:

a. Restaurants (no drive-through, drive-in, or free standing facilities shall be
allowed);

6-129





e.

f.

Personal Services, including, but not limited to: Alterations; Barber
Shop; Beauty Salon; Clothing/Costume Rentals; Electrolysis and/or
Hair Removal; Laundry Drop-off/Pick-up; Locksmith; Nail Salon;
Photography Studio; Shoe Repair; and Tanning Salon;

Convenience store (no gasoline sales);
Blueprinting, graphic, and/or copying service; and

Office and/or computer supphies sales and/or service; and

Cellular phone/communication device supphes sales and/or service.

6-19. C-C Community Commercial District.

A.

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures

providing for convenient community shopping facilities having a broad variety of
sales and services.

Amusement or Recreational facility, indoor or_outdoor (see County

Code);

Appliance sales and incidental repair-ete:;
Aurt studio;
Bakery;

Bank and/or Financial Institution;

Catering service;

6-130





10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Church and—customary—related—uses_and/or_other Place of Worship,
excluding outdoor recreation, parsonage, and cemetery or mausoleum;
lothi i ;

College; and/or University, including—Bermitery—and—Fraternity—or
Sorority—house—when—located—on—main—campus__classrooms _and/or

administration only;

Copy shop;

Cultural facility;

Panece-schoolor-Studio;

Day Spa

Dental office;

Department store, variety store, and/or clothing store;

Drug store;

Dry goods store;

Educational/Instructional/Tutoring Facilities, including, but not limited
to: Academic, Art, Computer, Dance, Driving and/or DUI School,

Martial Arts, Music, Professional/ Business/Trade, and similar
facilities;

Electronic sales and incidental repair;

Emission Testing Facility (inside only);

Fi ialinstitution:

Firearm sales and/or Gunsmith (see County Code — Offenses and
Miscellaneous Provisions);

Florist;
Gift shop;
Grocery store;

6-131





21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Hardware Store:

Health Club and/or Fitness Center;

Jewelry shop;
Laboratory serving professional requirements, (e.g. medical, dental, etc.);
Library;

Medical office (human treatment);

Messenger/courier service;

Military Recruiting Office;

Movie Theatre (excluding drive-in);

Museum:;

Office equipment sales and/or service;

Parking Garage/Lot;

Personal Services, including, but not limited to: Alterations; Barber
Shop; Beauty Salon; Clothing/Costume Rentals; Counseling Services;
Electrolysis _and/or Hair Removal; Fitness Center; Laundry Drop-
off/Pick-up; Locksmith; Nail Salon; Photography Studio; Shoe Repair;
and Tanning Salon.

6-132






34.

35.

36.

37.

38

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

Plant nursery, growing crops/garden, and related sales;

Printing, graphics, and/or reproductions;

Private Clubs and/or Lodges;

Private School, including, classrooms and/or administration only;

Radio studio;
Recording Studio (Audio and Video);

Restaurant, including drive-in and/or drive thru);

Retail establishment;
Sehool;
Taxidermist; and

: -
Telegraph-service,
Television studio. and

Wateh-repat

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the C-C

Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Sectior7-1 Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval

herein are met:

1. Adult Day Care Facility; (Adopted 06/28/07)

2. Animal Hospital, Kennel (Commercial or Non-Commercial), and/or
Veterinary Clinic;

3. Automobile Service Station, including, gasoline sales and/or_inside or

outside emission testing, in conjunction with a Convenience Store;

Auto parts and/or Tire sales and installation;
6-133






10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

' Eacifitios:

Care Home, Convalescent Center, and/or Nursing Home;

Church and/or other Place of Worship;

College and/or University, including, but not limited to: classrooms,
administration, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium;

Commercial Driving Range;

Day Care Facility (Nursery School erKindergarten);
Dry Cleaning Plant;

Golf Course;

Home Occupation; (Adopted 10/23/08)

Hospital;

Kennel (See Animal Hospital, etc.);

Laundromat, Self-Service or Otherwise;

Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration,
playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium;

Chureh-or Religious Tent Meeting;

Seasonal Sales as Outdoor Displays;

Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and/or uses (see

Article V.); and

Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities;
and

Temporary Tent Sales.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the C-C
Zoning District shall be as follows:

6-134





Lot area:

a. Where a central water distribution system is provided: 43,560
square feet (one [1] acre)

b. Where a central sanitary sewage and central water distribution
systems are provided: 21,780 square feet (one-half [.50] acre)

Lot width: 125 feet
Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:

1) Arterial: seventy-five(#5) 75 feet
(2 Collector: seventy(70) 70 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: sixty-five{65) 65 feet
Rear yard setback:  fifteen{15) 15 feet
Side yard setback:  fifteen{15) 15 feet
Buffer: If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District,
a minimum buffer of fifty(50) 50 feet adjacent to the lot line shall be

provided in addition to the required setback and the setback shall be
measured from the buffer.

Height limit; thirty-five (35) 35 feet

Screening dimensions for parking and service areas as provided in Seetion
5-19,-5-20 Article V. General Provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and
the Development Regulations.

Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: sixty 60 percent
{60%) of total lot area (Adopted 06/28/01)

6-20. C-H Highway Commercial District.

A

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures

to provide and encourage proper grouping and development of roadside uses,
which include a wide variety of sales and services that will best accommodate the
needs of the County and the traveling public, reducing traffic congestion, hazards
and blight along the public streets.

6-135





Permitted Uses. The following uses shall be permitted in the C-H Zoning District

1. Ambulance and—Reseue—sguad service, including Non-Emergency
Medical Transport service;

2. Amusement or Recreational facility, indoor or outdoor (see County
Code);

3. Appliance sales and/or repair;

4. Armories, for meetings and training military organizations;

5. Art studio;
Athletic-events;

6. Auto parts, Tire store/installation, Brake installation, Muffler repair, Oil

change, Tune-up, and Emission Testing Facilities, and-retad All service
repairs, and diagnostics shall be conducted within an enclosed building;
(Amended 06/24/04)

7. Bakery;

8. Bank and/or Financial Institution;

11. Bookbinding;

12. Building, contracting and related activities, (e.g. sales and storage of
building supplies and materials);

13. Bus passenger station (pick-up and drop-off only);

Business-school;

6-136





14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

26.

Cabinet manufacturing, sales, repair and/or installation;
Carnival-{temperary-in-nature),
Car wash and/or detailing facility; (Amended 07/22/04)

Catering service;

Church, and—eustemary—related—uses—and/or_other Place of Worship

excluding outdoor recreation, parsonage, and cemetery or mausoleum;

Clothing store and/or variety store;

College; and/or University, including—Bermiteory—and—Fraternity—or
Serority—heuse—when—located—on—math—eampus  classrooms and/or

administration only;
- ity fair:

Copy shop;

Cultural facility;
Panece-school-or-Studio;
Day Spa
Dental office;
Department store;
. ;
il ;
Drug store;
Bry-goodsstore:
Educational/Instructional/Tutoring Facilities, including, but not limited

to: Academic; Art; Computer; Dance; Driving and/or DUI; Music;
Professional/Business/Trade; Martial Arts; and similar facilities;

Eleetrie Electronic sales and/or repair;

6-137





27.

28.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Emission Testing Facility (inside only);

Engraving;
. ialinstitution:

Firearm sales and/or Gunsmith (see County Code — Offenses and
Miscellaneous Provisions);

Flea Market, indoor (see County Code - Pawnbrokers, Dealers in
Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators);

Florist shop;

Freezer locker service, ice storage;
Freight express office;

Funeral home;

Gift shop;

Glass sales;

Grocery store;

Hardware Store;

Health Club and/or Fitness Center;

Hotel and/or Bed and Breakfast;

Jewelry shop;
Laboratory serving professional requirements, (e.g. medical, dental, etc.);
i il ion:

Library;
6-138





43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54,

55.

56.

57.

Magazine publication and/or distribution;

Manufactured home and/or building sales reem-and-saleslot;

Medical office (Human Treatment) ;

Messenger/courier service;

Military Recruiting Office;

Movie Theatre and/or Drive-In;

Museum;
Music teaching studio;

Newspaper publication and/or distribution;

Novelty-shop;

Office;

Office equipment sales and/or service;
Parking Garage/Lot;

Pawn Shops (see County Code — Pawnbrokers, Dealers in_Precious
Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators);

Personal Services, including, but not limited to: Alterations; Barber
Shop; Beauty Salon; Clothing/Costume Rentals; Counseling Services;
Electrolysis and/or Hair Removal; Fitness Center; Laundry Drop-
off/Pick-up; Locksmith; Nail Salon; Photography Studio; Shoe Repair;
and Tanning Salon.

Pest control;
Phetostating;

Plant nursery, growing crops/garden, and/or related sales;

6-139





58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72,

Printing,_graphics, and/or reproductions;

Private clubs and/or Lodges;

Private School, including classrooms and/or administration only;

Recording Studio (Audio and Video):

Radio studio;
Railroad station;
Rent-alls;

Restaurant, including drive-in and/or drive thru);

Retail establishment;

Rodeo {temporary in nature);  (Amended 07/22/04)
School

Sheerepaif;

Tattoo Parlor (see County Code):

Taxidermist;

Taxi service/Limousine service/Shuttle service (no on-site maintenance
and/or repair);

Telegraph-serviee;

Television studio;

Frade-sechools:
Upholstery shop; and

Utility trailers sales and/or rental rent-alls;—and.

Wateh-repatr.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the C-H
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Section—7-1 Article VII.

6-140





Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval

herein are met:

1. Adult Day Care Facility; (Adopted 06/28/07)

2. Amphitheater;

3. Animal Hospital, Kennel (Commercial or Non-Commercial), and/or
Veterinary Clinic;

4, Automobile, Truck, Farm Equipment, or Motorcycle Sales and Aececessory
Incidental Repairs;  (Amended 06/24/04)

5. Automobile Service Station, including gasoline sales and/or_inside or
outside emission testing, in conjunction with a Convenience Store;

6. Campground Facilities;

7. Care Home, Convalescent Center, and/or Nursing Home;

8 Cemetery;

9. Charter and/or Motor Coach Bus Service;

10.  Church and/or other Place of Worship;

11.  College and/or University, including, but not limited to: classrooms,
administration, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium:;

12.  Commercial Driving Range;

13. Day Care Facility (Nursery School erKindergarten);

14. Dry Cleaning Plant;

15. Experimental Laboratory;

16.  Golf Course;

17. Home Occupation; (Adopted 10/23/08)

18.  Horse show, Rodeo, Carnival, and/or Community Fair;

19. Hospital;

6-141





20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

Laundromat, Self-Service or Otherwise;

Outdoor Amusement Facilities, Rides, Structures over thirty-five (35) feet
in height, including, but not limited to Bungee and Parachute Jumping;

Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration,
playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium;

Chureh-or Religious Tent Meeting;

Seasonal Sales as Outdoor Displays;

Self-Storage Facility; (Adopted 06/28/07)

Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and/or _uses (see

Article V.); and

Shooting Range, Indoor

Stadium, Athletic;

Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or Other Public Utility Facilities;
and

Temporary Tent Sales.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the C-H

Zoning District shall be as follows:

1.

2.

3.

Lot area:

a. Where a central water distribution system is provided: 43,560
square feet (one [1] acre)

b. Where a central sanitary sewage and central water distribution
systems are provided: 21,780 square feet (one-half [.50] acre)

Lot width: 125 feet
Front yard setback:
a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Acrterial: seventy-five(#5) 75 feet

6-142





2 Collector: seventy(70) 70 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: sixty-five{65) 65 feet
4, Rear yard setback:  fifteen{15) 15 feet
5. Side yard setback:  fifteen{15) 15 feet
6. Buffer: If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District,
a minimum buffer of fifty(50) 50 feet adjacent to the lot line shall be

provided in addition to the required setback and the setback shall be
measured from the buffer.

7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

8. Screening dimensions for parking and service areas as provided in Section
5-18,5-19, Article V. herein and the Development Regulations.

9. Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: sixty 60 percent
{60%) of total lot area (Adopted 06/28/01)

6-21. L-C Limited-Commercial District.

A.

Intent. The intent of the L-C Zoning District is to establish small scale business
areas which do not generate large amounts of traffic, noise or light. The L-C
Zoning District includes small retail and convenience commercial establishments,
personal services and business and professional offices. The L-C Zoning District
will control architectural character and scale. The adaptive use of existing
structures is encouraged when possible. The L-C Zoning District would avoid the
development of strip commercial businesses.

Permitted Principal Uses. The following Permitted Principal Uses shall be
allowed in the L-C Zoning District:

1. Antique shop;
2. Art and/or Crafts studio;
3. Bakery;

4. Bank and/or Financial Institution;

5. Barber and/or Beauty shop;

Beauty shop;
6-143





10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Book, stationery, and/or card shop;

Clothing and accessories;

Dance school and/or studio;
Dental office;

. iaLinstitution:
Florist shop;

Gift Shop;

Home furnishings and accessories;

Jewelry shop;

Laundry and/or dry clean pickup station;

Medical office (human treatment);
Music teaching studio;

Office (business and/or professional);
Photography studio;

Restaurant/Restaurant Takeout (no drive-thru or drive-in allowed.); and

Shoe repair;-and.

Wateh-repatr.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the L-C

Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Sectior7-% Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval

herein are met:

1.

2.

Convenience Commercial Establishment;

Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and uses (see Article

V.):

6-144





4.

Home Occupation; and

Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility

Facilities.

D. Regulations. The following regulations shall apply to the L-C Zoning District in
addition to any other applicable regulations.

1.

These structures shall maintain a residential character. Elevation

drawings denoting compliance with the following requirements shall be

submitted as part of the Site Plan:

=

[©

A pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum pitch of

four and one-half (4.5) inches in one (1) foot and shall be of a
type and construction complementary to the facade. A pitched
mansard roof facade with a minimum pitch of four and one-half
(4.5) inches in

one (1) foot and a minimum height of eight (8) feet around the
entire perimeter of the structure can be used if the structure is
two (2) stories or more or the use of a pitched peaked roof would
cause the structure to not meet the applicable height limit
requirements. The mansard roof facade shall be of a residential
character with the appearance of shingles, slate or terra cotta;

All buildings shall be constructed in_a residential character of
fiber-cement siding (ie: Hardiplank), wood siding, wood textured
vinyl siding, brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco
(including synthetic stucco);

Framed doors and windows of a residential character. To
maintain a residential character, large display windows shall give
the appearance of smaller individual panes and framing
consistent with the standard residential grid pattern for doors
and windows;

Accessory structures shall maintain the same architectural
6-145





character of the principal structure, including the pitched reef
peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum pitch of four and
one-half (4.5) inches in_one (1) foot, and must shall be
constructed of the same materials or materials which simulate
same. An elevation drawing denoting compliance with this
requirement must shall be submitted as part of the site plan.

32. No outside storage will be permitted.

43.  The lot must shall have direct access to an Arterial street.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the L-C
Zoning District shall be as follows:

1. Lot area:
a. Where public water is available: 43,560 square feet (one [1]
acre)
b. Where public water is not available: 65,340 square feet (one

and one-half [1.5] acres)
2. Lot width: 125 feet
3. Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:

1) Acrterial: seventy-five (¥5) 75 feet
2 Collector: sixty(60) 60 feet

b. Minor thoroughfare: fifty-five(55) 55 feet

4, Rear yard setback:  fifteen{15) 15 feet

5. Side yard setback:  fifteen{15) 15 feet

6. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

7. Floor to Area Ratio: .1, (gross square footage of site x .1 = square footage
of structure). The total maximum square footage for all structures
combined on the site shall not exceed 6,000 8,500 square feet. However;

6-146





8. Buffer: If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District,
a minimum buffer of fifty(50) 50 feet adjacent to such lot line shall be
provided in addition to the required setback (the setback shall be measured
from the buffer).

9. Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: sixty—percent
{60%) 60 percent of total lot area (Adopted 06/28/01)

6-22. M-1 Light Industrial District.

A

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
which are suitable for light industrial development, but where proximity to
existing or proposed residential or commercial districts make it desirable to limit
the manner and extent of industrial operations and thereby protect the nearby
residential or commercial land. (Amended 02/22/07)

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the M-1
Zoning District:

1. Ambulance service, including Non-Emergency Medical Transport
Service;

2. Amusement and recreational facilities, indoor or outdoor (Athletic/Sports
instruction facilities and Recreation and Athletic fields and facilities)
(see County Code);

3. Appliance sales and/or repair;

4. Architectural and/or Design Firms; (Adopted 02/22/07)

5. Armories, for meeting and training of military organizations;

bl f : )

6-147





Automobile, truck, farm eqguipment, and heavy equipment ertruck sales

and repairs, serviee-station, paint and/or body shop, parts store including
rebuilding of parts, parking lot or garage, upholstery shop, automebie
repair Tactlities not specifically permitted under the C-H Zoning District;

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

(Amended 06/24/04; Amended 02/22/07)
Blueprinting and/or graphics service; (Amended 02/22/07)

Bookbinding;

Building construction/contracting and related activities, e-g—sale—and

storage-of supphies-and-materials; (Amended 02/22/07)

Building supply sales;

Bus passenger station;

Cabinet manufacturing, sales, repair, and/or installation;
(Adopted 02/22/07)

Carnivals-{temporary-in-nature);
Car wash and/or detailing facility;  (Amended 07/22/04)
Charter and/or Motor Coach Bus Service.;
ity fairs { . )
Copy eenter shop; (Adopted 02/22/07)

Dental laboratory;
Delivery and/or courier service; (Adopted 02/22/07)
venin ;

Eleetrical Electronic sales and/or repair;

Emission Testing Facility (inside only);
Engineering firms; (Adopted 02/22/07)

Engraving;

6-148





21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Farmer's market;
Farm-equipmentsales;

Feed and/or fertilizer sales;

i les:

Firearm sales and/or Gunsmith (see County Code — Offenses and

Miscellaneous Provisions):

Flooring sales and/or installation; (Adopted 02/22/07)

Freezer locker service;

Freight express office;

Furniture store;

Glass sales;

Grading service; (Adopted 02/22/07)
Greenhouse;

Gunsmith;

Hardware;

Home furnishings and accessories;

Horse show and equine activity facilities;  (Amended 07/22/04)
Hetel;

Ice storage;

Insecticide sales and/or storage;

Janitorial service and/or supply; (Adopted 02/22/07)
Land development firms; (Adopted 02/22/07)
Land surveying service; (Adopted 02/22/07)

6-149





38.

39.

40.

41.

Landscaping service, (Adopted 02/22/07)

Light manufacturing, including the following:

a. Appliance and/or electronic device assembly plant, including the
manufacturing of parts for appliances and/or electronic devices;

b. Assembly of products from previously prepared materials;

C. Bottling and/or canning plant;

d. Ceramic products, provided that kilns shall only be by gas and/or
electricity;

e. Construction of signs, including painted signs;

f. Copperage Cooperage;

g. Ice manufacturing;

h. Laundry, cleaning and/or dying plants;

I. Light sheet metal products such as ventilating ducts and eaves;

k. Manufacturing of food, cosmetic and pharmaceutical products, but
not including fish and meat products, sauerkraut, vinegar, yeast
and rendering plants;

k. Machine/welding shop and related activities; (Amended 02/22/07)

l. Other manufacturing, processing, packaging, or handling of a
similar nature which shall not emit or produce more smoke, noise,
odor, dust, vibration, or fumes than the uses listed herein;

m. Production and/or sales of commercial/industrial hardware, such
as tools, fasteners, fittings, machine parts, etc.

n. Tinsmith and/or roofing service.

Locksmith;

Magazine publication and/or distribution;

6-150





42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52,

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

Medical laboratory;

Manufactured home and/or building assembly and/or sales,

and-saleslot;
Newspaper publication and/or distribution;

Nursery-plant;

Office Equipment Service and Repair; (Adopted 02/22/07)

” ier:
Parking Garage/L ot, autemebie;
Pest control;

Petroleum bulk plant (storage);
Photostating;

Planing and/or saw mill;

Plant nursery, growing crops/garden and related sales;

Printing shep plant;
blic.utility facilities:

Radio studio;
Railroad freight station;
Railroad passenger station;
ional facilities. ind :
Rent-alls;
Reseue-sguad;

Restaurants (drive-in/drive-thru prohibited);

Restaurant supply; (Adopted 02/22/07)

6-151





59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72,

Rodeo/rodeo facilities;  (Amended 07/22/04)
Seed sales and/or storage;

Security system service; (Adopted 02/22/07)
Shell home display;

Solar Farm;

Shrubbery-sales;

Taxidermist;

Taxi service/Limousine service/Shuttle service/Charter or Motor Coach
Bus service;

Television studio/media productions; (Amended 02/22/07)
Tire sales;

Trade school;

Uniform services; (Adopted 02/22/07)

Utility trailer rentals sales and/or rentals rent-aHs;

Warehousing and/or Distribution; and (Amended 02/22/07)
Wholesaling;_and

Wrecker, Towing, Impoundment, and/or Automotive
Recovery/Transport.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the M-1

Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Seetior—~7-1 Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval

herein are met:

1.

2.

Aircraft Landing Area;

Amphitheatre, Outdoor;

Animal Hospital, Kennel (Commercial or Non-Commercial), and/or
Veterinary Clinic;
6-152





10.
\'AH

11.

10.

11.

Experimental Labs;

Feed Lot and/or Commercial Barn;

Home Occupation; (Adopted 10/23/08)

Outdoor Amusement Facilities, Rides, Structures over thirty-five (35) feet
in height, including, but not limited to Bungee and Parachute Jumping;

Recycling facility;
Self-Storage Facility; and (Adopted 06/24/04)

Shooting Range, Indoor and /or Outdoor

Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and uses (see Article

Stadium, Athletic;

Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility
Facilities; and

Wind Farm

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the M-1

Zoning District shall be as follows:

1.

Lot area:

a. Where a central water distribution system is provided: 43,560
square feet (one [1] acre)

b. Where a central sanitary sewage and central water distribution
systems are provided: 21,780 square feet (one-half [.50] acre)

Lot width: 125 feet

6-153





3. Front yard setback:
a. Major thoroughfare:

1) Arterial: 100 feet

(2)  Collector: eighty(80) 80 feet

b. Minor thoroughfare: sixty-five{65) 65 feet

4. Rear yard setback:  twenty-five-(25) 25 feet

5. Side yard setback:  twenty-five(25) 25 feet

6. Buffer: If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District a
minimum buffer of seventy-five{75) 75 feet shall be provided adjacent to
the lot line in addition to the required setback. The setback shall be
measured from the buffer.

7. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet

8. Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: seventy{(76) 70
percent of total lot area

9. Screening dimensions for storage areas, loading docks and parking. sSee
Section-5-18,-Section-5-19; Article V. and the Development Regulations.

6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial District.

A

Description of District. This district is composed of certain lands and structures
providing for those industrial uses which cannot comply with the regulations of
the M-1 Zoning District and located in such a manner as not to be injurious to
lands and development in nearby districts.

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the M-2
Zoning District:

1. Acid storage and manufacture;
2. Railroad classification and repair yard;
3. Truck terminal;

6-154





10.

11.

Ambulance service, including Non-Emergency Medical Transport
Service;

i I | e
Armories, for meeting and training of military organizations;
hlati f . )

Automobile,_truck, farm equipment, and heavy equipment ertruck sales
and repairs,-service-station, paint and/or body shop, parts store, including
rebuilding of parts, parking lot or garage, tire recapping facility,
upholstery shop;

Blueprinting;

Bookbinding;

Building construction/contracting and related activities;—e-g—sale—and
sterage-of supplies-and-materials; (Amended 02/22/07)

Building supply sales;

Engraving;
Farmers-market;
Farm-eguipmentsales;

Feed, pesticides, and/or fertilizer sales and/or storage;

ij les:

6-155





12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

19.

Freezer locker service;

Freight express office;

Glass sales manufacturing;

Grading service;

Greenhouse;

Ice storage;

i cicle ol I ;

Light manufacturing, including the following:

a.

Appliance and/or electronic device assembly plant, including the
manufacturing of parts for appliances and/or electronic devices;

Assembly of products from previously prepared materials;
Bottling and/or canning plant;

Ceramic products provided that kilns shall only be by gas and/or
electricity;

Construction of signs, including painted signs;
Copperage Cooperage;
Ice manufacturing;

Laundry, cleaning and/or dying plants;

Light sheet metal products such as ventilating ducts and eaves;

6-156





20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27,

28.

29.

J. Manufacturing of food, cosmetic and pharmaceutical products, but
not including fish and meat products, sauerkraut, vinegar, yeast
and rendering plants;

k. Machine_and/or welding shop and related activities;

l. Other manufacturing, processing, packaging, or handling of a
similar nature, which shall not emit or produce more smoke, noise,
odor, dust, vibration, or fumes than the uses listed herein;

m. Production and/or sales of commercial/industrial hardware, such
as tools, fasteners, fittings, machine parts, etc.

n. Tinsmith and/or roofing service;

Magazine publication and/or distribution;

Manufactured home and/or building assembly and/or sales,

- acilitios witha unitf 425 foot

Newspaper publication and distribution;

Parking lot and/or garage;-automebHe;

Parts store, automobile;

Pest control;

Petroleum bulk plant (storage and/or recycling);
Photostating;

Planing and/or saw mill;

Plant nursery, growing crops/garden and related sales;

Printing shep plant;

6-157





30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

35.

Public utility facilities;

Railroad freight station;

Seed sales and/or storage;
Solar Farm;
. ice:

Tire recapping;

Warehousing and/or distribution; ane

Wholesaling; and

Wrecker, Towing, Impoundment, and/or Automotive

Recovery/Transport.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the M-2

Zoning District, provided that all conditions specified in Seetien—7-% Article VII.
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use Approval

herein are met:

1. Aircraft Landing Area;

2. Experimental lab;

2. Heavy Manufacturing, packaging, processing or handling of materials;
4, Home Occupation; (Adopted 10/23/08)

6-158





11.

Junk Yard and/or Auto Grave Yard;
Landfill;
Mining and/or Quarrying;

Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and uses (see Article

VL)

Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility
Facilities;

Transfer Station for Household amd /Commercial Garbage and/or
Recyclable Materials (including processing and handling); and

Wind Farm.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the M-2

Zoning District shall be as follows:

1.

2.

Lot area: 87,120 square feet (two [2] acres)
Lot width: 125 feet

Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:

(1)  Arterial: 100 feet

@) Collector: eighty(80) 80 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: sixty-five{65) 65 feet
Rear yard setback:  twenty-five-(25) 25 feet
Side yard setback:  twenty-five(25) 25 feet
Buffer: If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District a
minimum buffer of seventy-five{75) 75 feet shall be provided adjacent to

the lot line in addition to the required setback. The setback shall be
measured from the buffer.

Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet
6-159





Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: seventy{70} 70
percent of total lot area

Screening dimensions for storage areas, loading docks and parking see
Seetion-5-18,-Seetion-5-19; Article V. and the Development Regulations.

6-24. BTP Business Technology Park District

(Adopted in its entirety 08/27/09)

A.

Purpose. The purpose of the Business Technology Park District (BTP) is
to provide a business/employment center in a planned campus setting with
internal streets serving individual lots that contain a single business or
multi-tenant buildings housing uses which are free from such nuisances as
noise, vibration, smoke, gas, fume, odor, dust, radiation or other injurious
or noxious conditions related to those uses. Additional requirements
would include architectural standards. This district is to provide for high
tech firms, light manufacturing/distribution firms, and professional firms
with some support establishments (commercial and personal services)
primarily for the employees.

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the
BTP Zoning District:

1. Business, professional, and/or government offices;

2. Scientific, medical, and/or research laboratories;

3. Business support centers and/or call centers;

4. Financial, credit, real estate, and/or insurance establishments;

5. Publishing and/or printing;
6. Computer services and/or information technology;

7. Television/radio broadcasting studio, media productions and/or
telecommunication;

8. Training center, trade schools, and/or vocational centers;
Q. Educational/Instructional/Tutoring Facilities, including, but not

limited to: Art; Computer; Dance; Driving and/or DUI; Martial
Arts; Music; Professional/Business/Trade; and similar facilities;

6-160





10.  Colleges and/or gUniversitiesy, classrooms and/or administration
only;

11.  Warehousing, wholesaling and/or distribution of products and/or
merchandise, but not including, retail sales of consumer goods
such as are usually sold to the general public;

12.  Shipping and/or courier service; and

13. Light manufacturing and/or fabricating and/or assembling of
products, including, but not limited to the following:

a. Production of food, beverages, cosmetics, and/or
pharmaceuticals, but not including, fish and meat products,
sauerkraut, vinegar, yeast, and rendering plants;

b. Fabrication and assembly of metal, wood, cloth, and/or
plastic products; and

C. Production of computer and/or electronic components and
products.

Each BTP development will consist of two (2) basic sets of uses: the
business uses consisting of Permitted Uses 1. through 9. and the light
manufacturing/distribution uses consisting of Permitted Uses 10. through
12.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the
BTP Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Section 7-1
herein are met:

1. Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and
uses (see Article V.); and

2. Home Occupation;

3. College and/or University, including, but not limited to:
classrooms, administration, housing, athletic fields,
gymnasium, and stadium; and

Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or other Public
Utility Facilities.

[~

6-161





D.

Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in

the BTP shall be as follows:

1.

2.

10.

Minimum Site Area for a BTP Development: 20 acres
Lot Area: 87,120 square feet (two [2] acres)
Lot width: 500 feet

Front yard setback:

a. Major thoroughfare:
1) Major Arterial: 100 feet
(@) Arterial: 100 feet
3) Collector: 80 feet
b. Minor thoroughfare: 65 feet

Rear yard setback: 25 feet
Side yard setback: 25 feet

Buffer: If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning
District, a minimum buffer of 75 feet shall be provided adjacent to
the lot line, in addition to the required setback. The setback shall
be measured from the buffer.

The business use areas shall be separated from the light
manufacturing/distribution use areas by a 30 foot buffer.

Height limit: 40 feet

Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: 70
percent of total lot area.

Outside Storage and Refuse Area Requirements. The following
requirements shall apply to outside storage and refuse areas.
Where this section contradicts any other requirement, the most
restrictive shall apply.

6-162





Outside storage of merchandise, equipment, and parts shall
be allowed in rear yards only, subject to screening, setback
and buffer requirements.

All refuse areas shall be allowed in side or rear yards only,
shall be screened, and comply with the required buffers and
setbacks.

11. Each BTP development shall have a minimum of 500 feet of
frontage, and access, on an Arterial street as specified by the
Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan.

E. Other Requirements.
1. Utilities. All utilities shall be underground.
2. Multi-tenant Buildings.
a. Location — Developable frontage on a major arterial road to

a minimum depth of 300 feet shall be reserved for Multi-
tenant Buildings.

Multi-tenant building in this area will be limited to the
aforementioned light business uses.

Support Uses — In addition to the Permitted Uses in section
B, no more than 20 percent of the floor area of an
individual multi-tenant building may consist of business
operations providing support services for the larger
development. Permitted support service uses include:

Q) Restaurant/restaurant take-out (No drive-through,
drive-in, or free standing facilities shall be allowed);

(i) Personal Services (i.e.: _Alterations; Barber
Shop; Beauty Salon; Clothing/Costume Rentals;
Counseling Services; Electrolysis and/or Hair
Removal; Fitness Center; Laundry Drop-off/Pick-
up; Locksmith; Nail Salon; Photography Studio;
Shoe Repair; and Tanning Salon.

(iii))  Convenience store (no gasoline sales);
(iv)  Blueprinting, graphic, and/or copying service;

6-163





(V) Office and/or computer supplies; and

(vi)  Cellular phone/communication device
supplies and/or service.

Rezoning Requirements. The following is required for a rezoning request

for the BTP Zoning District in addition to what is normally required for a
rezoning request:

1.

A Development Plan is required for the rezoning petition and will
take the place of the required Concept Plan. The Development
Plan, as approved, shall establish the layout and uses planned for
the development. Any change in the approved Development Plan,
which affects the intent and character of the development, the land
use pattern, the location or dimensions of streets, or similar
substantial changes, must shall be reviewed and approved by the
Board of Commissioners upon the recommendation of the
Planning Commission. A request for a revision of the
Development Plan shall be supported by a written statement as to
why the revisions are necessary.

The Development Plan must shall include what is normally required on
the Concept Plan as well as the following;

a.

d.

A delineation of the business use area and the light
manufacturing/distribution use area, including the acreage within
each area and the 30 foot separation buffer;

A delineation of the internal transportation network, including
roads, multi-use paths, and inter-parcel access/roads as applicable.

Requirements of any overlay zone which is applicable to the
property; and

Indicate and label existing structures to remain.

6-25. Planned Unit Development.

A. Purpose. The intent of this section is to:

1.

Encourage the development of large lots of land as: Planned Residential
Developments (PRD), Planned Industrial Parks (PIP), Planned Retreats or
Lodges (PRL), Planned Entertainment Farming (PEF), ard Planned
Outdoor Recreation (POR), and Planned Small Business Center (PSBC);

6-164





2. Encourage flexible and creative concepts in site planning;

3. Preserve the natural amenities of the land by encouraging scenic and
functional open spaces;

4. Accomplish a more desirable environment than would be possible through
the strict application of minimum requirements of this Ordinance;

5. Provide for an efficient use of land resulting in smaller networks of
utilities and streets and thereby lower development and housing costs; and

6. Provide an environment of stable character compatible with surrounding
areas.

B. Development standards. Each Planned Unit Development shall meet the

following standards in addition to any other as hereinafter set forth:

1. The development shall utilize creative er and flexible design including,
but not limited to, varied lot sizes, amenities, mixed uses, etc.;

2. The development shall be compatible with surrounding uses and with the
Land Use Plan of Fayette County;

3. Paving of roads. Developers of approved Planned Unit Developments
shall be required to pave all new subdivision streets contained within said
development in conformance with the rules and regulations of the
Development Regulations of Fayette County. Improvements to existing
County-maintained roads or planned County roads which pass through a
Planned Unit Development will be handled conditionally at the time of
rezoning or at the time of a revision to a development plan. However, in
any Planned Retreat or Lodge (PRL), the developer shall be required to
provide for all-weather roads, as approved by Public Works, suitable for
the passage of emergency vehicles.

C. Relation to zoning districts. An approved Planned Unit Development shall be
considered to be a separate zoning district in which the development plan, as

6-165






approved, establishes the uses, restrictions and regulations according to which
development shall occur. Upon approval, the zoning map shall be changed to
indicate the area as a Planned Unit Development.

Review-and-Approval Procedures. The following procedures shall be followed in

the establishment of each and every Planned Unit Development:

1.

Pre-Application Conference. Prior to filing a fermal-application rezoning
petition for a Planned Unit Development, the applicant shall meet with the

Zoning Administrator in order to review the general character of the
proposed development, e including, but not limited to: its scope,
nature and location. At this time, the applicant shall be fully advised of
the approval procedures contained herein and the various information,
studies, etc., which the applicant may need in order to continue with the
said procedures.

Pre-Recommendation Meeting(s). Prior to filing a rezoning petition for a
Planned Unit Development and subsequent to the Pre-Application

Conference with the Zoning Administrator _meeting—the—Planning
Commission—for—a—finalapproval, the applicant shall meet with the

Planning Commission in a plan review session(s). At this meeting, the
applicant shall be required to review any plan with the Planning
Commission and provide preliminary data concerning said plan as
required by the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission _may
require additional Pre-Recommendation Meetings to review said
preliminary data prior to their pre-recommendation.

Reeemmenelaneerezonmq Petltlon An—aepheant—eh&“—sub#m{—a—penﬂen

Devele—pment— A rezoning petltlon for a Planned Unlt Development shall

only be submitted subsequent to the Pre-Application Conference with
the Zoning Administrator and the Pre-Recommendation Meeting(s) with
the Planning Commission. This petition shall contain a Development
Plan and a written summary of intent, and shall show the relation between
the proposed development and the surrounding area, both proposed and
existing. A rezoning petition for a Planned Unit Development shall
follow the procedures in Article XI. of this Ordinance.

Development Plan. The following information shall be submitted as the

Development Plan:
6-166





General location map;

Current topographical map clearly showing existing topographic
conditions, including contour intervals of no more than twenty{20}
20 feet based on field survey or photogrammetric methods;

Map showing the existing flood plains and flood soil as indicated
by FEMA;

Existing and proposed land uses in the development site and in
surrounding areas for a distance of one (1) mile, including the
approximate location of all streets;

Legal description of the subject property;

Location and use of existing and proposed public, semi-public, or
community facilities such as schools, parks and other open space.
This will include areas proposed to be deducted or reserved for
community or public use;

Perspective drawings of representative building types for all non-
residential structures which indicate the proposed general
architectural style and appearance; and

If a proposed development creates special problems or involves
unusual circumstances, additional information may be required in
order to properly evaluate the proposal as follows:

1) Off-street parking and loading plan;

2 Economic feasibility report or market analysis;

3) Area traffic study and circulation plan within the
development and to and from existing thoroughfares;

4) Hydraulic, hydrologic; and drainage engineering studies;
ahd

(5) Environmentally _sensitive _areas, including, but not
limited to: watershed protection, wetlands, or
groundwater recharge, impact study

(6) Based on the Pre-Application Meeting with the Zoning
Administrator and/or the Pre-Recommendation
6-167






Meeting(s) with the Planning Commission, Oother
information as is_deemed necessary may be requested, in
addition any of the aforementioned required information
(items a. thru h.) may be excluded if deemed not
applicable.

Summary of Intent. The written statement submitted with the

Development Plan shall include the following information:

a.

Statement of the present ownership of all land within the proposed
development;

Explanation of the character of the proposed development,
including, but not limited to: a summary of uses aeres, number
and type of dwelling units, gress a_net residential density
calculation by-type-of-fand-use, and minimum standards for floor
area, lot size, yard and spacing requirements;

General statement of the proposed development schedule and
progression of unit development or staging; and

Agreements, provisions, and covenants which govern the use,
maintenance, and protection of the development and any common
or open space, including the provisions which will organize,
regulate and sustain the Property Owners Association, where
applicable.

Approval.

After review and public hearing, the Board of Commissioners may
disapprove, approve or approve with modifications the proposed
development after receiving the recommendations of the Zoning
Administrator and Planning Commission.

If the proposed development is approved as submitted, the Zoning
Administrator shall cause the official zoning map to be changed to
indicate the Planned Unit Development. If the plan is approved
with maodifications, the applicant shall file written notice of
consent to the modification and a properly revised Development
Plan with the Zoning Administrator prior to changing the map.
The Development Plan and all other accompanying information
6-168





10.

shall be properly identified and permanently filed with the Zoning
Administrator.

Subdivision Approval.

a. At the option of the applicant, a preliminary subdivision plat may
be filed along with the Development Plan in order that tentative
approval of the subdivision by the Planning Commission may be
granted, pending the approval by the Board of Commissioners of
the Development Plan.

b. In no case shall final subdivision approval precede the approval of
the Development Plan.

C. Site development regulations, specifications, and procedures
governing the platting of a Planned Unit Development and plat
approval shall be in accordance with the Fayette County
Subdivision Regulations and Development Regulations.

Ownership control. At the time a Final Plat is approved and recorded for
a_ ofthe-Planned Unit Development,_as applicable, -has-been-approved-by
the—Planning—Commission,—as—required—by—this—Ordinanee; the land

comprising the area for the Planned Unit Development shall be under one
ownership, i.e., either an individual, a corporation or some other single
legal entity. Individual lots may be sold only after the Final Plat has been
approved and recorded and the deed contains sufficient covenants assuring
the continuance of the Planned Unit Development as originally approved
and developed.

Building _and Occupancy Permits. The Zoning Administrator shall
approve of the issuance of building permits for buildings and structures in
the Planned Unit Development if they are in substantial conformity with
the approved Development Plan, the development schedule, and with all
other applicable regulations. A certificate of occupancy shall be issued for
any completed building or structure if it conforms to the requirements of
the approved Development Plan and all other applicable regulations.

Revision of Development Plan. Any change in the approved Development
Plan, which affects the intent and character of the development, the
density or land use pattern, the approved uses, the location or dimensions
of streets, or similar substantial changes, must shall be reviewed and
approved by the Board of Commissioners upon the recommendation of the
Zoning Administrator _and Planning Commission. A request for a
revision of the Development Plan shall be supported by a written
statement as to why the revisions are necessary or desirable.

6-169






Planned Residential Development.

1.

|o

Purpose. The intent of a Planned Residential Development (PRD) is to
encourage creativity and resourcefulness in residential tard-planning-and
development and to provide open space, parks and recreational facilities
for the residents of the development and/or the general public.

Permitted Residential Uses. Planned Residential Developments may
contain single-family dwellings, two-family dwellings, townhouses, or a

combination thereof. Customary—heme—ocecupations—and Residential
accessory buildings and uses shall also be allowed per Article V.

Permitted Recreational Uses. A list of proposed recreational uses shall
be submitted with the Summary of Intent. Only those uses approved
through the rezoning process shall be allowed in the PRD.

Permitted Incidental Uses. The following incidental uses shall be
allowed in a PRD:

a. Day Care Facility (including an outdoor play area only);

Church and/or other Place of Worship (including a parsonage
and outdoor play area only); and

School, Private (including an outdoor play area but excluding
housing or a stadium).

o

The buffers and setbacks for these uses along the exterior
boundary of the PRD shall be consistent with the applicable
Conditional Use Requirements listed in Article VII.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in
the PRD Zoning District, provided that all conditions specified in Article
VII. Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Conditional Use
Approval are met:

a. Home Occupation;

b. Horse Quarters (see article V. Raising and Keeping Horses in
Residential Districts) ; and

C. Telephone, Electric or_Gas Sub-Station or_other Public_Utility
Facilities.

Minimum Dimensional and Other Requirements. The minimum
6-170






dimensional requirements in the PRD shall be as follows:

a.

Development size: 100 contiguous acres located within the A-R
and/or_residential zoning districts

Each single-family dwelling shall be placed on a separate lot.

Side yard setback:  fifteen(15) 15 feet

Rear yard setback:  thirty(306) 30 feet

Maximum density: ~ four (4) units per acre (single-family
attached); and one (1) unit per acre (single-family detached). For
purposes of this section, density shall be interpreted as the number
of dwelling units per net acre devoted to residential development.

Common Open Space Requirements. Planned Residential Developments

shall meet the following common open space requirements:

a.

C.

A minimum of 2,500 square feet per lot shall be reserved for open
space. The open space shall not be located in the following areas:
street rights-of-way (public or private); all land located within the
100-year flood plain; water impoundments; and all lands proposed
to be dedicated to a governing authority.

The open space shall may be publicly owned, privately owned, or
be deeded to and maintained by the Property Owners Association,
comprised of the residents of the development. When the open
space is to be deeded to the Property Owners Association the
initial owner of the development shall be responsible for the
organization of said association. The organization, responsibilities
and financing of the Property Owners Association shall be
established in appropriate deed covenants, which shall run with the
land and which shall appear in each and every deed of property
given by the initial owner.

Approved recreational uses may be located in the open space.

General Deed Covenants. Appropriate deed covenants, which shall run

with the land, shall be made a part of each deed of property given by the
initial owner of the development in order to ensure the continuance of the
Planned Residential Development in accordance with all approved plans
and this section. A copy of the covenants must shall be given to the
Zoning Administrator as a part of the record of the Planned Residential
Development.

6-171





+
F. Planned Industrial Park.

1. Purpose. The intent of a Planned Industrial Park (PIP) is to encourage the
development of a localized industrial park designed to meet light and
heavy industrial purposes.

2. Permitted Uses. AH Only those uses permitted (Permitted and
Conditional) in the M-1 and M-2 Zoning Districts shall be alowed
proposed for 1 the PIP. Only those uses approved through the rezoning
process will be allowed in the PIP.

3. Minimum Dimensional and Other Requirements.  The minimum

requirements for a PIP shall be as follows:

a. Location: M-1 or M-2 Zoning District

b. The development shall have access and egress only to an Arterial
Thoroughfare.

C. Development size:  ten (10) acres

d. Front, side, and rear yard setbacks along the exterior boundaries of

the development shall be consistent with either the M-1 or M-2
Zoning District, whichever is applicable.

e. Height limit:  thirty-five (35) 35 feet

G. Planned Retreat or Lodge.

1.

Purpose. The intent of a Planned Retreat or Lodge (PRL) is to provide a
development exclusively designed to accommodate the assembly of a
group or organization whereby food and lodging may be furnished for a
definite and temporary period.

Permitted Uses. AH Only those uses (Permitted and Conditional) allowed
6-172






in the A-R Zoning District shall be alewed proposed for # a PRL. Only
those uses approved through the rezoning process will be allowed in the
PRL.

3. Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in
the PUD-PRL Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in
Article VII. Conditional _Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications,
Conditional Use Approval are met:

Home Occupation; and
Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility
Facilities.
4, Minimum Dimensional and Other Requirements.  The minimum
requirements for a PRL shall be as follows:
a. Location: A-R Zoning District
b. Development size:  fifty(56) 50 contiguous acres
C. Maximum density:  one (1) unit for each ten (10) acres of the
development
d. Each structure whose principal purpose is to provide housing shall
have access to a street maintained by the County. Said access shall
have a minimum width of sixty(606) 60 feet.
e. No structure shall be permitted within 150 feet of the right-of-way
of any abutting street maintained by the County.
f. A buffer zone of 150 feet shall be provided around the periphery of
the development.
g. Height limit:  thirty-five(35) 35 feet
H. Planned Entertainment Farming.
1. Purpose. To allow certain incidental uses to an active farming operation

to preserve agricultural areas. An active farming operation is defined as
any area of 100 or more contiguous acres from which $10,000 or more of
agricultural products are grown and sold on an annual basis. Income
verification may be required. Agricultural products are defined here as the
growing of annual crops, the raising of livestock and/or horses, and dairy
farming.

6-173





Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in a PEF:

a.

Single-family dwelling and accessory uses and structures
associated with the single-family dwelling exclusively as per
Seetion-5-10-Article V;

Farm buildings (must shall be bonafide structures related to the
farming operation);

Growing of crops;

Raising and selling livestock;
Dairy farm and production;
Greenhouses and Shrubbery sales;

Farmer's market (limited to sales of crops grown on premises by
owner of property);

Pick-your-own produce;

Processing of agricultural products (must shall meet Conditional
Use requirements per the A-R Zoning District);

Horse stables and Horseback riding;

Horse show (by permit, temporary, fourteen [14] days per year);
Rodeo (by permit, temporary, fourteen [14] days per year);
Petting zoo;

Educational tours;

Pienicking Picnic Area,

Sit down restaurant, Banquet facility, Bakery and Catering (no
drive-thru, and ne selling of alcoholic beverages, shall be

permitted prohibited) (minimum seating capacity of fifty-J56} 50
persons);
Gift shop in association with Restaurant only; and

6-174





|0

r. Pay fishing and bait sales in association with pay fishing.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Use shall be allowed in
the PUD-PEF Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in
Article VII. Conditional _Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications,
Conditional Use Approval are met:

Home Occupation; and

Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility
Facilities.

Minimum Dimensional and Other Requirements. The minimum
requirements for PEF shall be as follows:

a. Location: A-R Zoning District

b. Development size: 100 contiguous acres

C. Single-family dwellings and those accessory uses and structures
associated with the single-family dwelling shall meet those

requirements established within the A-R Zoning District.

d. All other non-residential structures shall meet the following
setbacks:

1) Frontyard: 200 feet
2 Rear yard: 100 feet
3) Side yard: 100 feet

e. A Site Plan is required indicating the location of all
structures/activities.

f. All parking and access areas must shall be paved and landscaped
per the Development Regulations.

g. All service areas shall be screened per Sections—5-18-and-5-19
Article V. herein.

h. All parking and service areas must shall be to the rear of any
restaurant building.

i. Only structures whose principal purpose is for the storage of farm
6-175





equipment and/or animals shal may have a metal facade. All other
structures shall have a non-metallic facade.

J. Must Shall comply with all County, (including Fire Marshal),

State and Federal requirements.

1. Planned Outdoor Recreation.

1.

3.

Purpose. The intent of a Planned Outdoor Recreation Development (POR)
is to provide the residents of Fayette County adequate recreational
opportunities outside of existing public facilities, parks, private recreation
and amenity areas.

Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in a POR:

a. Outdoor Athletic Fields;
b. Outdoor Athletic Courts;
C. Accessory Uses:
1) Picnic and Playground Areas;
(2) Concession Facilities;
3) Press Box Facilities;
4) Restroom Facilities;
(5) Maintenance and/or Equipment Facilities;
(6) Ticket Sales Facilities;
(7) Bleachers;
(8) Dugouts;
9) Lights; and
(10)  Scoreboards.

Prohibited Uses. The following uses shall be prohibited in a POR:

a. Motorized or other Wheeled Vehicle Sports;

6-176





[~

b. Swimming Pools and Water related activities;

C. Archery;

d. Firearms and Target Range;

e. Explosives and Fireworks;

f. Paintball and similar activities; and
g. Amusement Park activities and rides.

Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Use shall be allowed in
the PUD-POR Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in
Article VII. Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications,
Conditional Use Approval are met:

Telephone, Electric or Gas Sub-Station or other Public Utility Facilities.

Minimum Dimensional and Other Requirements. The minimum
requirements for a POR shall be as follows:

a. Development size:  fifty(50) 50 contiguous acres

b. The development shall have ingress and egress only to an Arterial
Thoroughfare as designated by the Fayette County Thoroughfare
Plan.

C. Maximum number of outdoor athletic fields and/or courts: eight
(8)

d. Setbacks:

1) No Permitted Uses shall be allowed within 100 feet of the
right-of-way.

(2 No Permitted Uses shall be allowed within 500 feet from
any A-R or residential zoning district.

3) No Permitted Uses shall be allowed within fifty(50} 50 feet
from any non-residential zoning district.
e. A buffer of 100 feet plus the required setbacks shall separate all
Permitted Uses from any A-R or residential zoning district. Off-
street parking areas may be located within the setback areas.

6-177





|~

f. Landscaping and buffer areas shall be planted in accordance with
the Development Regulations.

g. Paved access and paved parking shall be provided as follows:
1) Forty-{40) 40 spaces per outdoor athletic field; and
(2) Ten (10) spaces per outdoor athletic court.

h. Hours of operation are to be determined at the time of development
plan approval. No play permitted after 10:00 P.M.

I. Lights must shall be established in such a way that adjacent
properties and residents are not adversely affected, and that no
direct light is cast upon said properties and residents. No lighting
permitted after 10:30 P.M.

J. Adequate trash receptacles and grounds maintenance must shall be
provided to maintain a litter free recreation area. Dumpsters must
shall be screened on all sides.

K. Outside loudspeaker system use permitted until 10:00 P.M.

l. Height limit: thirty-five(35) 35 feet, with the exception of lights.

Planned Small Business Center

1.

[N

|0

Purpose. The intent of the Planned Small Business Center is to provide a
business incubator center through a planned, mixed-use nonresidential
development consisting primarily of a mix of office uses, service uses, and light
industrial uses, with limited small scale commercial uses as appropriate for the
area. A PUD-PSBC will allow innovative and creative design and promote high
standards in the development layout.

Uses: Only those uses (Permitted and Conditional) allowed in the O-1, C-C, C-
H, and M-1 zoning districts shall be proposed for the PUD-PSBC. Only those
uses approved through the rezoning process shall be allowed.

Minimum Dimensional and Other Requirements.

Minimum Lot Size: Minimum of ten (10) acres.

The proposed site shall be permitted only on a lot which fronts on and
accesses a_Major_Thoroughfare, as specified by the Fayette County
Thoroughfare Plan.

= |

6-178





o

=

e.

f.

Front, side, and rear yard setbacks and buffers along the exterior
boundaries of the development shall be consistent with either the O-I,
C-C, C-H, or M-1 Zoning District, as applicable to the use.

The Development Plan shall indicate the different use areas for the
proposed development. Appropriate separation, buffering, and vehicular
circulation between uses internal to the development shall be established
to alleviate incompatibility and protect public safety.

Location: Only those areas indicated in the Fayette County

Comprehensive Plan shall be given consideration for PUD-PSBC.

Height limit: 35 feet

(ALL of the following has been moved to the beginning of this section)






6-180










7-182





ARTICLE VII. CONDITIONAL USES, EXCEPHONS-AND-MODHHCATHONS,

NONCONFORMANCES, TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR OVERLAY ZONE, AND

7-1.

COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Conditional Use Approval. Conditional Uses include certain uses which are allowed in
a particular zoning district provided that all conditions specified under the Zoning
Ordinance are met. The Zoning Administrator shall issue a Conditional Use Permit for
each use listed below upon compliance with all specified conditions and approvals by
the appropriate County officials.

A Special Regulations. Prior to the issuance of development and/or building
permits, a Site Plan must shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator and
approved by the appropriate—County—officials applicable departments. This
requirement shall apply to all Conditional Uses allowed within the various
zoning districts except for: farm outbuildings, home occupations, single-family
residences, and temporary meetings and/or events which are conducted no longer

than fourteen-{14) 14 calendar days per year.

B. Conditional Uses Allowed:

1. Adult Day Care Facility. (Allowed in the C-C, C-H, and O-1 Zoning
Districts and_Church or_Other Place of Worship (see Article VII.)
(Adopted 06/28/07)

a. The facility shall comply with all licensing requirements of
the State of Georgia. (Adopted 06/28/07)

b. The hours of operation shall be limited to: 6:00 a.m. to
10:00 p.m. (Adopted 06/28/07)

2. Aircraft Landing Area. (Allowed in the A-R, M-1, and M-2 Zoning
Districts) The intent of these rules and requlations is to provide a safer
environment for the operation of aircraft.

a. F.A.A. Air_Space Clearance approval for visual flying flight
operations and landing areas is shall be required, where applicable.

b. For any newly developed landing area for fixed wing aircraft, a
1,000 foot clear zone as defined by the F.A.A. extending from the
end of all runways shall be maintained through ownership or
easement, and in no case shall the end of a runway be closer than

200 feet from adjeining-properties the property line.

7-183





C. Any newly developed landing area for fixed wing aircraft shall
be located at least 300 feet, as measured from the centerline of the

runway, from any-centigueus all property lines.

d. Any on-site roofed structure shall be setback at least 200 feet
from the nearest point on the centerline of the runway.

Heliport. (These requlations shall not apply to a hospital which
maintains a heliport for medical purposes.)

|

Q) F.A.A. Air_Space Clearance approval for visual flying
flight operations and landing areas shall be required,
where applicable.

(2)  ASite Plan, prepared by a Registered Surveyor, indicating
the heliport landing area and center point on the lot and
setbacks shall be required. The center point of the
heliport landing area shall be indicated on the lot.

3) A heliport shall be a minimum of 300 feet from all
property lines as measured from the center point of the
heliport landing area.

Add in Its Entirety 11/14/02:
Aircraft Hangar. Defined-asafuly-enclosed-structure-with-operational

needed-forthe operation-and-maintenance of the-aircraft. (Allowed in the
A-R, M-1 and M-2 Zoning Districts)

1. An Aircraft Hangar must shall comply with all of the above
criteria of Seection7-1-B-1- Article VII, Aircraft Landing Area.

2. Use of an Aircraft Hangar shall be limited to storage and
maintenance of aircraft. Outdoor storage of aircraft parts is
prohibited. An Aircraft Hangar shall not include any living
quarters or be used for residential purposes.

3. In the A-R zoning district, on lots of less than ten (10) acres in
size, there shall be a maximum of one (1) detached hangar
allowed.

4. In the A-R zoning district, no trade or business of any kind shall be

conducted from an Aircraft Hangar.

5. In the A-R zoning district, a detached aircraft hangar shall be
subject to the following:

a. A detached hangar is an accessory structure which shall

7-184





require a building permit, and shall comply with minimum
building setbacks.

b. A detached hangar shall not be constructed prior to
construction of the single-family dwelling.

C. A detached hangar shall be located to the side or rear of the
principal dwelling.

d. A detached hangar shall not exceed 5,000 square feet in
size including workshop, restroom, and storage areas.

4, Amphitheater, Outdoor. (Allowed C-H and M-1 Zoning Districts)

a. Hours of operation shall be limited to between the hours
of 12:00 noon and 9:00 p.m. weekdays and 10:00 p.m. weekends
(see Fayette County Code, Offenses and Miscellaneous
Provisions and Noise Control.)

b. The out door_amphitheater shall not be located closer
than 300 feet from any A-R or residentially zoned property.

5. Animal Hospital, Kennel (Commercial or Non-Commercial), and/or
Veterinary Clinic. (Allowed in A-R, C-C, C-H, and M-1 Zoning
Districts):

All structures, pens, runs, or enclosures shall not be located closer than
300 feet from any A-R or residential zoning district.

6. Animal Hospital and/or Veterinary Clinic (excludes commercial and non-
commercial kennel) (Allowed in O-1 Zoning District):

All structures shall not be located closer than 55 feet (30 foot buffer and
25 foot setback) from any A-R or residential zoning district. No outside
activity (runs, pens, or enclosures) or boarding is allowed except during
the convalescence period. (Amended 10/22/98)

7. Sales—and/or—Repairs—of Automobile, Truck, Farm Equipment, or
Motorcycle. Sales and Incidental Repairs. (Allowed in C-H Zoning
District). (Amended 04/28/05)

1. All Automobile, Truck, Farm Equipment, or Motorcycle Sales
facilities shall comply with the following conditions: (Adopted
04/28/05)

7-185





a. All activities except sales shall be conducted indoors.
b. No outside storage of equipment or parts shall be permitted.
C. No external loud-speakers allowed. (Adopted 04/28/05)

2. A full range of repairs shall be allowed incidental to a sales use

and those repairs that are not listed as a permitted use in the C-H

Zoning District, shall comply with the following: AH—repair

facilities either incidental to a sales use or as a principal use and
listed tiod i 1 ! istrict_shall
comphywith-the-follewing-conditions: (Adopted 04/28/05)

a.

f.

All repair activities shall be conducted indoors. (Adopted
04/28/05)

No outside storage of equipment or parts shall be permitted.
(Adopted 04/28/05)

All overhead doors must shall face the side and/or rear yard
or be screened from view from the street per Article V.
General Provisions, Seetion5-19: Screening Standards of
the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance or utilizing
vegetative materials. (Adopted 04/28/05)

All wrecked vehicles stored for repair must shall be
screened per in_accordance with Article V. General
Provisions, Seection—5-30: Outside Storage ef-theFayette

County-Zoning-Ordinance. (Adopted 04/28/05)

Facilities located adjacent to a residentially zoned area shall
not operate between the hours of 7:00 pm and 7:00 am.
(Adopted 04/28/05)

No external loud-speakers allowed. (Adopted 04/28/05)

Automobile Service Station, including gasoline sales and/or_inside or
outside emission testing, in conjunction with a Convenience Store.

(Allowed in C-C and C-H Zoning Districts)

a. Service areas, facilities, and gasoline pump islands shall not be
located closer than seventy-five{(#5) 75 feet from a residential or
A-R Zoning District.

7-186





Gasoline pump islands, air and water hoses, and vacuum cleaners
shall be set back the following distances from street rights-of-way:

1) Major thoroughfare:

Q) Acrterial: thirty-five(35) 35 feet
(i)  Collector: thirty-(306) 30 feet

(2) Minor thoroughfare: twenty-five-(25) 25 feet

Canopies shall extend no closer than fifteen{15) 15 feet from any
street right-of-way.

Underground storage tanks shall be set back no closer than twenty
£20) 20 feet from all property lines.

A dynamometer shall not be utilized in conjunction with outside
emission testing.

X. Aviary. (Allowed in the A-R Zoning District)

a.

Shall be licensed through the Georgia Department of
Agriculture.

Shall be limited to residents of the dwelling with no outside
employment.

A farm outbuilding shall house the aviary and shall be exempt
from_architectural standards. A farm outbuilding shall be
located in the side or rear vard of the principal structure and
comply with the required setbacks.

9. Campground Facilities. (Allowed in the &-& C-H Zoning District)

a.

Campsites shall be utilized by Recreational Vehicles (as defined
herein) and by tents (normally associated with outdoor camping),
but not by manufactured housing (as defined herein).

Fhe—campground Each campsite shall be utilized for short-term
occupancy effifteen{15) not to exceed 15 calendar days-orless,
provided; however, that the property owner or resident manager
may permanently occupy one (1) single-family dwelling.

7-187





Satd-uses Campground facilities shall be permitted only on a lot

which pessesses—atteast-sixty{(60)feet-of frontages on a Major
Thoroughfare (as defined by the Fayette County Thoroughfare

Plan).

The lot area shall be at least ten (10) acres.

The maximum density shall not exceed four (4) campsites per
gross acre.

A minimum f#ty—506) 50 foot planted buffer plus all required
setbacks shall be established around the perimeter of the entire
development.  Buffer areas shall be continuous except for

approved access, utility easements, and signs (pursuant-to-the see
Sign Ordinance).

Minimum setbacks for structures and use areas (including
campsites) as measured from required buffers:

Q) Frontyard:  seventy-five{(#5) 75 feet
(2) Side yard: twenty-five(25) 25 feet
(3) Rear yard: twenty-five(25) 25 feet

At least ten (10) percent of the gross acreage shall be reserved for
recreational areas.

Accessory uses shall be allowed provided that the following
requirements are met:

1) Such uses and structures shall be restricted to the use of
occupants of the park and their gguests;

(2 All structures and use areas shall meet the minimum buffer
and setback requirements found in subsections f. and g.,
above.

3) Such uses and structures shall be limited to the following:
rental offices; shower and restroom facilities; coin-operated
laundry facilities; convenience stores; and snack bars.

4) Total floor area for all structures listed in paragraph (3),
above, shall not exceed 3,000 square feet.

7-188





10.

J-

(5)  The sale of alcoholic beverages and/or automotive gasoline
shall be prohibited.

The Site Plan for the proposed campground (including all
accessory structures) shall be approved by the Fayette County
Environmental Health Department.

Care Home, Convalescent Center and/or Nursing Home. (Allowed in the

C-C, C-H, and O-1 Zoning Districts)

a.

b.

Minimum lot size:  three (3) acres

Such uses shall be permitted only on a lot which fronts on an
Axterial Major Thoroughfare unless such use is part of a planned
development which has access to an Arterial Major Thoroughfare.

A minimum fifty(50) 50 foot buffer plus the required setbacks
shall separate all buildings from any residential or A-R Zoning
District. The setback shall be measured from the buffer.

Minimum setbacks:

Q) Frontyard: 100 feet

2 Side yard: Fifty(50) 50 feet
3) Rear yard: fifty(50) 50 feet

The facility shall comply with all licensing requirements of the
State of Georgia.

Rooms and/or suites may be designed for housekeeping purposes;
however, a central Kitchen, central dining facilities to
accommodate _a minimum_of 50 percent of the residential
capacity at one (1) seating, and central recreational facilities shall
be provided. (Amended 12/15/05)

Servi | facilitios shall be Lol I 0§

o o fifey 160
shall-be-a buffer).

Fwenty-four—24) 24 hour staff shall be required.  (Adopted
12/15/05)

7-189





11.

All Hving-faetities rooms and/or suites must shall be connected to

the aforementioned central facilities through internal passageways
(i.e. hallways, corridors, etc.) (Adopted 12/15/05)

Cemetery and-Mauseleum. (Human or Pet) (Allowed in A-R and C-H

Zoning Districts_and a Human Cemetery is allowed in_conjunction with
a Church or Other Place of Worship (see Article VI11.)

a.

=

Human Cemetery

1) Minimum lot area shall be ten (10) acres for—a
human cemetery and five (5) acres for a pet cemetery.

@) A crematorium or_mausoleum shall be allowed
only in conjunction with a cemetery eraauseleum.

3) Grave sites shall be set back at least fifty«{(50) 50
feet from all property lines.

4) No—structure A _crematorium eother—than—grave
markers shall be lecated-within set back 350 300 feet from

all property lines ef-a-residential-or-A-R-Zoning-District.

(5) A twenty—20) 20 foot buffer shall be provided in
addition to required setbacks along all property lines which
adjoin A-R or residential zoning districts. The setback
shall be measured from the buffer.

Pet Cemetery

(1)  Minimum lot area shall be five (5) acres.

(2)  The remains of only one (1) pet shall be buried in a single
gravesite and shall not be stacked one (1) above another.

(3)  The remains shall be a minimum of three (3) feet below
the grade.

(4)  Cemetery plots shall be of sufficient size to provide for a
minimum one (1) foot undisturbed area between graves.

(5)  The owner/operator shall maintain and post a copy of the

Cemetery Rules and Regulations and a current burial plot
diagram at all times.

7-190





12.

13.

(6) A pet cemetery shall be maintained in perpetuity via deed
restrictions.

Charter and/or Motor Coach Bus Service. (Allowed in C-H Zoning

District

a.

b.

c.

e.

All buses shall be parked to the rear of the principal structure.

All buses shall be screened in accordance with Article V. General
Provisions, Outside Storage.

Overhead bay doors shall not be open to the street.

The following uses shall be allowed: Administrative office,
passenger pickup, and storage of buses.

On-site maintenance/repairs are prohibited.

ChurchFemple; or Other Place of Worship. (Allowed in O-I, A-R, and

residential R-85, R-80, R-78, R-75, R-72, R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40,
R-20, and DR-15 Zoning Districts)

a.

The lot area shall be at least five (5) acres, and the lot width at the
building line shall be at least 400 feet.

Such uses shall be permitted only on a lot which fronts on and
accesses a Major Thoroughfare as specified by the Fayette County
Thoroughfare Plan.

"“"“”"HI'I“I"'.?l.(gg) Ieelt buffer p""? the-required Isetb_ael ks-shall

A _minimum 50 foot buffer plus the required
setbacks listed below shall separate all buildings and use areas
from_any residential or A-R Zoning District. The setback shall
be measured from the buffer. However, off-street parking areas
and an unlit tot lot with a maximum size of 2,400 square feet may
be located within the setback areas.

Minimum setbacks for structures and use areas (excluding parking
areas and tot lots as defined herein.)

(1) Frontyard: 100 feet
2 Side yard: Fifty(50) 50 feet

7-191





3) Rearyard:  seventy-five{(#5) 75 feet

Uses and/or structures incidental to a church sueh—as shall be
limited to: a private school, parsonage, gymnasium, playground,
tot lot, and/or athletic field,_day care facility, adult day care
facility, administration, human_cemetery (provided that all
requirements for a Cemetery herein are met), broadcast facility,
including a tower (see Article V), and seasonal sales (see Article
VII. Seasonal Sales as Outdoor Displays) shall be allowed
provided all buildings and use areas meet the minimum setback
and buffer requirements—speeified—in—subsections—8-c—and-—8-d-
above.  Outdoor lighting for recreation purposes shall be
prohibited.

Day Care facilities shall be allowed provided that all requirements
for day care facilities herein are met (see Article VII. Day Care
Facility /Nursery School.)

Adult Day Care facilities shall be allowed provided that all
requirements for adult day care facilities herein are met (see
Article VII. Adult Day Care Facility.) (Adopted 06/28/07)

Landscape areas shall be required in accordance with the
Development Regulations. Tot lots, as defined herein, shall be
planted in accordance with the Development Regulations along the
side(s) closest to or adjoining the buffer.

All buildings, other than storage buildings, shall maintain a
decorative facing on those portions of the building which face
public streets and any property zoned residential or agricultural-
residential. The decorative facing shall consist of brick, stone,
stucco, wood, or similar building materials compatible with the
area.

Accessory structures _such as a storage building, detached
garage, pavilion, and/or pool shall comply with the buffer and/or
setback requirements and shall be located to the side/rear of the
main sanctuary building.

The construction of one (1) open air pavilion ever-900-square-feet

utilized for picnics/social gatherings only is allowed under the
following conditions:

| | | " - :

actes;

7-192





14.

| i | I 150 feet f
1) The pavilion must shall be constructed following the

construction of the main sanctuary building;

(2) The floor area eannet shall not exceed twenty—(20) 40
percent of the square footage of the main sanctuary
building; and

3) The pavilion may not be lighted or used after 10:00 p.m.
If the open air pavilion is built in conjunction with an attached

storage building, the overall square footage shall not exceed twenty
£20) 40 percent of the main sanctuary building square footage.

College and/or University, including, but not limited to: classrooms,

administration, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium.

(Allowed in the A-R, BTP,_O-l, C-C, and C-H Zoning Districts)

(Amended 08/27/09)

a. The lot area shall be at least ten (10) acres.

b. Such use shall be permitted only on a lot which fronts on a Major
Thoroughfare as specified by the Fayette County Thoroughfare
Plan.

c - : :
“ “'“'”"HI'I“I“'.?l.(%) Ieelt Bufie plusﬁ the |es|u||eel_ lsetb_aleles sAal
Zoning-District: If the side or rear yard abuts a residential or A-
R Zoning District, @ minimum 50 foot buffer shall be provided
adjacent to the lot line.

d. Minimum setbacks for structures and use areas (excluding parking

areas) are as follows and shall be measured from the buffer, if
applicable:

1) Frontyard: 100 feet

(2 Side yard: fifty(50) 50 feet

3) Rear yard: 100 75 feet

7-193





15.

16.

Uses and/or structures incidental to colleges and universities such
as a gymnasium, dormitory, fraternity, sorority, and/or athletic
field shall be allowed, provided; all buildings and use areas meet
the minimum setback and buffer requirements specified—n
subsections 10.¢. and 10.d., above.

All buildings, other than storage buildings, shall maintain_a
decorative facing on those portions of the building which face
public streets and any property zoned residential or agricultural-
residential. The decorative facing shall consist of brick, stone,
stucco, wood, or similar building materials compatible with the
area.

Accessory structures _such as a storage building, detached
garage, pavilion, and/or pool shall comply with the buffer and/or
setback reqguirements and shall be located to the side/rear of the
main building.

Commercial Driving Range and Related Accessories. Related Accessories

limited to: Putting green, chipping green, sand traps, artificial/natural
surface, bunkers, pro shop, and snack bar. (Allowed in C-C, C-H, and A-
R Zoning Districts)

a.

d.

All structures, greens, fairways, and parking areas shall be set back
at least 100 feet from any A-R or residential zoning district.

All greens, fairways, and driving areas shall be set back at least
Fifty(50) 50 feet from any non-residential zoning district.

Said facilities shall be for daytime use only, except that lighting
may be provided for facilities which are located more than 350 feet
from a single-family or multi-family residence, provided that
lighting is not directly visible from said residence(s).

No outside loudspeaker system shall be utilized.

Convenience Commercial Establishment.  Facility is limited to the sale

of prepackaged food products, gasoline, household items, newspapers,
magazines, sandwiches and other freshly-prepared foods for off-site
consumption. (Allowed in the L-C Zoning District)

a.

b.

Maximum floor area: 3,500 square feet

Accessory structures, including service area canopies used in
conjunction with the sale of gasoline, shall maintain the same
7-194





17.

9.

architectural character of the principal structure including the
pitched roof, and must shall be constructed of the same materials
or materials which simulate same. An elevation drawing denoting
compliance with this requirement must shall be submitted as part
of the Site Plan.

Gasoline pumps, air hoses, and water hoses shall be setback as
follows:

1) Major thoroughfare:

Q) Acrterial: fifty(50) 50 feet

(i)  Collector: forty-five(45) 45 feet
(@) Minor thoroughfare: ferty-{40) 40 feet

Canopies used in conjunction with the sale of gasoline shall extend
no closer than thirty-five{35) 35 feet from any street right-of-way.

Motor vehicle vacuum cleaners shall be located to the side or rear
of the principal structure.

Underground storage tanks shall be set back at least twenty-(20) 20
feet from all property lines.

The number of gasoline pumps shall be limited to no more than
six (6) or a total of 12 pumping stations.

Day Care Facility (Nursery School erKindergarten). (Allowed in C-C, C-

H, O-1, arnd A-R,_and MHP Zoning Districts_and Church or Other Place
of Worship (see Article VI1.)

a.

A day care facility may be approved as long as it maintains active
certification from the Georgia Department of Human Resources.
Should the State certifications lapse or be revoked, the Conditional
Use permit shall be null and void.

A preliminary license report from the Georgia Department of
Human Resources shall accompany the application for a
Conditional Use Permit.

Outdoor play areas shall be located to the side or rear of the
principal building.

7-195





18.

At least 100 square feet of outdoor play area shall be provided for
each child during the period of maximum attendance.

A fence measuring at least four (4) feet in height shall enclose the
entire play area.

If the side or rear yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District, a
minimum fifty-(56) 50 foot buffer shall be provided adjacent to the
lot line. The side vard setback shall be 50 feet. The rear yard
setback shall be 75 feet. The setback shall be measured from the
buffer.

Sle' ueel areas IaFe|I|tF|es and p'.a? gro HI"dS areas shall-not-be Ie'eated

If adjoining a residential or A-R Zoning District, the hours of
operation shall be limited to: Monday through Saturday from 6:00
a.m. to 7:00 p.m., except that all exterior activities shall only occur
from 9:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.

A convenient vehicle drop-off area shall be provided, permitting
vehicles to re-enter the public street in a forward manner.

Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas.  (Allowed in

subdivisions in the A-R and-residential EST, R-85, R-80, R-78, R-75, R-
72, R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, DR-15, and C-S zoning districts,

with Final Plat approval.)

a.

b.

Lot area: Per zoning district

Said area must shall be shown on the Preliminary and Final Plats
and labeled as follows: "Not a residential building lot, for
recreational purposes only."

Landscape and buffer areas shall be planted in accordance with the
Development Regulations.

In addition to the required landscape areas, a six (6) foot landscape
or buffer area shall be required along the rear property line where
adjacent to an A-R or residential zoning district.

Paved parking area is required per the Development Regulations.
No activity and lighting permitted after 10:00 p.m.

(Amended 07/28/05)
7-196





19.

20.

21,

The construction of one (1) open air pavilion up to 900 square feet
utilized for picnics and social gatherings. (Adopted 07/28/05)

Dry Cleaning Plant. (Allowed in the C-C and C-H Zoning Districts)

a.

Dry cleaning plants using cleaning systems which make use of
solvents rated at above ferty—(40) 40 by the Underwriter's
Laboratories, Inc. Standard of Classification known as Class |
Systems shall be prohibited:;

Dry cleaning plants which use cleaning systems which make use of
solvents rated at more than five (5) but not less than forty{40) 40
according to the Underwriter's Laboratories, Inc. Standard
Classification, known as Class Il and Class Il Systems, shall-net
be established in a building with other occupancy shall meet all

requirement of the National Fire Safety Association Code;

The building for a dry cleaning plant shall not contain more than
4,000 square feet of floor area inclusive of dry cleaning pickup
facility within the building;

Fuel for operation of the equipment shall be smokeless fuel; and

Central water and central sanitary sewage systems are required.
This_shall not apply to recyclable hydrocarbon or silicone dry
cleaning _machinery that does not discharge water into the
central sanitary sewage system.

Experimental Labs. (Allowed in the C-H, M-1 and M-2 Zoning Districts)

a.

Minimum lot area: three (3) acres if use is hazardous as defined by
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

Said use must shall comply with all applicable State and/or Federal
licensing requirements.

Farm Outbuildings, including Horse Stables and Commercial

Greenhouses. (Allowed in the A-R Zoning District) (Amended 04/09/98)

a.

Farm Outbuilding. All structures permitted in this category must
shall be benafide structures related to the a bonafide farming
operation_and shall be utilized as a barn for_livestock, storing
farm_equipment, and any other agricultural purposes. Farm

7-197





22,

23.

Outbuildings shall be exempt from architectural standards.
(Amended 04/09/98)

b. Commercial Greenhouses.  All structures permitted in this
category must shall be benafide structures related to the a
bonafide cultivation or pretection  production of landscape
planting materials. Commercial Greenhouses shall be exempt
from architectural standards. (Added 04/09/98)

Horse Stables. All structures permitted in this cateqory shall be
related to the bonafide shelter and/or boarding of horses. Riding
lessons and boarding shall be permitted; however, a Site Plan
shall be required for these uses. Horse Stables are exempt from
architectural standards (see Article V.)

o

ed. Farm size over ten (10) acres, no restriction of size of Farm
Outbuildings, ard Commercial Greenhouses, and Horse Stables.
(Amended 06/25/98)

eg-e, Farm size five (5) to ten (10) acres, one (1) detached Farm
Outbuilding, e+ Commercial Greenhouse, or Horse Stable
consisting of a maximum of 1,800 square feet in size.  (Added
06/25/98)

Farm Outbuildings,_Horse Stables, and Commercial Greenhouses may
have plumbing and electricity, but shall not be used for residential

purposes. A farm outbuilding may be used as a barn for horses and/or

Farm Outbuildings, Horse Stables, and Commercial Greenhouses shall
not be located within 100 feet of the main principal residential structure or
connected to any structures on site. Farm Outbuildings, Horse Stables,
and/or _Commercial _Greenhouses _may be constructed prior to the
principal residential structure. (Added 06/25/98)

Feed Lot and/or Commercial Barn. Barns and feed lots must shall be
located at least 100 feet from all property lines.  (Allowed in the M-1
Zoning District).

Golf Course (minimum eighteen [18]-hole requlation) and Related

Accessories. Related accessories are limited to: putting green, chipping
green, sandtrap, artificial/natural surface, bunker, clubhouse, pro shop, and
7-198





24,

25.

snack bar.  (Allowed in the C-C, C-H, and A-R, and—ESTF Zoning
Districts).

(Amended 04/09/98)

a. Said facilities shall be for daytime use only.

b. All structures, greens, and fairways shall be set back at least 100
feet from any property line.

C. No outside loudspeaker systems shall be utilized.

Heavy manufacturing, packaging, processing or handling of materials.
(Allowed in the M-2 Zoning District).

Any uses such as the manufacturing of corrosive acids, bone distillation,
drop forge industry, fat rendering, fertilizer manufacturing, organic
material reduction, meat processing plants, and similar operations which
produce noise, odors, dust, fumes, fire hazards, or other nuisance features
shall be set back no less than 500 feet from any property line.

Home Occupation. (Allowed in A-R, residential EST, C-S, R-85, R-80,
R-78, R-75, R-72, R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, DR-15, RMF,
MHP, PUD-PRD, PUD-PRL, PUD-PEF, O-l, C-C, C-H, M-1, M-2, and

BTP Zoning Districts) and-the-folowing-honresidential-zoning-districts:

O+ C-CC-H—M-1—and-M-23{SeeSingle-Famihy—Residence—dnder
Seetion—7-1-B The intent of these rules and requlations is to protect

the health, safety and welfare of the general public and ensure that
home occupations are requlated in a manner so they do not adversely
impact surrounding residential properties, as residential areas and uses
are normally separated from non-residential areas and uses. (Amended
10/23/08)

a. Residents. Only residents of the dwelling may be engaged in the
home occupation within the dwelling.  All _non-resident
individuals, including employees, contractors, or part owners,
associated with the home occupation shall not be engaged in the
home occupation within the dwelling or on the premises.

b. Incidental Use. The home occupation shall be clearly incidental to
the residential use of the dwelling and shall not change the
essential residential character of the building.

C. Display, Sale. No display of products shall be visible from the
street, and only products produced on the premises may be sold on

the premises, except that bonafide agricultural products grown on
7-199





|

the—premises 'l“&y be—displayed—in—an—Agrcultural-Residential

Customers. _The number _of customers shall not exceed more
than two (2) at a time nor more than a total of 12 customers in
any one (1) day and all services rendered to customers shall
take place only within the dwelling. The hours of operation shall
be limited to 9:00 am to 9:00 pm.

Area. Use of the buiding dwelling for this the purpose of the
home occupation shall not exceed a_total of thirty-five(35) 25
percent of the principal building.

Number. No more than four (4) home occupations may be
issued per dwelling and the cumulative area devoted to the home
occupations shall not exceed 25 percent of the dwelling.

Alterations. No internal or external alterations inconsistent with
the residential use of the building shall be permitted.

Accessory Buildings. No accessory buildings or outside storage
shall be used, except as otherwise provided herein.

Music —ete- Lessons and/or Tutoring. astructions—+a-music-and
stmHarsubjeets Lessons and/or Tutoring shall include, but not
limited to: music, dance, computer, martial arts, academic, and
speech therapy and shall be limited to two (2) students at a time
nor more than a total of 12 students in any one (1) day and such
lessons_and/or_tutoring shall take place in the dwelling. The
hours of operation shall be limited to 9:00 am to 9:00 pm.

Daycare, Child/Adult: Daycare shall be limited to no more than
three (3) children or three (3) adults at any time.

Vehicles. Only customary passenger vehicles, vans and pick-up
trucks shall be permitted to remain on the premises in association
with a home occupation. Said vehicles cannot exceed two (2)
axles, 22 feet in length, 10 feet in height, and/or 8,000 pounds
(curb weight). No tow and/or rollback trucks shall be allowed to
remain on the premises. A trailer used in association with the
home occupation shall be permitted to remain on the premises.
The aforementioned vehicles or trailer used in association with
the home occupation may be stored in a detached garage.

7-200





26.

27.

Uses. The following and similar uses shall not be considered home
occupations: automobile service station; automobile and related
machine vehicular sales lot on-premise; on-premise automobile,
motorcycle, and/or_farm/heavy construction eguipment repair or
service/maintenance; ambulance service; beauty salon, barber
shop, rescue squad; on-premise amusement or recreational
activities (commercial); animal hospital; commercial kennel,
veterinarian clinic er with or without animal boarding place; pawn
shops; acid storage and manufacturing; heavy manufacturing;
fortune teller; palm reader; taxidermy, welding; on—premise pet
grooming; medical/dental facilities; on-premise repair_service
(bicycle, lawn _mower, small engine, and appliance); tire sales
and storage; tanning salon; funeral services; tattooing; and
massage therapy.

Horse Quarters in Residential Zoning Districts. (Allowed in EST, R-

85, R-80, R-78, R-75, R-72, R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, C-S,

and PUD-PRD Zoning Districts)

a.

|

9.

h,

Minimum lot size: Over ten (10) acres

Minimum side vard setback: 50 feet

Minimum rear vard setback: 75 feet

Horse Quarters shall not be located within 100 feet of the
principal residential structure or connected to any structures on
site; however, a Horse Quarters may be constructed prior to the
principal residential structure.

Horse Quarters shall not exceed the square footage of the
principal dwelling or 2,400 square feet, whichever is less.

1 Only one (1) Horse Quarters structure shall be permitted
and shall not be counted as an accessory structure.

Riding lessons and boarding are prohibited.

Number of horses (see Article V.)

Horse Show, Rodeo, Carnival, and/or Community Fair. (Allowed in the

A-R and C-H Zoning Districts)

a.

Said horse show, rodeo, carnival, and/or community fair shall not
be operated longer than fourteen{44) 14 calendar days per year.
7-201






28.

29.

Tents shall require the approval of the Fayette County Fire
Marshal.

Off-street parking shall be required.

Outdoor lighting for activities shall not be permitted after 10:00
p.m.

Hospital. (Allowed in the C-C, C-H, O-I, and A-R Zoning Districts)

|

Minimum lot size:  ten (10) acres

Such use shall be permitted only on a lot which fronts on an
Arterial Thoroughfare, as designated on the Fayette County
Thoroughfare Plan, unless such use is part of a planned
development which has access to an Arterial Thoroughfare.

A minimum fifty(56) 50 foot buffer plus the required setbacks
shall separate all buildings from any residential or A-R Zoning
District.

Minimum setbacks:

1) Frontyard: 100 feet

(2) Side yard: fifty(50) 50 feet
3) Rear yard: Fifty(50) 50 feet

Support services, such as pharmacies, public cafeterias and gift
shops, are allowed provided such services are in conjunction with,
and accessory to, the hospital structure. Such businesses shall be
conducted within the primary use structure and shall not exceed ten
(10) percent of the primary structure floor area. No outside
advertising is allowed.

Heliport.

Hotel and/or Bed and Breakfast. (Allowed in the O-1 Zoning
District)

a. A minimum thirty {306} 30 foot buffer plus the required
setbacks shall separate all buildings and use areas from any
residential or A-R Zoning District. However, off-street parking
areas may be located within the setback areas.

7-202





30.

31.

32.

33.

Junk Yard and/or Auto Grave Yard. (Allowed in the M-2 Zoning District)

Minimum lot size:  ten (10) acres

Maximum site area: twenty-five{25) 25 acres

A minimum 100 foot buffer shall be provided along every property
line, including public rights-of-way, so that junk is not visible from
a public street or adjoining properties.

All structures and storage areas shall be set back at least 200 feet
from a public street and/or adjoining residential or A-R Zoning
Districts.

Kennel. See Animal Hospital, etc.

Landfill. (Allowed in the M-2 Zoning District)

a.

b.

Minimum lot size:  twenty(20) 20 acres

A minimum 100 foot buffer shall be provided around the entire site
so that landfill operation activities are not visible from adjoining
properties or any public street. Said buffer shall provide 100
percent screening from adjoining residences prior to commencing
operations.

Landfill operations shall be set back at least 200 feet from an
Arterial Thoroughfare as designated by the Fayette County
Thoroughfare Plan.

The landfill shall comply with all Heensing—reguirements of the

State of Georgia and Federal requirements.

Laundromat, Self-Service or Otherwise. (Allowed in the C-C and C-H

Zoning Districts)

a.

Central water and central sanitary sewage systems are required.

Mining and/or Quarrying. (Allowed in the M-2 Zoning District)

a.

Ingress and egress to and from the facility shall be via an Arterial
Thoroughfare as designated by the Fayette County Thoroughfare
Plan.

7-203





34.

35.

A minimum 100 foot buffer shall be required adjacent to
residential or A-R Zoning Districts.

No activity involving blasting or the operating of machinery shall
occur within 500 feet of a residential or A-R Zoning District.

All activity involving blasting or the operating of machinery shall
be limited to daylight hours.

The operation shall comply fully with all thereguirements of the
State of Georgia and Federal requirements.

Non-Emergency Medical Transport Service. (Allowed in the O-1 Zoning

District) (Adopted 07/26/07)

a.

The service must shall comply with all licensing requirements of
the State of Georgia. (Adopted 07/26/07)

Parking of all medical transport vehicles is allowed in the side
and/or rear yard(s) only in designated parking spaces. Medical
transport vehicles shall be screened from the street via a fence or
wall. The fence or wall shall be located between the designated
parking spaces and the street. Said fence or wall shall be limited to
wood, brick, stone, or concrete/concrete block with architectural
treatment, or_other architecturally engineered facades which
match these materials and shall be a minimum height of eight (8)
feet. (Adopted 07/26/07)

No on-site vehicle maintenance or fueling facilities are allowed.
(Adopted 07/26/07)

Outdoor Amusement Facilities, Rides, Structures over thirty-five {35} 35

feet in height, including, but not limited to Bungee and Parachute

Jumping. (Allowed in the C-H and M-1 Zoning Districts)

a.

Where applicable, all State of Georgia Codes, Rules and
Regulations shall apply. Verification that State Requirements are
met shall accompany the application for a Conditional Use Permit.

All structural and support parts shall not be located closer than 300
feet from any A-R or residential zoning district.

Any structure, ride, etc. erected in connection with an outdoor
amusement activity, over thirty-five{35) 35 feet in height, must

7-204





36.

shall be dismantled upon the closing of the business or activity in
question.

Any structure, ride, etc. over thirty-five(35) 35 feet in height, or
with elements over thirty-five{35) 35 feet in height, must shall be
surrounded by a six (6) foot high fence with a locked gate when
the facility is not in use. A four (4) inch sphere shall not be able to
pass through any section of the fence or gate.

The structure shall be designed to fall entirely within the
boundaries of the site should structural failure occur.

School; Private School {Private-and-speciaband-lncidental Sports-Arena;

Stadium-—or-RecreationalField-including, but not limited to: classrooms,

administration, playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or

stadium (Allowed in the A-R, andresidential-zoning-districts,R-85, R-80,
R-78, R-75, R-72, R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, DR-15, O-l, C-C,

and C-H Zoning Districts)

a.

b.

Minimum lot size:  five (5) acres

provided-adjacent to-any residential-or A-R Zoning District: 11 the
side or rear yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District, a
minimum 50 foot buffer shall be provided adjacent to the lot line.
The side vard setback shall be 50 feet. The rear yard setback
shall be 75 feet. The setback shall be measured from the buffer.

adjoining-residential-or-A-R-Zoning-District: Outdoor lighting for

recreation purposes shall not be permitted after 10:00 p.m.

Student drop-off and vehicular turn-around facilities shall be
provided on the site.

All buildings, other than storage buildings, shall maintain a
decorative facing on those portions of the building which face
public streets and any property zoned residential or agricultural-
residential. The decorative facing shall consist of brick, stone,
stucco, wood, or similar building materials compatible with the
area.

Accessory structures such as a storage building, detached
garage, pavilion, and/or pool shall comply with the buffer and/or

7-205





37.

38.

setback requirements and shall be located to the side/rear of the
main building.

The construction of one (1) open air pavilion over 900 square feet
utilized for picnics/social gatherings only is allowed under the
following conditions:

{15)-acres;

I i | |
1) The pavilion must shall be constructed following the
construction of the main school building;

(2 The floor area cannot exceed twenty{20} 40 percent of the
square footage of the main school building; and

3) The pavilion may not be lighted or used after 10:00 p.m.
If the open air pavilion is built in conjunction with an attached

storage building, the overall square footage shall not exceed twenty
{20} 40 percent of the main school building square footage.

Processing, packaging or handling of perishable agricultural products

grown on premises (i.e. fruits and vegetables). (Allowed in the A-R

Zoning District).

a.

b.

Minimum lot area:  five (5) acres

All structures shall be set back at least 100 feet from any property
line.

No structure shall exceed 5,000 square feet of floor area (interior
measurements).

There shall be no outside storage of packaging materials, pallets,
and all other items involved in the processing and packaging of
said agricultural products.

Recreation centers and similar institutions owned by non-profit

organizations as so registered with the Georgia Secretary of State Office.

(Allowed in the A-R Zoning District)

7-206





39.

The lot area shall be at least five (5) acres, and the lot width at
the building line shall be at least 400 feet.

Such uses shall be permitted only on a lot which fronts on and
accesses a Major Thoroughfare as specified by the Fayette
County Thoroughfare Plan.

A minimum 50 foot buffer plus the required setbacks listed below
shall separate all buildings from any residential or A-R Zoning
District. The setback shall be measured from the buffer.

Minimum setbacks for structures and use areas.

(1) FErontyard: 100 feet

@) Side yard: 50 feet

3) Rear yard: 75 feet

All buildings, other than storage buildings, shall maintain a
decorative facing on those portions of the building which face
public streets and any property zoned residential or agricultural-
residential. The decorative facing shall consist of brick, stone,
stucco, wood or similar building materials compatible with the
area.

Accessory structures _such as a storage building, detached
garage, pavilion, and/or pool shall comply with the buffer and/or
setback requirements and shall be located to the side/rear of the
main building.

The construction of one (1) open air pavilion shall not exceed
1,800 square feet, shall be utilized for picnics/social gatherings
and shall not be lighted or utilized after 10:00 p.m.

Chureh-or Religious Tent Meeting. (Allowed in A-R, C-C, C-H, and O-I

Zoning Districts) (Amended 04/09/98)

a.

Said meetings shall not exceed fourteen<{14} 14 days per year at
the same site.

Tents shall require the approval of the Fayette County Fire
Marshal.

7-207





40.

42.

C.

d.

Off-street parking areas shall be required.

All activities shall cease by 10:00 p.m.

Recycling Facility. (Allowed in the M-1 Zoning District)

a.

All separation and processing (baling, compacting, grinding, or
shredding) must shall occur entirely within an enclosed building.

A convenient paved drop-off area must shall be provided,
permitting vehicles to re-enter the public street in a forward
manner. Traffic circulation patterns must shall be indicated on the
Site Plan.

All outside storage of recyclable materials must shall be on a
paved surface within fully enclosed bins with hinged lids or other
access points which can be closed.

All outside storage areas shall be totally screened according to the
Development Regulations. Storage bins can not be a greater height
than the screening.

Seasonal Sales, Outdoor. (Allowed in C-C and C-H Zoning Districts

and Churches) (see Article VII., Church or Other Place of Worship)

a.

Seasonal sales shall be limited to: October 1 to January 31;
limited to properties zoned C-C and C-H; and on-site church or
7-208






43.

other places of worship. The A-R Zoning District, which has a
bona fide farming operation, is exempt from seasonal sales

requirements;

=

Location of seasonal sales and outdoor display, as well as, the
temporary stand or tent, shall be exempt from Article V.
Screening Standards, except as provided herein;

Location of seasonal sales as outdoor display, as well as,
structures (temporary stand or tent), shall comply with zoning
requirements for setbacks;

o

=

Outdoor sales of seasonal agricultural products shall be limited
to: Natural Christmas trees, natural wreaths, pumpkins and
gourds, hay, straw, fruits, vegetables, and nuts; and natural

plants;

Outdoor lighting for activities shall not be permitted before 7:00
a.m. or after 10:00 p.m.;

|

|

Off-street parking shall be required;

a. Along with the completed application, a sketch or diagram of the
proposed site _showing dimensions of the area utilized, the
proximity to buildings, parking lots, right-of-way, setbacks, and
any proposed structure (temporary stand or _tent) and temporary
signage as regulated by the Sign Ordinance shall be submitted to
the Planning and Zoning Department; and

[=

Location of seasonal sales and outdoor display, as well as, the
temporary stand or tent, shall be removed and cleared within 48
hours of the end of operation as indicated on the Conditional Use
Permit.

Self-Storage Facility.  (Allowed in M-1 and C-H Zoning Districts)
(Adopted in its entirety 06/28/01; Amended 06/24/04; Amended 01/13/05;
Amended 03/24/05) (Amended 06/28/07)

a. The maximum size of a storage bay shall be 550 square feet.
(Amended 03/24/05)
b. All buildings shall maintain a decorative facing on those portions

of the building which face public streets and any property zoned

residential or agricultural-residential. The decorative facing shall consist

of brick, stone, stucco or similar building materials compatible with the
7-209





area—and—me—eele%%emd%hau—b&ekasa&e*tenepepmn%blendmg

- The Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone shall

apply when applicable. (Amended 06/28/07)

C.

Aisleways adjacent to storage bays shall be used both for
circulation and temporary customer parking while using storage
bays. The minimum width of these aisleways shall be twenty-five
25) 25 feet as measured from the closest part of the structure
including any overhang. (Amended 03/24/05)

Storage of vehicles, boats, and trailers, shall be located in the rear
yard only and be screened from view from adjacent residential
areas and public roads with any combination of privacy fence
and/or berm, and vegetation. Covered vehicle storage up to 850
square feet per parking space, shall be allowed provided it does not
exceed twenty-fivepercent{(25%) 25 percent of the overall gross
square footage of all buildings. All covered storage must shall
have a peaked roof, be closed on any side that is visible from a
residential or A-R zoning district or from any street, and must shall
be built of materials consistent with the main structure. Aisles
adjacent to boat and RV parking shall be a minimum of fifty(56}
50 feet wide unless it is angled parking. (Amended 01/13/05)

The accessory use of truck rental parking may be allowed within
the front yard provided the landscaping along the front property
line includes a two (2) foot berm with double the minimum
planting requirements.

All outdoor lighting shall be shielded away from adjacent
residential uses. (Amended 03/24/05)

No exterior loudspeakers or paging equipment shall be permitted
on the site.

Shooting Range, Indoor. (Allowed in C-H and M-1 Zoning Districts)

a.

=

The Indoor Shooting Range shall meet all applicable standards
established in _the NRA Range Source Book. Documentation
indicating compliance with the aforementioned standards shall
be submitted with the site plan.

The Indoor Shooting Range shall meet all applicable State and
Federal Requlations including, but not limited to: the Georgia
Department of Natural Resources, Environmental Protection

7-210






44,

45.

C.

Agency and Occupational Safety and Health Administration.
Documentation indicating compliance with the aforementioned
requlations shall be submitted with the site plan.

The Indoor Shooting Range shall meet Section 12-26 (Fayette
County Noise Control Ordinance) of the Fayette County Code.

Shooting Range, Outdoor. (Allowed in A-R and M-1 Zoning Districts)

a.

=

o

The Outdoor Shooting Range shall meet all applicable standards
established in the NRA Range Source Book. Documentation
indicating compliance with the aforementioned standards shall
be submitted with the site plan.

The Outdoor Shooting Range shall meet all applicable State and
Federal Regulations including, but not limited to: the Georgia
Department _of Natural Resources, Environmental Protection
Agency and Occupational Safety and Health Administration.
Documentation indicating_compliance with the aforementioned
requlations shall be submitted with the site plan.

The Outdoor Shooting Range shall meet Sections 12-5
(Discharging Firearms) and 12-26 (Fayette County Noise
Control Ordinance) of the Fayette County Code.

Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and/or uses (see

Article V.). (Allowed in the C-C, C-H, L-C, M-1, M-2, O-I, and BTP
Zoning Districts) (Amended 08/27/09)

a.

b.

Said residence shall be a single-family detached residence.

Said residence shall not be less than 1,200 square feet, and said
residence shall not be allowed in subdivision developments as
defined by the Subdivision Regulations of Fayette County.

Stadium, Outdoor Athletic. (Allowed in the C-H and M-1 Zoning

Districts)

The outdoor athletic stadium shall not be located closer than 300 feet

from any A-R or residentially zoned property.

7-211





46.

Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or Other Public Utility Facilities.

(Allowed in the—A-R—C-C—C-H—MHP—and all residential and
nonresidential Zoning Districts)

a.

b.

Minimum lot size:  five (5) acres

All structural parts of the facility shall be contained within the
boundaries of the lot.

Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station facilities shall be
enclosed by a steel chain link fence not less than eight (8) feet in
height, with vinyl slat inserts for screening. Access to the facility
shall be through a /ocking gate. In addition, a minimum of three
(3) strands of barbed wire shall be used along the top of the fence
to prevent unauthorized access to the tower. An—eight(8)foet

If electrical current is present in the Telephone, Electric, or Gas
Sub-Station facility, signs stating "High Voltage" shall be attached
to the fence every twenty{(20) 20 linear feet.

A 100 foot undisturbed buffer is required adjacent to all property
lines except an administrative office with no outside storage shall
be exempt from the buffer requirement.

A landscaped strip ten (10) feet in_width surrounding the
perimeter of the Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station facility
shall be required. Landscaping shall be staggered double rows of
evergreen trees a minimum of six (6) feet in height when planted
and spaced every ten (10) feet on center. Landscaping shall be
installed on the outside of the required security fence. Existing
mature tree growth and natural land forms on the site shall be
preserved to the maximum extent possible. In some cases, such
as_Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station facilities sited on
large wooded lots, the Zoning Administrator may determine that
natural growth around the property perimeter may be sufficient
in _lieu of the required landscaping. If existing vegetation is to
remain _and requested to count toward the landscaping
requirements, all such information, including location, size, and
type of vegetation shall be indicated on the site/landscape plan.

7-212





& Outdoortighting—foractivities—shall-not-be-permitted-after10:00
p-m-

Relocated to Horse Show, Rodeo, Carnival, and/or Community Fair.

48. Temporary Tent Sales. (Allowed in the C-C and C-H Zoning Districts)

a. Said tent sales shall not be operated longer than 28 calendar days
per year;

b. Tents shall require the approval of the Fayette County Fire
Marshal;

C. Off-street parking shall be required;

d. Outdoor lighting for activities shall not be permitted before 7:00
a.m. or after 10:00 p.m.;

e. Location of outdoor sales, as well as, a temporary tent:
1. Shall comply with zoning requirements for setbacks.
2. Shall be exempt from Article V. Screening Standards,

except where provided herein.

3. Shall be removed and cleared within 48 hours of the end
of operation as indicated on the permit.

49, Transfer Station for Household and /Commercial Garbage and/or
Recyclable Materials (including processing and handling). (Allowed in
the M-2 Zoning District)

7-213






7-2.

a. Minimum lot size:  ten (10) acres

C. Transfer station operations shall be set back at least 200 feet from
an Arterial Thoroughfare as designated by the Fayette County
Thoroughfare Plan.

C. The transfer station shall comply with all licensing
requirements of the State of Georgia.

50. Wind Farm. (Allowed in the M-1 and M-2 Zoning Districts) The
setbacks shall be equal to the height of the wind turbine, including the
blades, or the applicable zoning district setbacks, whichever are greater.

Nonconformances.

Nonconforming Lots.

A

with-the-minimum-—regquirements-of-this-Ordinance; A legally existing lot of record which
fails to_ comply with the provisions herein, as of the effective date of this Ordinance
(November 13, 1980), or as the result of subsequent amendments, or due to the
acquisition_of property for a public_purpose, a rezoning, or _a variance, shall be
considered a legal nonconforming lot and may be utilized for the establishment of uses
or the placement of structures as long as all applicable regulations can be met. Where
the _dimensional requirements of the zoning district cannot be met in_terms of the
placement of structures, a variance authorized by the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be
required. Any reduction in the land area of a legal nonconforming lot other than
an acquisition for a public purpose which serves to make the lot more nonconforming
shall result in a loss of the legal nonconforming lot status. However, any addition of
property to a legal nonconforming lot which serves to make the lot more conforming
shall not result in the loss of the legal nonconforming lot status.

1

7-214





Creation of a Legal Nonconforming Lot for Enhancements to a Development. Said lot
shall not be utilized for the permitted or conditional uses of the zoning district in which
the lot is located and the lot is not required to meet the applicable minimum lot size, lot
width, or road frontage requirements. Said enhancements shall include stormwater
facilities, tot lots, decorative features (such as landscaping, arbors, fences/walls,
fountains, sculptures, benches, arches, etc.), signs and the preservation of historic and
agricultural structures for ornamentation (see Nonconforming Structures). A tot lot
shall only be equipped with playground equipment (swing set, slide, teeter totter,
monkey bars, sandbox, etc.) intended for small children. A minimum 15 foot setback
shall be maintained for any playground equipment or any historic_or agricultural
structures utilized for ornamentation.  The lot must be labeled: “Not a Building Lot”
on the Preliminary Plat and/or the Final Plat, as applicable. The lot shall be under the
ownership_of the Home Owner’s Association, Property Owner’s Association, or
Developer/Property Management entity, as applicable.

Creation_of a Legal Nonconforming Lot for a Legal Nonconforming Cemetery or
Burial Ground. The creation of a lot intended for the sole purpose of containing a
legal nonconforming cemetery or burial ground is allowed. Said lot is not required to
meet the applicable minimum lot size, lot width, or road frontage requirements. The
boundary of the lot shall be set back a minimum of five feet from the location of any
grave. A legal nonconforming cemetery or burial ground shall be indicated on a
preliminary plat, final plat and/or site plan, as applicable. A minimum 20 foot public
access to a legal nonconforming cemetery or burial ground shall be maintained either
through fee simple ownership or an easement.

Individual lots, parcels or tracts affected by proposed rezonings which are initiated by a
party other than the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County shall each—be—of
sufficient-size-and-shape-te meet al the minimum lot size, lot width, and road frontage
requirements of this Ordinance, except as otherwise provided herein. Combination or
division of lots_to achieve compliance with said requirements #-aceerdance-with-County
regulations, shall be accomplished as a condition of rezoning approval. priorte—the
WWW- i j .

7-215





Consideration _for the Rezoning of Legal Nonconforming Lots. Any legal
nonconforming lot may be considered for rezoning to another zoning district where the
lot would be made nonconforming by said rezoning. Factors of consideration, in
addition to those enumerated in Article XI., would include the following:

1 The degree of increase or reduction of the nonconformity of existing structures
located on the subject property; and

2. The current zoning and land use designations of adjoining lots as indicated on
the Land Use Plan.

Where the dimensional requirements of the zoning district cannot be met in terms of
the placement of new structures, a variance authorized by the Zoning Board of Appeals
shall be required.

Nonconforming Uses.

Nonconforming Open Uses of Land. Any legally existing open uses of land which fails
to_comply with the provisions herein, as of the effective date of this Ordinance
(November 13, 1980), or as the result of subsequent amendments, or due to the
acquisition of property for a public purpose, a County initiated rezoning, or a variance,
shall be considered a legal nonconforming open use of land. Said uses consistirg of
storage yards, used car lots, auto wrecking, junk yards, golf driving ranges, miniature
golf, and similar open uses where the only buildings on the lot are incidental and
accessory to the open use of the lot, and where such use of the land is not permitted to be
established herein, shall be governed by the following restrictions in addition to other
requirements herein.

1. When a legal nonconforming open use of land has been changed to a
conforming use, it shall not thereafter be used for any nonconforming use.

2. Legal nonconforming open uses of land shall not be changed to any use
but conforming uses.

3. A legal nonconforming open use of land shall not be enlarged to cover
more land.
4. When any legal nonconforming open use of land is discontinued for a

period in excess of six (6) months, any future use of the land shall be
limited to those uses permitted in that zoning district under the provisions
herein. Vacancy and/or non-use of the land, regardless of the intent of the
owner or tenant, shall constitute discontinuance under this provision.

7-216





Nonconforming Use of a Structures. Neneenferming Any legally existing uses of a
structures_ which fails to comply with the provisions herein, as of the effective date of
this Ordinance (November 13, 1980), or as the result of subsequent amendments, or
due to the acquisition of property for a public purpose, a County initiated rezoning, or
a variance, shall be consrdered a qual nonconformlnq use of a structure i-ﬂ%l-blde

zemng—ehstnet—m%eh—ﬂ:fey—are—leeated— Ihey Sald uses shall be governed by the

following restrictions:

1. A legal nonconforming use of a structure may be changed to another
nonconforming use upon a finding by the Zoning Board of Appeals that
the proposed nonconforming use is similar in its operation and effect on
surrounding properties.

2. A legal nonconforming use of a structure shall not be changed to another
nonconforming use that generates more automobile or truck traffic; creates
more noise, vibration, smoke, dust or fumes; is a more intensive use of the
structure than the existing nonconforming use; or is in any way a greater
nuisance to the adjoining properties than the existing nonconforming use.

3. A legal nonconforming use of a structure shall not be extended or enlarged
except into portions of the structure which, at the time the use became
nonconforming, were already erected and arranged for, or designed for,
such nonconforming use, except as provided herein. No alterations shall
be made in any structure occupied by a nonconforming use, which would
in any way increase the floor space, area, or volume of space occupied by
the use.

4, When any legal nonconforming use of a structure is discontinued for a
period in excess of six (6) months, any future use of the structure shall be
limited to those uses permitted in that zoning district, except as otherwise
provided for herein. Vacancy and/or non-use of the building, regardless of
the intent of the owner or tenant, shall constitute discontinuance under this
provision.

Request for Change of the Legal Nonconforming Use of a Structure. The Zoning Board

of Appeals _may authorize, upon appeal in specific cases, a change in the legal
nonconforming use of a structure in accordance with the provisions ef-Seetior—7-2.C
herein.

Request for Extension or Enlargement of the Legal Nonconforming Use of a Structure.
The Zoning Board of Appeals may authorize upon appeal in specific cases an extension
or_enlargement of an existing legal nonconforming use which the Board is specifically
authorized to pass-en consider under the terms herein. Said extensions may be granted in
an individual case upon a finding by the Board that:

7-217






1. The use is a legal rencenfermance nonconforming use as defined in these
regulations;

2. The legal nonconforming use is in full compliance with all requirements
of these regulations applicable to nonconformances; and

3. The extension of said legal nonconforming use will not further injure a
permitted use on adjacent property in the same zoning district.

Continuance of Neneenformance-a Legal Nonconforming Use. The Board may allow a
nenconfermanee-legal nonconforming use to be re-established after discontinuance for
six (6) consecutive months where it is deemed by the Board that:

1. The design, construction, and character of the land, building, or structure
is not suitable for uses permitted in the zoning district in which the
noneconformancee legal nonconforming use is situated; and

2. Undue hardship to the property owner would result in not allowing the
continuance of a rencenfermance legal nonconforming use; and

3. Adjacent property would not be unduly damaged by such continuance; and

4, The wuse is to be identical to the prior nonconformance_ legal
nonconforming use.

Nonconforming Structures.

Nonconforming Structures. Any legally existing structure, which fails to comply with
the provisions herein, as of the effective date of this Ordinance (November 13, 1980),
or as the result of subsequent amendments, or due to the acquisition of property for a
public purpose, a rezoning, or a variance, shall be considered a legal nonconforming
structure and shall be allowed to remain. The enlargement, expansion, or extension of
a legal nonconforming structure which serves to increase the nonconformance, either
vertical and/or_horizontal, shall only be made with the authorization of the Zoning
Board of Appeals. Where the Zoning Board of Appeals is required to determine
whether _a nonconforming structure _may be enlarged, expanded, or extended, the
provisions of a Request for a Variance (Article 1X) shall be considered.

Restoration and Re-Use of Nonconforming Historic Structures. Nonconforming historic
structures previously used for purposes not permitted in the zoning district in which they
are located shall be governed by the following restrictions:

7-218





1. The structure and previous use wmust shall be identified in the
Architectural Survey of Fayette County. The re-use of the historic
structure will be subject to the requlations of the Nonconforming Use of
a Structure (Article. VI1.). (Amended 12/05/01)

2. The structure itself must shall be the subject of restoration. Any
extension, enlargement or alteration of the structure that does not comply
with the minimum requirements of this ordinance is subject to approval
of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

3. Areas of consideration for approval of such a request include, but are not
limited to:

a  Submittal-of asite plan:

a. Restriction of allowable uses;

b. Parking requirements; and

C. Buffer and landscaping requirements;-ané
e Sighage-

Use of Historic Residential Structures and Agricultural Structures in Residential
Subdivisions. The preservation of historic residential structures listed in the
Architectural Survey of Fayette County and agricultural structures is are enceuraged
allowed in residential subdivisions to preserve the character of Fayette County as these
structures can be used as residences, ¥ community facilities, or as ornamentation for the
subdivision. Existing structures used for a community facility must shall meet all
applicable building and safety codes and will be regulated as a Conditional Use under
Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas. The use of these structures will be
subject to the approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals in terms of any nonconformance
with the applicable zoning district. (Adopted in its entirety 12/05/01)

Reconstruction of Legal Nonconforming Structures. When a legal nonconforming
structure er—a—structure—containing—a—nenconforming—use is razed er damaged by fire,
flood, wind or act of God, such structure may be reconstructed as a legal nonconforming
structure only if the cost of reconstruction totals less than seventy-five{#5) 75 percent of
the current fair market value of the structure for tax purposes. Reconstruction costs shall
include labor, materials, appliances, devices, and fixtures required for the issuance of a
Certificate of Occupancy (per applicable International Residential Code and
International Building Code.) The "value of the structure™ shall not include the value of
any accessory building, well, septic

7-219





tank or ut|I|ty in determlnlng the extent of the damage Struetulces—wmeh—de—net—een#erm

Maintenance or Repair of Legal Nonconforming Structures. The normal maintenance
and repair of a legal nonconforming structure, as is required to keep it in a safe and
sound condition, may be made. However, if the structure falls into a state of disrepair
where the cost of the maintenance and/or repair is 75 percent or greater of the current
fair_market value of the structure for tax purposes the structure must be removed
and/or brought into compliance. Reconstruction costs shall include labor, materials,
appliances, devices, and fixtures required for the issuance of a Certificate of
Occupancy (per applicable International Residential Code and International Building

Code.)

A property which that is improved with an existing structures ard which would become
nonconforming in_terms of the setbacks only within the zoning district for which the a
rezoning is being sought may be considered for rezoning, except as otherwise provided
in Article VI., O-1. and Artlcle VII Transportatlon Corrldor Overlay Zone —hewever—

#u#theea—deﬁeteney—ef—mred—en-ate—paekmg Upon approval of the rezoning request

said structure shall be considered as a legal nonconforming structure and allowed to
remain within the setback. Any enlargement, expansion, or extension of said structure
which serves to increase nonconformance, either vertical and/or horizontal, shall only
be made Wlth the authorization of the Zoning Board of Appeals Any new structure
shall

comply Wlth the dlmen5|onal mlnlmum requwements hereln and—sha“—net—be—appreved
unless-the-parkingrequirementsfor-the-entire-property-can-be-met.

A _property that is _improved with an_existing structure, which would become
nonconforming in terms of the architectural requirements within the Zoning
Ordinance, may be considered for rezoning. Upon approval of the rezoning request,
said structure shall be considered as a legal nonconforming structure in terms of
architectural requirements and be allowed to _remain in _its_architectural character,
except as is _required in _a Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone regarding
enlargement of an existing nonconforming structure.

A property that is improved with an existing structure, which would become
nonconforming in terms of the maximum height limits within the Zoning Ordinance,
may be considered for rezoning. Upon approval of the rezoning request, said structure
shall be considered as a legal nonconforming structure in terms of height limits and be
allowed to remain at said height.

7-220





7-4,

7-5.

A property that is improved with an existing residential structure, which would become
nonconforming in terms of the minimum square footage requirements within the
zoning district for which a rezoning is being sought, may be considered for rezoning.
Any actions necessary to achieve compliance will be handled through conditions of
rezoning approval.

A property that is improved with accessory structures, which would become
nonconforming in terms of the accessory structure requirements within the Zoning
Ordinance, may be considered for rezoning. Any actions necessary to achieve
compliance _will be handled through conditions of rezoning approval, except as
otherwise provided herein.

Illegal Nonconforming Uses. Notwithstanding any other provisions herein to the

contrary, as to nonconforming uses, which were illegal when they were commenced, or
which became illegal thereafter, prior to the adoption of this Ordinance, or amendment
hereto, this section shall be deemed to impose additional regulations only. It shall not be
held or construed to be permissive of such illegal use, nor as recognizing any right to the
continuance of an illegal use, except in those instances where the illegal use was rendered
conforming by the inclusion of the land, whereon such use was conducted within a
zoning district, wherein such use is permitted, as shown upon the Zoning Map of Fayette
County.

Changes in Zoning. Any nonconformances produced by a change in zoning district
boundaries initiated by the County or Ordinance regulations after the date of passage
adoption of this Ordinance (November 13, 1980) shall also be governed by the provisions
of Seetion—7-2 Article VIL.

Illegal Nonconforming Uses. Notwithstanding any other provisions herein to the
contrary, as to nonconforming uses which were illegal when they were commenced, or
which became illegal thereafter prior to the adoption of this Ordinance (November 13,
1980), or_amendment hereto, this section shall be deemed to impose additional
regulations only. It shall not be held or construed to be permissive of such illegal use, nor
as recognizing any right to the continuance of an illegal use, except in those instances
where the illegal use was rendered conforming by the inclusion of the land, whereon such
use was conducted within a zoning district, wherein such use is permitted, as shown upon
the Zoning Map of Fayette County.

7-221





7-6.

Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone

(A. - Adopted in its entirety 03/09/95) (A., B., C. - Amended 06/24/04)

For the purposes of Section 7-6., a development shall be defined as the land where the
construction of improvements to support nonresidential uses is proposed, including: a
petition to rezone the land, the subdivision of property through a preliminary and/or final
plat, and/or the submittal of a site plan. (Adopted 03/22/07)

A

S.R. 54 West Overlay Zone. All property and/or development which have road

frontage and/or access on SR 54 West with nonresidential use or zoning shall be
subject to the following regulations, in addition to the zoning district requirements
and other development regulations which apply. The intent of the overlay is to set
standards specifically to Hwy 54 from Fayetteville to Peachtree City. (Amended
11/13/03) (Amended 06/07/06) (Amended 03/22/07)

1.

The purpose of the SR 54 West Overlay Zone is to achieve the following:
(Amended 06/07/06) (Amended 03/22/07)

a. To promote and maintain orderly development and an efficient
traffic flow in highway corridors;

b. To maintain a non-urban separation between Fayetteville and
Peachtree City along SR 54 West; and

C. To protect the aesthetics for existing and future residential areas in
this Highway Corridor. (Amended 03/22/07)

2. Access The following requirements shall apply to all
nonresidential property and/or development within the corridor:
(Amended 03/22/07)

a. Access to each nonresidential property and/or development
shall be from SR 54 West or an adjacent street designated as an
Arterial or Collector on the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan.
All access points shall be required to comply with Fayette County
Development Regulations.  (Amended 06/07/06) (Amended
03/22/07)

3. Dimensional Requirements. Unless otherwise specified, these
standards shall apply to all non-residential zoning districts within the areas
described above.

a. All impervious surfaces, other than approved access drives, shall
be located at least fifty (50) feet from the State Route right-of-way.

7-222





4.

Setbacks will be as follows:

1) Front yard setback on SR 54 West: 100 feet
(Amended 06/07/06) (Amended 03/22/07)

. hei : : ithi ictontial :

listricts.is limited_to fifty (50 " The i . F
must-be-indicated-on-the-Site-Plan: (Amended 03/22/07)

d. Berms for nonresidential zoning districts: Berms when
required as a condition of zoning, shall be a minimum of four (4)
feet in height, and shall be placed to the inside of the applicable
buffer. (Amended 03/22/07)

e. If the side yard abuts a nonresidential zoning district, all
impervious surfaces, other than approved access, shall be located a
minimum of ten (10) feet from the side property line.

Architectural Standards. These standards shall apply to all

nonresidential development within this Overlay Zone*

These structures shall maintain a residential character. Elevation drawings
denoting compliance with the following requirements must shall be
submitted as part of the Site Plan:

a.

A pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum pitch of four
and one-half (4.5) inches in one (1) foot, including gasoline
canopies and accessory structures and shall be of a type and
construction complimentary to the facade. A pitched mansard roof
facade with a minimum pitch of four and one-half (4.5) inches in
one (1) foot and a minimum height of eight (8) feet around the
entire perimeter of the structure can be used if the structure is two
(2) stories or more or the use of a pitched peaked roof would cause
the structure to not meet the applicable height limit requirements.
The mansard roof facade must shall be of a residential character
with the appearance of shingles, slate or terra cotta; (Amended
06/07/06)

Gasoline Canopy. Gasoline canopies shall also comply with the
following requirements: (Adopted 10/22/09)

(1)  Gasoline canopies, in conjunction with a convenience store,
may reduce the pitch to a minimum of 3” to 12” to permit
the height of the peak of the roof to be equal to or no more

7-223





than five (5) feet above the peak of the roof of the
convenience store. (Adopted 10/22/09)

(2) The vertical clearance under the gasoline canopy shall not
exceed a maximum of 18 feet in height. (Adopted
10/22/09)

3) The support columns for the gasoline canopies shall match
the facade of the convenience store. (Adopted 10/22/09)

4) The gasoline canopy roof shall match the architectural
character, materials, and color of the convenience store.
(Adopted 10/22/09)

All buildings shall be constructed in a residential character of
fiber-cement siding (ie: Hardiplank), wood siding, wood textured
vinyl siding, brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco
(including synthetic stucco); (Amended 03/22/07)

Framed doors and windows of a residential character. To maintain
a residential character, large display windows shall give the
appearance of smaller individual panes and framing consistent with
the standard residential grid pattern for doors and windows._This
does not apply to stained glass windows for a church or other
place of worship. Large display or storefront windows shall have
a_minimum _two (2) foot high knee wall consisting of fiber-
cement siding (ie: Hardiplank), wood siding, wood textured vinyl
siding, brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or _stucco
(including synthetic stucco); and (Amended 03/22/07)

The design of accessory/out lot buildings shall be consistent with
and coordinate with the architectural style inherent in the primary
structure on the property. (Amended 03/22/07)

When an existing nonconforming structure is enlarged by fifty 50
percent {56%; or less, the enlargement does not have to meet the
aforementioned Architectural Standards, but does have to match
the architectural design of the existing nonconforming structure.
This exemption shall only apply to the first occurrence of any
enlargement after the effective date of this amendment. Only one
(1) structure per lot shall be entitled to the exemption. (Adopted
01/24/08)

When an existing nonconforming structure is enlarged by more
than fifty 50 percent (50%), the entire nonconforming structure
7-224





must shall be brought into compliance with the aforementioned
Architectural Standards. (Adopted 01/24/08)

This exemption shall expire seven (7) years from the effective date
of this amendment.  After the expiration date, the entire
nonconforming structure must shall be brought into compliance
with the aforementioned Architectural Standards when any
enlargement is made. (Effective Date/Adopted 01/24/08)

* (excluding the areas of the Hospital District which includes that area north of S.R. 54 West,
east of Tyrone Road, and west of Sandy Creek Road) (Amended 06/07/06)

Architectural Option.

An_owner/developer may exercise an Architectural Option for structures within the
Overlay Zone on lots adjacent to a municipality where a nonresidential architectural
character has been established in the area. The purpose of this option is to achieve
compatibility with surrounding areas, consistency throughout the development and
greater creativity. A photographic architectural character inventory of the buildings
within the area shall be submitted. Full color architectural elevation drawings of the
proposed nonresidential architectural style for all building facades shall be submitted.
Multiple buildings within _a development shall _have comparable architectural
characteristics _consisting of similar architectural design and elements, building
materials_and colors. Elevations shall be reviewed and approved by the Board of
Commissioners and shall follow the procedure established in Article XI. Any change
to_the approved architectural elevation drawings shall follow the aforementioned

procedure.

5. Landscape Requirements. In addition to the standard
requirements of the landscape ordinance, the following landscape
requirements shall apply to the Overlay Zone:

a. Street Frontage. Landscape area: fifty—{(50) 50 feet along the
right-of-way of SR 54 West. The first 25 feet as measured from
the right-of-way is for required landscape planting only. The
remaining 25 feet may be used for septic system placement;
underground stormwater detention systems; and the following
stormwater management facilities/structures if designed in full
accordance with the specifications provided in the most current
edition of the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual;
vegetated channels, overland flow filtration/groundwater recharge
zone, enhanced swales, filter strips, and grass channels. Septic
systems and stormwater structures shall be exclusive of each other
and the minimum distance of separation between wastewater and
stormwater structures shall be established

7-225





by the Environmental Health Department and the County
Engineer. Utilities (including underground stormwater piping)
may be located anywhere within the landscape area.

(Amended 02/23/06) (Amended 06/07/07)

b. Side Yard Landscape Area: ten (10) feet in depth along side
property lines unless adjacent to a residential district where buffer
requirements will apply.

6. Use of Existing Structure: When property containing a fawfully

existing legally conforming bulding-and-aceessery structures, under the
current zoning, is rezoned to O-1 er—Cemmercial—to—use—the—existing
buildings,—the—following—requirements—shal—apphy:_the dimensional

requirements shall be reduced to the extent of, but only at the location
of, any encroachment by the structures and said structures shall be
considered legal nonconforming structures.

a. Fhe-setbackregquirements-on-the-existing-lotshal-bereduced-to-the

7. Lighting. Lighting shall be designed in such a way as to meet the
following requirements:

a. Shielding standards. Lighting shall be placed in a manner
to direct light away from any adjacent roadways or nearby
residential areas. (Adopted 03/22/07)

8. Special Locational and Spatial Requirements.  The following
special requirements shall be in addition to all district requirements.
Where this section contradicts any other requirement, the most restrictive
shall apply.

a. No more than 50 percent of the required parking can be located in
the front yard along the State Route as established by the front
building line of any structure located on the site. (Adopted
03/22/07)

b. No outside storage allowed.
7-226





All reef-top-mechanical heating, ventilation and air conditioning
(HVACQC) equipment and satellite/communications equipment dish
antennas shall be visually screened from roads and property zoned
residential or A-R. The screen shall extend to the full height of the
objects being screened. (Amended 03/22/07)

For all new construction, garage doors and bays associated with
any use within the district shall be located on the side or rear of the
principal building, and not facing SR54.

S.R. 85 North Overlay Zone. All property and/or development within 1,000 feet

of the right-of-way of SR 85 North shall be subject to the requirements of the SR
85 North Overlay Zone. The intent of the overlay is to set standards specific to SR
85 North from the city limits of the City of Fayetteville north to the Fayette-
Clayton county line. (Amended 03/22/07)

1.

The purpose of the SR 85 North Overlay Zone is to achieve the following:
(Amended 03/22/07)

a.

To establish and maintain a scenic gateway into Fayette County,
which projects an image of our quality lifestyle. (Amended
03/22/07)

To promote and maintain orderly development and the efficient
movement of traffic on SR 85 North.

To protect the aesthetics for existing and future development in
this highway corridor. (Adopted 03/22/07)

Access. The following requirements shall apply to all nonresidential
property and/or development within the corridor: (Amended 03/22/07)

a.

Access to each nonresidential property and/or development shall
be from SR 85 North or an adjacent street designated as an Arterial
or Collector on the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan. All access
points shall be required to comply with Fayette County
Development Regulations. (Amended 03/22/07)

Dimensional Requirements. Unless otherwise specified, these standards

shall apply to all non-residential zoning districts within the areas described

above.

a.

All impervious surfaces, other than approved access, shall be
7-227





located at least fifty{506) 50 feet from the right-of-way of SR 85
North and a minimum of ten (10) feet from the side property lines

Setbacks will be as follows:

1) Front yard setback on State Route 85 North: 100 feet
(Amended 03/22/07)

2 Gasoline Canopy: Front yard setback on State
Route 85 North: 85 feet (Amended 03/22/07)

Impervious-surface—Perzoning-district: (Amended 03/22/07)

Berms for nonresidential zoning districts: Berms when required as
a condition of zoning shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height
and shall be placed to the inside of the applicable buffer.
(Amended 03/22/07)

4, Architectural Standards: These standards shall apply to all nonresidential

development within this Overlay Zone.

a.

All buildings of which any portion of said building is constructed
within 1,000 feet of the right-of-way of S.R. 85 North shall be
constructed of brick/brick veneer, fiber-cement siding (ie: Hardi-
plank), rock, stone, cast-stone, split-face concrete masonry unit
(rough textured face concrete block), stucco (including synthetic
stucco), and/or wood siding. (Amended 03/22/07)

b. The design of accessory/outlot buildings shall be consistent
with and coordinate with the architectural style inherent in the
primary structure on the property. (Amended 03/22/07)

When an existing nonconforming structure is enlarged by fifty 50
percent {56%; or less, the enlargement does not have to meet the
aforementioned Architectural Standards, but does have to match
the architectural design of the existing nonconforming structure.
This exemption shall only apply to the first occurrence of any
enlargement after the effective date of this amendment. Only one
(1) structure per lot shall be entitled to the exemption. (Adopted
01/24/08)

When an existing nonconforming structure is enlarged by more
than fifty 50 percent (50%), the entire nonconforming structure
must shall be brought into compliance with the aforementioned
Architectural Standards. (Adopted 01/24/08)

7-228





This exemption shall expire seven (7) years from the effective date
of this amendment.  After the expiration date, the entire
nonconforming structure must shall be brought into compliance
with the aforementioned Architectural Standards when any
enlargement is made. (Effective Date/Adopted 01/24/08)

Landscape Requirements: In addition to the standard requirements of the
Landscape Ordinance, the following landscape requirements shall apply to
the Overlay Zone:

Street Frontage. Landscape area: fifty(50) 50 feet along the right-of-way
of SR 85 North. The first 25 feet as measured from the right-of-way is for
required landscape planting only. The remaining 25 feet may be used for
septic system placement; underground stormwater detention systems; and
the following stormwater management facilities/structures, if designed in
full accordance with the specifications provided in the most current edition
of the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual; vegetated channels,
overland flow filtration/groundwater recharge zone, enhanced swales,
filter strips, and grass channels. Septic systems and stormwater structures
shall be exclusive of each other and the minimum distance of separation
between wastewater and stormwater structures shall be established by the
Environmental Health Department and the County Engineer._Utilities
(including underground stormwater piping) may be located anywhere
within the landscape area.

(Amended 02/23/06)

b. Side Yard Landscape Area: ten (10) feet in depth along side
property lines unless adjacent to a residential district where buffer
requirements will apply.

Use of Existing Structure: When property containing a lawfuty-existing
legally conforming building-and-aceessory structures, under the current
zoning, is rezoned to O-1 er-Commercial-to-use-the-existing-buildings,the
following—requirements-shall-apphy_the dimensional requirements shall

be reduced to the extent of, but only at the location of, any
encroachment by the structures and said structures shall be considered
legal nonconforming structures.

a. %%%W%&MWMMM isti






N y »
(Armended 03/22/07)

7. Lighting.  Lighting shall be designed in such a way as to meet the
following requirements: (Amended 03/22/07)

a. Shielding standards. Light shall be placed in a manner to direct
light away from any adjacent roadways or nearby residential areas.
(Adopted 03/22/07)
8. Special Locational and Spatial Requirements. The following special

requirements shall be in addition to all district requirements. Where this
section contradicts any other requirement, the most restrictive shall apply.

a. Outside storage of merchandise or equipment and parts shall be
allowed in the rear yards only, subject to minimum screening,
setback and buffer requirements. Outside storage shall not exceed
25 percent of the gross floor area of all structures per lot.

b. All reof-tep-mechanical heating, ventilation and air conditioning
(HVACQC) equipment and satellite/communications equipment dish
antennas shall be visually screened from adjacent roads and
property zoned residential or A-R. The screen shall extend to the
full height of the objects being screened. (Amended 03/22/07)

C. For all new construction, garage doors and bays associated
with any use within the district shall be located on the side or rear
of the principal building, and not facing SR 85.

(Adopted in its entirety 06/24/04)

C. General State Route Overlay Zone. All property and/or development
which have road frontage and/or access on State routes with nonresidential use or
zoning shall be subject to the following regulations, in addition to the zoning
district requirements and other development regulations which apply. This
Overlay Zone specifically excludes SR 54 West, SR 85 North, and SR 74 North
for which other Overlay Zones have been established herein. The Architectural
Standards of this Overlay Zone Specifically excludes the L-C zoning district, for
which other architectural standards have been established. (Amended 06/07/06)
(Amended 03/22/07) (Amended 08/27/09)

7-230





The purpose of the General State Route Overlay Zone is to achieve
the following: (Amended 03/22/07)

a. To promote and maintain orderly development and an efficient
traffic flow in highway corridors;

b. To protect existing and future residential areas near highway
corridors; and

C. To protect the aesthetics for existing and future residential areas in
this highway corridor. (Adopted 03/22/07)

Access. The following requirements shall apply to all nonresidential
property and/or development within the corridor: (Amended 03/22/07)

a. Access to each nonresidential property and/or development shall
be from a State Route or an adjacent street designated as an
Arterial or Collector on the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan.
All access points shall be required to comply with Fayette County
Development Regulations. (Amended 03/22/07)

Dimensional Requirements. Unless otherwise specified, these standards
shall apply to all non-residential zoning districts within the areas described
above.

a. All impervious surfaces, other than approved access drives, shall
be located at least fifty(50) 50 feet from the State Route right-of-
way.

b. Setbacks will be as follows:

1) Front yard setbacks on all other State Routes: 100 feet
(Amended 03/22/07)

d. Berms for nonresidential zoning districts: Berms when
required as a condition of zoning shall be a minimum of four (4)
feet in height, and shall be placed to the inside of the applicable
buffer. (Amended 03/22/07)

7-231





Architectural Standards. These standards shall apply to all nonresidential

property and/or development within this Overlay Zone. Structures shall
maintain a residential character. Elevation drawings denoting compliance
with the following must shall be submitted as part of the Site Plan.
(Amended 03/22/07)

a.

A pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum pitch of four
and one-half (4.5) inches in one (1) foot including gasoline
canopies and accessory structures and shall be of a type and
construction complimentary to the facade. A pitched mansard roof
facade with a minimum pitch of four and one-half (4.5) inches in
one (1) foot and a minimum height of eight (8) feet around the
entire perimeter of the structure can be used if the structure is two
(2) stories or more or the

use of a pitched peaked roof would cause the structure to not meet
the applicable height limit requirements. The mansard roof facade
must shall be of a residential character with the appearance of
shingles, slate or terra cotta. (Amended 06/07/06)

Gasoline Canopy. Gasoline canopies shall also comply with the
following requirements: (Adopted 10/22/09)

1) Gasoline canopies, in conjunction with a convenience store,
may reduce the pitch to a minimum of 3” to 12” to permit
the height of the peak of the roof to be equal to or no more
than five (5) feet above the peak of the roof of the
convenience store. (Adopted 10/22/09)

2 The vertical clearance under the gasoline canopy shall not
exceed a maximum of 18 feet in height. (Adopted
10/22/09)

3) The support columns for the gasoline canopies shall match
the facade of the convenience store. (Adopted 10/22/09)

(4)  The gasoline canopy roof shall match the architectural
character, materials, and color of the convenience store.
(Adopted 10/22/09)

All buildings shall be constructed in a residential character of
fiber-cement siding (ie: Hardiplank), wood siding, wood textured
vinyl siding, brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco
(including synthetic stucco) on those portions of the building
facing front and side yards and/or any property zoned agricultural-
residential or residential. (Amended 03/22/07)

7-232





Framed doors and windows of a residential character. To maintain
a residential character, large display windows shall give the
appearance of smaller individual panes and framing consistent with
the standard residential grid pattern for doors and windows. This
does not apply to stained glass windows for a church or place of
worship. Large display or_storefront windows shall have a
minimum two (2) foot high knee wall consisting of fiber-cement
siding (i.e.: Hardiplank), wood siding, wood textured vinyl siding,
brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco (including
synthetic stucco.) (Amended 03/22/07)

The design of accessory/out lot buildings shall reflect and
coordinate with the general architectural style inherent in the
primary structure on the property.

When an existing nonconforming structure is enlarged by fifty 50
percent {50%) or less, the enlargement does not have to meet the
aforementioned Architectural Standards, but does have to match
the architectural design of the existing nonconforming structure.
This exemption shall only apply to the first occurrence of any
enlargement after the effective date of this amendment. Only one
(1) structure per lot shall be entitled to the exemption. (Adopted
01/24/08)

When an existing nonconforming structure is enlarged by more
than fifty 50 percent (56%), the entire nonconforming structure
must shall be brought into compliance with the aforementioned
Architectural Standards. (Adopted 01/24/08)

This exemption shall expire seven (7) years from the effective date
of this amendment.  After the expiration date, the entire
nonconforming structure must shall be brought into compliance
with the aforementioned Architectural Standards when any
enlargement is made. (Effective Date/Adopted 01/24/08)

Architectural Option.

An owner/developer may exercise an Architectural Option for structures within the

Overlay Zone on lots adjacent to a municipality where a nonresidential architectural

character has been established in the area. The purpose of this option is to achieve

compatibility with surrounding areas, consistency throughout the development and

greater creativity. A photographic architectural character inventory of the buildings

within the area shall be submitted. Full color architectural elevation drawings of the

proposed nonresidential architectural style for all building facades shall be submitted.

7-233





Multiple buildings within a development shall have comparable architectural

characteristics consisting of similar architectural design and elements, building

materials and colors. Elevations shall be reviewed and approved by the Board of

Commissioners and shall follow the procedure established in Article XI. Any change

to the approved architectural elevation drawings shall follow the aforementioned

procedure.
5.

Landscape Requirements. In addition to the standard requirements of the
landscape ordinance, the following landscape requirements shall apply to
the Overlay Zone:

a. Street Frontage. Landscape area: fifty{50) 50 feet in depth along
State Route frontage. The first 25 feet as measured from the right-
of-way are for required landscape planting only. The remaining 25
feet may be used for septic system placement; underground
stormwater detention systems; and the following stormwater
management facilities/structures if designed in full accordance
with the specifications provided in the most current edition of the
Georgia Stormwater Management Manual; vegetated channels,
overland flow filtration/groundwater recharge zone, enhanced
swales, filter strips, and grass channels. Septic systems and
stormwater structures shall be exclusive of each other and the
minimum distance of separation between wastewater and
stormwater structures shall be established by the Environmental
Health Department and the County Engineer. Utilities (including
underground stormwater piping) may be located anywhere within
the landscape area.

(Amended 02/23/06)

b. Side Yard Landscape Area: ten (10) feet in depth along side
property lines unless adjacent to a residential district where buffer
requirements will apply.

Use of Existing Structure: When property containing a lawfuty-existing

legally conforming building-and-aceessory structures, under the current
zoning, is rezoned to O-1 er-Commercial-to-use-the-existing-buldings,the
following—reguirements-shall-apphy:_the dimensional requirements shall

be reduced to the extent of, but only at the location of, any
encroachment by the structures and said structures shall be considered
legal nonconforming structures.

a. i isti
(Armended-03/22/07)

7-234






N g »
Mmmmm%mwl | A A
(Amended 03/22/07)

Lighting.  Lighting shall be designed in such a way as to meet the
following requirements:

a. Shielding standards. Lighting shall be placed in a manner to direct
light away from any adjacent roadways or nearby residential areas.
(Adopted 03/22/07)

Special Locational and Spatial Requirements. The following special
requirements shall be in addition to all district requirements. Where this
section contradicts any other requirement, the most restrictive shall apply.

a. No more than 50 percent of the required parking can be located in
the front yard along the State Route as established by the front
building line of any structure located on the site.  (Amended
03/22/07)

b. Outside storage of merchandise or equipment and parts shall be
allowed in the rear yards only, subject to minimum screening,
setback and buffer requirements. Outside storage shall not exceed
25 percent of the gross floor area of all structures per lot.

C. All roof-top-mechanical heating, ventilation, and air conditioning
(HVACQC) equipment and satellite/communications equipment dish
antennas shall be visually screened from roads and property zoned
residential or A-R. The screen shall extend to the full height of the
objects being screened. (Amended 03/22/07)

d. For all new construction, garage doors and bays associated with
any use within the district shall be located on the side or rear of the
principal building, and not facing a State Route.

(Adopted in its entirety 08/27/09)

D.

S.R. 74 North Overlay Zone. All property and/or development which have frontage on

and/or access to SR 74 North with nonresidential use or zoning shall be subject to the
requirements of the SR 74 North Overlay Zone. The intent of the overlay is to set
standards specific to SR 74 North from Sandy Creek Road to the Fulton County line to
achieve the goals of the SR 74 North Overlay District contained in the Fayette County
Comprehensive Plan.

7-235





1. Purpose. The purpose of the SR 74 North Overlay Zone is to achieve the
following:
a. To maintain the efficient traffic flow of SR 74 North as the County’s main
connection to Interstate 85;
b. To enhance and maintain the aesthetic qualities of the corridor, as it is the
gateway into Fayette County; and
C. To protect existing and future residential areas in the SR 74 North
corridor.
2. Access. The following requirements shall apply to all nonresidential property

and/or development within the corridor:

a.

West Side of SR 74 North Access and Internal Roadways. An internal
collector road connecting all three of the large tracts identified in the
Fayette County Comprehensive Plan, in the SR 74 North Overlay District
properties will be required, from the existing median break at Thompson
Road south to Kirkley Road. The remaining large tract in the
unincorporated County will be limited to one (1) right in/right out curb cut
on SR 74 North for the construction of a street to provide internal access
in the tract. Lots created in conjunction with the development of these
tracts will not be allowed individual curb cuts on SR 74 North or Kirkley
Road.

The design of the collector road will require left turn lanes at the
intersections of SR 74 North and Kirkley Road as well as all intersections
internal to developments. Final design approval of these intersections will
be made by the Department of Engineering Department of Public Works.

b. East Side of SR 74 North Access and Internal Roadways. To
maintain efficient and safe operations on SR 74 North it is required that a
parallel service drive be developed approximately 400 feet east of SR 74
North. This service drive must shall be constructed when improvements
are made to the portion of the property. The service drive will connect to
the service drive being developed in Fairburn from Milam Road
southwards to the Fayette County line. Within Fayette County this service
drive will extend from the Fulton County line into the property just north
of the golf recreation facility. In addition, all residential properties
proposed to be accessed through non-residentially zoned properties along
SR 74 must shall be accessed via a public road built to County standards
and dedicated to the County. Those affected properties are identified and
addressed in the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan.

7-236





C. West Side of SR 74 North Multi-use Path System. In order to
provide for alternative modes of transportation (including accommodation
of golf cart, bicycle and pedestrian traffic), a multi-use path system is
required as an integral component of site development. The multi-use path
system will connect all three (3) of the large tracts identified in the Fayette
County Comprehensive Plan, in the SR 74 North Overlay District, and
will be constructed in conjunction with the roads. Said multi-use path
system must shall connect to any existing or proposed external multi-use
paths. In the cases where a planned future multi-use path is to be located
on abutting parcels, an alignment shall be established and the internal
facilities shall be developed so as to provide for connection at the property
line.

On roadways with a planned multi-use path system the public right-of-way
will be used for location of the path system components. The path will
consist of a ten (10) foot wide paved surface and stabilized shoulders that
extend two feet beyond the paved surface. Path construction will consist
of a minimum of four inches of gravel base with two inches of asphalt.
Final design approval of the multi-use path design and construction in the
right-of-way will be made by the Division of Public Works.

Dimensional Requirements. Unless otherwise specified, these standards shall
apply to all nonresidential zoning districts within the areas described above.

a.

All impervious surfaces, other than approved access, shall be located 50
feet from the State Route right-of-way.

Front yard setback on S.R. 74 North: 100 feet
. ace: e distri

Berms for nonresidential zoning districts: Berms, when required as a
condition of zoning, shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height.

Architectural Standards. These standards shall apply to all nonresidential

development within this Overlay Zone.

1.

West Side of SR 74 North Architectural Standards:

a. All buildings shall be constructed of brick/brick veneer, wood,
fiber-cement siding (i.e.: Hardi-plank), rock, stone, cast-stone,
split-face concrete masonry unit (rough textured face concrete
block), architectural precast concrete wall panels, stucco (including
synthetic stucco) or any architecturally engineered facades which
simulate these materials.

7-237





The design of accessory structures shall be consistent with and
coordinate with the architectural style inherent in the primary
structure on the property.

No horizontal length of a roofline shall exceed 50 linear feet
without a variation in elevation. Said variation in elevation shall
not be less than two (2) feet.

No blank or unarticulated horizontal length of a building facade
shall exceed 25 linear feet without a variation in architectural
elements, including but not limited to, building materials, colors,
textures, offsets, or changes in planes.

East Side of SR 74 North Architectural Standards:

A pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum pitch of four
and one-half (4.5) inches in one (1) foot. A pitched mansard roof
facade with a minimum pitch of four and one-half (4.5) inches in
one (1) foot and a minimum height of eight (8) feet around the
entire perimeter of the structure can be used if the structure is two
(2) stories or more or the use of a pitched peaked roof would cause
the structure to not meet the applicable height limit requirements.
The mansard roof facade must shall be of a residential character
with the appearance of shingles, slate or terra cotta:

All buildings shall be constructed in a residential character of
fiber-cement siding (ie: Hardiplank), wood siding, wood textured
vinyl siding, brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco
(including synthetic stucco);

Framed doors and windows of a residential character. To maintain
a residential character, large display windows shall give the
appearance of smaller individual panes and framing consistent with
the standard residential grid pattern for doors and windows. This
does not apply to stained glass windows for a church or place of
worship.  Large display or storefront windows shall have a
minimum two (2) foot high knee wall consisting of fiber-cement
siding (ie: Hardiplank), wood siding, wood textured vinyl siding,
brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco (including
synthetic stucco);

The design of accessory structures shall reflect and coordinate with
the general architectural style inherent in the primary structure on
the property including the roof pitch.

7-238





Landscape Requirements: In addition to the standard requirements of the
Landscape Ordinance, the following landscape requirements shall apply to
the Overlay Zone:

a. Street Frontage: SR 74 (Major Arterial) - Landscape area: 50
feet along the right-of-way of SR 74 North. The first 25 feet as
measured from the right-of-way is for required landscape planting
only. The remaining 25 feet may be used for septic system
placement; underground stormwater detention systems; and the
following stormwater management facilities/structures, if
designed in full accordance with the specifications provided in the
most current edition of the Georgia Stormwater Management
Manual: vegetated channels, overland flow filtration/ groundwater
recharge zone, enhanced swales, filter strips, and grass channels.
Septic systems and stormwater structures shall be exclusive of
each other and the minimum distance of separation between
wastewater and stormwater structures shall be established by the
Environmental Health Department and the County Engineer.
Utilities (including underground stormwater piping) may be
located anywhere within the landscape area.

b. Side Yard Landscape Area: Ten (10) feet in depth along side
property lines, unless adjacent to a residential district where buffer
requirements will apply.

Lighting.  Lighting shall be designed in such a way as to meet the
following requirements:

a. Shielding standards. Lighting shall be placed in such a fashion as
to be directed away from any adjacent roadways for nearby
residential areas.

b. Fixture height standards. Lighting fixtures shall be a maximum of
35 feet in height within the parking lot and shall be a maximum of
ten (10) feet in height within non-vehicular pedestrian areas.

Additional Requirements. The following requirements shall be in addition
to all district requirements. Where this section contradicts any other
requirement, the most restrictive shall apply.

C. All refuse areas and equipment shall be allowed in the side or rear
yards only and must shall be screened.

d. All roof top HVAC equipment and satellite dish antennas shall be
visually screened from adjacent roads and property zoned A-R or
residential. The screen shall extend to the full height of the objects

7-239





Section 7-7.

A.

being screened.

e. Bay doors shall not be allowed to directly face SR 74 North.
f. All utilities shall be underground.
8. Use of Existing Structure: When property containing legally

conforming structures, under the current zoning, is rezoned to O-1, the
dimensional requirements shall be reduced to the extent of, but only at
the location of, any encroachment by the structures and said structures
shall be considered legal nonconforming structures.

Commercial Development Standards. (Added in its entirety 08/26/04)

Architectural and site design standards and guidelines for structures 5,000 se—¥ft
sguare feet or greater (this applies to a single structure) that are located in the area
north of S.R. 54 West, east of Tyrone Road, and west of Sandy Creek Road. This
area shall also be known as the Fayette County Community Hospital District
(Hospital District).

Lighting:

a.

Consistency. Lighting shall be designed in a consistent and coordinated
manner for the entire site. The lighting and lighting fixtures shall be
integrated and designed so as to enhance the visual impact of the project
on the community and/or blends into the landscape.

Shielding standards. Lighting shall be placed in such a fashion as to be
directed away from any adjacent roadways or nearby residential areas.

Fixture height standards. Lighting fixtures shall be a maximum of thirty-
five(35) 35 feet in height within the parking lot and shall be a maximum
of ten (10) feet in height within non-vehicular pedestrian areas.

Design standards. Lighting shall be used to provide safety while accenting
key architectural elements and/or to emphasize landscape features. Light
fixtures shall be designed as an integral design element that complements
the design of the project. This can be accomplished through style, material
or color (excluding fluorescent and neon, primary and/or secondary
colors) or be designed to blend into the landscape through the use of dark
colors such as bronze. Mill finish is not permitted.

Service Function Areas (SFA's) including, but not limited to loading, storage,
mechanical equipment, and solid waste disposal.

7-240





Buffering and screening standards. Loading areas or docks, trash
collection/compaction/recycling, mechanical equipment, vehicular storage
(excluding new and used cars), roof top equipment and other service
function areas shall be fully screened from view of adjacent properties and
roadways at ground view level.

b. Materials and design standards. Screening material and design
shall be consistent with design treatment of the primary facades of the
structure on site.

Drive-through lane standards:

a.

Drive-through windows shall not be placed between the building and a
public road right-of-way.

Pedestrian access standards:

Pedestrian ways, linkages and paths shall be provided from the building
entry(s) to all parking areas and outlots. Pedestrian ways shall be designed
to provide access between parking areas and the building entrance(s) in a
coordinated and safe manner. Pedestrian ways may be incorporated within
required landscape areas, provided the landscape area is not less than ten
(10) feet in width on average. Shared pedestrian walkways are required
between adjacent projects.

Pedestrian crosswalks at building perimeter. Building perimeter
crosswalks shall be designed and coordinated to move people safely to and
from buildings and parking areas by identifying pedestrian crossings with
signage and variations in pavement materials or markings.

Minimum dimensions. Pedestrian walkways shall be a minimum of five
(5) feet wide.

Materials. Pedestrian walkways and crosswalks shall be consistent with
the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accessibility
Guidelines. Materials may include specialty pavers, concrete, colored
concrete or stamped pattern concrete.

Building design:

a.

Building orientation standards. Facades/elevations that are visible from an
arterial or collector street constitute an affected facade. Any facade that
fronts on a right-of-way shall have two (2) of the following design
features;

7-241





1. Windows at a minimum of twenty-five{25) 25 percent of the
affected facade. All doors and windows must shall be divided or
made to appear as if divided into more than two (2) smaller panes
either through framing or the use of mullions.

2. Projected covered public entry with a minimum of twenty-five(25)
25 percent of each projected wall space devoted to windows. (This
figure is non-cumulative).

3. Covered walkway (excluding canvas type) provided with six (6)
inch columns or better, attached to the building at a minimum
extension of eight (8) feet wide. The walkway wmust shall be a
minimum of eight (8) feet in height with a maximum of ten (10)
feet in height and must shall extend the full length of the affected
facade.

4. Canopies/Awnings of a fixed nature.

Facade/wall height transition: New developments that are located within
three-hundred—(300) 300 feet of an existing building and are more than
twice the height of, or are half of the height of, or less than any existing
building shall provide transitional massing elements to transition between
the existing buildings of lower height within three-hundred{(300) 300 feet,
and the proposed development. Any building that is more than two (2)
stories shall have massing for any possible future neighboring
development.

Facade standard: AIll buildings shall be designed with consistent
architectural style. In the case of outlot buildings, all exterior facades shall
adhere to the requirements of this section with respect to architectural
design treatments for all facades. All exterior facades shall be designed to
employ the following design treatments:

1. All buildings shall maintain a facade of brick, stone, or stucco.

2. Window standards: Windows shall not appear to be false or
applied.

3. No horizontal length and/or uninterrupted curve of a building

facade or roofline shall exceed twenty-five{25) 25 linear feet and
shall have architectural elements along a minimum of fifty(56) 50
percent of their horizontal length per affected side. These features
include, but are not limited to: display windows; projected entry
areas; and/or other such design elements as proposed by the
architect.

9-242





8-1.

8-2.

8-4.

8-5.

8-6.

ARTICLE VIII. ADMINISTRATION, ENFORCEMENT, PENALTIES

Zoning Administrator. An administrative official designated as the Zoning
Administrator shall administer and enforce the provisions herein.

Remedies. In case any building or structure is, or is proposed to be, erected, constructed,
reconstructed, altered, converted or maintained, or any building, structure or land is, or is
proposed to be, used in violation of any provision herein, the Zoning Administrator, or
any other appropriate authority, may, in addition to other remedies provided by law and
after due notice to the person in violation, issue a citation for the violation of this
Ordinance. The citation for the alleged violation shall be heard in the State Court of
Fayette County. The Court shall give the person a full opportunity to be heard and, if the
defendant is adjudged to be guilty, the Court shall determine the extent and nature of the
violation and the appropriate penalty. Where a violation has been determined to exist
with respect to a building, structure or premises, the Court may, in addition to other
remedies provided by law, require that public utility service be withheld there from until
such time as the building, structure or premises are no longer in violation.

Stop Work Order. Whenever the Zoning Administrator or his or her designee determines
that any building or structure is being constructed, altered, or modified, or any land is
being used in violation of the terms herein, and in the Zoning Administrator's judgment,
immediate cessation of such construction, alteration, or modification of buildings or
structures or use of land is required to prevent harm to any person, firm, corporation, or
governmental body, or to preserve the status quo, the Zoning Administrator may issue a
Stop Work Order to those responsible. Appeals from the decision of the Zoning
Administrator with regard to interpretation, administration, and enforcement shall be
made to the Zoning Board of Appeals in accordance with the provisions of Seetion-8-6
Article VIII.

Penalties. Any firm, person, or corporation that shall do or fail to do anything prohibited
or required by this Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a violation of this
Ordinance and shall be fined no more than $1,000.00 or imprisoned for no more than
sixty(60) 60 days or both for each offense. Each day a violation continues shall be
deemed as a separate offense.

Permits and Licenses Void When Issued in Conflict. Any permit or license issued in
conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance shall be null and void.

Appeals. Appeals from the decision of the Zoning Administrator with regard to
interpretation, administration, and enforcement shall be made to the Zoning Board of
Appeals.

9-243





9-1.

ARTICLE IX. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

Membership.

A.

Membership and Appointments. The Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals
{the “Beard™} shall consist of five (5) members residing within the County and
shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County. None of
the Board members shall hold any other public office, except that one (1) member
may also be a member of the Planning Commission. Beard The Zoning Board of
Appeals members shall be removed by the Board of Commissioners for cause,
upon written charges, and after public hearing. Any member of the Beard Zoning
Board of Appeals shall be disqualified to act upon a matter before the Board
Zoning Board of Appeals with respect to property in which the member has an
interest. It shall may be deemed cause for removal should any Beard Zoning
Board of Appeals member fail, without proper reason, to attend three (3)
consecutive meetings.

Term of Office. The term of office for each member of the Beard Zoning Board

of AQQeaI shaII be for three (3) years—hewevepm—the—appemtmem—ef—the—ﬁ#st

yeam‘—and—ene—élé—feeene—él&—ye&r. Itis the |ntent of thls sectlon that the|r terms

be staggered with no term limitation. Any vacancy in the membership shall be
f|IIed for the unexplred term in the same manner as the initial appomtment 1f one

Compensation. The Beard Zoning Board of Appeals members shall receive

compensation for their service as determined by the Board of Commissioners of
Fayette County.

9-244





9-2.

9-3.

Rules and Procedures. The Beard Zoning Board of Appeals shall elect one (1) of its
members as Chairman and another as Vice-Chairman, each serving for one (1) year, or
until re-elected, or a successor is elected. The Vice-Chairman shall have the authority to
act as Chairman in the Chairman's absence. The Beard Zoning Board of Appeals shall
appoint a Secretary who shall be an employee of Fayette County. The Beard Zoning
Board of Appeals shall have authority to adopt rules of procedure. Meetings of the
Boeard Zoning Board of Appeals shal may be held at the call of the Chairman. The
Chairman may administer oaths and compel the attendance of witnesses by subpoena.
The Boeard Zoning Board of Appeals shall keep Minutes of its proceedings, showing the
vote of each member upon each question, or if absent or failing to vote, indicating such
fact, and shall keep records of its examinations and other official actions, all of which
shall be immediately filed in the office of the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals and shall
be public record. The decisions of the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals shall contain a
statement of the subject matter being considered by the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals,
the decisions of the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals, and the grounds for its decision
reduced to written form. The full text shall be sent to the appellant. Neo-appeal An
application which seeks the same relief in regard to the same property shall not be
accepted er-heard-by-the-Board for a period of twelve{12} 12 months following the date
of the written decision from the—previous appeal said application, except that this
limitation shall not affect the right of the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals to grant a
rehearing as provided in the rules of procedure as may be adopted by the Beard Zoning
Board of Appeals.

Administrative Assistance. The Zoning Administrator shall provide such technical,
administrative, and clerical assistance, and office space as is required by the Beard
Zoning Board of Appeals to carry out its function under the provisions of herein.

Public Hearing.

A. Notice of Hearing Shall be Given. Before making its decision on an appeal, a
request for a variance, or any other matter within the Beard's Zoning Board of
Appeals’s purview, the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals shall hold a public
hearing thereon. At least fifteen{25) 15 calendar days notice of the time and
place of such hearing shall be sent to the appellant/petitioner by certified U.S.
Mail to the appellant/petitioner's last known address. SimHar—netice—shal-be
provided-to-the-Planning-Cemmission:  Such notice shall contain the name of the
appellant/ petitioner; the date, time, and place set for the hearing; and a brief
statement of the nature of the hearing.

B. Public Notice in Newspaper. The Beard Zoning Board of Appeals shall cause
public notice of the hearing to be published in the legal organ of Fayette County
at least fifteen{15) 15 calendar days but not more than 45 calendar days prior to
the date of the public hearing.

C. Who May Appear. Any party may appear at the public hearing in person or by
agent or attorney.

11-245





Zoning Board of Appeals’s Decision. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall
approve, deny, or table each application by a public vote. An action to table
shall include justification of such action and a specific meeting date at which
the application is to be reconsidered.

If there is not a full Zoning Board of Appeals board present at the public
hearing, the Petitioner may request to table the petition to the next Zoning
Board of Appeals public hearing, provided the Petitioner requests to table the
agenda item prior to the presentation.

A new legal advertisement will not be required with an announcement to a
specific meeting date if an application is tabled; however, the property will be
reposted with new signage indicating the new public hearing dates.

Time Limit on Beard's Zoning Board of Appeals’s Decision. The Beard Zoning
Board of Appeals shall reach a decision following a public hearing within thirty

(%9} 45 calendar days or_the appllcatlon shall be deemed to be approved Ihe

9-5. Powers and Duties.

A.

Appeals from Actions of the Zoning Administrator. The Beard Zoning Board of
Appeals shall hear and decide upon appeals where it is alleged there is error in
any order, requirement, decision, or determination made by the Zoning
Administrator in the enforcement of these regulations.

1. Who May Appeal. Appeals to the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals may
be taken by any person aggrieved or by an officer, department, or board ;
or—bureay of the—governing—autherity Fayette County affected by any
decision of the Zoning Administrator. Such appeals_ specifying the
grounds thereof shall be filed with the Planning and Zoning Department
no later than thirty{30) 30 calendar days after the date of notification of

the Zonlnq Admlnlstrator S deC|S|on appealed—#em—by—ﬁhﬁg—m%h—Zemng

g#eunels—thepeef The Zonlng Admlnlstrator shall forthW|th transmlt to the
Board Zoning Board of Appeals all the papers constituting the record

upon which the action appealed from was taken.

2. Legal Proceedings Stayed. An appeal stays all legal proceedings in
furtherance of the action appealed from, unless the Zoning Administrator
certifies to the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals that by reason of facts
stated in the certificate a stay would, in the Zoning Administrator's
opinion, cause imminent peril to life and property. In such a case,
proceedings shall not be stayed otherwise than by a restraining order from
a court of competent jurisdiction.

11-246





3. Extent of Beard-of Appeals Zoning Board of Appeals’s Power. The
Board Zoning Board of Appeals may, in conformity with the provisions
of these regulations, reverse or affirm the order, requirement, decision, or
determination of the Zoning Administrator. The Beard Zoning Board of
Appeals may direct the issuance of a permit. It shall be the duty of the
Zoning Administrator to carry out the decisions of the Beard Zoning
Board of Appeals.

Request for a Variance. The Beard Zoning Board of Appeals may authorize,
upon appeal in specific cases, a variance from the terms of these regulations as
will not be contrary to the public interest where, owing to special conditions, a
literal enforcement of the provisions of these regulations will, in an individual
case, result in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, so that the spirit of
these regulations shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and
substantial justice done. However, a variance shall not be granted for a reduction
in lot size, lot width, road frontage, or any requirements of a Conditional Use,
or a use of land, building, or structure that is prohibited in the zoning district at
issue,_except as otherwise provided herein. A variance may be granted in an
individual case upon a finding by the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals that the
following exists:

1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the
particular piece of property in question because of its size, shape or
topography; and

2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property
would create a practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and

3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved,;
and
4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good

or impair the purposes and intent of these regulations; provided, however,
no variance may be granted for a use of land, building, or structure that is
prohibited herein; and

5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of
any rights that others in the same zoning district are allowed; and

6. Provided that the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals may impose or require
such additional restrictions, conditions, and standards as may be necessary
to protect the health and safety of workers and residents in the community,
and to protect the value and use of property in the general neighborhoods;
and provided that wherever the Board shall find, in the case of any permit
granted pursuant to the provisions of these regulations, that any of the
terms;—conditions—or restrictions, conditions, and standards upon which
such permit was granted are not being complied with, said Beard Zoning
Board of Appeals shall rescind and revoke such permit after giving due

11-247





notice to all parties concerned and granting full opportunity for a hearing.
In exercising the above powers, the Beard Zoning Board of Appeals shall

not consider any nonconforming use of neighboring lands, structures or
buildings in the same zoning district, and no permitted use of lands,
structures, or buildings in other zoning districts as grounds for the issuance
of a variance.

L | . ‘ lofined_int! lations:
RELOCATED TO ARTICLE VII.

2 I ic in_full i ith_all . ‘1l lati
RELOCATED TO ARTICLE VII.

RELOCATED TO ARTICLE VII.

deemed-by-the-Boardthat
RELOCATED TO ARTICLE VII.

47 i [ [ [

‘ o - and
RELOCATED TO ARTICLE VII.

4 | ic to b identical tot . ‘ .
RELOCATED TO ARTICLE VII.

11-248





Fees.

11-1.

11-2.

FC.  Compliance with Standards. Where an application to the Board is initiated due to
an existing violation of the Zoning Ordinance and said application is denied, the
violation shall be required to be corrected within ten (10) calendar days of such
denial, or as specified by the Board, if a greater time period is necessary. The
maximum extension of the time shall not exceed thirty(36) 30 calendar days.

GD. Forms. Appeals, requests for variances, and requests for extensions or
continuances of nonconformances shall be made on forms provided by the Zoning
Administrator; and all information requested on the forms shall be provided by
the appellant. Forms shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator along with the
necessary fees incidental to the appeal. No form shall be accepted by the Zoning
Administrator unless it contains all pertinent information and is accompanied by
the required fee.

ARTICLE X. SCHEDULE OF FEES

A schedule of fees shall be established from time to time by the Board of Commissioners.
The schedule shall be kept in the office of the Zoning Administrator and shall be
available to the public. All fees required by this seetien article shall be in addition to any
other fees and charges required under other ordinances as enacted by the Board of
Commissioners.

ARTICLE XI. POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND
STANDARDS GOVERNING AMENDMENT
FAYETFE COUNTY-PLANNING-COMMISSION

Intent. The purpose of this Article is to describe and establish procedures for making
changes to the Official Zoning Map (i.e., rezoning of properties) and amending the text of
this Ordinance. Such actions require legislative approval by the Board of Commissioners
in order to be enacted.

Technical Evaluation and Qualification of Properties.

A. Every petition for a legislative change shall be subject to a technical evaluation.
The evaluation shall be conducted by the Geunty-Planner Zoning Administrator
who shall coordinate a review of the proposal with all appropriate County
departments;-seetions and public agencies. Following the evaluation, the Ceunty
Planner Zoning Administrator shall prepare a report containing recommendations
to be presented to the Planning Commission and the Board of Commissioners.

B. The Zoning Administrator shall distribute copies of applications for amendment
to the Planning Commlssmn and the Board of Comm|35|oners In addition

Semee the members of the Technlcal Rewew Commlttee (TRC) shaII be

supplied with copies of each application. Each department head or_his/her
designee shall return his or her comments, in writing, to the Zoning Administrator

at least seven (7) days prior to the Planning Commission hearing per the deadline
established by the Planning & Zoning Department. FheBeard-ef-Education

11-249





i
2z
3
4

Individua-etsHots-erlots Any lot(s) affected by proposed rezonings which are
initiated by a party other than the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County
shall each be of sufficient size and shape to meet all requirements of this
Ordinance.  Combination or division of lots, in accordance with County
regulations, shall be accomplished as a condition of approval prior to the approval
of any permits or applications.

A property which is improved with existing structures and which would become
nonconforming within the zoning district for which the rezoning is sought may be
considered for rezoning; however, the concept plan must shall illustrate an
attempt by the appllcant to meet to the extent p055|ble all reqUIrements hereln—

Feqe#eel—en-sﬁe—park-mg Any new constructlon or |mprovements mcludmg

expansion of any existing structure, shall comply W|th the m|n|mum requwements
herein a .

.

11-3. Public Hearings.

A

Date, Place and Time. Fhe—Planning—Commission—shall—from—time—to—time

publlc hearlngs shaII be conducted as foIIows

1. Place: Fayette County Administrative Complex

2. Time and Date:

a. Planning Commission: First Thursday, 7:00 p.m.
b. Board of Commissioners: Second and Fourth Thursdays, 7:00
p.m.

Any changes from the standard schedule for public hearings will be published in the
newspaper which carries legal advertisements for the County in compliance with the
requirements for public notification {Seetien-+1-11) as provided herein.

11-250





11-4.

11-5.

11-6.

B. Conduct of Hearing. Public hearings on amendments shall be conducted with at
least-ten—{10) 15 minutes provided for the proponents and atleast ten<{10} 15
minutes provided for the opponents of an application for rezoning. If necessary,
the Chairman or Vice-Chairman, may allocate an equal amount of additional
minutes for both the proponents and the opponents. An applicant may reserve
part of or all of the allotted time for rebuttal.

1. Decisions: Deeisions Recommendations of the Planning Commission and
the decision of the Board of Commissioners on applications for rezoning
shall be made subsequent to the public hearing.

2. Minutes: The Minutes of any public hearing/workshop/meeting shall be
maintained with the zoning decision entered thereon. The Minutes shall
be kept as public records.

Initiation of Amendments. Applications to amend the text of this Ordinance may be
initiated by the Planning Commission, the Board of Commissioners, or by a citizen of
Fayette County. The Planning Commission, the Board of Commissioners, a property
owner, or the authorized agent of a property owner may initiate an application to amend
the official zoning map (rezone property). When an agent is authorized to act on behalf
of an owner, such certificate of authorization shall be notarized on the rezoning
application. All information and required fees must shall be received by the Zoning
Administrator by the deadline date for filing.

Limitation on Re-applying and Withdrawal. If the zoning decision of the Board of
Commissioners is to deny a rezoning of property, then an_application for the same
property may not be re-submitted again-be-censidered for rezoning until the expiration of
at least six (6) months, immediately following sueh the date of denial, unless approved
for consideration by a four-fifths vote of the Board of Commissioners. An application
for a map amendment shall not be withdrawn by the applicant after the legal advertising
as required herein, except as provided r-Seetions11-7and-11-8 herein.

“Writ of Certiorari” (Appeal). An applicant has 30 calendar days from the date of the

11-67..

11-8.

Board of Commissioners rezoning decision to file a “Writ of Certiorari”’ (Appeal) with
the Superior Court of Fayette County.

Application for Amendment. Any citizen filing an application to amend the text or the
official zoning map may obtain an application from the Zoning Administrator.
Applications to amend the text or the official zoning map must shall be submitted on
forms provided by the Zoning Administrator.

Planning Commission Recommendation.

A. The Planning Commission shall make a recommendation of approval, denial,
table, or withdrawal without prejudice on each application. An_action to table
11-251






shall include a justification of such action and a specific meeting date at which
the application is to be reconsidered.

If there is not a full board present at the public hearing, the Petitioner may request
to table the petition to the next Planning Commission public hearing the—next
meonth, provided the Petitioner requests to table the agenda item prior to the
presentation.

A new legal advertisement will not be required with an announcement to a
specific meeting date if an application is tabled; however, the property will be
reposted with new signage indicating the new public hearing dates.

In addition, the Planning Commission may recommend amendments to the
applicant's request which would reduce the land area for which the application is
made, change the zoning district requested to one which is less intense, or
recommend conditions which may be deemed advisable so that the purpose of this
ordinance will be served and the public health, safety, and welfare secured.

A report of the Planning Commission's deeisior recommendation shall be
submitted to the Board of Commissioners. The report shall contain the deeision
recommendation of the Planning Commission, all grounds therefore, and shall be
signed and approved by the Chairman or_Vice-Chairman of the Planning
Commission.

If the Planning Commission fails to submit a report within thirty—36) 100
calendar days from the date of the acceptance of the completed amendment
application, the application shall be-deemed-te-have-been-approved be forwarded
to the Board of Commissioners with no recommendation. Actions of the
Planning Commission which contribute to the delay, such as the lack of a full
board or tabling the petition, shall count toward the 100 calendar days. Actions
by the petitioner, such as a request to table, shall not count toward the 100

calendar days.

11-9. Public Hearing before the Board of Commissioners.

A

After receipt of the Planning Commission's report and recommendation on the
proposed amendment, the Board of Commissioners shall hold a public hearing.
The

Board of Commissioners may approve, deny, or table an application. An action to
table shall include a justification of such action and a specific meeting date at
which the application is to be reconsidered. A new legal advertisement will not
be required with an announcement to a specific meeting date; however, the
property will be reposted with new signage indicating the new public hearing
dates.

11-252





In addition, the Board of Commissioners may approve an amendment with a
reduction in the land area requested, change the zoning district requested (as long
as such change is to a less intense zoning district), or add or delete conditions of
zoning which will enhance the health, safety and welfare of the County.

The Board of Commissioners may, by a majority vote of all members, allow an
application to be withdrawn without prejudice with regards to the waiting period
required by a denial.

The decision of the Board of Commissioners shall be contained in a written report
prepared by the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners. The report shall contain
the decision of the Board of Commissioners, all grounds therefore, and shall be
signed and approved by the Chairman or_Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Commissioners.

The Clerk shall provide a copy of the report to the Zoning Administrator ,which
copy shall become a part of the application file, and shall send one (1) copy to the
applicant by certified mail.

11-10. Conditional Approval. Any application for an amendment may be approved subject to

conditions which relate to the use, occupancy, or development regulations for the
property contained in the petition. Conditions imposed on the property may only be more
restrictive than the requirements of any zoning district and other applicable parts of this
Ordinance as may apply to the property. The following policies shall apply:

A.

Controls Proposed by Applicant. An applicant may propose controls to be
considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of Commissioners. Such
proposed controls may include plans, limitations of use and occupancy, or more
restrictive development standards than would otherwise be applied to the

property.

1. Such proposed controls may be eliminated or changed into conditions of
approval as submitted, or they may be eliminated, modified, or extended.

2. The Board may choose to incorporate, as conditions of approval, selected
restrictions, or requirements which were not included in the request for
controls submitted in the original application.

Consent Not Required. Approval of applications subject to conditions may occur
with or without the consent of the applicant.

Conditions Shall be Permanent. All conditions imposed by action of the Board of
Commissioners shall remain on the subject property regardless of changes in
ownership.

11-253





D. Changes to Conditions. Conditions shall be changed only through the amendment
process by which they were established or when expressly overridden by a State
government authority taking precedence over the area of regulation.

11-11. Standards for Map Amendment (Rezoning) Evaluation. All proposed map amendments
shall be evaluated with special emphasis being placed on the relationship of the proposal
to the Land Use Plan and related development policies of Fayette County. The Ceunty
Planner Zoning Administrator shall prepare a report for each proposed map amendment
which shall recommend a course of action including recommended conditions, if any.
The following factors shall be considered by the Ceunty-Planner Zoning Administrator,
the Planning Commission and the Board of Commissioners when reviewing a request for
rezoning:

A. Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the Land Use Plan and policies
contained therein;

B. Whether the zoning proposal will adversely affect the existing use or usability of
adjacent or nearby property;
C. Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an

excessive or burdensome use of existing or planned streets, utilities, or schools;

D. Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and
development of the property which give supporting grounds for either approval or
disapproval of the zoning proposal.

11-12. Public Notification.

A. Newspaper. Notice of scheduled hearings shall be published in the newspaper of
general circulation within the County in which are carried the legal
advertisements of the County.

1. The notice shall be published at least seven (7) days prior to the public
hearing before the Planning Commission, but not more than ferty-five-{45)
45 calendar days, nor less than fifteen{15) 15 calendar days prior to the
public hearing before the Board of Commissioners. In the event that the
time-frames above cannot be met with one (1) advertisement, the notice
shall be published twice.

2. The notice shall contain the dates of the public hearings before the
Planning Commission and the Board of Commissioners.

3. Public notification shall include at a minimum the time, date, place, and
purpose of the hearing, location, boundary description, and area of the
property, and the current and requested zoning classifications.

11-254





11-13.

11-14.

B. Posting of Sign(s).

1. A sign shall be posted on property for which the rezoning is sought. One
(1) sign is required for each along-every street frontage of said property
for-which-rezoningis-sought: The sign shall be posted consistent with the

requirements for newspaper notification.

2. Signs used for posting property shall be a minimum of eighteen{18) 18
inches by eighteen—(18) 18 inches and shall indicate the application
number, the time, date, place, and purpose of the hearings, and the current
and requested zoning classifications.

3. A refundable sign deposit shall be required for each sign at the time of
application for rezoning.

C. Applicant Notification.

1. Upon certification by the Zoning Administrator that an application is
complete, a notice giving the date, time, and place of the public hearings
shall be given by certified mail to the applicant.

2. The Clerk to the Board of Commissioners shall notify the applicant by
mail of any action (including tabling of action) taken by the Board of
Commissioners. All actions of the Board shall be deemed to be effective
as of the date of the action.

Zoning Reversion. Within three (3) years of the date of rezoning, rezoned property shall
be utilized for uses allowed in the new zoning district or substantial development shall be
demonstrated toward such utilization. Failure to so utilize or demonstrate substantial
development may subject the property to consideration for reversion to the previous
zoning classification. In such event, public hearings shall be—held—as follow the
established procedures for rezoning petitions herein and a final decision rendered by the
Board of Commissioners.

Responsibilities of the Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator shall have the
following responsibilities associated with receiving and processing all amendment
applications:

A. Receive all applications and supporting information and collect all fees at the time
of initial filing;
B. Maintain a log of all applications;

11-255





C. Return incomplete applications and all supporting information to the applicant
upon determination that an application is incomplete with reasons for the
determination;

D. If the application is complete, issue a notice that lists the dates, times and places
of all hearings that are scheduled for the application;

E. Establish and maintain a file for each application which shall contain:
1. Copies of all materials submitted by the applicant;
2. Correspondence, records, reports and exhibits produced during processing;
3. Minutes and all actions taken by the Planning Commission and the Board

of Commissioners on an application; and

4. All follow-up activities, if any, including re-filing of additional requests,
copies of citations or violations and any other significant materials.

F. Prepare a Sketeh Map,—utihzing—County—Fax—Maps; for all map changes

(rezoning), which shall show the location and dimensions of the subject property
of the petition, all properties within at least 1,000 feet of the subject property and
the zoning districts thereon;

G. Transmit to the Ceunty-Planner-and those-specified in-Section—11-2 appropriate
departments within five (5) working days after the deadline for submissions, all

materials to be evaluated aleng-with-the-Sketch-Map;

H. Schedule and provide notice for all public hearings, including the posting of the

property, as required by-Sections11-3-and-11-11 herein;

l. Transmit the recommendation of the Planning Commission to the Board of
Commissioners at least sevenr{#) 14 calendar days prior to the scheduled public
hearing before the Board of Commissioners; and

J. Update the official Zoning Map.

The following has been relocated to a Article XII. Fayette County Planning Commission











ARTICLE XII. PLANNING COMMISSION

12-1. Planning Commission. The Planning Commission consists of that body of members
appointed by the Board of Commissioners to carry out the directives of this and other
ordinances, and to carry out any other duties which may from time to time be assigned to
the Planning Commission by the Board of Commissioners.

A. Membership and Appointments.

1. The Planning Commission shall consist of five (5) members residing
within the County who shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners.
The members of the Planning Commission shall be-drawn reside from in
the same districts used in the election of the Board of Commissioners.

2. Vacancies on the Planning Commission shall be filled by the member of
the Board of Commissioners hailing from the district which has the
vacancy. Prior to this requirement, whereby members of the Planning
Commission shall be appointed from the same districts used in the election
of the County Commissioners, members of the Planning Commission were
required to reside in one (1) of five (5) different Planning Commission
districts.

258





None of the members shall hold any other public office except that one (1)
member may also be a member of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Remeoval Termination of a member from the Planning Commission shall
require a majority vote of the Board of Commissioners.

Term of Office.

1.

The term of office for each member of the Planning Commission shall be

three (3) years—hewever—fe#appmn#nent—ef—the—ﬁ#et—beﬁd—we—@

QZQ—years—anel—ehe—elé—fePehe—elé—year. It is the |ntent of this sectlon that

the terms be staggered with no term limitation.

A vacancy in the membership shall be filled for the unexpired term in the
same manner as the initial appointment.

Officers; Rules and Procedures; Minutes.

1.

The Planning Commission shall elect one of its members as Chairman and
another as Vice-Chairman, each serving for one (1) year or until re-elected
or a successor is elected. The Vice-Chairman shall act as Chairman in the
Chairman's absence. The Planning Commission shall appoint a Secretary
who shall be an employee of Fayette County.

The Planning Commission shall have the authority to adopt rules of
procedure. Meetings of the Planning Commission shall be held at the call
of the Chairman and as scheduled.

The Planning Commission shall keep minutes of its proceedings, showing
the vote of each member upon each question, or if they are absent or fail to
vote, indicating such fact. The Planning Commission shall keep records
of its examinations and other official actions all of which shall be
immediately filed in the office of the Planning Commission (Zoning
Administrator's Office) and shall be public record.

Conflict of Interest. Any member of the Planning Commission shall be

disqualified to act upon a matter before the Planning Commission with respect to
property in which the member has an interest.

259





F. Attendance. It shall may be deemed cause for removal should any member of the
Planning Commission fail, without proper reason, to attend three (3) consecutive
meetings.

ARHCLEXH. ARTICLE XIIl. REPEAL AND CONSTITUTIONALITY
13-1. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. This ordinance is intended as the comprehensive

Zoning Ordinance for the unincorporated area of Fayette County, Georgia, and all
conflicting Ordinances and Resolutions are hereby repealed.

13-2. Constitutionality. If any section or sections of this Ordinance are hereafter adjudged
unconstitutional, it is the intent of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County that the
remainder hereof shall continue in full force and effect.

ARHCLEEXH:- ARTICLE XIIl. REPEAL AND CONSTITUTIONALITY

13-1. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. This ordinance is intended as the comprehensive
Zoning Ordinance for the unincorporated area of Fayette County, Georgia, and all
conflicting Ordinances and Resolutions are hereby repealed.

13-2. Constitutionality. If any section or sections of this Ordinance are hereafter adjudged
unconstitutional, it is the intent of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County that the
remainder hereof shall continue in full force and effect.

FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AND MAP
August 4, 2010

Special Development District

A purpose of a Special Development District is to designate an area where specific land use
policies and regulations will apply to achieve a specific development pattern. The Special

Development District will be depicted—as—a—hatched—pattern—over—a—tand—use—designation

designated on the Future Land Use Plan Map.

SR 74 North East Side Special Development District: The purpose of this Special
Development District is to promote planned office development along the eastern frontage of SR
74 North to a depth of approximately 800 feet to fulfill the stated goals for the future
development of the corridor as stated in the SR 74 North Overlay District. This_Special
Development District will be depicted as a hatched pattern over an Office land use designation
on the Future Land Use Plan.

Planned Small Business Center Special Development District: The purpose of the Planned
Small Business Center Special Development District is to promote business incubator centers
through a planned, mixed-use nonresidential development pattern consisting primarily of a mix
of office uses, service uses, and light industrial uses, with limited small scale commercial uses as
appropriate for the area. The goals of the Planned Small Business Center Special Development
District are: (1) to achieve innovative and creative design in the development layout; (2) to
accomplish appropriate separation, buffering, and vehicular circulation between uses internal to

260






the development to alleviate incompatibility and protect public safety; and (3) to provide
appropriate separation and buffering from surrounding residential uses. These goals will be
achieved through the Planned Unit Development — Planned Small Business Center (PUD-PSBC)
zoning district.

Only properties in the following areas shall be given consideration for PUD-PSBC:

1) Those properties located in the unincorporated area of the county fronting SR 85 North,
north of Banks Road to the Clayton County Boundary designated as Commercial and/or
Industrial on the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan;

(2 Those properties located in the area of SR 314 and Bethea Road designated as Industrial
on the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan; and

3 Those properties located in the unincorporated area of the county fronting SR 54 East,
east from the city limits of Fayetteville to Nash Creek designated as Commercial.

Amendments to the Future Land Use Plan Map will include a label placed in these areas
indicating them as a Planned Small Business Center Special Development District.

FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AND MAP
August 4, 2010

Special Development District

A purpose of a Special Development District is to designate an area where specific land use
policies and regulations will apply to achieve a specific development pattern. The Special

Development District will be depicted—as—a—hatched—pattern—over—a—tand—use—designation

designated on the Future Land Use Plan Map.

SR 74 North East Side Special Development District: The purpose of this Special
Development District is to promote planned office development along the eastern frontage of SR
74 North to a depth of approximately 800 feet to fulfill the stated goals for the future
development of the corridor as stated in the SR 74 North Overlay District. This_Special
Development District will be depicted as a hatched pattern over an Office land use designation
on the Future Land Use Plan.

Planned Small Business Center Special Development District: The purpose of the Planned
Small Business Center Special Development District is to promote business incubator centers
through a planned, mixed-use nonresidential development pattern consisting primarily of a mix
of office uses, service uses, and light industrial uses, with limited small scale commercial uses as
appropriate for the area. The goals of the Planned Small Business Center Special Development
District are: (1) to achieve innovative and creative design in the development layout; (2) to
accomplish appropriate separation, buffering, and vehicular circulation between uses internal to
the development to alleviate incompatibility and protect public safety; and (3) to provide
appropriate separation and buffering from surrounding residential uses. These goals will be
achieved through the Planned Unit Development — Planned Small Business Center (PUD-PSBC)
zoning district.

261





Only properties in the following areas shall be given consideration for PUD-PSBC:

1) Those properties located in the unincorporated area of the county fronting SR 85 North,
north of Banks Road to the Clayton County Boundary designated as Commercial and/or
Industrial on the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan;

(@) Those properties located in the area of SR 314 and Bethea Road designated as Industrial
on the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan; and

(€)) Those properties located in the unincorporated area of the county fronting SR 54 East,
east from the city limits of Fayetteville to Nash Creek designated as Commercial.

Amendments to the Future Land Use Plan Map will include a label placed in these areas
indicating them as a Planned Small Business Center Special Development District.

262





		Planning and Zoning- Amendmen... Ordinance Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Amendment Entire Zoning Ordinance Backup-print




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Public Works/Road Department Presenter(s): Phil Mallon and Staff
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: |Report
Wording for the Agenda:

Presentation of the monthly update on the County's 2010 Transportation Work Plan by Public Works Director Phil Mallon.

Background/History/Details:

Each month at the Board's Workshop, the Director of Public Works, along with appropriated staff if needed, will present an update of the
Department's 2010 Transportation Work Plan. This update will include an overview of the County's road improvement projects, whether
newly-begun, on-going, or planned. These projects include roadway construction, resurfacing, intersection improvements, signalization,
and bridge improvements. Funding for Fayette County's transportation improvements comes from the County's budget, the Georgia
Department of Transportation, the special purpose local option sales tax funds, or a combination of these revenue sources.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

This is intended to be a monthly update to the Board of Commissioners. Staff from time to time may need feedback or further direction
from the Board.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when?  [Wednesday, September 1, 2010

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? No Back-up Material Submitted? No
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:







COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Public Works / Planning & Zoning Presenter(s): Phil Mallon / Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of proposed street names resulting from the construction of the West Fayetteville By-Pass, Phase | and the extension/
re-configuration of existing County roads.

Background/History/Details:

The construction of Phase | of the West Fayetteville By-Pass, and the related extension/re-configuration of three (3) existing County
roads, have created the need to propose street names. The suggested street names and locations are as follows:

1) The new roadway from SR 54 West north to Sandy Creek Road is requested to be named Piedmont Parkway.

2) The extension of Heritage Farm Lane to Lester Road is requested to be named Heritage Farm Lane.

3) The re-configuration of Lester Road and Huiet Road south from SR 54 West is requested to be named Lester Road.
4) The re-configuration of Sandy Creek Road is requested to be named Sandy Creek Road.

A map is attached picturing the location of the roads and their suggested names.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
No action is being requested for this meeting. Staff is requesting permission to place the proposed street names on the October 14, 2010
Consent Agenda for formal Board approval.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past?  |No If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? Yes Back-up Material Submitted? Yes
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:
















		Public Works- Street Name Changes Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Public Works- Street Name Changes Backup




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Road Department Presenter(s): Andy Adams
Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2010 Type of Request: |Report
Wording for the Agenda:

Presentation of staff's Preliminary Engineering Report for the paving of Sims Road.

Background/History/Details:

In accordance with Policy 200.02, Gravel Road Upgrade Policy, the Road Department has prepared a conceptual layout and cost
estimate for the paving of Sims Road. Currently, Sims Road is a dead-end, gravel road approximately 0.6 miles long and located off
Dogwood Trail, immediately north of Peachtree City.

In recent years property owners have repeatedly requested the road be paved and have on several occasions submitted a Paving
Request Petition indicating at least 80% of the required right-of-way would be donated. Two specific goals of the Preliminary Engineering
Report are to 1) develop a preliminary cost estimate, and 2) determine approximate impacts to properties. This information can then be
used to determine if staff should proceed with Property Owner Confirmation and a Time and Material Cost Estimate.

Provided as back-up to this agenda request is a copy of Policy 200.02. The Preliminary Engineering Report will be presented at the
Workshop.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

No formal action is required at this time, as this report is informational only; however, this is a years-long issue and staff welcomes the
Board's input and direction.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Funding is not required at this time.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past?  |No If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? Yes Back-up Material Submitted? Yes
STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable Approved by County Clerk  |Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:






Fayette County Road Department Policy 200.02
Gravel Road Upgrade Policy

PURPOSE

This policy provides a methodology and procedures for County citizens to follow when requesting that an existing
gravel road be paved by the Road Department.

POLICY
There shall be a consistent and uniform process for paving gravel roads upon request by citizens.

PROCEDURE

1. Paving Request Petition — The first step towards having a gravel road paved is to obtain a Paving Request
Petition. Blank petitions are available on-line, at http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/public_works/index.asp or
through the Road Department, located at 115 McDonough Road in Fayetteville (770-320-6010). The petition is
used to gage property owner support of the project and willingness to donate right-of-way for the project. A detalil,
showing typical gravel and paved road cross-sections, is included with the petition to address common questions
associated with road paving.

2. Property Owner Support — In order for a Paving Request Petition to be considered complete, it shall have the
signatures (i.e., support) of enough property owners along the road such that at least 80 percent of the road
frontage is pledged for donation. For example, a gravel road 2,500 feet long has 5,000 feet of road frontage (2 x
2,500). Eighty percent of this distance is 4,000 ft. Thus, a group of property owners having at least 4,000 feet of
frontage must be willing to sign the petition. Completed petitions shall be submitted to the Road Department.

3. Preliminary Engineering — Upon receipt of the petition, Fayette County will prepare a conceptual road layout
(based on existing aerial photography and topography) that shows the proposed road alignment, right-of-way,
drainage improvements, and potential easements. This information serves two purposes. First, it allows the
Road Department to develop preliminary cost estimates of the project. Second, it will provide information to help
identify and explain potential impacts to property owners.

4. Property Owner Confirmation — The County will conduct a public information meeting within 90 days of receipt
of a valid petition during which the conceptual plan will be presented to the citizens. This meeting is designed to
disseminate information and allow questions regarding impacts to individual properties. After the public
information session the Road Department will meet with property owners, as necessary, within 60 days to solicit
input and answer questions about the proposed project. Upon validating that a minimum of 80 percent support for
project still exists, the County will proceed with the remaining steps to move the request forward.

5. Time and Material Cost Estimates — The Road Department will develop time and material cost estimates for the
construction work.

6. Board of Commissioner Approval — The Road Department will present the paving request, all pertinent
supporting information and a Department recommendation on the request to the BOC at a public meeting.
Property owners and other interested parties will have an opportunity to express support or opposition to the
project at the meeting.

7. Funding — Upon Board approval, the project will be scheduled in accordance with the County’s Capital
Improvement Program.

8. Engineering — Upon scheduled implementation, detailed engineering work will commence. Properties will be
surveyed and plans developed identifying road alignment, right-of-way donation area, temporary/permanent
easements, drainage improvements, and other impacts to private property. Road improvements shall be
designed in accordance with minimum safety standards.

9. Right-of-Way Acquisition — Upon completion of right-of-way plats and associated legal descriptions, the County
will acquire the needed right-of-way and easements.

10. Construction — Construction activities will begin in accordance with the established parameters of the CIP.



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/public_works/index.asp



RIGHT-OF MY LINE —— -+ —————_____

EXISTING TREES .
INSIDE. RAY LINES - :
REMOVED ——— — N,
Y i
NEW NEW
MALECX ¢ MALBOX  paLesaTED
FELCE —.
TEMFORARY

EASEMENT
'A.!EAP

HEW X" WIDE
DOVED STREET

vy

- &

FUTURE PAVED STREET

PROPOS ED RIGHT-QF-WAY LINE

EXISTING TREES
INSIDE RAW LINES —____

EXIGTHHE FERCE

EXISTING UNPAVED STREET






		Road - Sims Road PE Report Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Road - Sims Road PE Report Backup

		Gravel Road Paving Policy-BOC approved

		Binder1.pdf

		GravelRoadPolicy-BOC agenda item

		GravelRoadPolicy-BOC agenda item











